
 
North Bristol NHS Trust 

Trust Board Meeting in Public 
Thursday 4 June 2015 

12.30pm, Seminar Room 4, Learning and Research Centre, 
Southmead Hospital 

Agenda  
1.  Apologies and Declarations of Interest: Harry Hayer  

2.  Questions from Members of the Public   

3.  Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on 26 March 2015 Enc 

4.  Action Log AY/Enc 

5.  Chairman’s Business PR/Verbal 
6.  Chief Executive’s Report AY/Enc  

Quality & Performance  

7. Patient Story SJ/Verbal 
8. Monthly Integrated Performance Report AY/Execs/Enc 

9. Vascular Services Six Month Review KH/Enc 
10. Sustainability Five Year Plan Update CP/Enc 
11. Nursing and Midwifery Revalidation SJ/Enc 

Strategy and Development  

12. Strategy Timeline and Progress Update SK/Enc 

13. Capital Planning Progress Report SW/Enc 

Governance & Regulation  

14. Audit Committee Report KG/Verbal 
15. Annual Accounts 2014/15 and Letter of Representation CP/Enc 
16. Annual Report 2014/15 AY/Enc 
17. Charitable Funds Committee Report KG/Verbal 
18. Charitable Funds Accounts 2014/15 and Letter of 

Representation 
CP/Enc 

19. Quality & Risk Management Committee Report RM/Enc 

20. Finance & Performance Committee Report ML/Enc 

21. Trust Management Team Report AY/To follow 
22. Any Other Business  

23. Date of Next Meeting 
Thursday 30 July 2015, 12.30pm, Learning and Research 
Centre, Southmead Hospital. 

 

 



 

North Bristol NHS Trust 
 

Minutes of the Trust Board Meeting held in public on  
26 March 2015 in Seminar Room 5, Learning and Research Building, 

Southmead Hospital 
 

Present:    
Mr P Rilett 
Mr K Guy 
Mr R Mould 
 
Ms E Redfern 
 
Mr A Willis 

Chairman 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director 
(until item 03/13) 
Non-Executive Director 
 
Non-Executive Director 

Ms A Young 
Dr C Burton 
Ms K Hannam 
 
Mr H Hayer 
 
Mrs S Jones 

Chief Executive 
Medical Director 
Director of Operations 
 
Director of People and 
Organisation Health 
Director of Nursing 

  Mr S Karakusevic 
 
Mrs C Phillips 
Mr S Wood 

Director of Strategy and 
Transformation 
Director of Finance 
Director of Facilities 

In Attendance:    
Mrs C Lang Acting Head of 

Marketing and 
Communications 

Mr C Price Co Company 

Mr W Priestman 
 
 
Mr N Stibbs 

Interim Chief 
Information Officer (for 
item 03/11) 
Corporate Services 
Manager 

Mr E Sanders Trust Secretary 

Observers: 
Five members of the 

 
Public were present 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

TB/15/03/01 Apologies and Declarations of Interest  Action 

 Apologies were received from Mr Mark Lawton, Non-Executive Director 

No interests were declared in the papers presented. 
 

TB/15/03/02 Questions from Members of the Public  

 Mr David Chandler had written to the Chief Executive regarding 
delayed discharges, loss of acute bed days, avoidable admissions and 
contracts with local partners. Specific questions were asked regarding 
the amount of activity the Trust was losing because of delayed 
discharges, the loss of income from cancelled operations and use of 
the private sector and details of the Discharge to Assess Scheme. 

Kate Hannam reported that actual activity was higher than planned for 
with the local commissioners and admission avoidance activity was 
also higher than planned. At a recent partnership meeting Sirona had 
openly talked about being over capacity. Winter plans had provided 
extra money but the Trust would need a baseline for next Winter and 
needed to know what resilience money was going to be available. A 
report on the demand for nursing home beds in Bristol and South 
Gloucestershire had also been commissioned. 
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TB/15/03/03 Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on 22 January 2015 

 The minutes were approved as a true and correct record of the 
meeting. 

 

TB/15/03/04 Action Log  

 The Trust Board agreed the closure of actions as indicated and 
considered the following actions: 

Action No 59 – The Director of People and Organisation Health 
proposed, and it was agreed, that a training session on equality be held 
at the end of the next Board meeting 

Action No 1 – The Director of Facilities reported that a contractor had 
been commissioned to design a sign at the entrance to the public car 
park. A pay on foot system was being piloted in April. 

Action No 2 – The Director of Operations reported that improvement 
trajectories and final achievement dates would be included in the April 
figures in the IPR 

 
 
 
HH 

TB/15/03/05 Chairman’s Business  

 The Chairman reported that he had no new information to give to the 
Board that month. 

 

TB/15/03/06 Chief Executive’s Report  

 The Chief Executive presented her report for the month and said that 
the Women’s and Children’s Directorate was reviewing the independent 
investigation into maternity and neonatal services at Morecambe Bay 
and would be identifying if any of its recommendations were applicable 
to North Bristol Trust. In addition, the various NHS investigations into 
Jimmy Savile and the overarching Lessons Learnt report had been 
published in February. The Trust would develop an action plan to 
identify where additional actions were needed to comply with the 
recommendations accepted by the Secretary of State and report to the 
Quality and Risk Management Committee (Q&RMC) in May.  

The Chief Executive said that she had attended the annual audit of 
midwifery supervisors and noted with pleasure that NBT’s staff were 
rated as very good. A supervisor was always available to expectant 
mothers and there was a birth afterthought service. Local supervision 
arrangements were to change next year and these would be reported 
through the Q&RMC.  

Referring to the new criminal offence that applied to NHS provider 
organisations under the 2014 Care Act, the Chief Executive said that 
the executives must now consider how data quality was managed to 
ensure all information supplied to outside bodies met the requirements. 

Andrew Willis, Non-Executive Director, questioned how the Trust was 
responding to the Francis report on whistleblowing and Harry Hayer, 
Director of People and Organisation Health said that he would welcome 
comments from Board members and members of staff before he put 
proposals to the Q&RMC meeting in May. The Chairman and the Chief 
Executive expressed the view that the appointment of a ‘Freedom to 
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Speak Up Guardian from outside the organisation was likely to give 
staff greater confidence in the process. 

The Board noted the report 

TB/15/03/07 Patient Story  

 The Director of Nursing and Quality presented a patient story which 
illustrated the spiritual care given to patients and families and the 
general care and compassion of staff.  

She said that the chaplaincy team became involved on the Cotswold 
Ward with a husband and wife regarding a late termination because of 
advanced cancer. The couple had been given the choice of further 
chemotherapy or taking the pregnancy to term with the risk that neither 
mother nor child survived. Termination was chosen with a burial 
afterwards. The chaplain took the funeral the day before the mother 
was admitted to hospice. Throughout this the chaplain supported both 
mother and giving emotional and pastoral help. The father later wrote of 
his appreciation. 

The story exemplified the vital part compassionate care played in the 
hospital. About 120 baby funerals were carried out each year and a 
register was kept in the Brunel Sanctuary. The bereavement office dealt 
with approximately 1800 adult deaths and the chaplains recorded 2,765 
significant visits in 2014/15. 

 

TB/15/03/08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Inspector of Hospitals Inspection Action Plan 
Sue Jones, Director of Nursing and Quality presented the Trust’s 
proposed formal response to the Enforcement Action and compliance 
actions contained within the Care Quality Commission reports issued 
on 11 February 2015. The action plans for both the CQC reports and 
the updated ED Improvement Plan had been through a number of 
iterations and interventions since they had been seen by the Quality 
and Risk Management Committee. The Warning notice action plan in 
the papers still had a red rating but work that week would turn it amber. 
There was strong commitment on dignity by ED staff, new consultants 
had been appointed, the last nurse to be appointed would start in April, 
an additional triage nurse put in and training of reception staff had 
started. Mental health assessment actions were on track with 
procedures in place to appoint a band 8a nurse and a manager for 
adult mental health liaison and an adult liaison psychiatrist post was out 
for advert. 

Chris Burton said there were new and different practices in place which 
he had witnessed but the new RATing protocol had yet to be finalised. 
Speeds of patients through the department had gone up and the 
number of patients who attended the department and left without being 
seen had been reduced. The department, however, still experienced 
intermittent crowding but the quality of care was materially different 
from the inspection time.  

The Chairman noted that the CQC would need to inspect again to 
assure itself that actions had achieved their desired outcome before the 
Warning Notice could be lifted and Ken Guy reflected that a number of 
actions were still rated amber and a number of actions were still some 
way off completion. Andrea Young, Chief Executive reported that a 
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series of actions had been completed but the Trust could not say that 
the Emergency Department would never be overcrowded. If every 
department and partner worked as they had done in the Onwards 
Together week the Board could be assured that quality and patient 
experience would not be compromised. She could not sign up, 
however, to the cross-partner issues and the patient flow across the 
system. This would have to be made clear to the CQC in the 
accompanying letter to the Trust’s response. 

Liz Redfern, non-executive director, questioned the level of confidence 
of the executives that pain relief and mental health patients were dealt 
with safely and in a dignified manner in the intermittent crowded times 
in ED. Kate Hannam, Director of Operations, replied that staff now 
viewed the Corridor as part of their area of care and Sue Jones said 
that pain relief was now assessed in an appropriate area given and 
moved appropriately. Andy Willis, non-executive, expressed the opinion 
that he would feel more confident if an outside clinician assessed the 
current position as at least acceptable and Chris Burton, Medical 
Director, said that this had been arranged. 
The Chairman summed up the ED position as better but with issues to 
improve that were being acted on and some system changes which 
would take longer than suggested by the CQC. Andrea Young said that 
the Warning Notice action plan was required to be in place by the end 
of March but the compliance actions had a number of different timelines 
and Sue Jones noted that she led the ongoing checks and challenges 
to progress on the actions through a fortnightly meeting of an 
operations group. The Board agreed that it should see an overview of 
the required timelines appropriate to the various parts of the action 
plans. 

Integrated Performance Report 
The Chief Executive presented the Integrated Performance Report to 
the end of February 2015 and said that the Trust continued to face 
challenges to delayed discharge and four hour A&E performance. 
Referral to Treatment (RTT) performance had improved but remained 
lower than national performance although the planned additional 
validation activity of the highest waiting time specialties had reduced 
the number such that the Trust had achieved its backlog trajectory 
excluding non-English CCGs. Performance against Cancer standards 
were improving with some improvements also in quality and health care 
acquired infections continued to be well within targets. 

The Director of Operations, Kate Hannam, presented the key 
operational standards and reported that the A&E performance had 
remained fairly steady over the Winter whilst most other EDs had 
deteriorated. During the Onwards Together week different ways of 
working had been experimented with following suggestions and 
promises from staff. The Trust had always managed to find a bed for 
ED admissions but too often too late in the day. Onwards Together had 
made the flow of patients happen. A silver command had dealt with 140 
issues and unblocked many of them and case conferences had been 
held at 8.30 am and 1.00 pm each day. A rota for staff to continue the 
duties undertaken by silver command, during that week had been 
drawn up to continue the function after Easter and the Better Board 
Rounds project had been launched to continue the drive on getting 
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patients out of hospital. In addition the GP Specialist Unit based in the 
Emergency Zone would start in April 

The Trust was currently the second highest for delayed transfers of 
care in the country and review of their status had found that 50% were 
delayed for health reasons and 50% for social reasons. Joint working 
was taking place with Sirona regarding advanced rehabilitation for Elgar 
House patients and Sirona may also be able to help with actions at the 
‘front door’. 

The Medical Director reported that the final position of Cancer targets in 
January was disappointing with a number of patients expressing a wish 
to postpone any work around the Christmas and New Year to January. 
Whilst the two week wait had been achieved in February the 
predominant problem was skin cancer were increased referrals had not 
been matched with increased capacity which, in its turn, was impacting 
on choice. Only the longer term work on 2015/16 demand and capacity 
would address this issue. The 62 day target had improved but not met 
the target. This was largely due to breaches in urology because of 
capacity and complex care pathways. 31 day breaches also continued 
in urology due to surgical capacity and medical reasons. 

Referring to the 18 week RTT performance Kate Hannam reported that 
the target for the year would not be achieved for either admitted or non-
admitted patients. The backlog would be carried forward to the 2015/16 
plan. The main areas contributing to this failure were general surgery, 
pain management, medicine and orthopaedics. Neurosurgery would 
continue to have 52 week breaches until August and spinal surgery 52 
week breaches were being reduced on trajectory. Patients in the latter 
specialty were being offered the choice of a private provider but only 
those who had waited less than 52 weeks had taken this up. Taunton 
would help with outpatient work and patients who went there would 
have the choice of staying with Taunton or returning to NBT for surgery. 
The target for achievement of diagnostics waiting times remained at 
December 2015 but there were few therapists who provided this role 
available to recruit. 

It was agreed that the actual number of patients suffering same day 
cancelled operations should be placed in the IPR and Andy Willis 
questioned why patients could not be told the night before that they 
could not have an operation. Kate Hannam reported that there were 
two bed meetings each day with the 8.00 am meeting looking at 
cancellations for the next two days and the 4.00 pm meeting only 
looking if it had the requisite data. Catherine Phillips, Director of 
Finance, noted that 138 operations had been cancelled over the Winter 
representing a loss of income to the Trust of £640,000. 

Chris Burton noted that the target for VTE risk assessment had been 
achieved in January and the total number of C Diff cases was now 41 
and still well under the target. Next year’s target, however, was only 43. 

The Director of Nursing reported that the potential Never Event 
reported in January was now expected to be downgraded and the 
Medical Director said that the WHO Checklist data needed to be 
checked. The target of 95% was not high enough in safety terms but 
the target was more about measurement than experience. The 
reporting and audit approach used by Plymouth Hospitals was being 
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reviewed for potential adoption. 

Liz Redfern referred to the monitoring data on the sterile services 
department (SSD) and questioned whether non-conformances had an 
effect on patient experiences. Kate Hannam reported that 45% of all 
the SSD work was for orthopaedics and triangulation of data with 
cancelled or delayed operations and list postponements was not 
currently undertaken but would be instigated. To improve the response 
rate for the Friends and Family test hand held tablet computers were 
being piloted in nine wards and a video booth was to be trialled in the 
Emergency Department. 

The Director of People and Organisation Health reported on the key 
workforce indicators and noted that turnover was levelling off but 
sickness absence had increased and improvements in management 
were being investigated. A review of twelve hour shifts would be 
complete by the end of April and included in depth interviews of 22 
staff. Recruitment and workforce planning were being focussed on and 
the Human Resources department was currently recruiting to 318 
vacancies Overall there were about 600 vacancies of which 185 were in 
Facilities. 

The Director of Nursing reported that completion rates for the Early 
Warning Trigger Tool had fallen and this had been discussed with 
Heads of Nursing in detail to ensure compliance and actions to improve 
rates were reviewed in each directorate. 

Catherine Phillips said that a revised financial outturn deficit of £19.74 
million for 2014/15 had been agreed with the Trust Development 
Authority and to achieve this, performance in March needed to improve 
by £700,000. There was a cash balance of £18.6 million and temporary 
cash support of £8.6 million had been repaid in February.  

The Board noted that the CQC’s risk rating continued to remain at 3 
and agreed to continue to respond negatively to the Board statement 
on satisfaction with plans to ensure ongoing compliance with all existing 
targets. 

Draft Vision and Strategy Update 
Sasha Karakusevic, Director of Strategy and Transformation provided 
the Board with an update on the development of the strategic planning 
process and the draft vision for the Trust. He said that initial meetings 
had been held with a number of stakeholders including clinical 
commissioning groups, patient groups and staff and emerging from 
these was a picture consistent with the Trust’s mission. The draft vision 
appeared now to be close to approval but some finessing was needed 
particularly around services in the community. 

Three themes, from the potential 15 identified at the Tortworth event, 
were now to be pursued to help enact the vision. These were: 
Delivering our core offer, Being a healthy organisation and Creating the 
future. The timetable for the next steps was evolving but a long term 
financial model would need to be developed over the Summer. 

The Board discussed the paper and agreed that the strategic risks 
identified will be monitored next year through the Risk and Assurance 
framework and that the current plans should include the Trust’s 
relationships with external bodies. An overarching strategy should be 
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agreed at the May (early June) Board meeting. SK 

TB/15/03/11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TB/15/03/12 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TB/15/03/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TB/15/03/14 

 

 

 

 

Quality, Risk and Management Committee 
Rob Mould, Chairman of the Quality and Risk Management Committee, 
presented the report from the Committee’s meetings held on 26 
January and 16 March 2015. He highlighted the work the Committee 
had done on the CQC action plan and the conference call with its 
members to comment on the latest changes prior to the issue of the 
papers to the Board. A deep dive had been undertaken with the clinical 
lead and matron of the ED. At the January meeting a deep dive had 
also been undertaken with the clinical director and general manager of 
the core clinical services directorate regarding theatres.  

The Committee had discussed patient safety walkrounds and the 
inclusion of non-executives in a schedule and he would seek advice 
from the other non-executives in their potential commitment to the 
system. Peter Rilett, Chairman, suggested, and it was agreed, that a 
prioritisation timetable was put together for non-executives. 

The Board noted the report. 

Draft Annual and Financial Plans 2015/16 
Catherine Phillips presented the draft annual business plan and draft 
financial plans for 2015/16 and said that negotiations were ongoing with 
commissioners which meant that further work was required along with 
development of the organisation’s overall objectives. These would be 
incorporated into the final documents for approval in April. The 
reviewed pay deal was estimated to add £0.6 million to the Trust’s 
estimate of an additional £3.5 million for pay for 2015/16 

The Board noted the paper. 
Audit Committee Report 
Ken Guy, chairman of the Audit Committee, presented the report from 
its meeting of 26 January 2015 and highlighted its agreement to 
proceed with a competitive tender for internal audit and counter fraud 
services for 2015/16. It had also noted the discussions with the external 
auditors regarding the potential audit opinion for 2014/15 and that a 
second Section 19 letter would not be necessary provided the Trust 
met its recovery target. The value for money conclusion was likely to 
remain ‘except for’ as the financial plans for 2015/16 continued to 
forecast a deficit. 

The Committee had been informed that the Independent Governance 
Review of the Board’s awareness of the developing deficit position in 
2013/14 had been completed. It suggested that the Board had not been 
sighted on the cumulative impact of a series of individual issues 
possibly contributed to by the quality of evidence. The report would be 
made available to the Board for its April meeting. 

Finance and Performance Committee Report 
The Board noted that the Committee would no longer duplicate 
discussions concerning the Integrated Performance Report with 
discussions held at the Board but would hold ‘deep dives’ into specific 
areas that carried the greatest risks to the Trust. These issues included 
demand management and capacity planning and OD strategy and 
percentage of bank and agency staff usage. The financial sustainability 
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TB/15/03/15 

programme was considered in detail but it was recognised that the 
focus would in future be on the 2015/16 programme. 

Trust Management Team Report 

 
 
 
 

The Board received and noted the report from the meeting of the Trust 
Management Team held on 20 January, 17 February and 17 March 
2015 which included discussions on the Trust strategy and Business 
Planning and agreement on the Annual Budget subject to confirmation 
of the final contract positions, the action plan to address CQC findings 
and support for tendering in wave 2 to become a genomics medical 
centre. 

 

TB/15/03/16 Charitable Funds Committee Report  

 
 

Ken Guy, Chairman of the Charitable Funds Committee, presented the 
report from its meeting held on 3 March 2015. He emphasised the likely  
success in achieving the income target of £1.14 million, the plan to 
raise £1.4 million in 2015/16 and the approval to move £4.3 million of 
restricted to unrestricted funds as of 1 April 2015. He noted that an 
advisory board idea was being developed to consider the Committee’s 
investments. 

 

TB/15/03/17 Declaration of Board Interests 2014/15  
 

 

TB/15/03/18 

The Board noted the declaration of interests of all the members of the 
Board in 2014/15. 

Any Other Business 
Director of Information Management and Technology (IM&T) 
The Director of People and Organisation Health reported that 
shortlisting of candidates for the post of Director of IM&T was to take 
place the following week with interviews on 15 April 2015 

 

TB/15/01/19 Date of Next Meeting  

 The next meeting would be held on Thursday 4 June 2015 in Seminar 
Room 4, Learning and Research Centre, Southmead Hospital 
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North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Action Log 2014

Meeting 
Date

Minute Ref Action 
No. 

Action Owner Review Date 
(s)

Status Info.

22-Jan-15 TB/15/01/7 1 Investigation to be undertaken on available car 
parking spaces sign at entrance to public multi-storey 
car park

SW 30/04/15 & 
04/06/15 O

Work commissioned and design being 
changed

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/09 9 Trust wide serious incident rate IPR graph to include 
benchmarking with similar organisations

SJ 04-Jun-15 O

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/09 13 WHO Checklist data to be reviewed and narrative to 
be included which explains the variance in average 
from reported directorates

CB/SJ 04-Jun-15
O

26-Mar-15 42159.00 12 Non-Executive priorities to be mapped ES/PR 04-Jun-15 O
27-Nov-14 TB/14/11/13 57 Draft objectives for Equality to be brought to Board in 

March
HH 30/04/2015 

&  30/07/15
O To be discussed by Workforce Committee in 

June
27-Nov-14 TB/14/11/13 58 Action plan for moving the Trust to Equality Delivery 

System 2 grade 'achieving' (green) required.
HH 30/04/2015 

& 30/07/15
O To be discussed by Workforce Committee in 

June
27-Nov-14 TB/14/11/13 59 Appointments Panel members to be given diversity 

training
HH 30/04/15 & 

30/07/15 O
Harry Hayer to lead a Board training session 
at end of April meeting. Postponed to July 
meeting

22-Jan-15 TB/15/01/8 2 IPR Dashboards to include NBT improvement 
trajectory for that month and final achievement date

CB/KH/
SJ

30-Apr-15 C

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/06 5 Comments on Francis Report on whistleblowing to be 
sent to Harry Hayer for report to Q&RMC in May 
2015

All 30/04/15 & 
30/07/15 O

Postponed to July Q&RMC meeting

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/08 6 Letter explaining clear reasons for delays in 
compliance with all actions required from warning 
notice to accompany CQC submission

SJ 30-Apr-15
C

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/08 7 Independent professional with inspection experience 
to review ED

CB 30-Apr-15 C

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/08 8 Overview of different timelines for actions from CQC 
inspection to next meeting

SJ 30-Apr-15 C

26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/10 10 Comments on Trust vision to be sent to Sasha 
Karakusevic

All 30-Apr-15 C

ACTION LOG Status
A Agenda - this meeting
O Open
C Closed



North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Action Log 2014

Meeting 
Date

Minute Ref Action 
No. 

Action Owner Review Date 
(s)

Status Info.

ACTION LOG Status
A Agenda - this meeting
O Open
C Closed

27-Nov-14 TB/14/11/09 56 First of six-monthly reports on Vascular Service to be 
brought to Board

SK 04-Jun-15 A Item 9

22-Jan-15 TB/15/01/08 3 Workforce (including OD) strategy to be developed HH 30-Jul-15 O
26-Mar-15 TB/15/03/10 11 Overarching strategy to be approved by Board at first 

June meeting
SK 04-Jun-15 A Item 12



North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Decision Log 2014

Meeting 
Date

Minute 
Ref No. Decision

22/1/15 TB/15/01/14 1 F&PC decision to approve transfer of cellular pathology from UHB to NBT ratified

26/3/15 TB/15/03/08 2
Action plan response to CQC and updated ED improvement plan in response to warning notice approved for submission 
with accompanying letter

26/3/15 TB/15/03/09 3 Board compliance statement 10 to continue to be negative
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

DECISION LOG
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Date of Meeting: 4 June 2015 

 
Report Title: Chief Executive’s Report 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

X    
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Appendices (list if applicable): Appendix 1 – Ministerial Appointments and Legislative Preview – NHS Providers Briefing 

 
Recommendation:  

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of the report. 

 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
1.1. To present an update on local and national issues 

impacting on the Trust, and to provide an update on 
consultant appointments and documents which have 
been signed or sealed. 
 

2. Background 

2.1. The Trust Board should receive a report from the 
Chief Executive to each meeting detailing important 
changes or issues in the external environment (e.g. 
policy changes, quality and financial risks in the 
health economy, PBR new tariffs etc.). 

2.2. Following the implementation of a revised approach 
to Flash Reporting, the Chief Executive report is now 
more focused on the external environment. 
 
New care models – vanguard site 

2.3. In January the NHS invited individual organisations 
and partnerships, including those with the voluntary 
sector to apply to become ‘vanguard’ sites for the 
New Care Models Programme, one of the first steps 
towards delivering the Five Year Forward View and 
supporting improvement and integration of services. 

2.4. More than 260 individual organisations and health 
and social care partnerships expressed an interest in 
developing a model in one of the areas of care, with 
the aim of transforming how care is delivered locally. 
 

 
2.5. On 10 March, the first wave of 29 vanguard sites 

were chosen. This followed a rigorous process, 
involving workshops and the engagement of key 
partners and patient representative groups. Each 
vanguard site will take a lead on the development 
new care models which will act as the blueprints for 
the NHS moving forward and the inspiration to the 
rest of the health and care system. 

2.6. On 20 May, the next phase in the 
programme was announced aimed at developing 
innovative ways of delivering high quality acute care 
for patients. More information can found here: NHS 
launches new collaboration to sustain and improve 
local hospitals. 

2.7. A map of the current vanguard sites is 
below: 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

 
 
 

3. NHS Investigations into Jimmy Savile and the Kate 
Lampard Lessons Learnt Report 
3.1. In the last Chief Executive’s Report it was 

highlighted that the Trust was required to respond to 
the recommendations from the Kate Lampard report 
into the lessons learnt from the Jimmy Savile 
investigations by 31 May 2015. 

3.2. A response was prepared by the Trust Secretary 
and was considered by the Quality & Risk 
Management Committee on 18 May 2015. 

3.3. The Trust’s response was then submitted by the 
deadline. The QRMC has agreed to monitor the 
action plan until completion. 
 

4. New MPs, Ministerial appointments and legislative 
preview – NHS Providers Briefing 
4.1. We welcome new Bristol MPs Thangam Debbonaire 

and Karin Smyth, from Labour to Bristol’s West and 
South constituencies and say hello again to Labour’s 
Kerry McCarthy from Bristol East and Conservative’s 
Charlotte Leslie from Bristol North West. In South 
Gloucestershire we welcome Luke Hall, 
Conservative, to the Thornbury and Yate 
constituency and re-welcome Conservatives Jack 
Lopresti and Chris Skidmore from the Filton and 
Bradley Stoke and Kingswood constituencies. I look 
forward to meeting the new incumbents. 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

4.2. NHS providers have issued a briefing post the 
election to confirm ministerial appointments and 
areas where there may be legislative change. 

4.3. The briefing is attached in Appendix 1. 
 

5. Well-led Framework Reviews 
5.1. The Well-led framework for governance reviews 

document has been updated and is now being used 
by Monitor, the NHS Trust Development Authority 
(TDA) and the CQC. 

5.2. The TDA have recently completed a pilot of the 
reviews in four organisations and are currently 
collating learning to share with other NHS Trusts. 

5.3. In advance of this, the Trust has been considering 
how to undertake the review and is proposing to 
complete a self-assessment using the framework 
over the Summer 2015. 

5.4. It is also proposed to work with Avon and Wiltshire 
Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust to undertake a 
peer review of each other’s assessments. This 
would involve an observation of key meetings, 
including the Trust Board, Quality & Risk 
Management Committee and Finance & 
Performance Committee, interviews with Board 
members and potentially a number of small staff 
focus groups. 

5.5. The TDA are supportive of this proposed approach, 
and subject to Trust Board agreement, a timetable 

for the assessment will be developed and brought 
back to the Board for agreement. 
 

6. UHB/NBT Partnership Board 
6.1 The recent meeting of the UHB/NBT Partnership 

Board discussed the key issues of system leadership 
in the Bristol, North Somerset and South 
Gloucestershire area and updates on the transfers of 
services between the two organisations 

 
7. Update on Executive Director Appointments 

7.1 The new Director of IM&T is due to start on 2 
November 2014. 

7.2 The role of Director of Communications has now been 
advertised and an interview date is being agreed with 
the TDA. 

7.3 The application to become a Genomics Centre will be 
led by a Board reporting into the Trust Management 
Team and it will be chaired by Anthony Gallagher, 
Chairman of the Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health 
Partnership Trust. 

 
 

8 Recent Consultant Appointments 
8.1 The following consultant appointments have been 

made since 1 March 2015: 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
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Interview 
Date 

Name Role Start Date 

3 March 
2015 

Louise 
Molodynski 

Child & 
Adolescent 
Psychiatry 

20 April 2015 

10 March 
2015 

Ella 
Chaudhuri 

Acute 
Medicine 

TBC 

30 March 
2015 

Edward 
Sheffield 

Cellular 
Pathology 

1 September 
2015 

31 March 
2015 

Paul Bevis Vascular 
Surgery 

1 June 2015 

22 April 
2015 

Kamaleeka 
Mukherjee 

Child & 
Adolescent 
Psychiatry 

1 May 2015 

22 April 
2015 

Lisa Jenkins Child & 
Adolescent 
Psychiatry 

8 May 2015 

19 May 2015 Caroline 
Bodey 

Community 
Paediatrics 

TBC 

19 May 2015 Emma 
Heckford 

Community 
Paediatrics 

TBC 

 
9. Guidance for the 2015-16 emergency preparedness, 

resilience and response (EPRR) assurance process 
9.1 Dr Sarah Pinto-Duschinsky, Director of NHS 

Operations & Delivery, NHS England, has written to 
all Trusts outlining the expectations for the 2015-16 

EPRR assurance process which NHS England will 
use in order to be assured that NHS England and 
the NHS in England are prepared to respond to an 
emergency, and has resilience in relation to 
continuing to provide safe patient care. 

9.2 The process is as follows: 
9.2.1 The Trust is required to carry out a self-
assessment against the NHS England Core Standards 
for EPRR 
9.2.2 The Trust Board should then be sighted on the 
level of compliance achieved, the results of the self-
assessment and the action/work plan for the forthcoming 
period. 
9.2.3 Local Health Resilience Partnerships (LHRPs) will 
review and consider providers’ and CCGs’ self-
assessments, Board papers (or equivalent) and 
action/work plans and may request evidence, as 
deemed necessary. 

9.3 The self-assessment needs to be completed by the 
end of June 2015. Simon Wood, Director of Facilities 
is the lead Executive Director will report back in due 
course. 

 
10. Recommendations 

10.1 The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of the 
report. 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 

5 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

1 
 

 

 

 

  

 

    North Bristol NHS Trust  

 

   INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORT 

 

  May 2015 (presenting April 2015 data) 

 

V1 



XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

2 Executive Summary 
 

 

Access - April’s 4 hour A&E performance was 84.8% a decrease on March’s position of 86.5%. against a target of 94%. 
Attendances reached their highest level for the last 9 months at 7222 overall. Delayed transfers of care, in particular, due 
to waits for social work assessment have remained high in April. The final position of cancer targets in March showed the 
Trust had delivered on 6 of the 8 cancer waiting targets including the 2WW and 62 day treatment target. The current April 
position is still undergoing validation with 3 of 8 targets being met. RTT All specialties met or exceeded their April 
incomplete targets – overall we finished 3876 against the original plan of 4021. The 2015/16 RTT trajectories have now 
been submitted to the TDA and commissioners and form the basis of on-going monitoring. Further modelling will occur in 
May/ June to explore options to bring forward recovery. 
  
Safety - The Trust had no reported cases of MRSA and with C-Diff is current on target for 15/16. Rates of C-Diff and MRSA 
in NBT remain below both national and regional benchmarks. 
  
Patient Experience - Our National Ranking (March 2015) at 48/166 for response rate showed a large improvement from 
123rd in February.   75% of these  patients who would recommend us as a place for care. For overdue complaints 
significant progress has been made and the 31st May target is on track. 
  
Workforce - Overall Mandatory training rates have improved to 87.3% for April. There were 329 job offers made in April. A 
reduction in Sickness Absence was recorded for March, although it remains above Trust target. The Quarter 4 Staff Friends 
& Family Test demonstrated 66% of staff reporting that they were either likely or extremely likely to recommend NBT as a 
place to be treated, a 6% increase on the results from Quarter 2. 
  
Finance - For the year to date the Trust is £0.9m adverse to plan the primary drivers were lower than planned elective 
income of £0.5m and unidentified savings of £0.4m in month. 
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Key / Notes 
 

Unless noted on each graph, all 

data shown is for period up to, 

and including, 30th April 2015.   

 

All data included is correct at the 

time of publication. Please note 

that subsequent validation by 

clinical teams can alter scores 

retrospectively.  

 

All target lines: 

All improvement trajectories: 

 

 

DASHBOARD KEY: 
 

Perf  worsened & below  target  

 

Perf worsened, but above target  

 

Perf worsened, no target  

 

Perf improved but below target  

 

Perf improved & above target  

 

Perf improved, no target  

 

Perf stayed same, below target  

 

Perf stayed same , above target  

 

Perf stayed same , no target  
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4 RESPONSIVENESS 
SRO   Kate Hannam Director of Operations   

Section Summary  
Improvements & Actions 

April’s 4 hour A&E performance was 84.8% against a target of 94%. Performance is a decrease on March’s position of 86.5%. Attendances reached 

their highest level for the last 9 months at 7222 overall. The 2015/16 trajectory is for delivery of the 4hr standard by the end of July 2015 and as such the 

four work streams on the Urgent Care Recovery Plan (UCRP) have confirmed what actions they will focus on in the coming months to ensure delivery. 

The NBT Internal Flow Priorities include: 

 Impact of Better Board Rounds project and the SAFER checklist, supported by wad level metrics and dashboards 

 Achieving 50% of discharges home by midday – facilitated by the introduction of a discharge lounge in March  

 Minimising delays for internal services; therapies, pharmacy, transport, deep cleans etc 

 Improved implementation of Criteria Led discharge 

 Reconfiguration of the AAU, maximising throughput through the ambulatory care unit (AEC), and implementation of an acute frail elderly unit 

 Expansion of Discharge to Assess, reduction in bed days associated with complex (DToC) patients building on the system’s capacity & demand 

model for the external resource required (POC, placements etc.) to deliver a step change in the number of patients on the LHPD and hence 

improve 4hr sustainability due to the targeted reduction in bed occupancy. 

 

The Trust exceeded its M1 trajectory for 2015/16 RTT incomplete performance  3876 vs. a target of 4021. Good progress has been made in the Medical 

directorates to make inroads on their backlogs. The following specialties make up the majority of the incomplete backlog;T&O (45%), General Surgery 

(14%), Neurosurgery (9%), Neurology (8%) and hence are the main focus for RTT recovery plans. We continue to perform above our spinal trajectory 

for patients waiting over 52 weeks for treatment (clearance January 2016), however, we have yet to confirm the Neurosciences 52 week breaches 

forecast for 2015/16 due to on-going clinical validation. 

 

ED Breach Trends 

The principle reason for breaches remains availability of beds for admission at appropriate points in the day. Weekends continue to be a challenge in 

terms of discharging sufficient patients to be able to support effective flow through the Hospital. A task and finish group chaired by Deputy MD and 

Deputy Director of Nursing is to be established to address weekend planning and expansion of Criteria Led Discharge. 

NBT’s Leaving Hospital Patient Database remains at an average of over 100 delayed transfers of care (patients medically stable for discharge). 

Additionally the number of patients with a Length of stay over 14 days remains above 300 vs. a target of 200. The system is being monitored on 14 day 

length of stay reductions and weekend discharges.  

 

Areas of Concern 

The system continues to monitor the effectiveness of all actions being undertaken, with weekly and daily reviews. The main risks identified to the Urgent 

Care Recovery Plan are as follows: 

UCRP Risk 4: Lack of community capacity – a Capacity and Demand modelling aligned to plans for roll out of Discharge to Assess is due to be 

presented on 1st June. Contractual and resourcing implications are yet to be agreed and present a risk to on-going sustainability  

UCRP Risk 5: Appropriate nursing and therapies staffing within NBT to enable flow given vacancy rates and hot spots such as AAU 

UCRP Risk 6: LoS reductions and bed occupancy targets in the bed model are not met leading to performance issues 
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Access Standard 

April 2015  Most recent 
quarter’s 

performance  
(Quarter 4 Jan - 

Mar) 
against national 

target 

Quarterly Trend (Q3 vs Q4) 
 

Against 
national 
target  

Against 
NBT 

Trajectory 

Trend from 
last month 

 

Performance 
to be 

achieved 
by… (as per 
trajectory) 

Emergency Attendances – waits 
under 4 hour standard vs total 
attendances  (95% target) 

July 2015  
           
            82.6% (Q3) to 84.4%(Q4) 

Referral to Treatment - % 
incomplete pathways <18 weeks 
(92% target) 

Not met in 
14-15 

            83.5% (Q3) to 84.4% (Q4) 

Referral to Treatment - % within 
18 weeks of GP referral for non-
admitted  patients (95% target) 

Jan 2015             91.5% (Q3) to 91.1% (Q4) 

Referral to Treatment - % within 
18 weeks of GP referral for 
admitted patients (90% target) 

Not met in 
14-15 

            80.5% (Q3) to 80.6% (Q4) 

Trust wide Referral to 
Treatment  Backlog  

Not met in 
14-15 

              4524 (Q3) to 4141 (Q4) 

Cancelled Operations – same 
day - non-clinical reasons (0.8% 
target) 

Not met in 
14-15 

            1.88% (Q3) to 1.83% (Q4) 

Cancelled Operations – 28 day 
re-booking breach (0 target) 

Not met in 
14-15 

             6 (Q3) to 15 (Q4) 

Responsiveness  

Summary Dashboard 
Board Sponsors   Director of Operations 

Please note: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Data is correct at time of publication.  

80.1% 

4025 

93.6% 

84.9% 

3876 

85.7% 

92.6% 

82.9% 

1.2% 

6 

90.0% 

84.8% 

6 

1.2% 
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6 Responsiveness  

Urgent Care 
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations 

Commentary 

 

Overall April’s performance was 

below the 94% trajectory at 84.8%. 

Bed waits continue to be the main 

cause for breaches.  

 

The actions in the URCP aim to 

reduce overall bed occupancy to 

allow the trusts to better cope with 

variation in ED attendances and 

admissions throughout the week. 

The action to boost criteria led 

discharge and improve planning 

for discharge is intended to smooth 

discharge numbers across the 

week and dampen the “Monday” 

affect. 
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7 Responsiveness  

Urgent Care   Admission Rates 
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations   

 
Commentary 

 

For 2015/16 NBT has submitted 

revised ambulance turnaround 

trajectories and intends to meet 

90% of ambulances offloaded 

within 15 minutes by August, with a 

zero tolerance to 60 minute 

breaches from mid June.  

 

Emergency admission numbers 

across the last 4 months have 

remained largely static. Bed 

occupancy for April was 97% 

leaving little flexibility for surges in 

activity. 
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8 Responsiveness 

Length of Stay 
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations  

Commentary 

 

The number of patients with 

Length of Stay over 14 days has 

remained static in the last few 

months and as such there has not 

been a significant reduction 

against the target figure of 200 

patients (in excess of 300 at end 

of April).  

 

BNSSG commissioned capacity 

and demand work on complex 

discharges has reinforced URCP 

plans to reduce overall leaving 

hospital patient database numbers 

in light of the disproportionate 

impact this patient cohort has on 

occupied bed days. The system’s 

agreed approach is expansion of 

Discharge to assess pathways did 

not make the May Systems Flow 

Board and are now delayed until 

June.  

 

The weekly reviews of patients 

with a LOS of over 10 day has 

been handed over from 

Operations to the Nursing 

directorate – all patients are 

reported on by relevant ward 

sisters. 
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9 Responsiveness 

Discharges / Transfers  
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations  

 
Commentary 

 

Delayed transfers of care 

(monitored via the Leaving 

Hospital Patient Database), in 

particular, due to waits for social 

work assessment have remained 

high in April. An independent 

review of the classification of 

DTOCs across Bristol was 

undertaken in April – outputs 

expected later next month 

 

In January 2015, funds were 

released  from the Cabinet Office 

to Local Authorities to support 

reductions in delayed transfers of 

care – these have now been 

extended into 2015/16. A weekly, 

reportable, BNSSG trajectory is in 

place with the TDA, aiming to half 

the number of patients with a 

delayed transfer of care from the 

baseline of 127 on 22 January.  

This has remained below trajectory 

in April. 
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10 Responsiveness  

Length of Stay  
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations  

 
Commentary 

 

Elective length of stay has 

continued to fall and is still below 

the expected Dr. Foster level.  

 

However,  non-elective length of 

stay remains above target level 

and hence is the main focus of 

NBT’s patient flow projects, 

particularly in relation to rehab 

patients and those requiring input 

from health and social care 

partners.  
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XXXX 
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Emergency Department Dashboard 
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations  
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12 Responsiveness      

Patient Flow Work stream 
Board Sponsor Director of Operations 

Commentary 

 

No improvement in performance 

against trajectories this month. 

 

Work streams for patient flow have 

now been reduced to 31 Key work 

streams. Within these NBTS key 

priorities that will have the most 

impact on the trajectory have been 

clarified. 

 

Completion of detailed project 

plans for each of the key work 

streams are being completed and 

will track progress of work already 

in process and work about to start.  

Bi-weekly highlight reporting on 

key work streams to the 

Operations and delivery meeting 

commenced this week. Work 

streams will be monitored for 

impact on trajectory for the July 

target of 94%.  
.  

COO25 
001 

COO25 
002 
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Standard 

Mar 15 April 2015 Q4 
Performance 

(Jan – Mar 
14) against 

National 
Target 

Quarterly Trend - Q3 vs 
Q4  (un-validated 

position) 
 

Final 
Mar 15 
position 

Against 
National 
Target 
Apr 15 

Against 
NBT 

Trajectory 

Trend 
from 
last 

month 

Patients seen within 2 weeks of an 
urgent GP referral (93% target) 

        93.5% (Q3) to 92.5% (Q4) 

Patients with breast symptoms 
seen by specialist within 2 weeks 

(93% target) 

 
n/a         96.0% (Q3) to 96.0% (Q4) 

Patients receiving first treatment 
within 31 days of cancer diagnosis 

(96% target)  
       95.9% (Q3) to 95.1% (Q4) 

Patients waiting less than 31 days 
for subsequent surgery (94% 

target) 
n/a        90.8% (Q3) to 93.0%(Q4) 

Patients waiting less than 31 days 
for subsequent drug treatment 

(98% target) 

 
n/a  

             
         100% (Q3) to 100% (Q4) 

Patients receiving first treatment 
within 62 days of urgent GP 

referral (85% target) 
         82.0% (Q3) to 84.3% Q4) 

Patients treated 62 days of 
screening (90% target)   n/a         94.9% (Q3) to 90.7% (Q4) 

Patients treated within 62 days of 
consultant upgrades (90% target) 

 
n/a 

          
        93.3% (Q3) to 84.9% (Q4) 

Responsiveness 

Cancer Summary Dashboard 
Board Sponsor    Medical Director 

 

Please note: Validation is still on-going for April figures.   

96.7% 

89.0% 

100% 

93.5% 

86.1% 

100% 

86.1% 

97.7% 

75.0% 

100% 

78.4% 

88.7% 

82.2% 

90.8% 

98.9% 

100% 
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14 Responsiveness 

Cancer   
Board Sponsor  Medical Director 

 
Commentary 

 

The final position of cancer targets 

in March showed the Trust had 

delivered on 6 of the 8 cancer 

waiting targets including the 2WW 

and 62 day treatment target. 

Despite achieving performance in 

both February and March the level 

of failure in January means it is the 

Trust did not achieve adequate Q4 

performance for 2WW which would 

be the first quarterly failure of this 

target for some time. The 2WW 

target has been met in February 

and March. The 62 day target was 

also met in February and March 

and the 31 day decision to treat to 

treatment target was also met in 

March. 

 

Skin still remains an issue for the 

Trust delivering the 2WW and 

prevents the Trust in significantly 

surpassing the 93% standard. 

Increased referral has not been 

matched with increased capacity. 

The 15/16 demand and capacity 

work being carried out in the 

directorate will address this issue 

plus further analysis and work with 

commissioning colleagues to 

address high patient cancellations 

and DNA rates in this speciality. 

. 

 

Patients receiving treatment within 62 days of 

urgent GP referral  

(Orange = Improvement trajectory Purple = 

Undergoing validation) 

COO15 
005 

Patients seen within two weeks of urgent GP 

referral  

(Orange= Improvement Trajectory 

Purple = Undergoing validation) 

P
a
ti

e
n

ts
 

COO16 
004 

Patients receiving treatment within 31 days of diagnosis  

(Orange = Improvement trajectory 

Purple = Undergoing validation) 

COO013 
009 

Patients with breast symptoms seen within two 

weeks of GP referral (Orange = improvement 

trajectory Purple = undergoing validation) 

COO17 
005 
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15 Responsiveness  

Cancer  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 
Commentary 

 

The April position is delayed in its 

validation due to a focus on end of 

year data.  The national deadline 

for validated April data is 4th June 

and the team internally are working 

towards this.  The ‘unvalidated’ 

position currently has the Trust 

failing  5 of the 8 key targets 

including the 2WW, 31 day and 62 

day targets.  

  

In April the 2 week wait breast 

referral target has been met, so too 

the 31 day subsequent drugs 

treatment target  and the 

consultant upgrade. 

 

The majority of breaches in 

treatment pathways are in the 

urology pathway with a number of 

reasons including capacity and 

care pathways involving other 

organisations.  

 

A new pathway has been 

introduced for colorectal cancer 

which is expected to shorten the 

pathway and decrease breaches 

by 1-2 per month for 31 and 62 

day target. 

 

The lung and upper GI pathways 

are being reviewed between NBT 

and UHBristol. 

 

 

. 
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                                                Number of Days 

No. of Patients 

Treated in the 

Period 

Mean 

Wait 

Max 

Wait 

Within 

31 
32 -38 

39 - 

48 

49 - 

62 

63 - 

76 

77 - 

90 

91 - 

104 

After 

104 

Breast 21.5 47 78 3.0 2.0 3.0 10.5 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 

Colorectal 15.0 61 93 1.0 0.0 1.0 9.5 1.0 1.0 1.5 0.0 

Gynaecology 4.5 75 195 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.5 

Haematology 1.5 36 45 0.5 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Lung 12.0 59 119 0.0 3.5 3.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 2.0 

Sarcoma 0.5 55 55 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Skin 31.0 32 76 15.0 6.0 6.0 3.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Upper GI 5.0 62 93 1.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 

Urology 35.0 71 170 3.0 4.5 6.0 6.0 4.5 2.5 2.0 6.5 

TOTAL  126.0 56 195 23.5 16.0 20.5 36.5 
9.0 7.5 4.0 9.0 

29.5 (23%) 

Responsiveness  

Cancer  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

Commentary 

 

All patients on a cancer pathway 

are actively tracked by the cancer 

services team using detailed 

Patient Tracking Lists and 

potential delays to pathways are 

escalated to directorate teams 

and clinical colleagues. 

 

If a patient breaches a cancer 

waiting times treatment target the 

pathway for the patient is 

reviewed to identify the reason 

for the breach (which is recorded 

on the cancer register) and the 

clinical team are asked to 

comment on any potential risk 

this delay has had on the patient 

care or potential outcomes.  

Actions, risks or queries are 

actioned as appropriate within 

the directorate or the wider 

cancer services team. 

 

The table illustrates the 

timeframe patients on a 62 day 

pathway were treated in and 

further internal analysis of all the 

patients that wait beyond 62 days 

is conducted post validation. 

 

 

 

Referral to Treatment 62 Day PTL: Number of patients treated within the specified period including 
tertiary referrals (irrespective of when referral received)  
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                                                Number of Days 

No. of 

Patients 

Treated in 

the Period 

% of patients 

treated who are 

Urgent GP 

referrals 

No of 

patients 

treated -

Urgent GP 

referrals 

Mean 

Wait 

Max 

Wait 

Within 

31 

32 -

38 
39 - 48 49 - 62 

63 - 

76 

77 - 

90 

Brain/CNS 11 0 0 4 18 11 0 0 0 0 0 

Breast 46 45.65 21 17 48 43 2 1 0 0 0 

Colorectal 26 61.54 16 7 22 26 0 0 0 0 0 

Haematology 16 6.25 1 1 15 16 0 0 0 0 0 

Lung 11 63.64 7 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 

Sarcoma 3 33.33 1 27 51 2 0 0 1 0 0 

Skin 49 63.27 31 15 48 47 0 2 0 0 0 

Upper GI 2 100 2 15 31 2 0 0 0 0 0 

Urology 100 51 51 23 140 70 10 11 4 1 1 

TOTAL 264 49.24 130 16 140 228 
12 14 5 1 1 

36 (14%) 

Responsiveness  

Cancer  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

Commentary 

 

All patients on a cancer pathway 

are actively tracked by the cancer 

services team using detailed 

Patient Tracking Lists and 

potential delays to pathways are 

escalated to directorate teams 

and clinical colleagues. 

 

If a patient breaches a cancer 

waiting times treatment target the 

pathway for the patient is 

reviewed to identify the reason 

for the breach (which is recorded 

on the cancer register) and the 

clinical team are asked to 

comment on any potential risk 

this delay has had on the patient 

care or potential outcomes.  

Actions, risks or queries are 

actioned as appropriate within 

the directorate or the wider 

cancer services team. 

 

The table illustrates the 

timeframe patients on a 62 day 

pathway were treated in and 

further internal analysis of all the 

patients that wait beyond 62 days 

is conducted post validation. 

 

Decision to Treat to Treatment 31Day PTL: Number of patients treated within the specified period 
including tertiary referrals (irrespective of when referral received)  
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18 Responsiveness  

Referral to Treatment   All Specialties  
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations 

Commentary 

 

The 2015/16 RTT trajectories have 

now been submitted to the TDA 

and commissioners and form the 

basis of on-going monitoring.  

 

Trust will return to NADM 

compliance in Qtr 4 of 15/16, but 

will not meet the ADM or 

incomplete target in year due to 

the size of the T&O over 18 weeks 

back log. Further modelling will 

occur in May/ June to explore 

options to bring forward this 

recovery including: over 

performance by compliant 

specialties, sub-contracting of 

acute work and partial closure with 

CCG approval for non 18 week 

complaint conditions 

 

All specialties met or improved 

upon their April incomplete 

trajectory – overall we finished 

3876 against a target of 4021. Pain 

management, plastics, cardiology 

and gastroenterology were the 

main areas of improvement. 

 

. 

 
 

DOO06 
999 Trust wide RTT within 18 weeks  of GP referral 

for admitted patients (Orange = Improvement 

trajectory 

Trustwide RTT within 18 weeks of GP referral for non- 

admitted patients (orange = Improvement trajectory) 

DOO007 
999 

DOO08 
999 

DOO09 
999 
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19 Responsiveness 

Referral to Treatment Specialty Level & 52 week waits  
Board Sponsor  Director of Operations 

Commentary 

 

There were 241 patients waiting over 

52 weeks for treatment (incompletes) 

at the end of April – 236 in spinal 

surgery and 5 in neurosurgery. The 

spinal position continues to be 

favorable to the  trajectory (clearance 

by the end of Jan 2016).    The 

neurosurgery position is yet to be 

confirmed following issues with 

recording of Epilepsy work and the 

validation of current waiting times.  

 

The diagnostic target was not met in 

April (96.9% vs. 99% target) with both 

echocardiography and urodynamics 

performing below the 99% target, but 

within their respective recovery 

trajectories. CT failed to met 99% in 

month due to an unexpected 6% 

increase in demand month on month. 

Despite flexing capacity, loss of bank 

holiday slots plus a breakdown of the 

machines proved too great to meet 

demand. CT are predicting a return to 

compliance in May and are completing 

detailed C&D modelling with the 

support of IMAS in May to provide 

further assurance about their on-going 

performance. 

 

The 2015/16 trajectory shows that this 

target will not be met until December 

2015, due to the significant resourcing 

shortfall in echocardiography. 

However, recent demand management 

schemes have had a greater impact 

than expected and the trajectory will be 

re-profiled with a revised recovery date 

for summer 2015 

COO 040 
999 

Diagnostics 6 week wait 

 (Orange = Improvement Trajectory) 

DOO058 
999 
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20 Responsiveness  

Cancelled Operations  
Board Sponsor   Director of Operations  

 
Commentary 

 

April’s rate of cancelled surgery on 

the day met the expected trajectory. 

In line with the improved 4hr position, 

the % of operations cancelled due to 

bed pressures has dropped. 

 

There were 6 patients who were 

unable to have their operation 

rebooked within 28 days in April 

(down from 12 in March). This 

equates to lost income of 

approximately £30k. 

 

 

COO009 
015 

Cancelled Operations same day non-clinical 

(Orange = Improvement Trajectory) 

COO08 
003 

Cancelled operations 28 day re-booking breach 

(Orange = Improvement Trajectory 

Target is 0) 

Number of urgent operations cancelled for 

the second time (target is 0) 
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21 Responsiveness 

Outpatients Work stream 
Board sponsor Medical Director  

Commentary 

 
Clinic Template Utilisation has 

dropped in April due to specialty 

cancellations in the Easter break. 

 

Outpatient Booking Utilisation 

has also decreased. The 

outpatient call team is now fully 

staffed and offering 2 choices of 

appointment for patients by phone. 

As DNA rate falls this is leaving 

more appointments unused. The 

team are working to correct this.  

 

The DNA rate  has improved 

attributable to an increase in 

appointment reminders being sent 

and to more specialty clinics using 

the text reminder service. 

 

% of OP calls answered -

performance still remains 

significantly below the acceptable 

level. Expectations on call waiting 

times have been updated and 

confirmed by the OP Board. There 

is still a high level of inappropriate 

calls being received in the OP 

centre.  

Outpatient Appointment DNA Rate 

Outpatient Clinic Template Utilisation 
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QUALITY   PATIENT SAFETY & EFFECTIVENESS 
SRO  Chris Burton  Medical Director & Sue Jones  Director of Nursing  

 
Section Summary  

Improvements & Actions 

 

The dementia team received a commendation at the British Journal of Nursing awards for their work in 

providing a memory café in the Brunel building 

Trends 

 

Raw mortality returned to 14/15 low level 

Catheter compliance  has improved following the introduction of a new policy, care plan and approach to 

monitoring. 

Areas of Concern 

 

Cdiff rate above 15/16 trajectory 

Maintaining  patient safety when ED overcrowding occurs 

 



 

 

 

 

 

23 XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

23 

Patient Safety Dashboard  

Safety   

Summary Dashboard  
Board Sponsors   Director of Nursing & Medical Director  

 

Please note: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Data correct at time of publication.  

 

Standard 
(target) 

April 2015 Most recent 
quarter’s 

performance 
(quarter 4 Jan – 
Mar 15  against 
national target 

 
 

Quarterly Trend (Q3vs Q4) 
Performance 

against 
national 
target / 
contract 

Against NBT 
Trajectory 

Trend from 
last month 

Performance to 
be achieved by..  

(as per trajectory) 

Never Event Occurrence by 
month (0 target) n/a Achieving              1 event (in Q3)  to 1 event (in Q4) 

Safety Thermometer – overall 
compliance (94% internal 
target, 92% external target) 

n/a Achieving            92.5% (in Q3) to 92.6% (in Q4) 

Malnutrition Screening (90%) 
May 2015            79.2% (in Q3) to 81.4%  in (Q4) 

Hand Hygiene Compliance 
(95%) n/a 

Managed via  
Infection 
Control 

           93.6% (in Q3) to 96.1% (in Q4) 

MRSA (0 per month trajectory) 
n/a Achieving             0 cases in 2014/15 

C-Difficile (<5 per month) 
n/a  

Achieving 
quarterly 

          9 cases (in Q3) to 14 cases (in Q4) 

MSSA (<1.5 per month) 
n/a Achieving             5 cases (in Q3) to 5 cases (in Q4) 

Venous Thromboembolism 
Screening (95%) one month in 
arrears 

n/a 
Managed via 
Thrombosis 
Committee  

        94.1% (in Q3) to 94.6% (in Q4 to date) 

Dementia (find/assess/refer 
CQUIN) (90%) one month in 
arrears 

n/a 
Achieving 
quarterly 

           93.9% (in Q3) to 94.5% (in Q4 to date) 

0 

95.5% 

92.8% 

89.9% 

93.7% 

82% 

1 

5 

0 
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24 Quality   Patient Safety 

Additional Safety Measures 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary  
 

Serious incidents 

Four Serious incidents were 

reported in April 2015, a level 

consistent for the last three 

months. Those reported during 

April 2015 were; 

2 x Falls 

1 x Incorrect Test Results 

1 x Missed diagnosis 

 

The medication incident  from 

February has been removed from 

STEIS as it did not fit SI criteria.  

 

Delays in treatments and missed 

diagnosis remain a concern. This 

was discussed at Quality 

Committee during the CRC chair 

presentation in April.  

 

Serious Incident Rate 

The rate of serious incidents per 

1000 bed days has plateaued. 

In terms of Directorates, the 

figures continue to demonstrate 

the same trends as last month 

per 1000 bed days over the last 

12 months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Data Reporting basis 

The data is based on the date a serious 

incident is reported to STEIS. Serious 

incidents are open to being downgraded if the 

resulting investigation concludes the incident 

did not directly harm the patient i.e. Trolley 

breaches. This may mean changes are seen 

when compared to data contained within prior 

months’ reports. 
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25 Quality   Patient Safety 

Additional Safety Measures 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary  

 

Incident reporting deadlines 

All Serious Incidents have been 

reported within two days of 

confirmation.  

There were two recent breaches of 

the RCA 45 day deadline target 

date in February, 16 days over and 

March, 2 days over. a total of three 

in the last 12 months. The new 

NHS England SI framework has 

consolidated the target dates for all 

grade 1 & 2 SI’s to be 60 working 

days from the 1st April 2015 
 

Never Events 

No never events were reported in 

April. 

The Never Event reported in 

January related to a retained 

foreign object. The RCA was 

discussed at CRC in April. It was 

agreed to treat the incident as a 

near miss Never Event and has 

now been removed from STEIS 

with an assurance that the action 

plan will be implemented 

thoroughly. 
 

CAS Alerts 

Alerts are compliant within 

deadlines.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Patient 
Safety 

Facilities 
Medical 
Devices 

New Alerts 0 2 5 

Closed Alerts 0 1 3 

Open alerts (within 
target date) 

0 1 2 

Breaches of Alert 
target 

0 0 0 

Status of CAS alerts for April 2015 
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26 Safety chart    

Harm Free Care  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Pressure Ulcers  

Pressure ulcer incidence for April  

has increased to a rate of 11.9 per 

10,000 bed days an increase from 

the previous month (rolling year 

10.1). 35 patients had a grade 2 

pressure ulcer.  There were no 

reported grade 3 or 4 pressure ulcers 

for April. The 2014/15 year end 

position for pressure ulcer incidence: 

• Grade 2: 378 incidences a 

reduction upon the 2013/14 rate 

of 455 

• Grade 3: 14 incidences a 

reduction  upon the 2013/14 of 

37. 

• Grade 4: 6 incidences increased 

on the 2013/14 rate of 2.  

Investigations have shown no 

correlation with care in one 

specific area, with all patients 

having multiple care pathways. 

The Trust has targeted a 15% 

reduction of all grades for 2015/6  

under the Sign up to Safety plan. 

 

VTE  (one month in arrears)  

The chart illustrates the impact of the 

clinical coding lag between 

submission date and final outcomes. 

Compliance in March  was 93.2% at 

the time of national data submission 

at end of April via UNIFY (DH 

reporting system). The rolling year 

stands at 95.3%, reflecting the true 

position once ‘coding lag’ has caught 

up. Quality Committee review in May 

15 identified additional actions to 

target definite ‘fails’ locally. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DON55 

999 
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27 Safety    

Additional Safety Measures  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Cardiac Arrest Calls  
It has not been possible to update 

this for April due to unavailability of 

data from the Renal Proton system 

into the Warehouse. Therefore the 

position remains as reflected for 

March 2015. However, the absolute 

number of confirmed calls in April 

was 9 (compared to 10 the previous 

month), A reduction in numbers year 

on year continues. 
 

Dementia  
Figures for March show a decline 

in  assess/investigate to just below 

the target of>90%, with a new 

member of staff daily audits have 

resumed. A longer term solution is 

the development of alerts  in 

LORENZO. At the recent BMJ 

Awards the team was ‘Highly 

Commended’ in the ‘Dementia team 

of the year’  category. 
 

Catheter Compliance  
Compliance in April has improved to 

89.2% (YTD rolling mean 83.2%), 

although still below national 

benchmark of 95%. A revised 

Catheter Care Plan was presented at 

Quality Committee in May 15 and a 

recent relaunch week in April 

highlighted the new policy, care plan 

and monitoring approach to drive 

improvement to the targeted 

compliance level. 

.  
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28 Safety charts  

Harm Free Care   (Catheter on-going care    Falls    Pressure Ulcers    VTE) 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing 

Commentary 

 

Harm Free Care 

The Trusts ‘harm free’ rate in April 

15 dipped slightly to 93.7%, which 

is in line with the national average 

rate of 93.8%. The highest harm 

incidence (4.7%) was Pressure 

Ulcers, 1% of which were not 

attributable to the area recording it 

at the time, which includes both 

community acquired and those 

identified following internal 

transfers.  
 

Overall Falls  

The falls rate has improved for 2 

consecutive months, with the rate 

for April at 7.12 per 1,000 bed 

days. The number of Serious 

Injuries has continued to decrease 

showing improvement over 6 

months with one hip fracture in 

April. Our aim now is to get the 

falls rate under 7 per 1000 bed 

days and to have zero serious 

injury falls for one month. 

The Falls Sign Up to Safety bid 

has been successful which is 

fantastic news and will provide real 

impetus for the next phase of 

improvement. The Falls group will 

now plan the educational strategy 

and delivery as well as consider 

the testing of an Enhanced Care 

team. 
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29 Safety Charts   

Additional Safety Measures  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
WHO Checklist 
Reported compliance with checklist 

in April is 96.2%, with YTD 

compliance at %. The headline figure 

(blue line) covers 2 out of the 3 

checklist questions being responded 

to correctly. This usually indicates 

(from prior audits) a lack of evidence, 

rather than non completion and is 

followed up and then corrected if 

warranted. The red line tracks all 3 

questions being completed. The gap 

between the two should close over 

time upon follow up of exceptions 

with clinical teams. 

 

Main directorate breakdowns are; 

• Gynaecology 97.4%. 

• Surgery 97.4%,  

• Musculo-Skeletal 98.4%,  

• Neurosciences 91.3%  

 

Nutrition 

Trustwide compliance for April 82%, 

against rolling year of 72% (target 

90%). From w/b 11th May all ward 

sisters, Matrons and HONS are sent 

a daily list of patients admitted the 

previous day who have not had their 

nutrition risk assessment. This will 

enable the ward nurses to undertake 

this within the 48 hour window. 

Achievement  will be reviewed in 2 

weeks’ time and if wards remain 

non-compliant a meeting will be 

arranged with the SWS, Matron and 

HON (Lynne Miller and Lorraine 

Motuel) to work on actions to 

improve compliance. 

.  
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30 Safety  

Medicines Management:  Medicine Reconciliation & Missed Doses 
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

Commentary 

 

Medicines Reconciliation and Missed 

Doses data is available one month in 

arrears.  

 

Missed Doses  

The aim is to return performance to 

the level prior to the move to Brunel. 

Individual pharmacists are focussing 

on the areas needing most 

improvement. A Medication Safety 

Alert has been sent to all nurses and 

Doctors to highlight the importance 

of missed doses. Additional guidance 

on how to prevent missed doses and 

how to locate medication is being 

displayed on each ward 

 

Results show an improvement on 

last month. 

  

Medicines Reconciliation 

Meds reconciliation continues to 

meet the Trust and National 

standards. NBT work was presented 

at a workshop at a European 

Pharmacy Conference in Hamburg in 

March with an invitation to another 

European workshop later this year.  

  

Actions to assure effective 

management of medicines are 

overseen by the Medicines 

Governance Group. 
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31 Safety  

Medicines Management:   Medicines Related Incidents 
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

Commentary 

 
The board director responsible for 

medication safety is the Medical Director 

and the Medication Safety Officer (MSO) 

is Pharmacist Jane Smith. NBT has a 

“Medication Safety Subgroup” (a Doctor, 

Nurse, Risk manager, Patient and the 

MSO) to review all drug related incidents 

from eAIMS. There is  feed back to 

reporters and managers to improve 

accuracy of reports. Data is shared via a 

dashboard through the Medicines 

Governance Group where directorates 

attend with medical and nursing reps and 

more significant incidents are 

highlighted. 

  

Major / catastrophic incidents 

 
The incident in January 2015 classified 

as “major” involved administration of 

Insulin where a protocol was not 

followed. Insulin dosing was not adjusted 

when a naso-gastric feed was stopped 

resulting in hypoglycaemia.  Doctors 

were immediately made aware and 

hypoglycaemia was reversed. 

  

The overall aim is to increase incident 

reporting but decrease the number of 

major incidents to demonstrate a healthy 

reporting and learning culture. 

  

Themes / Types / NPSA alerts 

 
The most common causes of incidents 

are shown and are cumulative from the 

start of data collection (early 2014).  The 

NPSA alert category – shows incidents 

related to any NPSA / PSA alerts issued 

by NHS England. 

Incidents involving high risk drugs MD13 
999 

NPSA Alerts  

April 14 - March 15 

MD15 
999 

Themes 

April 14 – March  15 

MD16 
999 

Type of Medication Error  

April 14 - Mar 15 
MD14 
999 

Actual Impact Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Total 

Near Miss/Insignificant 78 79 103 101 84 94 68 103 46 72 72 69 969 

Minor/Moderate 13 9 21 8 11 7 10 16 29 31 31 36 222 
Major/Catastrophic 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Total 92 88 124 109 96 103 78 119 75 104 103 105 1196 
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32 Safety    

Infection Control  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 
Commentary 

 

MRSA 

The last reported Trust case was 

September 2013. 

 

C.Difficile 

5 Trust responsible cases for April. 

Directorate associated cases: 4 in 

Medicine and 1 in Surgery.  

This is a reduction of the previous 

months cases but ahead of 15/16 

trajectory. A full investigation is in 

progress for each case. 

 

Target for 15/16 is 43 cases 

 

MSSA 

1 Trust responsible case for April, 

the potential source of the infection is 

the traumatic injury sustained by the 

patient. 

 

Internally set target for 2015/16 

remains at  18 cases 

 

Improvement is focusing on the 

practice for the  management of 

indwelling devices.  
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33 Safety  

Infection Control  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 
 

National and Regional 

benchmarks 

Rates of  MRSA in NBT compare 

favourably with national and regional 

benchmarks.   

 

Rates of C.difficile  remain below the 

national benchmark and similar to  

the regional benchmark during the 

last quarter of 2014/15. 

 

Hand Hygiene 

The Trust Hand Hygiene 

compliance is 95.5% which meets 

the Trust standard.  

 

Norovirus  

There have been  2 reported areas  

(1 ward and 1 bay)  placed under 

restricted access  due to confirmed 

norovirus during April. 

Resulting in a loss of 64 bed days.  

Both areas have undergone a full 

deep clean and are back in 

operation. 
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34 Safety  
Sterile Services Department – Theatre Tray Set Non-Conformance Rates   
Board Sponsor – Director of Facilities 

 
Commentary 

The monitoring of sterile services is 

regulated through our Notified Body 

(British Standards Institute). The 

department has a system in place 

whereby all non-conformances are 

captured and actioned where viable. 

For instance it is cost prohibitive to 

containerise all surgical sets within 

the trust. Therefore managing the 

touch points to reduce / prevent a 

‘torn wrap’ is undertaken. 

 

Patient Safety 

Non-conformances are captured at 

the final safety check of each 

instrument set by theatre staff as part 

of the preparation for each operation. 

This routine check is in place to 

ensure patient safety is not 

compromised. There is no national 

data to compare the NBT rate of 

non-conformance, but the  

consequences of an error could be 

either the need to reprocess a set, 

delayed delivery or cancellation of a 

procedure. Hence there are actions 

in place to reduce as many non-

conformances as possible. Torn 

wraps are being examined closely to 

understand where the point of non-

conformance occurs, either SSD, 

Transportation or within the theatres 

complex i.e. storage. As to 

contaminated tray sets these 

continue to be monitored with 

performance meetings being 

arranged with SSD staff falling short 

of the expected standard.  

.  

Reasons for Non-
Conformance  

April 2015  

 %  Kit 
Numbers  

Missing item 0.27% 22 

Torn wrap 0.41% 51 

Contaminated 0.30% 30 

Missing tape 0.13% 24 

Wrong item 0.05% 7 

Checklist issues 0.00% 0 

Extra 0.06% 6 

Wet 0.06% 6 

Damaged 0.02% 5 

Assembly 0.01% 0 

Tracking Issue 0.05% 3 

Labels 0.00% 2 

Sterility 0.04% 4 

Turn round 0.00% 0 

DOFA 5 
999 

DOFA 4 
999 

SSD Non-Conformance DOFA 7 
999 
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35 Effectiveness  
Theatres Work stream 
Board Sponsor Director of Strategy and Transformation 

Commentary 
. 
Commentary 

 

Average cases per day and 

average session utilisation 

along with the future capacity 

plans are based on the elective 

activity associated with the 

Surgery directorate (General 

Surgery, Gynaecology, 

Neurosciences, Plastic 

Surgery, T&O, Urology) 

 

For most specialities activity is 

largely in-line with planned 

activity but within Gynaecology  

and Plastics there is a shortfall. 
 

Efforts by the theatre team to 

ensure lists start on time 

continue to provide results but 

work remains to improve starting 

on time and reduce  theatre 

turnaround time. There has been 

an instruction to mediroom and 

theatre teams to focus on 

starting on time. This will be 

managed by medirooms advising 

theatre by phone when patients 

are ready for collection. Any non 

collection will be escalated to 

drive through the importance of 

punctuality and turnaround time. 

DOST 01 
003 

DOST 01 
002 

DOST 01 
001 
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Board Sponsor: Director of Facilities 

Facilities Management  
Cleaning performance against the 49 Elements of The National Specifications for Cleanliness in the NHS  

Commentary  
 

Cleaning performance targets 

have largely been achieved this 

month with the exception of very 

high risk areas where 

performance dropped by one 

point and stands at one point 

below target. Normal 

investigation and escalation 

actions are in place to improve 

this.  

  

This month there have been 

extraordinary demands on the 

service driven by patient flow 

peaks, multiple moves of 

infectious patients 

and  Norovirus.  

  

Future Improvement Activities 

• Separation of cleaning auditing 

from the cleaning team to a 

dedicated, independent audit 

team 

• Potentially using the clinical 

simulation team to help improve 

deep cleaning management and 

effectiveness 

• Appointment of an FM training 

manager 

   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Very High Risk Areas Includes: Wards, ICU, Theatres, NICU, AAU, ED, 
RDU etc. 

High Risk Areas Includes: Wards, Inpatient & Outpatient 
Therapies, Neuro OPD, Cardiac/respiratory OPD, 
Imaging Services etc. 

Significant Areas Includes: Audiology, Plaster rooms, Cotswold 
OPD, Sherston OPD etc. 

Low Risk Areas Includes: Breacon unit, Christopher Hancock, 
Data Centre, Seminar Rooms, Office Areas, L&R 
(non-lab areas) etc. 

• North Bristol Trust have increased the NHS 49 elements to 52 

• 36 of these elements are managed by Soft FM i.e. Domestics Services and Estates 

• 13 of the elements are managed by Nursing only and 3 are jointly managed by Nursing & Domestic Services 
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37 Effectiveness    

Mortality  
Board Sponsor   Medical Director 

 
Commentary  

 

Standardised mortality remains low 

at NBT as shown by measures of 

HSMR and SHMI. We continue to 

track raw mortality as an early 

marker of progress. This has fallen 

to the rates in previous years 

following a relatively higher rate over 

the winter.  
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38  

Research and Innovation 
Board Sponsor   Director of Strategy & Transformation 

 
Commentary  

 

NBT reached the predicted 

recruitment target for 2014/15 set 

by the Local Clinical Research 

Network. This target was set 

lower than previous years due to 

the impact of MOVE and 

therefore despite reaching target 

a decrease in budget for 2015/16 

is expected. 

 

NBT has increased it’s 

commercial research portfolio 

across 14/15 by 69% 
  

NBT has seen a  decrease in 

performance against the number 

of commercial trials recruiting to 

time and target. We report a 

small number of trials in this 

category so the impact of MOVE 

on patient recruitment has an 

inflated impact on this 

benchmark.  

 

Nick Maskell was awarded a 

Research for Patient Benefit 

grant from NIHR to compare the 

diagnostic yield of PET-CT 

guided pleural biopsy versus CT-

guided pleural biopsy in 

suspected pleural malignancy.   

Patient recruitment (weighted): The target (red line) equates to the total 
predicted number of patients to be recruited to each study as agreed by the 
Principal Investigator. The target in the table relates to that agreed with the 
Clinical Research Network. The NIHR portfolio of studies comprises three bands; 
1,2 and 3, relating to increasing complexity. These are weighted in the ratio of 
1:3:14 respectively. Weighted recruitment informs the funding allocation from 
the regional research network.  
 
First patient first visit (FPFV): A NIHR target of 70 days from receipt of a valid 
application for R&D approval to the first patient being recruited. It applies to 
trials only that were open to recruitment in the preceding 12 months. This target 
has been introduced to improve efficiency in setting up and recruiting patients to 
studies. Data is reported quarterly to the Department of Health.  
 
Recruitment to time and target (RTT): The recruitment target for a study is 
determined by the Principle Investigator as the total number of patients they will 
recruit to the study for the specified time that the study is open to recruitment. It 
applies to commercial studies only that were open to recruitment for the 
preceding 12 months. Data is reported to the Department of Health quarterly.  
 
Active:  Active at any time during the reporting period 
NIHR: National Institute of Health Research 
R&D approval: This is a process to confirm a study can be delivered safely and 
successfully and must be issued by the NHS organisation  before patient 
recruitment can commence. 

Indicator 
TOTAL 

2012-13    
TOTAL 

2013-14 

Q1 2014-
15 

Q2  
2014-15 

Q3  
2014-15 

Total  
2014-15 

Target 
(where 

appropriate) 

Non-commercial studies active - ALL (No.) 302 346 310 335   349  426 N/A 

Non-commercial studies active - NIHR Portfolio only (No.) 119 149 136  148  168  215 N/A 

NIHR Programme Grants for Applied Research led by NBT 
active (No.) 4 4 3  3  3  3 3 

Other NIHR grants led by NBT active (No.) 10 10 8  10  10  10 6 

Commercial studies active - ALL (No.)   34 31  35  46  57 N/A 

Commercial studies active - NIHR Portfolio only (No.)   23 23  25  30  39 N/A 

Patients weighted cumulative recruitment - NIHR 
Portfolio only (No.) 19721 23544 4234  8236  11538  16535 16000 

Total grant income administered by NBT - NIHR Grants 
only (£million) 13  14 14.0  14.5  14.6  14.6 N/A 

Initiating research - First patient first visit (trials only) - % 
met target n/a n/a 87.5  70  78  85* 

not yet 
defined 

Delivering research - recruitment to time and target 
(commercial only) - % met target n/a n/a 80  64  65  54* 

not yet 
defined * Data as submitted to Department of Health, but subject 

to change depending on data verification by DH 

0.0

2000.0

4000.0

6000.0

8000.0

10000.0

12000.0

14000.0

16000.0

18000.0

Target Weighted Recruitment



 

 

 

 

 

39 XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  

XXXX 

XXXXX 

XXXX 

39 Research and Innovation 
Board Sponsor   Director of Strategy & Transformation 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NBT is leading a research trial comparing 3 different drugs for use during the third stage of labour 

following vaginal birth. This trial is recruiting 6285 women across the southwest and is one of the largest 

drug trials in obstetrics in the UK. We are piloting new methods of staffing across the West of England 

Local Clinical Research Network (WoE LCRN) and leading on methods for embedding large scale clinical 

trials within  clinical teams.  

 

The cardiology team sought out a MRI compatible pacemaker rather than fitting the standard model to 

allow one of our prostate cancer patients to continue participating in a research trial looking at cancer 

treatment. This is a great example of how embedding research as core business can have a positive 

impact on patients care experience at NBT. 

 

NBT is about to initiate a piece of work with the WoE LCRN cancer speciality and CCG looking at cost 

and cost savings in research. This will compliment ongoing work looking at cancer patient access to 

research studies. 

 

NBT Springboard round 9 is currently open. NBT Springboard awards charitable funds to researchers, to 

undertake research projects which have either direct relevance to the NHS, or feed into larger funding 

bids with the potential for impact on the NHS.  

 

The launch of the NBT Science Quarter is scheduled for International Clinical Trials day on Wednesday 

20th May. The day aims to publicise some of the ground breaking research and facilities at Southmead 

hospital and is focussed towards involving members of the public. Over 100 people have registered for 

the event and 60% of these are patients. Combining research facility tours of the University of Bristol labs, 

Clinical Research Centre, Learning and Research and Pathology, patient research experiences, academic 

and clinical research activities plus lectures and poster sessions the day offers patients the opportunity to 

see behind the scenes of clinical research. 
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40 Quality    

Carers Service 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary 

 

Twenty three referrals were 

received during April.   Referrals 

are being received from areas, 

professionals and individuals that 

have not referred previously, i.e. 

Out patients, speech & language 

therapists. 

 

The Carers Liaison Service is 

working with the Macmillan 

Wellbeing centre. There have been 

trials of both carers surgeries at 

the centre and direct referrals to 

the liaison worker to establish the 

best service for the carer 

 

Concerns are: 

- There is an ongoing stress from 

the caring situation and 

concerns about how this 

changes after discharge.  

- Insufficient information from the 

ward about the 

situation/discharge 

arrangements. 

 

Currently recruiting for a Carers 

liaison worker to fill the vacancy 

available since January 2015.   As 

a consequence of this developing 

a strategy for working across both 

acute Trusts with the Carers 

liaison worker at BRI 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Please note that this section will 

appear in the report on a quarterly 

basis.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total number of carers referrals received  

DON53 
999 
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QUALITY   PATIENT EXPERIENCE 
SRO   Sue Jones   Director of Nursing 
 

Section Summary  

Improvements & Actions 

 

The complaints improvement plan is succeeding in addressing the backlog of delayed complaints 

responses, whilst also addressing transformation and an improved approach to complaints further 

to the patients association training. 

 

This month includes a new page reporting on our support for Carers  

 

Trends 

 

Last month FFT response rates reflected the impact of trials using mobile devices and video 

booths, work is progressing to review future data collection methods given that increased 

response rates improve reliability and raise the profile and importance of patient feedback 

 

Areas of Concern 

 



 

 

 

 

 

42 XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  

XXXX 

XXXXX 

XXXX 

42 Caring    

Friends & Family Test   Trustwide Position 
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing   

INPATIENT survey response rate 

is 28%, down 22% from March 

when we achieved 50% with a pilot 

of a combination of survey 

approaches. The new national 

measure is %Recommend and % 

Not Recommend and our results 

were 94.3% and 0.79% 

respectively. 
 

Our National Ranking (March 

2015) 48/166 for response rate a 

massive leap from 123rd in 

February.   126/167  patients who 

would recommend us. 

EMERGENCY DEPT response 

rate is 10.3% down 14% from 

March. 88% of patients would 

recommend the service with 7% 

not recommending the service.   

These are within 1percentage 

point of the March results. 
 

Our National Ranking (March 

2015) 61/139 for response rate 

and 29/139   patients who would 

recommend us.  Both these results 

show a significant improvement on 

previous results. 

MATERNITY response rate is 

11.9% (down by 9%).   95% of 

patient would recommend the 

service while 2% would not. 

OUTPATIENTS / DAY CASE 

response rate is 2.3% slightly 

down on March.  93% would 

recommend our services and 4% 

would not. 

           NBT % Patients would recommend                National % Patients would recommend                  NBT Net Promoter Score   --- NPS Target 

            Response Rate Target                      National Response Rate        ………..  National Net Promoter Score             NBT Response Rate 
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43 Caring   

Friends & Family Test   Directorate Responses and Scores  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing   

The directorates continue to 

demonstrate a high % of patients 

who would recommend their 

services in addition to which they 

are showing a steady increase in 

their net promoter score. 

Response rates are also climbing 

steadily. 

The pilot of handheld electronic 

devices and the video kiosk in ED 

proved popular and successful 

with staff and patients alike.   They 

were partly responsible for the 

massive increase in response rate 

to the survey the other element 

was the promotion of the CQUIN 

target (40%). 

Next steps are: 

• To build a business case to 

increase the methods by which 

patients can feedback.   These 

methods will increase realtime 

feedback and accessibility of 

the information to the managers 

allowing local action to be taken 

in response to the findings of 

the survey. 

• To work with clinical teams to 

design a mechanism to 

feedback the actions taken / 

changes made as a result of the 

surveys “you said / we did”. 

• To work with staff to increase 

their desire to know what 

patients are feeling about their 

services with a desire to 

improve them. 

 

 

          NBT % Patients would recommend              NBT Net Promoter Score   --- NPS Target            Response Rate Target           NBT Response Rate           
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44 Caring  

Friends & Family Test   Directorate/Dept. Responses and Scores   
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing   

The top performing ward for April, 

in terms of getting a high NPS and 

RR,  is Gate 7a (with a NPS 71.7 

and RR 85.7%). Other high 

performers include: Gates: 33A 

25a, 33b, 32b with high NPS and 

over 40% response rate. 

 

Maternity Services 

The overall response rate for 

maternity services was 12% during 

April with a range of 8.8% - 

15.64% across the measured 

stages.   Delivery was the lowest 

stage and Post natal community 

the highest. 

 

Overall 95% of mums would 

recommend the service with 2.8% 

who would not. 

 

National Comparison (March) 

Antenatal: 95% of mums would 

recommend NBT (95% nationally) 

 

Delivery:    94% of mums would 

recommend NBT (97% nationally) 

 

Post In-Patient: 90% of mums 

would recommend NBT (93% 

nationally) 

 

Post Community: 100% of mums 

would recommend NBT (98% 

nationally) 
 

As of 1st April 2015 there are no response rate 

targets. 

          NBT % Patients would recommend              NBT Net Promoter Score   --- NPS Target             Response Rate Target          NBT Response 

Rate          



XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  

XXXX 

XXXXX 

XXXX 

45 Caring    

Complaints & Concerns 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 Commentary 

 

The number of complaints and 

concerns received fell in April - 

consistent with the pattern seen last 

year, but numbers still exceed those for 

the two previous Aprils.  

The top 3 categories of complaint for 

April continued to be Clinical care, 

Communication and Delays and 

Cancellations. 

The external support for reducing the 

complaints backlog continues, working 

with directorate Heads of Nursing to 

meet the targets agreed at April Board; 

1. 2014 overdue complaints cleared 

by 31 May 2015 

2. Qtr4 14/15 overdue complaints 

cleared by 30 June 2015 

3. Qtr1 15/16 overdue complaints by 

31 July 2015 

The main focus continues to be MSK 

and Surgery, which both have over 30 

overdue complaints as shown in the 

chart but significant progress has been 

made since the 30 April reporting date 

(9 of 18 remaining 2014 complaints 

resolved to 12/5/15) and the 31 May 

target is on track. 

The final in the series of Patients 

Association collaborative workshops 

will take place in June. Feedback from 

the first two sessions shows that these 

were well received and will help to 

underpin the complaints improvement 

plan.   
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46 Caring    

Complaints & Concerns 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary  

Compliments for Qtr4 2014/15 

were 376 broadly consistent with 

2013/14 after adjustment for  the 

departure of SGCHS. 

The Head of Patient Experience 

continues to investigate ways to 

facilitate and encourage greater 

reporting of compliments to ensure 

that good practice is recognised 

more consistently and fed back to 

staff. 

The fall in enquiry numbers 

continued after the peak post 

Brunel move, but remain above the 

levels seen before this. 
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47 Caring  

Complaints & Concerns 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary  

  

No new cases were reported for 

investigation by the PHSO in 

April. 

No investigations were concluded 

or draft reports issued by the 

PHSO last month. 

The Action Plan returned in 

March as ‘non compliant’ has 

been re-submitted and accepted 

by the PHSO. 

. 

* Detailed in a draft report and yet to be confirmed. 

 

If all avenues for complaint resolution have been exhausted and the complainant is still dissatisfied with the Trust’s 

response, the complaint has the right to take their complaint to the PHSO. Cases can take many months from ‘new’ 

to ‘decision’ which means the volumes shown above represent differing time periods and will not therefore ‘add up’ 

within any given period. 

Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO)  Cases 

  Q1 14/15 Q2 14/15 Q3 14/15 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 

New cases referred to PHSO  6 3 2 1 1 2 0 

No. of cases Fully upheld 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 

No. Partly upheld 2 1 0 0 1  0 0 

No. Not upheld 1 0 0 0 1  0 0 

Fines levied Nil  £550 £500 Nil £250 *  Nil Nil 

Corrective Actions Compliant 
with timescales 

1  N/A N/A 2 2  0 0 

Non-compliant  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  1  0 
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48 CQUINS 2015-16 National Schemes  
Board Sponsor    Director of Nursing  

 

Please note: 2015/16 CQUINS are currently being finalised. This section of the report will be revised 
as the underlying detail is agreed.  

CQUIN Title  Description  Lead Area IPR page 
Ref 

Acute Kidney Injury 

Evidence in discharge summaries of:- a)stage of AKI, 
b)evidence of medicines review undertaken, c)type of blood 
tests required on discharge for monitoring, and d)frequency of 
blood tests required on discharge for monitoring 

Medical Director 

Sepsis 

a) number of patients presenting to ED and other admitting 
units who met local criteria and were screened for sepsis and 
b) number of patients presenting to ED or other admitting 
units with severe sepsis, red flag sepsis or septic shock and 
who received intravenous antibiotics within 1 hour of 
presenting. 

Medical Director 

Dementia  To incentivise the identification of patients with dementia 
and other causes of cognitive impairment alongside their 
other medical conditions, to prompt appropriate referral 
and follow up after they leave hospital and to ensure that 
hospitals deliver high quality care to people with dementia 
and support their carers.  

Director of 
Nursing  
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49 CQUINS 2015-16 Local Schemes 
Board Sponsor    Director of Nursing  

 

Further CQUIN areas under development  

Urgent Care – reduction in avoidable emergency admissions 
 

Urgent care – reduction in alcohol dependence and emergency admissions related to alcohol 

Timeliness of discharge summaries and summary care plans given to patients 

Cancer – reducing late inter-provider cancer referrals 

End of Life care 

Self care – “ask 3 questions” 

CAMHS – risk assessment and self care plans 

Care homes – prevention of admission from and timely discharge to care homes  

Patient safety – assessing patient safety cultures 

Safeguarding adults – focus on transforming care for people with Learning Difficulties as part of the Care  Act 

Discharge to assess – joint scheme with Sirona, Bristol Community Health and NBT 
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50 CQUINS 2015-16 NHS England Specialist Services Schemes  
Board Sponsor    Director of Nursing 

Further CQUIN areas under development  

Clinical Utilisation review – implementing bed state system 

HIV – reducing unnecessary CD4 monitoring 

Vascular surgery – improving outcomes for major lower limb amputation 

Renal dialysis – increasing home therapies in dialysis  

Critical care – rehabilitation assessments on discharge 

Critical care – reduce delayed discharges to wards 

 Neurology - preventing avoidable admissions for patients with a long term neurological condition. Completing an 
emergency care plan 

CAMHS tier 4 – carer and family engagement 
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Well Led 
SRO   Anne Robson Director of People & Organisation Health 

Section Summary  

Improvements & Actions 

 

• The final 2015/16 Trust Workforce Plan has been completed and submitted to the TDA . 

• The 2015/16 Workforce, Resourcing & OD Plan’ with actions, measures and planned trajectories has been endorsed by Trust Board subject to the need to 

align the funding and workforce numbers and report progress of the plan via the IPR and Workforce Committee. 

• The first of four ‘Nursing@NBT’ open days took place on the 24th April and proved a success with 27 registered nursing offers made. 

• The Trust has approved a 1% bank pay rate increase for bank workers with effect the 1st April 2015 with an additional pay increase to band 1 and 2 bank 

workers.  

• Overall Mandatory training rates have improved to 87.3% for April.  

• 329 job offers were made in April. 

• Equality & Diversity, Waste, and Information Governance have all now been endorsed by Workforce Committee to be included as top tier training 

mandatory training topics. The additional 3 will appear on the Appraisal documentation as criteria for incremental pay with effect from the new appraisal 

year (1st April 2016).  

• Standardised Shift Working Group – a 12hour shift staff engagement questionnaire has been completed by 887 staff.  A report with findings and 

recommendations is being collated which will be presented to the Standardised Shift Working Group later in May. It is also planned the report will be made 

available to staff to view in the summer via the Zest4Life intranet site. 

• Occupational Health SLA Review – the working group is finalising SLA services, legal clauses and KPI's. Reviewed SLA to be presented to Occupational 

Health Board in July.   

• Staff Friends & Family Test Q4 results were presented to JCNC in April, along with comparison report to Q2 results. The results of Q4 and a comparison 

of the 3 surveys we did last year are available on the HR Portal under ‘Latest News’.  Q1 Staff Friends and Family Test went live on 18th May. The survey 

is open to all staff and will close on June 21st 2015. 

Trends 

 A reduction in Sickness Absence was recorded for March, although it remains above Trust target. A trajectory through to March 2016 has been 

introduced.   

 The response rate to the Quarter 4 Staff Friends & Family Test was 19%, with over 1,900 staff completing the survey.  66% of staff reported that they were 

either likely or extremely likely to recommend NBT as a place to be treated, a 6% increase on the results from Quarter 2. 46% of staff reported that they 

were either likely or extremely likely to recommend NBT as a place to work, a 7% increase on Quarter 2’s report.  Additional staff engagement questions 

were asked and the analysis of these will be available from the 1st of May on the HR portal.  

 Trajectories have also been introduced within this report for sickness absence and turnover. 

 

Areas of Concern 

 The number of live vacancies registered with HR has increased to 624.11wte. The main cause for the increase is due to a nursing re-base lining 

exercise.  

 Sickness Absence whilst recording a drop in March, remains a concern and as such an action plan to improve performance was approved by the 

Workforce Committee.  
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Standard 

(target) 

April 2015 
 

Most recent 

quarter’s average 

performance  

(Q4 Jan – Mar 15) 

 

 

Quarterly Trend (Q2 vs Q3) 
Performance 

against national 

target / contract 

Trend from last 

month 

Turnover 

(voluntary/perm staff) 

10.4%  

 

 

 

10.4%                     10.1% (in Q3) to 10.4% (in Q4) 

Trustwide Sickness 

Absence (target 3.8% - 

in month Mar 15 figure 

shown)  

                    4.8%  (in Q3) to 5.1% (in Q4) 

                     

Long Term Sickness 

Absence % pro rata 

(One month in arrears) 

 

3.1% 

 

3.0% 

 

                   2.6% (in Q3) to 3.0% (in Q4) 

Short Term Sickness 

Absence % pro rata  

(One month in arrears) 

 

 

1.6% 

 

2.2% 
                   2.2% (in Q3) to 2.2% (in Q4) 

WTE Bank (usage) 

 

 

 

474.3 

 

502.1                      446.9 (in Q3) to 502.1 (in Q4) 

WTE Agency (usage) 

 

 

 

190.0 

 

236.7                     205.5 (inQ3) to 236.7 (in Q4) 

Mandatory Training 

Compliance (Target 

85%) (one month in 

arrears) 

                   82.7% (in Q3) to 86.3%  (in Q4) 

Well Led 
Summary Dashboard 
Board Sponsor Director of  People & Organisation Health  

86.3% 

 5.1% 4.6%  

87.3% 
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53 Well Led  

Key Workforce Indicators 
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health  

 
Turnover  
Included: permanent staff who have 

resigned voluntarily & fixed term staff 

who left before the end of their 

contract. 

Excluded: bank workers, locums, 

junior doctors, service transfers, end 

of fixed term contracts, retirements, 

dismissals, redundancies, and 

internal movements/transfers. 

 

Turnover has stabilised over the last 

4 months and efforts are now being 

made to reduce voluntary turnover to 

pre-move levels.  

 

Turnover remains a concern in 

Theatres. The focus is on non-

financial retention initiatives such as 

learning and development 

opportunities and improving the 

working environment.   

 

Neuro has focused on recruiting 

behavioural HCA’s, job rotation and 

improved directorate 

communications.  

 

The number of trust leavers fell to 

just under 90 in April, compared to  

126 in March.   

 

  

Turnover from Voluntary Resignations 

Period % Turnover 

May 14 – Apr 15 10.4% 

Apr 14 – Mar 15 10.5% 

Mar 14 – Feb 15 10.4% 

Feb 14 – Jan 15 10.5% 

Jan 14 – Dec 14 10.3% 

Dec 13 – Nov 14 10.1% 

Nov 13- Oct 14  10.1% 

Oct 13- Sept 14  9.8% 

Sep 13 - Aug 14 9.9% 

Aug 13 - July 14 9.7% 

Jul 13 – Jun 14 9.5% 

Jun 13 - May 14 8.9% 

Voluntary Turnover Rolling 12 months 

(Orange = Improvement trajectory) 

DOHR01 
999 



 

 

 

 

 

54 XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  

XXXX 

XXXXX 

XXXX 

54 Well Led  

Recruitment 
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health 

Recruitment  
• Human Resource are actively 

recruiting to 624.11 wte vacancies.  

• Recruitment resource has been 

increased to manage demand and 

have improved the ‘time to hire’.   

• The number of vacancies have 

increased due to nursing and 

midwifery re-base lining. 

• Plans are in place within Facilities 

Management to appoint on a 

substantive basis wef June (162 wte) 

• Robust resourcing plans for 2015/16 

have been developed for each staff 

group to fill the workforce gaps. 

• There were overall 329 offers during 

April which include 33 Spanish 

Registered Nurses and a further 84 

Newly Qualified Nurses.  

• A further 28 Newly Qualified Nurses 

are to be interviewed on May 19th. 

• Included in the offers above a 

successful Nursing Open Day on 

24th April 2014 in Brunel recruited 27 

Registered Nursing many with 

experience. 

• A Recruitment and Retention 

Manager was appointed in April. 

• Medical vacancy levels remain high 

due to the run up to the August 

changeover, however, recruitment 

remains strong in this area with 45 

offers made in April. 

 

• The number new starters (excluding 

Medical) for April was below planned 

trajectory.  

• The number of April’s leaver were 

within target. 

• Note : the planned trajectories have 

been adjusted to recognise planned 

recruitment activity throughout 

2015/16. 

 

 

 

Staff Group  LIVE Vacancies (WTE) 

Registered Nurses 217.79 

Non-Registered 

Nurses 

142.33 

Medical 72.00 

Other(e.g. Admin & 

Clerical) 

 

148.41 

 

AHP’s 43.58 

Total 624.11 
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DOHR 11 
999 

New Starters & Leavers   
(Orange =  New Starter Trajectory Green = Leavers 

Trajectory Blue = Actual) 



 

 

 

 

 

55 XXXX 

XXXXX 
Board Sponsor XXXX 

Commentary  

XXXX 

XXXXX 

XXXX 

55 Well Led  

Sickness Absence 
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health  

 
Sickness Absence 
Sickness absence  levels fell slightly 

in March but remain above the Trust 

target of 3.8%. The year to date 

figure (Apr-Mar) was 4.61%.  

 

A sickness absence recovery plan 

was approved by the Workforce 

Committee taking forward : 

• The refreshment of the Trust’s 

wellbeing strategy (by July) 

• Including directorate sickness 

absence trajectories and targets 

in Directorate Performance 

Reporting (by June) 

• Work to stream the current policy 

(by Sept) 

• Actions for managers and staff 

when applying the policy. 

• Further intensive training of 

managers in sickness absence 

management 

 

Reasons for absence 

 

92% of sickness cases logged with 

Ask HR are long term cases. The 

majority of these cases continue to 

be attributed to MSK problems, 

followed by stress and anxiety. 

 

12 cases are being managed under 

stages 2/3 of the short term sickness 

absence procedure. 
 

Note : sickness absence trajectory has 

been calculated using seasonal adjusted 

averages over the last 3 years aiming for 

target of 3.8% by March 16..  

 

 

Source Data for Sickness Absence % = BigI  

DOHR09 
056 
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56 Well Led    

Pay & iCare 
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health  

 
Bank and Agency 
April saw a slight decrease in agency 

figures compared to March 2015. 

 

With the NBT Extra (Bank) 

recruitment project up and running 

for Health Care Assistants and 

Registered nurses the agency usage 

is expected to continue to drop.  By 

taking a more proactive approach to 

sourcing for the Bank by using 

external job boards and attending 

local job fairs, the NBT Extra 

recruitment team have seen a good 

pipeline to the Bank of both staffing 

groups.  Measures have started to 

be put in place to ensure the 

decrease in usage of  Non-

Framework agencies which are the 

largest cost to the Trust.  

 

Pay Expenditure 
As highlighted above, agency usage 

and therefore agency pay decreased 

in April.   

 

Overall, pay levels have returned to 

more normal levels following the 

spike in March. 

 

iCARE 
From  the 1st April iCARE training is 

business as usual. This means that 

iCARE training is solely at induction. 

Changes in there number of staff who 

have had iCARE training reflects the 

number of staff attending induction in the 

month 
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57 Well Led  

Mandatory Training  
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health  

Mandatory Training  
 

Overall compliance with mandatory 

training, as expected, increased 

during March due to the ease of 

winter pressures. 

 

Fire and manual handling, although 

remaining under the 85% compliance 

target, have also seen significant 

increases. 

 

Equality & Diversity, Waste, and IG 

have all now been endorsed by 

Workforce Committee to be included 

as top tier training mandatory training 

topics . A communication 

programme is underway to inform 

and raise awareness with staff.   

 

The additional 3 will appear on the 

Appraisal documentation as criteria 

for incremental pay with effect from 

the new appraisal year (1st April 

2016).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Note : with effect from January 2015  

the mandatory training data will only 

include those topics which are 

exceptions (e.g. not meeting, and 

sustaining, 85% compliance target).  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CQC Mandatory Training Action Plan 2015 

 
• Agreed in 2014 that staff annual pay increments to be 

received on condition that full compliance with mand/stat 

training can be demonstrated. This principle is applicable 

to all staff from April 2015 onwards. 

 

• HR Partners to actively monitor and ensure staff in their 

Directorates are compliant in mand/stat training. Now 

ongoing. 

 

• BNSSG/Bath Passport Protocol – staff transferring 

between regional NHS Trusts will retain and transfer their 

individual training record – therefore retaining compliance 

with in-date mandatory/stat training.  Now ongoing. 

 

• Review and launch of updated mand/stat training 

programme, May/June15. 

 

• Improved and strengthened e-learning options and 

availability to make mand/stat training updates easier and 

more accessible – May/June 15. 

 

• Updated Training Needs Analysis – will publish training 

requirements and update frequency by staff group in 

more accessible format May/June 15. 
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58 Well Led  

Staff Survey 
Board Sponsor   Director of People & Organisation Health  

I would recommend this organisation as a 

place to work 

If a friend or relative needed treatment I would be 

happy with the standard of care provided by this 

organisation 

How likely are you to recommend North Bristol 

Trust to friends and family as a place to work 

How likely are you to recommend North Bristol 

Trust to friends and family in need of care or 

treatment 

Friends & Family : Test 

Results 
The third SFFT was conducted in 

Feb/March – 10,122 staff were 

invited to participate and 1929 

responded (19%).  Most responses 

were received electronically, only 

161 hard copies were returned. 

 

The reasons staff gave for their 

responses in Q4 included: 

 

• Access to the hospital (incl 

parking) 

• Staff Engagement/Morale 

• Line Management and teams – 

communication/skills/bullying/ 

teamwork 

• Staffing levels – staff 

shortages/skill 

mix/workload/pressure 

• Shifts – flexibility/length of 

shift/breaks 

• Career Progression and job 

security – 

support/training/professional 

development/equality 

 

The charts also show the 

comparisons in responses across 

the year.  A survey was not 

conducted in Q3 as the staff 

attitude survey asked these 

questions. 
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59 Well Led  

Medical Workforce  
Board Sponsor  Medical Director  

Commentary 
 

The medical appraisal chart shows 

the compliance with the 

requirement for all doctors to have 

not exceeded 15 months since 

their last appraisal. 

 

The small number of individuals 

missing this deadline are targeted 

by directorate appraisal leads as 

necessary. 

 

Clinical Fellows on short term fixed 

contracts may have difficulty 

keeping up to date with appraisal 

dates. The revalidation support 

manager is supporting these 

doctors to ensure that they meet 

the GMC requirement. 
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60 Safe Staffing  

Nursing Workforce  
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing 

 
Commentary 

The overall Trust % fill rate for 

April 2015 was between 90%- 

125%.  

April continued to see a high 

number of care assistant 

specials/ 1:1 care required on 

several wards. The new skill 

mixes have also not as yet 

changed within the ward template 
 

Red flagged areas for April with 

less than 80% fill rate are: 

 

• Mendip: Registered Midwifes 

nights. 

Risk assessed continually through 

out each shift to ensure that the 

staffing levels are safe on the unit 

and staff are moved around the 

service as required.  

• Cotswold: Registered nurses 

night duty.  

This ward has had varying 

occupancy which allowed staff to 

be redeployed to other areas of the 

trust. 

• NICU: Care assistants both day 

and night (6th Month) 

High number of Care assistant 

vacancies all now recruited to but 

awaiting start dates. Some vacant 

shifts have been covered by 

registered nurses in order to 

maintain safety. Skill mix review 

due to commence from next 

month. 
 

The numbers of hours Registered Nurses (RN) and Care Assistants (CA), planned and actual, on both day 
and night shifts are collated manually by each gate/ department  every month. This data is uploaded on 
UNIFY for NHS Choices and also on our Website showing overall trust position and each individual gate 
level. Further commentary for these areas and the breakdown for each of the ward areas are available 
now on the external webpage.  

April 2015 Day shift Night Shift 

  RN/Midwife Fill rate % CA Fill rate % RN/Midwife Fill rate CA Fill rate 

Cossham 98.9% 103.4% 96.3% 90.0% 

Riverside Unit 97.8% 97.9% 103.3% 100.0% 

Southmead  96.1% 116.2% 98.3% 125.0% 
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61 Safe Staffing    

Nursing Workforce 
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing  

Commentary 

Nursing spend on the inpatient 

wards has increased slightly this 

month associated with increased 

temporary staffing usage caused 

by high level of vacancies. 

 The WTE per bed is also slightly 

in excess of the funded level. This 

is of concern as all funded 

establishments have been 

reviewed as part of the 15 /16 

Budget setting process. The 

increase is due to current 

sickness levels and  the numbers 

of patients requiring ‘Enhanced 

care’. 

The  ‘Enhanced care’ policy and 

implementation plan has been 

fully drafted and is going through 

the approval routes in May.  

This is being triangulated against 

the Safe care (acuity/dependency) 

electronic tool which is now being 

completed twice daily on all 

wards. 

Recruitment to vacancies  with 

associated reductions in premium 

cost agency usage and control of 

sickness absence remain the key 

financial challenges for nursing. 

The first re formed Nursing and 

Midwifery workforce group took 

place in April and monthly 

assurance on managing 

vacancies, agency reduction and 

sickness management will be 

maintained. 

Ratio of Registered : Unregistered Ward Nurses  (Target 60:40) 
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62 Safe Staffing  

Nursing Workforce   Ward Early Warning Trigger Tool (QUESTT) 
Board Sponsor  Director of Nursing 

Commentary 
QUESTT is RAG rated with those 

wards scoring 7 – 12 being in an 

Amber status.  Those wards scoring 12 

and above are recorded as Red.  

Completion rates for April have 

declined , the areas not completing are 

being followed up by the Heads of 

Nursing for each area. 

2  wards flagged ‘red’  with scores  of 

12 and 15 for  April. Areas of concern 

for red wards:  

Cotswold : New ward sister in post,  

vacancy rates, unfilled shifts, sickness, 

unusual demands on service and 

ongoing investigations. 

Action taken: Vacancies being filled 

with start dates in next 3 months, and 

support to ward to ensure that outliers 

are planned and managed effectively. 

Gate 8B: (Triggered above for past 5 

months): No ward sister in post, 

vacancy rates , unfilled shifts, 

sickness, complaints, untidy ward and 

ongoing investigations.  

Action taken: Acting ward sister in 

post,  recruited substantively into   post 

in May. Support provided by the 

Matron and Head of Nursing ensuring  

staffing is risk assessed each shift  and 

the formal complaints have been 

responded to. Vacancies in process of 

being filled, awaiting start dates in next 

4 months. 

AAU did not submit data this month, 

significant support provided with 

change in senior leadership in April 

and staff moved from other Medical  

wards to support number of vacancies 

in May. Recruitment plan in place and 

being monitored.    

Questions Used for Ward Early Warning Trigger Tool Assessment 

Q1: New or no line manager in post (within last 6 months)  Q9: 2 or more formal complaints in a month (wards) or 3 or more 
(A&E or OPD) or 1 or more (CCU & ICU)  

Q2: Vacancy rate higher than 3%  Q10: No evidence of resolution to recurring themes  

Q3: Unfilled shifts is higher than 6% Q11: Unusual demands on service exceeding capacity to deliver 
(e.g. national targets, outbreak)   

Q4: Sickness absence rate higher than 3.5% Q12: Hand hygiene audits not performed   

Q5: No monthly review of key quality indicators by peers (e.g. 
peer review or governance team meetings)  

Q13: Cleanliness audits not performed  

Q6: Planned annual appraisals not performed   Q14: Ward/department appears untidy  

Q7: No involvement in Trust-wide multi-disciplinary meetings 
  

Q15: No evidence of effective multidisciplinary/multi-
professional team working   

Q8: No formal feedback obtained from patients during the month 
(e.g. questionnaires or surveys)  

Q16: Ongoing investigation or disciplinary investigation (including 
RCA's & infection control RCA's)  
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63 Safe Staffing  

Maternity  
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary 
This report  provides information 

about midwifery staffing and will 

track, for the board, the occasions 

when  delivery suite  is unable to 

take new admissions and why. 
When CDS is closed transfers are 
normally made within BNSSG, transfers 
out of area are at very low levels. There 

are robust processes in place to 

prevent closure.  If the Delivery Suite 

coordinator is concerned about 

acuity, the Matron or a Senior 

Manager is contacted, and 

supervisor of midwives out of hours. 

Midwives are moved  to assist on the 

Delivery Suite  (this includes all 

specialist midwives and managers), 

and out of hours the on call midwife 

is called in.   

 

The NICE guidance  for safer 

Midwifery staffing was published in 

March 2015, Formulation of an 

action plan is underway to enable 

implementation.  

 

The Birthrate plus acuity tool is 

currently being used to identify the 

skill mix of midwives needed for our 

level of acuity.. 

 

The Directorate has implemented a 

rolling programme of recruitment to 

reduce gaps in recruitment. 

Midwife to Birth Ratio 

Aug 
14 

Sep 
14 

Oct 
14 

Nov 
14 

Dec 
14 

Jan 
15 

Feb 
15 

Mar 
15 

Apr 
15 

1:33 1:38 1:38 1:37 1:39 1:37 1:35 1:35 1:34 

DON53 
999 

No beds  
on wards 

13% 

DON52 
999 

DON51 
999 
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64 Well Led 

Care Quality Commission Action Plan Delivery Progress 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 
Commentary 
• There were 75 actions set by 

CQC (status at 30/4/15) is 

shown in first table. 

• NBT’s Action Plan set out 192 

total actions to deliver the 

above, summarised within the 

2nd table. A third have been 

completed, a further 45% are 

‘on track.’ 

• Evidence is being validated for 

all actions falling due by each of 

the bi-monthly CQC Operational 

Delivery Group meetings.  

 

Compliance Action (CA)  Progress 

Priority focus is to ensure delivery 

of the CAs and Enforcement 

Action. 

• One CA is complete (no.8). 

• CAs 2, 3, 6, 7, 9 and 10 are on 

track as planned. 
 

The most significant risk relates to 

delivery of the actions required to 

ensure closure of CA1 and the 

Enforcement Notice, which shows 

5 actions at risk of delay and 3 

overdue. 
 

CA9 shows one ‘must do’ as 

overdue, CAs 4 and 5 both show 

one ‘must do’ action as at risk of 

potential delay. 
 

‘Must do’ exceptions (amber or 

red) are listed on the following 

page. 

 

 

 

  

Must Should Must Should Must Should Must Should Must Should

Patient Flow

Enforcement Action: Warning Notice 16th December 2014.  Care and welfare of 

people who use services . 

Compliance Action 1:  Care and welfare of people who use services . (#1A – 6)

31/07/2015 9 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 3 0

Patient Flow Other Actions (#7-11) 31/12/2015 2 3 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0

Patient Safety
Compliance Action 2:  Assess ing and monitoring the qual i ty of service 

providers . (#12-16)
31/07/2015 3 2 0 0 3 1 0 1 0 0

Patient Safety
Compliance Action 3:  Safeguarding people who use services  from abuse. 

(#17-18)
31/07/2015 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

Patient Safety Compliance Action 4:  Management of medicines . (#19-22) 01/07/2015 1 3 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 0

Patient Safety
Compliance Action 5:  Care and welfare of people who use services  

(Records). (#23-27)
31/12/2015 2 3 0 0 1 2 1 1 0 0

Patient Safety Compliance Action 6:  Safety, ava i labi l i ty and suitabi l i ty of equipment. (#28) 30/09/2015 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

Patient Safety Compliance Action 7:  Cleanl iness  and Infection Control . (#29-32) 30/11/2015 3 1 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Patient Safety Compliance Action 8:  Safety and suitabi l i ty of premises  (HITU speci fic). (#33) Completed 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Patient Safety Other Actions (#34-39) 30/11/2015 1 5 0 3 1 2 0 0 0 0

Patient Experience Other Actions (#40-52) 31/10/2015 1 12 0 4 0 6 0 0 1 2

Staffing Levels, 

Wellbeing & 

Engagement

Compliance Action 9:  Staffing. (# 53-63) 31/12/2015 5 6 0 2 4 3 0 1 1 0

Training
Compliance Action 9:  Staffing. 

Compliance Action 10:  Supporting s taff. (#64-72)
01/10/2015 4 5 1 1 3 4 0 0 0 0

34 41 4 11 18 22 7 5 5 3

Overdue
RegulationTheme

No. of Actions Completed On track Potential DelayFinal Action 

Date

Actions TOTAL % 

Total actions completed 63 33 

‘Green’ Actions (on track) 86 45 

Potential Delay/ Insufficient evidence 32 17 

Overdue 11 6 

Total NBT actions required to deliver CQC Actions specified above 
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65 Well Led 

Care Quality Commission Action Plan Delivery Exceptions 
Board Sponsor   Director of Nursing  

 

 
Commentary 

 

The five overdue ‘Must Do’ 

actions are reported in the table 

opposite. 

 

Revised action dates are 

proposed and subject to Board 

review will be discussed /agreed 

with the  CQC. 

 

There are also 7 ‘Must Do’ 

actions that are deemed to be at 

risk (potential delay), which are; 

• 1A – patient care in 

appropriate place & support 

leaving hospital 

• 1B – Capacity in hospital to 

admit to and discharge form 

critical care at optimal time. 

• 1C – ED ambulance queues. 

• 1D – Effective discharge plans 

when medically fit. 

These four are targeted for 

31/7/15 in line with 4 hour 

recovery plan. Status reflects 

current risk levels. 

 

Other potential delays are; 

• 5 – Seated Assessment Area 

– appropriate Use. 

• 19 – Safe Management of 

Medicines 

• 24 – Availability of Medical 

Records 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Priority 
Comp. 
Action 

Ref  
Action 

Lead(s) 
Responsible 

Action Due Issue / Revised Action 
Proposed 

Revised Due 
Date 

Must Do 2 

Improve performance in relation to the 
time patients wait to be assessed and the 
time they remain in the emergency 
department. 

ED/Specialty Leads 30/4/15 

2.4 Enforcement of Internal Professional Standards<30 
minutes across all Directorates and Specialties. Escalate 
noncompliance to clinical lead/CD/Exec level 
Gap/Action 
Stronger response protocols needed and means of 
assessing ongoing compliance with protocol. 

30/6/15 

Must Do 3 

Work with healthcare partners to ensure 

people with mental health needs who 
attend the emergency department out of 
hours receive prompt and effective 
support from appropriately trained staff 
to meet their needs. 

CD Medicine/ED 

Consultant 
30/4/15 

3.1 Appointment of psychiatry post at NBT. Explore with 
AWP option for appointing locum during the recruitment 

gap. Review and refine SOP with AWP and internal systems 
to ensure patients are managed in the most appropriate 
environment. 
Gap/Action 
Workforce model / Plan agreed, delays with AWP 
recruitment to Psychiatry post. 

30/6/15 

Must Do 6. 

Ensure medical and surgical patients are 
cared for in the most appropriate wards 
for their needs, and that reviews are 
always undertaken in a timely manner. 

Specialty Lead 30/4/15 

6.1 Enforcement of Internal Professional Standards<30 
minutes across all Directorates and Specialties. Escalate 
noncompliance to clinical lead/CD/Exec level. 
Gap/Action 
Stronger response protocols needed and means of 
assessing ongoing compliance with protocol. 

30/6/15 

Must Do 40. 
Ensure that the privacy and dignity of 
patients in the Brunel building is 
maintained  

Head of Patient 

Experience 
30/4/15 

40.2 & 40.3 Staff reminders to be issued to ensure P&D 
awareness maintained, esp. in Brunel areas. 
Gap/Action 
Audit completed in Brunel & local signage to be trialled to 
advise patients, carers, families of P&D options. 

31/5/15 

Must Do 53. 
Review staffing levels to ensure they 
reflect current demand 

Ward Sisters, 
Matrons, HoNs 

30/4/15 

53.2 - 100% of wards to ensure completion Safecare daily. 
Gap/Action 
88% completed Mar. 15, improvements in progress to 
deliver 100%. 

30/6/15 
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66 FINANCE   

SRO   Catherine Phillips   Director of Finance  

Section Summary  

Summary 
For the year to date the Trust is £0.9m adverse to plan  
• The primary drivers for the monthly adverse plan  were lower than planned elective income of £0.5m and 

unidentified savings of £0.4m in month.  
• The cash balance is £20.4m, which includes £15m of revolving working capital facility from the Department 

of Health. 
• Capital expenditure totals £2.4m which is £0.6m below the plan for the year to date.  
• The Trust is rated red by the Trust Development Authority (TDA) as a result of the planned and forecast 

deficit.  
 
Areas of concern  
• Elective inpatient performance continues to be lower than plan.  It is essential that activity levels continue to 

increase to planned levels as soon as possible to meet plan. 
• Non Pay expenditure was £0.4m overspent for the month, primarily reflecting unrealised cost savings. It is 

imperative that further cost savings scheme’s are identified and enacted.   

Actions 
• Ensure the delivery of the in year savings plan  
• Continue to monitor and manage cash on a daily basis to minimise the requirement for external cash 

support.  
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67 

Commentary 

Assurances 

The financial position for April 

shows a deficit of £4.6m compared 

with a planned budget deficit of 

£3.7m. This represents a £0.9m 

adverse movement to plan from 

month 1.  

Key Issues 

Based on a high level assessment 

of activity, contract income was 

£0.5m adverse to plan in April.  

This was driven by lower than 

planned elective activity, 

particularly within Orthopaedics. 

Unrealised cost savings from as 

yet unidentified schemes was the 

primary driver for the overspend 

noted on non pay.  

Actions Planned  

Improvement in theatre throughput 

and productivity through 

recruitment to vacant posts and 

improvement in session utilisation.  

Finance 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 

 

 In month 

variance (Adv)/ 

Fav 

Budget £m Actual £m

Variation from 

budget (Adv) / 

Fav £m

£m 

Income 

Contract Income 37.8 37.3 (0.5) (0.5)

Other operating income 6.2 6.2 0.0 0.0

Donations income for capital acquisitions 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

Total Income 44.0 43.6 (0.4) (0.4)

Expenditure

Pay 28.9 28.9 0.0 0.0

Non-Pay 14.2 14.6 (0.4) (0.4)

Total Expenditure 43.1 43.5 (0.4) (0.4)

Earnings before Interest & depreciation 0.9 0.1 (0.8) (0.8)

0.23%

Depreciation & Amortisation 1.8 1.9 (0.1) (0.1)

Non PFI Interest receivable 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Non PFI Interest payable 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

PFI Interest 2.7 2.7 0.0 0.0

PDC Dividend 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Impairment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Retained Surplus / (Deficit) for accounting 

purposes
(3.7) (4.6) (0.9) (0.9)

-10.55%

Add back items excluded for NHS 

accountability

IFRIC 12 Adjustment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Donations income for capital acquisitions 0.0 (0.1) 0.1 0.1

Depreciation of donated assets 0.0 0.1 (0.1) (0.1)

Impairment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Adjusted Surplus / (Deficit) for NHS 

accountability
(3.7) (4.6) (0.9) (0.9)

Position as at 30 April 2015
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68 

Commentary 

 

Assurances  

 

The new interim revolving working 

capital support facility has been 

accessed and the Trust has received 

£15m temporary cash support on 7th 

April 2015.  The Trust has access to 

sufficient cash resources to maintain 

operating requirements. 

 

   

Concerns & Gaps  

 

Receivables have increased in 

month resulting in a lower than 

planned cash balance.  

 

 

Actions Planned  

Effective daily cash monitoring to 

ensure the Trust is able to stay within 

the cash limits set under the 

revolving working capital facility  

 

Focus on debt reduction of Non NHS 

debts over 90 days old and prompt 

raising of invoices across the Trust.   

 

Finance 

Statement of Financial Position 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 

 

 
31 March 2015          

Actual £m 

30 April 2015     

Plan £m

30 April 2015    

Actual £m

Variance above 

/ (below) plan 

£m

Non current assets

508.4 Property, Plant  and Equipment 510.5 509.9 (0.6)

0.4 Intangible Assets 0.4 0.4 0.0

508.8 Total non-current  assets 510.9 510.3 (0.6)

Current  Assets 

7.9 Inventories 7.9 7.8 (0.1)

15.8 Trade & other Receivables NHS 15.8 17.0 1.2

23.0 Trade & other non-receivables Non-NHS 20.0 24.2 4.2

1.0 Cash and Cash equivalents 24.8 20.8 (4.0)

47.8 Total Current Assets 68.6 69.9 1.3

31.7 Non-current assets held for sale 31.2 31.2 0.0

588.3 Total Assets 610.7 611.4 0.7

Current liabilities  (< 1 year)

7.5 Trade & other payables – NHS 7.5 10.7 3.2

75.7 Trade & other payables – Non-NHS 86.6 84.9 (1.7)

1.4 Borrowings 1.4 1.4 (0.0)

10.5 PFI l iability (current) 10.5 10.5 0.0

95.1 Total current liabilities 106.0 107.5 1.5

(15.6) Net current assets / (liabilities) (37.4) (37.7) (0.2)

493.2 Total Assets less current liabilities 504.7 503.9 (0.8)

7.0 Trade payables and deferred income 7.0 7.1 0.1

416.1 PFI l iability 415.3 415.3 (0.0)

19.5 Borrowings 19.5 19.5 0.0

50.6 Total Net Assets 62.8 61.9 (0.9)

Capital and Reserves

241.3 Public dividend capital 256.3 256.3 0.0

(242.2) Income & Expenditure reserve (270.2) (270.2) 0.0

(28.0) Income & Expenditure account – current year (3.7) (4.6) (0.9)

79.5 Revaluation reserve 80.4 80.4 (0.0)

50.6 Total Capital and Reserves 62.8 61.9 (0.9)
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Commentary 
 

Assurances 

The Trust has secured assurance 

from the TDA that it will make 

sufficient cash available to meet its 

obligations, subject to the 

implementation of the Financial 

Sustainability Plan. 

 

Concerns & Gaps  

The Trust has a red rating on the 

TDA risk assessment criteria as a 

result of the actual deficit for 

2014/15.  This will continue into 

2015/16.  

 

The risk rating against Monitor’s 

Continuity of Service rating is the 

lowest score of 1.   

 

Finance 

Financial Risk Ratings  
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
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70 

Commentary 
 

Assurances   

 

The Trust’s cash balance is 

presently £20.8m. The new interim 

revolving working capital support 

facility has been accessed and the 

Trust has received £15m cash 

support on 7th April 2105. 

 

Planned capital expenditure for the 

year is £30.5m. £2.4m spend in 

the month was £0.6m below plan. 

 

 

Actions Planned  

 

Application to the Independent 

Trust Financing Facility (ITFF) for 

permanent cash support during 

2015. 

 

Finance   
Rolling Cash Flow Forecast, In Year Surplus, & Capital Programme Expenditure 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 

 

 
DOF11 
999 

DOF55 
999 
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Commentary 
 

Assurances  

 

Savings review meetings are in 

place to ensure in year 

implementation and development 

of future years plans. 

 

Concerns & Gaps  

 

There is an in year shortfall of 

£0.5m including pipeline schemes. 

 

There remains a level of 

unidentified recurrent savings 

which needs to be identified by the 

end of the financial year. 

 

Actions Planned  

 

Continued development of the 

Savings Programme in quarter 1.   

 

Finance   

Savings 
Board Sponsor   Director of Finance 
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72 REGULATORY VIEW 

Overall Commentary 
Board Sponsor   Chief Executive Officer 

 

  
 

 

Regulatory Area Sep
t 13 

Ma
r 

14 

Jul 
14 

Aug 
14 

Sept 
14 

Oct 
14 

Nov 
14 

Dec 
14 

Jan 
 15 

Feb  
15 

Mar 
15 

Apr 
15 

Governance Risk Rating 
2014-15 Framework  

3 2 3 3 4 4 3 3 4 3 

Finance Risk Rating (FRR) See Finance Section –
using new TDA 
Accountability 
Framework Guidance 

Red  Red Red  Red Red Red Red Red Red 

Board non-compliance 
statements 

1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Prov. Licence non-
compliance statements 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) Risk Category 

N/A 3 3 3 3 3 3 N/
A 

N/
A 
 

N/
A 
  

N/A 
 

CQC Inspections 1xG
* 

N/
A 

N/
A 

N/
A 

N/
A 

N/
A 

N/
A 

N/
A 

RI RI RI RI 

CQC reports history (all sites) 

Summary 

The Governance Risk Rating (GRR) for ED 4 hour performance continues to be a challenge through 2014/15, Actions to improve and sustain this standard are set out earlier 

in this report. In February 2015, all RTT standards failed. A recovery plan is in place (please see Key Operational Standards section for commentary). Cancer figures are 

undergoing final validation therefore, whilst indicative, the February figures presented are not necessarily reflective of the Trust’s finalised position. However, the indicative 

position shows that we passed  5 of 8 of the Cancer targets. Any subsequent updates will be flagged next month. 

 

We are scoring ourselves against the TDA Accountability Framework (AF) 2014-15. This requires that we use the performance indicator methodologies & thresholds provided 

to calculate scores for Quality and Delivery (an overall score based upon a subset of individual scores for each of the CQC domains of Caring, Effective, Responsive, Safe, 

Well-Led) and a Finance Risk Assessment based upon  in year financial delivery & Monitor’s Risk Assessment Framework. Details are provided over the following 2 pages. 

 

Board compliance statements – number 4 (going concern) and number 10 (ongoing plans to comply with targets) warrant continued board consideration in light of the financial 

budgets for 2014-15 and ongoing performance challenges as outlined within this IPR. The Trust is committed to tackling these challenges and revised recovery trajectories 

have been submitted to the TDA as outlined elsewhere in this report and are scrutinised on an ongoing basis through the monthly Integrated Delivery Meetings. 

Location Standards 
Met 

Report 
date 

Overall Requires 
Improvement 

Feb-15 

Child and adolescent 
mental 
health wards (Riverside)  

Good Feb-15 

Specialist community 
mental 
health services for children 
and young people 

Requires 
Improvement 

Feb-15 

Community health services 
for children, young people 
and families 

Outstanding  Feb-15 

Southmead Hospital Requires 
Improvement 

Feb-15 

Cossham Hospital Good Feb-15 

Frenchay Hospital Requires 
Improvement 

Feb-15 
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Effectiveness Domain – Metric  Standard  Weighting  This 
month 

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (DFI) 

No weightings or 
standards have been 

assigned to score against 
at present.  

89.53 (Nov-
14) 

Deaths in Low Risk Conditions 
85.21 (Oct-
14) 

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio - 
Weekday 

90.38 (Aug-
14) 

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio - 
Weekend 

105.06 
(Aug-14) 

Summary Hospital Mortality Indicator 
(HSCIC) 

95.49 (Sept 
14) 

Emergency re-admissions within 30 days 
following an elective or emergency spell at 
the Trust 

Effectiveness Total Score  

Responsiveness Domain – Metric Standard  Weighting  This 
month 

Referral to Treatment Admitted 90% 10 80.1% 

Referral to Treatment Non Admitted 95% 5 92.6% 

Referral to Treatment Incomplete 92% 5 85.7% 

Referral to Treatment Incomplete 52+ Week Waiters 0 5 241 

Diagnostic waiting times 99% 5 96.9% 

A&E All Types Monthly Performance 95% 10 84.8% 

12 hour Trolley waits 0 10 0 

Two Week Wait Standard 93% 2 90.8% 

Breast Symptom Two Week Wait Standard 93% 2 98.9% 

31 Day Standard 96% 2 88.7% 

31 Day Subsequent Drug Standard 98% 2 100% 

31 Day Subsequent Radiotherapy Standard 94% 2 

31 Day Subsequent Surgery Standard 94% 2 82.8% 

62 Day Standard 85% 5 78.4% 

62 Day Screening Standard 90% 2 89% 

Cancelled Operations – same day, non-clinical 
reasons (%) 

0.8% 

Urgent Ops Cancelled for 2nd time (Number) 0 2 0 

Proportion of patients not treated within 28 days of 
last minute cancellation 

0 2 

Delayed Transfers of Care 3.5% 5 5.1% 

Certification against compliance with requirements 
regarding access to health care for people with a 
learning disability 

  5 

Responsiveness Total Score 78 2 

Safe Domain – Metric  Standard  Weighting This month 

Clostridium Difficile - Variance from plan 0 10 5 

MRSA bacteraemia 0 10 0 

Never events 0 5 0 

Serious Incidents rate 0 5 4 

Patient safety incidents that are harmful   5 

Medication errors causing serious harm 0 5 0 

CAS alerts 0 2 0 

Maternal deaths 1 2 0 

VTE Risk Assessment (1 month in arrears) 95% 2 92.8% 

Percentage of Harm Free Care 92% 5 93.7% 

Safe Total Score  46 17 

See the following page for an explanation of how our Risk Ratings are 
calculated.  
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 Well Led Domain – Metric Standard  Weighting  This 
month 

Inpatients response rate from Friends and 
Family Test 

30 2 28% 

A&E response rate from Friends and 
Family Test 

20  2 10.3% 

NHS Staff Survey: Percentage of staff who 
would recommend the trust as a place of 
work 

NHS Staff Survey: Percentage of staff who 
would recommend the trust as a place to 
receive treatment  

Data Quality of Returns to HSCIC 99.9% 

Trust turnover rate 10.4% 

Trust level total sickness rate (Mar 2015) 4.6% 

Total Trust vacancy rate 

Temporary costs and overtime as % of 
total paybill 

  

Percentage of staff with annual appraisal 

Well Led Total Score   4 4 

Caring Domain – Metric Standard  Weighting  This 
month 

Inpatient Scores from Friends and Family 
Test 

60 5 71 

A&E Scores from Friends and Family Test 46 5 62 

Complaints 5 71 

Mixed Sex Accommodation Breaches 0 2 0 

Inpatient Survey Q 68 - Overall, I had a 
very poor/good experience (2013) 

2 

Caring Total Score  12 0 

Domain Name  

W
ei

gh
ti

n
g 

Sc
o

re
  

M
ax

im
u

m
 

W
ei

gh
ti

n
g 

 

% of 
Maximum  
Possible 

Weighting 

Quality 
Risk 

Rating by 
Domain* 

Responsiveness  53 78 67.9% 2 

Effectiveness  

Safe 17 46 36% 4 

Well Led  4 4 100% 1 

Caring  0 12 0% 5 

NBT TOTAL  3 

Sum of 

Domain 

scores  

Overall Quality 

& Delivery score 

5-10  2 

10-15 3 

15-20 4 

20-25 5 

NBT’s April 2015 Risk Rating = 3 

*Domain Performance (%)  Score  

0%-20%  5 

>20% <40%  4 

>40% <60% 3 

>60% <80% 2 

>80% 1 

How is our Risk Rating calculated? Each domain (responsive, well-led etc) is given a 
total score based on the performance in month. Weightings are assigned for every 
standard that we fail to meet (see fig.1) – these are then calculated as a % of the 
total possible domain score, and a corresponding score of 1-5 is assigned (see fig.2). 
The scores for each domain are then added together, which give the overall Trust 
score (fig 3) – on a scale where 1 is worst and 5 is best.  

Fig.2 

Fig.1 

Fig.3 
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Ref Criteria Comp 
(Y/N) 

Comments where non compliant or at risk of non-compliance 

G4 

Fit and proper persons as 

Governors and Directors (also 

applicable to those performing 

equivalent or similar functions) 

Yes Existing processes sufficient.  New requirements have been discussed and processes are being put in place 

to ensure compliance with the new regulations. 

 

G7 
Registration with the Care 

Quality Commission 
Yes CQC registration is in place. No outstanding non-compliance actions with CQC. The Trust is scheduled for 

inspection by the CQC in early November 2014. 

G8 
Patient eligibility and 

selection criteria 
Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

P1 
 

Recording of information 
Yes A range of measures and controls are in place to provide internal assurance on data quality. Further 

developments to pull this together into an overall assurance framework are planned through strengthened 

Information Governance Assurance Group. 

P2 
 

Provision of information 
Yes Information provision to Monitor not yet required as an aspirant FT. However in preparation for this the Trust 

undertakes to comply with future Monitor requirements. 

P3 
Assurance report on 

submissions to Monitor 
Yes Assurance reports not as yet required by Monitor since NBT is not yet a Foundation Trust. However, once 

applicable this will be ensured. Scrutiny & oversight of assurance reports will be provided by Trust's Audit 

Committee as currently for reports of this nature. 

P4 
 

Compliance with the National Tariff 
Yes NBT complies with national tariff prices. Scrutiny by CCGs, LAT and NTDA provides external assurance  

that tariff is being applied correctly. 

P5 

Constructive engagement 

concerning local tariff 

modifications 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C1 
The right of patients to make 

choices 
Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C2 
 

Competition oversight 
Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

IC1 
 

Provision of integrated care 
Yes Range of engagement internally and externally. No indication of any actions being taken detrimental to care 

integration for the delivery of Licence objectives. 

 Self-assessed, for submission to NTDA 

Ref Criteria Comp 
(Y/N) 

Comments where non compliant or at risk of non-compliance 

G4 

Fit and proper persons as 

Governors and Directors (also 

applicable to those performing 

equivalent or similar functions) 

Yes Existing processes sufficient.  New requirements have been discussed and processes are being put in place 

to ensure compliance with the new regulations. 

 

G7 
Registration with the Care 

Quality Commission 
Yes CQC registration is in place. No outstanding non-compliance actions with CQC. The Trust is scheduled for 

inspection by the CQC in early November 2014. 

G8 
Patient eligibility and 

selection criteria 
Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

P1 
 

Recording of information 
Yes A range of measures and controls are in place to provide internal assurance on data quality. Further 

developments to pull this together into an overall assurance framework are planned through strengthened 

Information Governance Assurance Group. 

P2 
 

Provision of information 
Yes Information provision to Monitor not yet required as an aspirant FT. However in preparation for this the Trust 

undertakes to comply with future Monitor requirements. 

P3 
Assurance report on 

submissions to Monitor 
Yes Assurance reports not as yet required by Monitor since NBT is not yet a Foundation Trust. However, once 

applicable this will be ensured. Scrutiny & oversight of assurance reports will be provided by Trust's Audit 

Committee as currently for reports of this nature. 

P4 
 

Compliance with the National Tariff 
Yes NBT complies with national tariff prices. Scrutiny by CCGs, LAT and NTDA provides external assurance  

that tariff is being applied correctly. 

P5 

Constructive engagement 

concerning local tariff 

modifications 

Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C1 
The right of patients to make 

choices 
Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

C2 
 

Competition oversight 
Yes Trust Board has considered the assurances in place and considers them sufficient. 

IC1 
 

Provision of integrated care 
Yes Range of engagement internally and externally. No indication of any actions being taken detrimental to care 

integration for the delivery of Licence objectives. 
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No. Criteria Comp 
(Y/N) 

No. Criteria 
 

Comp 
(Y/N) 

 

1 

The Board is satisfied that, to the best of its knowledge and using its 

own processes and having had regard to the TDA’s oversight model 

(supported by Care Quality Commission information, its own 

information on serious incidents, patterns of complaints, and 

including any further metrics it chooses to adopt), the trust has, and 

will keep in place, effective arrangements for the purpose of 

monitoring and continually improving the quality of healthcare 

provided to its patients. 

Yes 8 

The necessary planning, performance management and corporate and 

clinical risk management processes and mitigation plans are in place to 

deliver the annual operating plan, including that all audit committee 

recommendations accepted by the board are implemented satisfactorily. 
Yes 

2 
The board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure on 

going compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s registration 

requirements. 

Yes 9 

An Annual Governance Statement is in place, and the trust is compliant 

with the risk management and assurance framework requirements that 

support the Statement pursuant to the most up to date guidance from HM 

Treasury  (www.hm-treasury.gov.uk). 

Yes 

3 
The board is satisfied that processes and procedures are in place to 

ensure all medical practitioners providing care on behalf of the trust 

have met the relevant registration and revalidation requirements. 

Yes 10 

The board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure ongoing 

compliance with all existing targets (after the application of thresholds) as 

set out in the relevant GRR; and a commitment to comply with all known 

targets going forwards. 

4 
The board is satisfied that the trust shall at all times remain a going 

concern, as defined by the most up to date accounting standards in 

force from time to time. 

Yes 11 

The trust has achieved a minimum of Level 2 performance against the 

requirements of the Information Governance Toolkit. Yes 

5 
The board will ensure that the trust remains at all times compliant 

with regard to the NHS Constitution. 

 

Yes 12 

The board will ensure that the trust will at all times operate effectively. 

This includes maintaining its register of interests, ensuring that there are 

no material conflicts of interest in the board of directors; and that all board 

positions are filled, or plans are in place to fill any vacancies. 

Yes 

6 

All current key risks have been identified (raised either internally or 

by external audit and assessment bodies) and addressed – or there 

are appropriate action plans in place to address the issues – in a 

timely manner 

Yes 13 

The board is satisfied that all executive and non-executive directors have 

the appropriate qualifications, experience and skills to discharge their 

functions effectively, including setting strategy, monitoring and managing 

performance and risks, and ensuring management capacity and 

capability. 

Yes 

7 
The board has considered all likely future risks and has reviewed 

appropriate evidence regarding the level of severity, likelihood of it 

occurring and the plans for mitigation of these risks. 

Yes 14 

The board is satisfied that: the management team has the capacity, 

capability and experience necessary to deliver the annual operating plan; 

and the management structure in place is adequate to deliver the annual 

operating plan. 
Yes 
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 Self-assessed, for submission to NTDA 
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Measures & Reports overseen by Trust Board which fall outside monthly IPR reporting 
January February  March  

• Other qualitative aspects of patient experience report 
• External Reporting – Coroners Report 
• Flu Vaccination Rates – added to IPR cycle  
• Cancelled Operations – reasons for cancellations – added 

to IPR cycle  
• Non Medical Appraisals – last month for reporting for 

year  
• Tariff – NBT V Dr Foster removed whilst data queries 

raised with Dr Foster 
• Compliments – moved from monthly to quarterly cycle  

• IPR Measure: Research & Innovation  
• Periodic IPR Measure: Clinical Audits 
• Facilities cleaning schedule 
• Sterile Services  
• Pay bill chart – to be revised 

• Safeguarding Adults & Children 
• Medical Notes – added to IPR cycle 
• Length of Stay – page to be developed  
• Delayed Transfers – page to be developed 
  

April  May  June  

• Other qualitative aspects of patient experience report 
• Clinical Audit 
• Additional Patient Flow KPIs 
• Theatre Productivity KPIs 
• Outpatients KPIs  

• IPR Measure: Research & Innovation  
• Complaints – monthly trends  
• Carers Report – quarterly  
• Expanded Medicines Management section  
• Staff Survey Results 
• Vacancy Reporting 
• CQC action plan & progress 
 

 

• Safeguarding Adults & Children 
• Clinical Legal claims/inquests (6 monthly) 
• Clinical Audit 
• Acuity & dependency 
 

July  August  September  

• Other qualitative aspects of patient experience report 
 

• IPR Measure: Research & Innovation  
• Carers Report – quarterly  
• Clinical Audit 

• IPR Measure: Non-Medical Appraisals  
• Safeguarding Adults & Children 
 
 

October  November  December  

• IPR Measure: Non-Medical Appraisals  
• Safe Staffing – 6 monthly report  
• Clinical Audit 

• IPR Measure: Research & Innovation  
• IPR Measure: Non-Medical Appraisals  
• Clinical Legal claims/inquests (6 monthly) 
• Carers Report – quarterly  

• Safeguarding Adults & Children 
• Non Medical Appraisals  
• Clinical Audit 
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Recommendation:  

Note the report on the 6 month review of the post vascular service transfer and discuss the risks and opportunities 

 
Executive Summary:  
The attached paper provides an update on the provision of vascular services following the creation of the Bristol, Bath and Weston Vascular network. It 
outlines the achievements of the network, an overview of the current performance metrics and the plans moving forward.   
 
In July 2013, NHS England published a national specification for the provision of vascular services. This specification set out both the essential components 
of a specialist vascular service and the clinical outcomes that the service should achieve. A Vascular Services Review Board was formed in 2013 to establish 
a specialist arterial services to the populations of Bristol, South Gloucestershire, North Somerset, Bath and North East Somerset and parts of Wilshire 
(Network population 1.3 million people). The Vascular Services Review Board has been converted into the Vascular Governance Board, which has 
representatives of commissioners, all NHS healthcare providers within the region and the public health representatives. North Bristol Trust was named as 
the host of the network for the service and as such became the Major Arterial Centre (MAC). The Network has at its ‘hub’ the MAC, hosted in the Brunel 
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Building at Southmead Hospital. 
 
NBT has, through the network, successfully delivered the standards defined within the national contract, delivering 24/7 multidisciplinary specialist vascular 
care for both elective and emergency patients. The network has also developed a consultant of the week model which has helped the delivery of: 

• 82.3% of ward referrals at spoke sites are reviewed by a consultant within 48 hours. 
• A reduction in the time for urgent cases to access theatre. 
• Mean length of stay (MLoS) for all patients has reduced; the elective MLoS has reduced from 5.5 days pre-transfer to 4.1 days post-transfer and the 

non-elective MLoS has dramatically reduced from 17.8 days to 12.6 days.  
• Mean wait for a routine new appointment is 7.6 weeks; this is still higher than the recommended best practice of 4 weeks for surgical outpatients 

but compared to other Trust specialties is one of the better performing services. Plans are in place to continue to reduce appointment waiting 
times.  

 
The network has a number of medium turn challenges it is currently developing solutions too including: 

• Ensuring speed of access to clinics and maintaining access to the MAC by maintaining and further reducing current MLoS 
• Maintaining equitable access to local services to include imaging and interventional radiology 
• Information transfer across the network through incomplete IT system 

 
Additionally the vascular network board are also looking to support the development of plans to meet the long term challenges facing the vascular network, 
these include: 

• Ensuring effective long term governance of the network linked to multiple providers, 
• how best to utilise vascular network to support further developments in other services but also leading research and development within the wider 

vascular national vascular debate  
• potential shifting of boundaries, population numbers following changes in neighbouring networks 
• ensuring long term medical/ nursing training to ensure sufficient service delivery and developing the service provision to respond to training 

developments   
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Executive Summary 
 
This document is a review of the Bristol Bath Weston Vascular Network (BBWVN) in the six months 
after transfer of services. In this report we highlight what has been achieved to date, how patient 
safety is being assured, and what our early performance indicators are.  In addition, we outline 
some of the future challenges that face the Network in subsequent months. 
 
In 2012 the Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland (VSGBI) published a series of 
recommendations describing how vascular services should be organised to deliver the best 
outcomes for patients (Provision of Vascular Services, 2012). Following this in July 2013, NHS 
England published a national specification for the provision of vascular services. This specification 
set out both the essential components of a specialist vascular service and the clinical outcomes 
that the service should achieve. A Vascular Services Review Board was formed in 2013 to establish 
the BBWVN, aiming to deliver specialist arterial services to the populations of Bristol, South 
Gloucestershire, North Somerset, Bath and North East Somerset and parts of Wilshire (Network 
population 1.3 million people).  

North Bristol Trust was named as the contract holder for the service and as such became the Major 
Arterial Centre (MAC). The Network has at its ‘hub’ the MAC, hosted in the Brunel Building at 
Southmead Hospital. The three ‘spoke’ networked Trusts are University Hospitals Bristol NHS 
Foundation Trust (UHB), the Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust (RUH) and Weston 
Area Health Trust (WAHT). 

The centralisation of vascular services and the creation of the BBWVN commenced in October 
2014. The Network has successfully delivered the standards defined within the national contract 
(Appendix 1), delivering 24/7 multidisciplinary specialist vascular care for both elective and 
emergency patients. In addition, three network surgeons perform renal transplant and renal access 
surgery. Within the Network three surgeons and two radiologists deliver a complex endovascular 
service, and one network surgeon provides a thoracic aortic stenting service.  
 
The Network supports enhanced Diabetes service provisions. Care for patients with diabetic foot 
pathology is provided by multi-disciplinary teams across the Network. In addition to regular multi-
professional foot clinics, there are regular hospital diabetes and podiatry clinics. This is 
supplemented by the vascular hot clinic, designed to assess patients early and to prevent 
unnecessary admission. Moreover, early evidence demonstrates a significant reduction in time to 
surgery for foot disease compared to prior to the Network being established. 
 
National standards have been met by initiating and successfully leading change through the 
engagement of staff over a period of almost two years. At the centre of the model are new job 
plans for all 11 Consultant Vascular Surgeons. The consolidation has enabled the introduction of a 
‘consultant of the week’ (CoW), delivering and ensuring continuity of care for patients through a 
formalised and visible role allocated to the specialist 32-bed vascular ward, who provides a daily 
review of all inpatients. In conjunction with the CoW, a daily ‘consultant on call’ (CoC) creates a 
single point of access to manage admissions and improve hospital flow.  
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This redesigned model of care has been fully implemented with the new roles now well-
established, creating a robust consultant-led service. Preliminary data suggest that this new 
model of care has ensured the following: 
 

• 82.3% of ward referrals at spoke sites are reviewed by a consultant within 48 hours. 
• A reduction in the time for urgent cases to access theatre. 
• Mean length of stay (MLoS) for all patients post procedure has reduced; the elective MLoS 

has reduced from 5.5 days pre-transfer to 4.1 days post-transfer and the non-elective MLoS 
has dramatically reduced from 17.8 days to 12.6 days.  

• The total inpatient spells (the total continuous stay of a patient) for elective procedures has 
increased from 43 pre-transfer to 80 spells post-transfer and the non-elective spells have 
increased from 42 to 77 post-transfer. This is a significant achievement for the Network; 
despite an almost doubling of patients being treated the MLoS of stay has substantially 
reduced. 

• Mean wait for a routine new appointment is 7.6 weeks; this is still higher than the 
recommended best practice of 4 weeks for surgical outpatients but compared to other 
Trust specialties is one of the better performing services. Plans are in place to continue to 
reduce appointment waiting times.  

 
After successful transfer of services and creation of the BBWVN and having effectively 
implemented the new clinical model for service delivery we are in a position to assess current 
challenges faced by the Network. These are: 
 

• Ensuring speed of access to clinics and maintaining access to the MAC by maintaining and 
reducing current MLoS 

• Maintaining equitable access to local services to include imaging and interventional 
radiology 

• Information transfer across the network  
• Meeting income targets 

 
Future data collection must be optimised to allow the monitoring and improvement of our services 
and clinical outcome measures. This must include a close monitoring of the patient experience. All 
elements of the agreed pathways must be delivered, in particular innovation and research must be 
fostered. It is vital that a robust governance structure is maintained and that strategic planning is 
implemented to ensure that a responsive, safe, equitable and innovative service continues to be 
delivered. It is envisaged that more detailed data will be at the one-year review of the transfer.  
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1 Purpose 
 
This document is a review of the Bristol Bath Weston Vascular Network in the six months post-
transfer of services. In this report we highlight what has been achieved to date, how we are 
assuring patient safety and what our early performance indicators are.  In addition, we outline 
some of the future challenges that face the Network in the in the subsequent months to come. 
 
2 Introduction 
 
In 2012 the Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland (VSGBI) published a series of 
recommendations describing how vascular services should be organised to deliver the best 
outcomes for patients (Provision of Vascular Services, 2012). The VSGBI also developed quality 
improvement frameworks (QIFs) for both abdominal aortic aneurysm (AAA) repair and lower limb 
amputation. The recently introduced NHS AAA Screening Programme made adopting the AAA QIF 
mandatory for providers treating men referred from the programme. 

In light of these recommendations, NHS England, since April 2013 the commissioners of specialist 
vascular services, published a national specification for the provision of vascular services in July 
2013. This specification sets out both the essential components of a specialist vascular service and 
the clinical outcomes that the service should achieve. In January 2013 the Bristol Bath Weston 
Vascular Services Review Board was formed to deliver a new Bristol Bath Weston Vascular 
Network, delivering specialist arterial services to the populations of Bristol, South Gloucestershire, 
North Somerset, Bath and North East Somerset and parts of Wilshire (network population 1.3 
million people). North Bristol Trust (NBT) was named as the contract holder for the service and as 
such became the Major Arterial Centre (MAC).  

The Network has at its ‘hub’ the MAC hosted from the Brunel Building at Southmead Hospital. The 
three ‘spoke’ networked Trusts are University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust (UHB), the 
Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust (RUH) and Weston Area Health Trust (WAHT). 
South Western Ambulance Service Foundation Trust (SWAST) provides emergency transport 
between hospitals. The MAC brought together three vascular units from NBT, UHB and RUH. The 
vascular provision at WAHT was already a ‘spoke’ service from UHB and this service has transferred 
to NBT. The network has been set up in accordance with these specifications, with written 
pathways of care, to provide best evidence-based vascular care. The transfer, including the AAA 
screening programme staff, was successfully completed in two stages by the scheduled date of 
October 14, 2014.  

North Bristol NHS Trust as host of the MAC holds the contract for all specialist vascular services 
(excluding varicose vein surgery) provided by the network. The ‘front door’ for this service remains 
the patient’s local hospital with outpatients, vascular studies providing duplex ultrasound and 
other diagnostics (CT/MRI etc.) continuing in networked hospitals. In addition, UHB and RUH 
deliver day case angioplasty.  
 
Patient and public concerns over these changes were largely associated with transport and travel 
time to the MAC from the BaNES and Wiltshire area. In response to these concerns a new vascular 
clinic is being delivered once every four weeks at Melksham Community Hospital to better serve 
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the Wiltshire population. Following an engagement event where details of transport options and 
travel times were discussed to include the free community transport service, patients commented  
that their initial concerns were somewhat quashed. 
 
The Vascular Network takes clinical responsibility as soon as a patient is diagnosed with a vascular 
problem requiring specialist care. This includes responsibility for patients under the care of local 
TIA or stroke teams (providing rapid access to carotid endarterectomy) and local diabetic foot 
multi-disciplinary teams (providing rapid access to re-vascularisation or amputation). 
 
3 Early Outcomes of the Transfer 
 
3.1 A New Clinical Model 
The Bristol Bath Weston Vascular Network has successfully delivered the standards defined within 
the national contract (Appendix 1). The MAC delivers specialist vascular care for both elective and 
emergency arterial patients with 24/7 access to a multi-disciplinary vascular team including 
vascular surgery, interventional radiology, anaesthesia, vascular scientists, physiotherapy, 
occupational therapy,  and specialist vascular nursing. In addition, three network surgeons perform 
renal transplant and renal access surgery. Within the Network three surgeons and two radiologists 
deliver a complex endovascular service, and one network surgeon provides a thoracic aortic 
stenting service.  
 
The complex endovascular service is directly commissioned by NHS England and is currently the 
only commissioned service in the South West (population 3.5 million). 
 
National standards have been met by initiating and successfully leading change through the 
engagement of staff over a period of almost two years to deliver the new clinical model of care. At 
the centre of the model are new job plans for all 11 Consultant Vascular Surgeons. The 
consolidation has enabled the introduction of a ‘consultant of the week’ (CoW), delivering and 
ensuring continuity of care for patients through a formalised and visible role. The CoW is allocated 
to the specialist 32 bed vascular ward and provides daily review of all inpatients. While CoW the 
consultant has no additional clinical commitments.  
 
In conjunction with the CoW, the daily changing ‘consultant on call’ (CoC) creates a single point of 
access, to manage appropriate admissions and improve hospital flow. Urgent arterial referrals from 
the community are dealt with via a single contact point (Network Coordinator) and seen by the CoC 
in an urgent access ‘hot clinic’. This clinic is supported by vascular clinical nurse specialists (CNS) 
and clinical vascular scientists (CVS), providing access to urgent Duplex ultrasound scans on 
weekday mornings at the MAC with capacity for up to five urgent reviews. The CoC is available to 
operate on emergency cases in the MAC and if required can travel to a networked hospital. 
 
When not CoW or CoC consultant surgeons have operating lists at the MAC (scheduled to include 
both elective and urgent cases), outpatient clinics at networked hospitals and all attend a weekly 
multi-disciplinary team meeting (MDT). 
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This redesigned model of care has been fully implemented with the new roles now well-
established, creating a robust consultant-led service. Preliminary data suggest that this new model 
of care has led to: 

• a reduction in inpatient bed stay 
• a reduction in the time for urgent cases to get to theatre 
• no increase delays in the review of patients referred with vascular disease in networked 

hospitals  
Data relating to the above is captured in the relevant further sections.  
 
3.2 Established Services 

3.2.1 Vascular Services 
The following have been successfully achieved: 

• Pre-operative assessment is delivered in the MAC in accordance with agreed network 
clinical protocols that conform to VSGBI QIF recommendations. 

• AAA repair and major lower limb amputation are delivered in line with the VSGBI QIFs. 
• The NHS AAA Screening Programme has transferred to the MAC; allowing all men referred 

from the programme to be treated in accordance with the AAA QIF. 
• The regional complex endovascular service has been transferred from the RUH to the MAC. 
• A hybrid operating theatre was successfully opened in late November 2014; providing an 

optimum environment for the delivery of endovascular abdominal aortic aneurysm repair 
as recommended by the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency and an 
expansion of combined surgical and endovascular procedures. 

• A specialist post-operative amputee rehabilitation service is provided by the MAC working 
in conjunction with the Bristol Centre for Enablement. 

• A specialist thoracic aortic service has been developed working jointly with the Bristol 
Heart Institute and supported by links with the vascular surgical unit at Heartlands Hospital 
in Birmingham. 

• There are also plans for collaborative research between these two organisations 
through the Bristol National Institute for Heart Research and Biomedical Research 
Unit for Cardiovascular Disease. 

• Vascular outpatient services continue to be delivered across the network area at NBT, UH 
Bristol, RUH Bath, WAHT, and at community hospitals in South Bristol, Cossham, and 
Melksham. 

• RUH Bath provides outpatient rehabilitation for vascular patients. 
• Diagnostics are provided as close to the patient’s home as practical. Duplex ultrasound is 

available in conjunction with outpatient ‘one-stop clinics’ currently in NBT, UHB, RUH, 
WAHT and Cossham. CTA and MRA are available in NBT, UH Bristol, RUH and WHAT. 

 
3.2.2 Enhanced support for Diabetic service  
Care for patients with diabetic foot disorders is provided by multi-disciplinary teams across the 
network. Patients may be referred by their general practitioner, or from the community podiatry 
service. In addition to regular multi-professional foot clinics, there are regular hospital diabetic and 
podiatry clinics. This is supplemented by the vascular hot clinic which is designed to see patients 
early and to prevent unnecessary admission.   
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Early evidence shows significant reduction in delays to accessing surgery for foot disease since the 
launch of the Vascular Network in October 2014.  

 
The diabetic foot service has been submitted to regional peer review in 2015 and there are 
recommendations for improvement that are being implemented (Appendix 3). Continual audit is 
undertaken of minor and major amputations, and we are planning to develop routine Root Cause 
Analysis for limb amputation.  

 
3.2.3 Renal Services  
The provision of renal failure surgery is undertaken by a team of six surgeons, three general and 
three vascular. The main role of the vascular service is to deliver vascular access surgery in a timely 
and effective manner. Two clinical nurse specialists (CNS) work closely with the vascular team and 
co-ordinate the care of and provide a first point of contact for patients. One of the renal CNS has 
completed training to undertake specialist duplex ultrasound scanning of vascular access fistulae 
within the Vascular Scientist team at NBT. This novel role has significant benefits for cross 
disciplinary working within the vascular and renal service strengthening the robustness of the 
clinical teams. 
 
4 Patient Safety and Governance 
 
4.1 Network Staff 
To ensure the delivery of a safe and high quality service a new workforce model was developed. 
North Bristol Trust has invested in quality systems and leadership with the following key roles 
dedicated to the Vascular Network: 

• Network Clinical Lead (0.2 WTE) 
• AAA Screening Programme Director (0.2 WTE) 
• Safety and Quality Lead (0.1 WTE) 
• Network Coordinator (1.0 WTE) 
• AAA Screening Programme Coordinator (1.0 WTE) 
• MDT Coordinator (1.0 WTE) 

  
These newly created posts support and guide the specialist multi-disciplinary team comprising 
vascular surgeons, interventional radiologists, anaesthetists, specialist nurses, junior doctors, 
vascular scientists and therapists from NBT, UHB, RUH Bath and WAHT. 
 
Network Clinical Lead (NCL), Mr Marcus Brooks, acts as the strategic lead for the Network with 
responsibility and authority for ensuring the quality of the service, implementing service 
developments, and negotiating necessary funding and resources.  The NCL enhances both the 
quality and the efficiency of vascular patient care within the Network and ensures collaboration 
with primary care, public health and other clinical networks.  The lead is also responsible for 
regularly monitoring progress and performance data.  
 
AAA Screening Programme Director, Mr Mahesh Pai, is clinically responsible for all men within the 
AAA screening programme. He advises on clinical matters concerning the programme at the 
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request of screening staff as well as ensuring delivery of the local screening programme in 
accordance with national policies, procedures, protocols and timescales. He acts as a strategic lead, 
is responsible for producing an annual report and works closely with both Public Health England 
and the AAA Screening Coordinator and Clinical Skills Trainer to deliver the screening programme 
objectives. 
 
Safety and Quality Lead, Mr David Mitchell, supports the Vascular Network in the management of 
incidents, specifically those relating to patient safety, information governance, surgical site 
infection (SSI), hospital acquired venous thrombo-embolism (VTE), transfer of patients within the 
Network and management of patients in networked hospitals. Outcomes of incidents within the 
Vascular Network are shared amongst the multidisciplinary team and corrective action taken.  
 
Network Coordinator, Joanna Pawlowska, organises the day-to-day running of the Network with 
specific responsibility to ensure equity of access for patients at networked hospitals to those at the 
MAC. This role has been vital in ensuring the smooth running of the Network.  This specialist team 
is also responsible for ensuring that NHS resources are utilised responsibly and can be sustained in 
the face of current financial pressures.  
 
Multidisciplinary Team Coordinator, Asha Sani, works closely with the Network Coordinator, 
preparing the weekly Network MDT meetings as well as local meetings and ensures that the 
outcomes of these meetings are recorded and communicated to patients and referring doctors. 
The MDT co-ordinator also collects network data which is presented at the Steering Committee 
meetings.  
 
Clinical Leads and Organisational Leads have been established to represent all stakeholders across 
the Network to include: UHB, RUH, WAHT, nursing, vascular scientists, radiology, IM&T, stroke, 
diabetes, and thoracic services. All Clinical and Organisational Leads are members of the Vascular 
Network Steering Committee that meets every five weeks.     
 
The Network currently has 10 permanent consultants and 1 full time locum. A full-time consultant 
has been appointed and will be taking up a permanent position in June 2015 to replace the locum 
post. Since January 2015, the Network has had a full complement of administration staff. The team 
comprises of three full time Senior Medical Secretaries based in NBT with one part time Support 
Secretary and part time Network Administrator.  The Network also provides vascular secretaries at 
UH Bristol (1.0 WTE), RUH Bath (1.0 WTE) and WAHT (0.8 WTE) in support of Network hospital 
vascular activity including outpatient clinics and local radiology meetings that fulfil the required 
specifications.  
 
The restructuring of the pre-existing vascular services has been designed to improve both the 
safety and quality of patient care within the Network. Good examples of this working in practice 
are: 

• All inpatients are now reviewed daily by a Consultant Vascular Surgeon.  
• Vascular inpatients are nursed on a specialist 32-bedded vascular ward.  
• The Network provides a daily (Monday to Friday) multi-disciplinary vascular hot clinic for 

the review of patients referred from Primary Care.  
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• New protocols have been agreed between surgery, radiology, anaesthesiology, the pre-
operative assessment clinic and pharmacy to standardise the peri-operative management 
of anti-platelet medication and anti-coagulation. 

• A new pathway has been agreed with Medicine for the delivery of iloprost infusions to 
deliver this as an outpatient service through the medical day care unit potentially saving 15 
bed days per month on the vascular ward. 

• Serious incidents are reviewed both at the network weekly multi-disciplinary team meeting 
but also at the two monthly network governance meetings. 
 

Consultant Away Days have been incorporated into the yearly network planning. These provide the 
opportunity to bring staff together from hospitals with differing cultures and provide grounds to 
face challenges and improve team working; specifically, team simulations with anaesthetic and 
theatre nurse colleagues have helped to focus on improving communication and team working in 
the operating theatre.  
 
As well as having a dedicated Safety Lead patients admitted to the MAC are nursed on a specialist 
vascular ward and receive daily review, including on weekends, by a consultant vascular surgeon 
working within a specialist multi-disciplinary team. Patients admitted to the MAC have on-site 
access 24/7 to both vascular surgery and vascular interventional radiology. There are also vascular 
clinical nurse specialists present during weekdays. 
 
4.2 Governance  
The Bristol Bath Weston Vascular Network is one of five clinical networks that will be 
commissioned by NHS England to provide specialist vascular services for the South West. This 
Network has an intricate clinical governance structure that clearly outlines accountability and 
responsibilities (Figure 1).  

 
Figure 1: Bristol Bath Weston Vascular Network Governance structure  
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Major arterial cases, including non-urgent major amputations that are being considered for 
intervention, are discussed at a weekly network MDT. This involves all clinicians concerned with the 
care of vascular patients: vascular surgeons, interventional radiologists, vascular nurses, 
anaesthetists and vascular scientists. Providing a centralised MDT has the potential to improve 
shared learning and sharing of expertise. It also increases the range and scope of audits that can be 
undertaken and has the potential to improve the efficiency of audit. 
 
Network meetings take place after the weekly MDT meeting providing a forum to discuss any 
issues with general administrative or operational procedures and to raise concerns with specific 
network issues.  
 
The formalised Vascular Network Steering Committee meets every five weeks. This committee is 
responsible for the day to day running of the MAC and is chaired by the Network Clinical Lead. The 
Steering Committee is composed of leads from all specialties and supporting services currently 
involved in the delivery of vascular care in the Network (including surgery managers from each of 
the network Trusts). The committee monitors and acts upon any key performance indicators for 
vascular services, ensures appropriate clinical governance arrangements are in place, and receives 
notification of any critical incidents. In addition, the committee oversees the key performance 
indicators for MAC care including the interpretation of National Vascular Registry (NVR) data and is 
at hand to request and approve new or changed policies and protocols which improve the quality 
and effectiveness of vascular care within the MAC.  
 
In addition to the steering committee there are quarterly Vascular Network Board Meetings. These 
are chaired currently by a representative from NHS England. The board has executive level 
representation from each involved network trust and meetings address matters at a higher level, 
assessing the policies and procedures from a strategic viewpoint.  NBT, as contract holder for the 
service, is responsible for financial management with the Trust finance lead reporting to the Board. 
 
The junior medical team have been actively involved in performing audits of elements of the 
vascular service. 
 
4.3 Standardised Policies and Procedures  
Standardisation of pathways and promotion of best practice across the Network both for clinical 
and administrative staff aims to improve the quality and efficiency of the vascular service. These 
written policies ensure consistent delivery of the high-level clinical models for surgery and 
interventional radiology.  

The following agreed pathways have been written and implemented in line with the principles 
stated in the high-level clinical model:  

• Ambulance bypass policy 
• Emergency management of symptomatic or ruptured AAA 
• Emergency management of acute limb ischaemia 
• Statement of clinical advice major vessel injury 
• Safe day case angioplasty 
• Vascular network repatriation advice statement 
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The vascular network has worked with other networks and providers to develop three collaborative 
care pathways to ensure that the delivery of specialist inpatient vascular services at the MAC does 
not destabilise local services and models of care: 

• TIA and stroke collaborative care pathway 
• Diabetic foot problems collaborative care pathway 
• Recovery, rehabilitation and re-ablement collaborative care pathway 

 
Protocols and reporting procedures for the provision of duplex ultrasound investigations have been 
standardised across the three Vascular Studies Units; an essential measure to ensure that all 
patients and clinicians have confidence in the quality and accuracy of the diagnostic service, at 
whichever geographic location it is provided.  

4.4 Mechanism for peer review  
A clinical reference group (CRG), comprised of patients and commissioning experts from all regions 
of England and chaired by Prof. Matt Thompson, Professor of Vascular Surgery, has developed the 
service specifications and reporting outcomes of all vascular surgical procedures. This will be 
monitored through the new National Vascular Registry (NVR) that replaces the previous Society 
held National Vascular Database (NVD).  

Reporting to the NVR is mandatory for vascular surgeons and considered best practice for 
interventional radiologists and anaesthetists. Within our Network measures are in place to ensure 
that all cases are recorded correctly on the NVR and in a timely manner. Measures have also been 
introduced to ensure that vascular procedures are also correctly coded within Hospital Episode 
Statistics (HES) data. The outcomes of all patients undergoing arterial surgery or major lower limb 
amputation at the MAC will be reported to the NVR. In addition, all EVAR and combined 
open/endovascular cases are logged.  

The recent deadline for the NVR report, which covers only AAA and carotid endarterectomy (CEA), 
was in March 2015. This report covered principally the period prior to the service reorganisation; 
AAA repairs data between Jan 1, 2010 and Dec 31, 2014 and CEA data for the period of Jan 1, 2012 
to Dec 31, 2014.  

Mandatory reporting of cases, with independent analysis of surgeon and unit data (by the Clinical 
Effectiveness Unit of the Royal College of Surgeons) will ensure transparent reporting of patient 
outcomes, thus driving future improvement and innovation.  

4.5 Incidents and Risks 
Since the formation of the network there have been no ‘never events’ and no reported serious 
incidents.  There are currently four risks on the register all of which have controls in place to 
facilitate mitigation.  
 
 

  

Post Transfer Review of Vascular Services Version 1.1 13/05/15    14  
 



                 

5 Preliminary Performance Outcomes and Early Indications 
 
5.1 Surgery 
Preliminary data demonstrate an increase in index procedures each month since going live in 
October (Table 1 and 2). This may be attributable to the opening of the hybrid theatre in November 
or as a result of increased awareness of the Network services. It is not possible to draw firm 
conclusions at this early stage. These are regularly being monitored and audited against these 
domains.  
 

Table 1: Index procedures performed each month between October 6, 2014 and March 31, 2015 

Month, Year 

Emergency 
Abdominal 
Aortic 
Aneurysm 

Elective 
Abdominal 
Aortic 
Aneurysm 

Carotid 
Endarterectomy 

Lower Limb 
Surgical 
Vascularisation 

Major Lower 
Limb 
Amputations 

Grand 
Total 

Oct ’14 1 6 5 8 8 28 
Nov ‘14 6 4 10 9 9 38 
Dec ‘14 7 13 6 21 3 50 
Jan ‘15 5 6 9 23 6 49 
Feb ‘15 2 4 10 19 13 48 

Mar ‘15 6 11 12 22 13 64 

TOTAL 27 44 52 102 52 277 
 
 
Table 2: Index procedures as per NVR between October 6, 2014 and March 31, 2015 

Month, Year  

Emergency 
Abdominal 
Aortic 
Aneurysm 

Elective 
Abdominal 
Aortic 
Aneurysm 

Carotid 
Endarterectomy 

Lower Limb 
Surgical 
Vascularisation 

Major Lower 
Limb 
Amputations 

Grand 
Total 

Oct ‘14 3 6 4 10 9 32 

Nov ‘14 8 4 12 16 5 45 

Dec ‘14 4 13 7 21 4 49 

Jan ‘15 4 6 7 22 16 55 

Feb ‘15 6 5 8 16 11 46 

Mar ‘15 5 6 12 15 11 49 

TOTAL 30 40 50 100 56 276 

Incomplete Entries 2 8 7 25 18 60 
 
5.2 Outpatients 
Average waiting times for outpatient appointments for the Network are 7.6 weeks for new 
appointments and 6.2 weeks for follow up (Table 3). This is higher than the recommended best 
practice of 4 weeks for surgical outpatients but compared to other Trust specialties is one of the 
better performing services. Plans are in place to continue to reduce appointment waiting times. 
This is despite the introduction of the ‘hot’ clinic (see below). Several factors have contributed 
towards this position including: 

• A reduction in junior medical staff clinics (ST3+). 
• Delays in recruitment of specialist nurses and training now required to introduce specialist 

nurse led clinics for intermittent claudication, small abdominal aortic aneurysm, leg ulcers 
and varicose veins. 
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• A steadily rising level of referrals, currently averaging 300 a month. 

Work is being carried out to focus on delivering a more evenly distributed service to eliminate 
particularly long waits in one location, for example, waiting times at South Bristol are double than 
Weston General Hospital (Table 3).  

Table 3: Waiting times for outpatient appointments by site between Dec 2014 and Apr 2015. 

 Dec 9, 2014 Jan 13, 2015 Feb 13, 2015 April 7, 2015 April 24, 2015 

Site  NEW FU NEW FU NEW FU NEW FU NEW FU 

BRI N 2.1 6.8 8.5 4.8 9.0 9.0 8.8 10.1 7.0 7.7 

BBS N 8.1 6.1 8.9 6.1 10.5 6.9 3.7 10.1 8.9 6.7 

RUH N 6.1 4.4 6.7 3.5 5.7 3.5 9.4 7.2 6.6 7.0 

WGH N 6.5 4.8 3.3 4.1 7.0 3.1 6.3 6.3 3.8 4.4 

SBCH N 11.9 1.9 6.9 2.9 10.4 8.4 8.9 8.9 11.4 9.4 

CSH N 8.0 1.0 5.0 0.3 10.6 0.6 10.0 6.0 7.9 4.6 

MLK N 11.3 7.3 6.3 2.3 5.6 1.9 10.3 10.3 7.9 3.9 

Average 7.7 4.6 6.5 3.4 8.4 4.8 8.2 8.4 7.6 6.2 
 

In the sort-term temporary clinics are being established to reduce waiting times for new patients, 
this is discussed in more detail in section 7.1.  

The Network has introduced a Hot Clinic. This clinic strives to reduce emergency attendances and 
allows for urgent referrals to be seen without needing to attend the Emergency Department or the 
Ambulatory Emergency Care Unit.  Early data has demonstrated an increase in booked emergency 
Hot Clinic appointments from a total of 32 in October 2014 to 74 in March 2015 (Table 4). As the 
Vascular Network becomes more established it is anticipated that the Hot Clinic activity will 
continue to remain at or above this level.    

Table 4: Number of Hot Clinic appointments per month and number patients seen per Hot Clinic session. 
Hot clinics per week  Patients 

Oct ‘14 32 

Nov ‘14 42 

Dec ‘14 25 

Jan ‘15 55 

Feb ‘15 51 

Mar ‘15 74 

TOTAL 575 

 

Month Days 
available 

Patients Average per 
available day 

Oct ‘14 20 32 1.6 

Nov ‘14 19 42 2.2 

Dec ‘14 22 25 1.1 

Jan ‘15 20 55 2.8 

Feb ‘15 19 51 2.7 

Mar ‘15 20 74 3.7 

Apr ‘15 12 32 2.7 

TOTAL 100 311 3.11 
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5.3 Inpatient activity at spoke sites 
With the introduction of the ‘Consultant of the Week’ inpatient review data across the three sites, 
NBT, UHB and RUH, shows a mean of 82.3% of patients being seen within 48 hours (Table 5).  
Weekends and bank holidays are also included to demonstrate a seven days service.   

Table 5: Inpatient reviews requested per site, mean days it took to see patient on the ward and how many 
reviews were completed within 48 hours for January to April 2015.  

 
13/01/2015 15/02/2015 07/04/2015 24/04/2015 

  
No. of 
referrals 

Mean 
Days  

Seen 
within 
48 
hours 

No. of 
referrals 

Mean 
Days 

Seen 
within 
48 
hours 

No. of 
referrals 

Mean 
Days 

Seen 
within 
48 
hours 

No. of 
referrals 

Mean 
Days 

Seen 
within 
48 
hours 

BRI 23 1.73 78% 29 1.55 79% 38 1.7 74% 41 1.7 76% 

RUH 37 1 87% 48 1.04 88% 73 1.1 85% 80 1 86% 

WAHT 12 1.6 78% 21 1.09 85% 26 1.3 81% 26 1.3 81% 

TOTAL 72 1.44 82% 98 1.23 84% 137 1.37 81.95% 147 1.33 82.3% 
  

 
5.4 Length of stay 
 
Length of stay data for NBT was available for comparison for the three months pre-transfer of 
services, July to September 2014, to the three months post-transfer, October-December 2014.  

Mean length of stay (MLoS) for all patients post procedure has reduced; the elective MLoS has 
reduced from 5.5 days pre-transfer to 4.1 days post-transfer (Table 6) and the non-elective MLoS 
has dramatically reduced from 17.8 days to 12.6 days (Table 7).  

The total inpatient spells (the total continuous stay of a patient) for elective procedures has 
increased from 43 pre-transfer to 80 spells post-transfer and the non-elective spells have increased 
from 42 to 77 post-transfer. This is a significant achievement for the Network; despite an almost 
doubling of patients being treated the MLoS of stay has substantially reduced. 
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Table 6: Mean length of stay (MLoS) post elective procedures.  

Elective Procedures 

Pre-
Vascular 
Network 
Jul-Sep 
2014 

 

Post-
Vascular 
Network 
Oct-Dec 
2014 

 HRG MLoS Spells MLoS Spells 

QZ01A - Aortic or Abdominal Surgery with CC 6.0 2.0 6.8 6.0 

QZ01B - Aortic or Abdominal Surgery without CC 6.5 2.0 -- -- 

QZ02A - Lower Limb Arterial Surgery with CC 6.9 10.0 8.5 15.0 

QZ02B - Lower Limb Arterial Surgery without CC 13.3 3.0 3.3 9.0 

QZ03Z - Bypasses to Tibial Arteries -- -- 4.4 5.0 

QZ04Z - Extracranial or Upper Limb Arterial Surgery 8.8 5.0 1.7 15.0 

QZ07B - Redo Bilateral Varicose Vein Procedures without CC -- -- 1.0 1.0 

QZ08B - Redo Unilateral Varicose Vein Procedures without CC -- -- 1.0 1.0 

QZ11B - Amputations without Major CC 9.5 2.0 10.0 4.0 
QZ12Z - Foot Procedures for Diabetes or Arterial Disease, and     Procedures 
to Amputation Stumps 2.0   2.3 4.0 

QZ15A - Therapeutic Endovascular Procedures with Major CC -- -- 5.0 1.0 

QZ15B - Therapeutic Endovascular Procedures with Intermediate CC 1.0 6.0 1.3 13.0 

QZ15C - Therapeutic Endovascular Procedures without CC 2.8 4.0 0.7 3.0 
QZ16B - Diagnostic Vascular Radiology and other transluminal diagnostic 
procedures with Intermediate CC 1.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 

QZ17B - Non-Surgical Peripheral Vascular Disease with Intermediate CC 8.0 1.0 5.0 1.0 

Mean (Total Spells) 5.5 (43.0) 4.1 (80.0) 
 
Table 7: Mean length of stay (MLoS) post non-elective procedures. 

Non-Elective Procedures 

Pre-
Vascular 
Network 
Jul-Sep 
2014 

 

Post-
Vascular 
Network 
Oct-Dec 
2014 

 HRG MLoS Spells MLoS Spells 

QZ01A - Aortic or Abdominal Surgery with CC 21.0 1.0 13.5 6.0 
QZ02A - Lower Limb Arterial Surgery with CC 12.0 9.0 13.6 12.0 
QZ02B - Lower Limb Arterial Surgery without CC 24.7 3.0 -- -- 
QZ03Z - Bypasses to Tibial Arteries 27.8 6.0 35.3 3.0 
QZ04Z - Extracranial or Upper Limb Arterial Surgery 18.2 5.0 9.0 5.0 
QZ05A - Miscellaneous Vascular Procedures with CC -- -- 16.0 1.0 
QZ11A - Amputations with Major CC -- -- 28.4 5.0 
QZ11B - Amputations without Major CC 26.3 4.0 14.9 7.0 
QZ12Z - Foot Procedures for Diabetes or Arterial Disease, and 
Procedures to Amputation Stumps 14.0 3.0 16.2 6.0 
QZ15A - Therapeutic Endovascular Procedures with Major CC 33.0 2.0 14.0 1.0 
QZ15B - Therapeutic Endovascular Procedures with Intermediate CC 5.7 3.0 8.9 14.0 
QZ15C - Therapeutic Endovascular Procedures without CC -- -- 15.0 1.0 
QZ16B - Diagnostic Vascular Radiology and other transluminal 
diagnostic procedures with Intermediate CC -- -- 10.5 2.0 
QZ17A - Non-Surgical Peripheral Vascular Disease with Major CC -- -- 10.0 1.0 
QZ17B - Non-Surgical Peripheral Vascular Disease with Intermediate 
CC 5.7 3.0 2.6 10.0 
QZ17C - Non-Surgical Peripheral Vascular Disease without CC 12.7 3.0 2.3 3.0 

Mean (Total Spells) 17.8 (42.0) 12.6 (77.0) 
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It is anticipated that reduction in length of stay has been driven through delivery of the new clinical 
model and specifically the introduction of the Consultant of the week (CoW). With the CoW 
working with new standard pathways a consistent approach to patient management has helped to 
closely monitor patient progress. Further reductions in LoS are anticipated to be seen in the 
Network through the delivery of the following:   

• Enhanced Recovery Programme (ERP) for elective patients was introduced in January 2015. 
Patients choose to ‘opt-in’ to this programme that aims to actively engage the patient in 
their own recovery to return home.  

• The purchasing of St Monica beds will help to enable amputees to have a significant period 
of their recovery outside of the hospital but still remain under the care of the Vascular 
Network. 

• On-going work looks at the re-design of the rehab and re-enablement pathways to enable 
more timely discharge.  

 
5.5 Referral to Treatment  
As set out in the NHS Operating Framework and NHS Constitution, patients have the right to 
start first definitive consultant-led treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks from the referral. 
 
The following national access targets apply to all patients: 

1. 92% of patients on an incomplete non-emergency pathway (yet to start treatment), waiting 
no more than 18 weeks. 

2. 90% of admitted patients (listed for surgery) will receive their first definitive treatment 
with 18 weeks (127 days) of the referral.  

3. 95% of non-admitted patients (outpatients waiting to be listed) will receive their first 
definitive treatment within 18 weeks (127 days) of their referral.  

 
Vascular referral to treatment (RTT) performance has mirrored the rest of the surgical directorate; 
there has been a falling incomplete performance over the winter period. This is linked to the 
activity difficulties that have been described within the rest of the paper (section 7). However, this 
performance is currently improving as we are seeing a reduction in the number of breached 
incomplete pathways; this is due to implementation of action plans to target the problem areas. It 
is expected that the incomplete position will be within target by October 2015 and this will be 
revisited in the twelve month review paper.  

Table 8: Vascular RTT performance of incomplete, admitted and non-admitted percentages of patients on 
target from April 2014 to March 2015.  

Vascular RTT 
performance 

2014-
04 

2014-
05 

2014-
06 

2014-
07 

2014-
08 

2014-
09 

2014-
10 

2014-
11 

2014-
12 

2015-
01 

2015-
02 

2015-
03 YTD 

     
Target 

Incomplete % on 
Target 92.1% 90.1% 90.7% 89.6% 91.9% 92.8% 96.1% 95.1% 91.7% 88.0% 85.0% 85.3% 90.3% 

          
92% 

Admitted % on 
Target 94% 100% 96% 90% 87% 81% 85% 93% 91% 87% 76% 86% 87% 

         
90% 

Non-Admit % on 
Target 96% 94% 91% 98% 95% 100% 97% 98% 98% 98% 94% 92% 96% 

         
95% 
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5.6 Administrative Support  
Prior to the transfer, owing to staff shortages and reconfiguration of the admin structure, waiting 
time for letters to be typed was high. This has improved since October 2014 with a reduction in 
average wait for typing from 35 days to 5 days (Figure 2). This improvement was made possible 
through: appointment of permanent staff, recruitment of agency staff, a re-structure of admin 
resources, improved organisation through appointment of the Network Co-ordinator, Consultants’ 
support and hard work of all admin staff. 

 
Figure 2: Waiting time for typing of clinic letters.  

 
 
6 Stakeholder Feedback  

 
6.1 Stakeholder Survey 
It was agreed at the January Vascular Network Board that healthcare professionals should be asked 
for their feedback on the impact of the vascular service reorganisation. An electronic survey was 
distributed to staff across the four Network Trusts and Primary care. The response rate was low 
(28), particularly from the RUH which was the Trust who had expressed greatest concern pre-
transfer on the impact for patients. The small data set makes difficult to draw adequate 
conclusions; however, we are able to draw an initial insight at this early stage from the following:  
 

• ‘Overall impression of the Vascular Network’ was rated ‘OK’ to ‘very good’ and in most 
cases met expectations  

• ‘Overall rating of the service’ 66.67% of respondents thought it was good or excellent,  
22.22% average and 5.56% considered the service to be poor 

• ‘Efficiency of the service’ 55.55% consider it excellent and good, 27.78% average and 
11.11% poor 

• 87% of participants would recommend the service to friends and family  
 
Negative themes from respondents were: 

• A need to improve communication, specifically around referral to outpatient services.  
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• The Network needs to increase awareness of its services, with particular attention to 
emergency and urgent services, and disseminate information to stakeholders.  

  
The Network was praised for:  

• Responsiveness and feedback 
• Easy access to senior clinicians 
• Reliable daily access and a robust route of referral for urgent patient review  
• Continuity of care 
• Centralisation of bookings process 
• Having a single point of contact 
• Efficient and supportive Network Coordinator 

 
To enhance patient experience respondents highlighted the following areas for improvement: 

• An information leaflet with clear information about transport options 
• Immediate Hot Clinic appointments for TIA patients – ‘live system’ 
• Improved waiting times for first appointments  
• Vascular One-Stop Clinics in conjunction with Vascular Scientists in all outlying clinics 

(currently not in South Bristol Community Hospital or Melksham). 
• Clear expectations post discharge for amputees  

 
One respondent suggested a need for “24/7 access to a specialist vascular opinion”, this is already 
being delivered. Another respondent suggested “More presence in the spoke hospitals”, however, 
this has not been supported by Network data.  
 
6.2 Patient Experience  
Delivering quality care and ensuring a positive patient experience is fundamental to the provision 
of Vascular Services in the Network. The following measures will be used to assess patient 
experience and will be presented at a later date in a separate paper:  

• Friends and Family test (MAC) (ongoing) 
• Stroke Collaborative Care Pathway user feedback (annual)  
• Diabetic Foot Collaborative Care Pathway user feedback  (annual) 
• Amputee Survey (annual)  
• Procedures cancelled on the day  
• Vascular ward cleanliness score  
• Compliments  
• Complaints 

 
It was agreed that the Vascular Board would annually review the key findings from these reports. 
The Network has recognised the importance to focus on organisational values and engaging 
stakeholders, including patients, when working to improve care quality and patient experience. It 
has been highlighted that one aim for the future is to achieve greater engagement of patients, 
families and carers in the management of the network.  
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6.3 Complaints and Compliments  
Since the transfer there have been eight complaints received by the service (Table 9). The most 
common theme was delays and one was associated with poor communication. Copies of the full 
complaints are reviewed by the Clinical Safety and Governance Lead and are brought to the Clinical 
Governance meetings.  
 
Table 9: Complaints received since October 2014 and their current status. 

Incident Grade Date Complaint Received Nature of Complaint Actions/Lessons learnt 
 

Low Jan 14, 2015 
Patient was not seen by a 
doctor on day of discharge 
& dressing was not changed 

To improve communication on 
the ward before discharge. 

Moderate Jan 27, 2015 

Patient was sent home 
even though family asked 
for rehab. Fell over & 
fractured hip once home 

To provide additional training 
and awareness. To present 
member of staff with the 
complaint to reflect on their 
behavior. 

Low Feb 3, 2015 
Patient had unsuitable stay 
in Gate 34a Procedure 
room 

To improve communication 
between hospitals. Only to use 
appropriate patient rooms to 
bed patients 

Low Feb 3, 2015 
Long complaint surrounding 
patient's hospital stay, 
treatment and nursing care 

To reiterate importance of 
clerking patient in out of 
hours. To provide clear 
guideline on who to contact 
when arranging admission 
from clinic/hot clinic. 

Low Feb 13, 2015 
Patient waiting a long time 
for treatment and was not 
put on the waiting list 

Providing additional sessions. 
Improve communication 
about cancellations. 

Low Feb 17, 2015 
Patient was not able to 
discuss anything with the 
Consultant 

To improve communication 
within Interventional 
Radiology 

Low Mar 2, 2015 
Patient unhappy with pain 
relief and hospital stay in 
general 

To improve communication 
with patients and between 
staff. To provide further 
training to staff on the ward. 

Low Dec 4, 2014 
Long wait to see Doctor 
(patient forgotten) and for 
discharge 

To improve communication 
with interventional radiology. 
Divisional management have 
been made aware of 
comments regarding 
amenities on the ward and the 
availability of parking when 
collecting patients for hospital 
discharge 
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7 Challenges 
 
The challenges faced by the Bristol Bath Weston Vascular Network are outlined in detail below with 
short and long-term plans for how these will be addressed.  
 
7.1 Delay to outpatient review for both new and follow up patients 
The time to review for new and follow up patients has increased since the formation of the network. 
Short-term: Maximise use of ‘hot clinic’ slots. Ad-hoc additional clinics, Specialist nurse led clinics, 
review the percentage of patients with vascular disease in Multidimensional Family Therapy with 
vascular surgeon present. Long-term: Consider innovative referral pathways (i.e. direct access 
duplex), innovative follow up (i.e. telephone, Skype etc), juniors to be taken off general surgery 
rota to provide more availability for elective work, appoint a vascular physician, ensure vascular not 
bypassing other services (risk highest for diabetic foot with vascular clinics being used for patients 
with normal arterial supply). 
 
7.2 Maintaining equitable local access to services  
Diabetic foot services are not delivered equitably in all networked hospitals. Short-term: Attempt to 
accommodate patients requiring urgent review in vascular clinics. Vascular network treating 
diabetic patients without vascular disease. Long-term: Working with commissioners, podiatry, 
diabetes medicine and orthopaedics to develop a comprehensive diabetic foot service. 
 
Access to local CTA and MRA has already been an issue at one networked hospital. Weston General 
Hospital is currently unable to provide a day case angioplasty service. Short-term: These patients 
are receiving their imaging and/or angioplasty at the MAC. Long-term: The provision of vascular 
radiology and interventional radiology across the network requires review (See 7.5) 
 
7.3 Maintaining MAC access 
Patient cancellations have been an issue, especially during periods of winter pressures, and the ring-
fencing of vascular beds has not been maintained. Short term: Introduced enhanced recovery 
programme (ERP) Jan 19, 2015 for vascular patients. Audited longer staying patients to identify 
those needing specialist vascular care, those needing non-specialist inpatient care (i.e. medical, 
stroke, renal, cardiology or diabetes) and those medically fit for discharge awaiting a either a 
suitable location for rehabilitation or social care or a package of care at home. Short term: weekly 
consultant-led multi-specialty discharge-planning meetings take place at the MAC to ensure 
agreement between providers over the repatriation of patients who no longer require specialist 
vascular care to local community hospitals. Supporting MAC therapists who are now having to work 
across a far wider network. Engagement with community services. Investigation of purchasing 2/3 
rehabilitation beds at St Monica’s, primarily for amputees as a transition to going back home. 
Appointment of a 0.1 WTE Rehabilitation Consultant as a joint with Bristol Centre for Enablement 
and Severn Trauma Network. Long-term: The solution is better integration of health and social care 
with better funding for rehabilitation and social care. The first step towards this is the development 
of a transfer of information form with Bristol Community Health that can then be rolled out with 
rehabilitation and recovery providers across the network. 
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7.4 Information transfer within the network 
Difficulties with accessing information across network clinics and between providers (i.e. ensuring 
follow up of diabetic foot disease patients by podiatry following discharge from the MAC). The 
terminal server farm is also currently slow within some of the spoke sites.  Short-term: The network 
has created a shared file storage system that can be accessed at each spoke site. Therefore if a 
local different speciality requires some information then they can contact the local secretary who 
can access the network electronic files. Long-term: Implementation of Lorenzo later in 2015 and 
achieving integration and access from other networked Trusts. 
 
7.5 Interventional Radiology (Vascular and Non-vascular) 
The Royal United Hospital Bath COO highlighted at the last Vascular Network Board the challenges 
being posed to the IR department for the Trust now that their two vascular radiologists perform 
elective sessions at NBT. There had been a loss of confidence in the local non-vascular service from 
other clinicians. The problem is even more acute at the two other hospital Trusts WAHT and UHBT.  
Sort-term: Network Trusts need to address these issues urgently as current pressure on NBT IR 
service is un-sustainable. Need to improve engagement of Network hospitals to develop a 
sustainable plan. Long-term: Appointment of additional networked-hospitals vascular 
interventional radiologists or new model of ‘hub and spoke’ service delivery similar to that for 
arterial surgery. 
 
7.6 Thoracic aortic disease service 
 The current service model has been well described but the staff are not in place to deliver a 
sustainable 24/7 service. Increasing intervention of patients with Type B dissection will increase 
demand in the acute, sub-acute phases. Short-term: One cardiac surgeon is actively gaining the 
endovascular skills to work as a member of the core team but just as for other aortic endovascular 
procedures it is safer when two experienced operators perform these. All of these patients will 
need to be reviewed and followed up by the thoracic aortic team. Long-term: Need to deliver a 
sustainable on-call service provision for these patients. 
 
7.7 Renal Access Surgery  
Following the go live of the network, readily available theatre lists for vascular access for 
haemodialysis patients became compromised resulting in a total backlog by March 2015 of 18 
patients. Short-term: The Surgical and Renal directorates have agreed a shared waiting list for 
access patients and in April the vascular service took on the management of the waiting list. Long-
Term: Move all renal activity into another theatre; whilst this is waiting final sign off, where 
possible lists are utilised to maintain the access and living kidney donor (LKD) service. It is 
important to note that the trust has not yet turned down any kidney’s due to lack of theatre 
access.  

 
7.8 Anaesthetic support for theatre lists  
It is not possible for the anaesthetists to support all additional lists. Short-term: Where possible 
some additional lists will be supported. Long-term: All lists to be covered by November 2015. To 
accommodate the long-term plans a number of other non-vascular consultants will have to change 
their job plans. Significant progress has been made and a plan is almost agreed.  
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7.9 Staffing on the Vascular Ward  
Currently we have 1.6 WTE vacancies for trained Nurses and 3.0 WTE Health Care Assistant 
vacancies. Skill mix has been an issue post transfer as the dependency of the patients increased 
dramatically. Short-term: Skill mix has been increased and bank staff are being employed. Long-
term: a business case has been written and awaits approval to further increase the number of 
trained staff on the ward. 
 
Other challenges on the ward besides the dependency have been the delay in discharges, due to 
repatriation delays mainly with the Bath area patients and due to the complexity of vascular 
patients who tend to require a high level of social care support. There are fewer outlying patients 
but the ring-fencing has been broken over the weekend at times. 
 
7.10 Income during 14/15 below plan 
The Vascular Network is currently below plan on elective activity and associated income. There were 
179 cases in the previous 6 months but only 49 in the last 3 months. Short-Term: This appears to be 
attributable to a reduction in Interventional Radiology procedures – mainly angioplasties where the 
service have performed less than plan. Need to address challenge in point 7.5.  
 
In total the Network is below plan by 33 cases in the last 6 months on non-elective procedures 
however, the last 3 months of this has been above plan by 15 cases. The key areas where the service 
is above plan are amputations, lower limb arterial surgery, and therapeutic endovascular 
procedures. Short-term: The tariff for these procedures is high and therefore in income terms we 
are above plan by £136k on non-elective procedures in the last 3 months. The service is also above 
plan on non-payment by results device income and critical care income. Long-term: The finance 
team is working on separating the procedural income and setting up accurate and achievable 
contracts with commissioners. More detail of the Network finances can be seen in Appendix 2. 
 
 
8 Next steps 
 
Future data collection must be optimised to allow the monitoring and improvement of our services 
and clinical outcome measures. This must include a close monitoring of the patient experience. All 
elements of the agreed pathways must be delivered, in particular innovation and research must be 
fostered. It is vital that a robust governance structure is maintained and that strategic planning is 
implemented to ensure that a responsive, safe, equitable and innovative service continues to be 
delivered. It is envisaged that more detailed data will be at the one-year review of the transfer, 
however, this reorganisation will only be considered a success if it can demonstrate an 
improvement in clinical outcome measures for patients with vascular disease. It will take two to 
five years to collect this data. 
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Appendix 1 – National Service Specification  
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Appendix 2 Financial overview 

 

Income
Activity £ Activity £ Activity £ Act

Surgery Admitted Daycase 280 244,800 286 285,447 6 40,648
Surgery Admitted Elective Inpatient 513 1,667,713 328 1,271,494 -185 -396,219
Surgery Admitted Non-Elective Inpatient 230 1,512,491 234 1,547,731 4 35,241
Surgery Admitted Non-Elective Short Stay 91 297,368 54 140,531 -37 -156,837

1,114 3,722,371 902 3,245,203 -212 -477,168
Surgery Non -Admitted Outpatients - News 1,475 227,150 1,237 190,498 -238 -36,652
Surgery Non -Admitted Outpatients - follow-ups 2,018 185,610 1,747 160,724 -271 -24,886

3,493 412,760 2,984 351,222 -509 -61,538
Surgery Other AAA screening 121,992 121,992 0
Core clinical Other Devices 482,344 717,803 235,459
Core clinical Other Critical care 393 567,624 596 736,656 203 169,032

MFF 324,194 281,960 -42,235
Sub-total Other 1,496,154 1,858,411 362,257

4,606 5,631,285 3,886 5,454,836 -720 -176,449

Expenditure
Surgery Direct pay Consultants 762,479 751,774 -10,705     
Surgery Direct pay Juniors 313,221 237,112 -76,109     
Surgery Direct pay Ward nursing 735,108 787,101 51,993     
Surgery Direct pay Specialist nursing 78,784 50,796 -27,988         
Surgery Direct pay Admin 132,958 103,391 -29,567         
Surgery Direct pay Vascular lab 169,284 190,635 21,351       
Surgery Direct pay AAA screening 124,110 115,710 -8,400         
Surgery Direct non-pay Theatre non-pay 55,223 202,169 146,946         
Surgery Direct non-pay Ward non-pay 130,639 120,331 -10,309         
Surgery Direct non-pay Provider to provider charges -op capacity 107,155 117,892 10,737         
Surgery Direct non-pay Drugs 49,489 24,723 -24,766         
Surgery Direct non-pay Other non-pay 98,034 23,153 -74,881         
Core clinical Direct non-pay Devices 482,344 717,803 235,459   
Core clinical Indirect Critical care 404,466 524,911 120,445   

3,643,294 3,967,500 324,207

Contribution to overheads 1,987,991 1,487,335 -500,656

Vascular I&E

Total

Income and activity October 2014 to March 2015        

Total

Plan Actual Variance

Sub-total 

Sub-total 

Sub-total 
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Appendix 3 Peer Review of Diabetic Foot Care Services  

  
 
 
 

PEER REVIEW OF DIABETIC FOOT 
CARE SERVICES 

 
NORTH BRISTOL TRUST 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE ABOVE PEER REVIEW –  

ACTION PLAN UPDATE REQUIRED BY CLINICAL AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Recommendation By when Actioned By whom E    
c    
s  

 

It is recommended that the new contract 
include the provision of an Urgent referral 
and accelerated orthotic manufacture 
pathway for the highest risk diabetic foot 
patients 

1 February 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for 
completion:   
30/04/15 

CCGB/NBT   

When vascular patients are repatriated to 1 February 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for MDT   

South West Cardiovascular 
Strategic Clinical Network 
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Recommendation By when Actioned By whom E    
c    
s  

 

referring areas, the pathways for liaison 
with these podiatry and orthotic services 
and with Community Nursing may les 
familiar and more complicated and clear 
communication on discharge is essential 

completion:   

30/04/15 

Commissioners should ensure that the 
new contract for orthotics provides 
sufficient capacity to avoid delay in the 
provision of bespoke orthoses following a 
period of cast immobilisation (typically 
healed plantar ulceration and Charcot 
neuro-arthropathy) , resulting in avoidable 
clinic episodes and cast changes 

1 February 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for 
completion:   

30/04/15 

CCG/MDT   

 

 

Recommendation By when Actioned By whom E    
c    
s  

 

Increase in podiatry provision  
S Gloucestershire and Bristol CCG’s 

1 February 2015 Yes in BCH      
    

 

Sirona (Christine 
Hurley) and Bristol 
Community Health 
(Samantha Draper) 
and NBT 

  

Integration and administrative support for 
podiatry services 

1 February 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for 
completion:   

 

CCG’s, Sirona and 
Bristol Community 
Health  

  

Storage for more orthoses in out-patients 1 February 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for 
completion:   
 
30/04/15 

MDT Team and NBT   

Scrutiny of repatriation pathways to ensure 
flow of patients back to spoke 
hospitals/community after vascular 
intervention or amputation 

1 February 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for 
completion: 
 
30/04/15   

 

Marcus Brooks and 
Vascular Team 
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From now onwards planning for research 
into diabetic foot treatment and training of 
staff 

1 February 2015 Yes 
  All of the team       

    
  

 
 

Progress Report to NHS England/SW SCN  30 April 2015 Yes    No       
 If revised date for 
completion:   

Fong Chau/Lyn 
Sawyer/podiatry 
team/NBT/CCG/CSU 
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Finance & Performance 
Committee 

 
Sustainability Programme Update 

 
April 2015 

 



Sustainability Update 
 The current recurrent CRES forecast for 2015/16 (as at 18th May) is 

£36.8 million against a target of £41.2 million 
 This is an increase of £1.1 million in the last month 

 The in-year forecast is £26.8 million against a target of £29.4 million  
 The following programme summaries show the status of the plans 

(RAG) and the split of pay / non-pay / income  
 There have been 57 new schemes added to the tracker in the last 

month 
 Plans are due from directorates for all remain schemes by 29th May 

 Next steps 
 Complete detail plans against all schemes  
 Finalise PID’s for remaining workstream (Patient Flow) 

 First review at Patient Flow board – coming to Sustainability in June 
 Move workstream reporting to plans linked to 5 year savings 
 Continue detailed review of plans for progress of delivery through April and 

May – June commence planning of next year 



15/16 CRES – by scheme RAG status 
NBT CRES (Recurring) PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2015-16
As at 15th May 2015

Directorate

2015-16 
Recurring 
Targets

(Surplus) / 
Shortfall 
Brought 

Forward  14/15

Total 
Target       

2015/16

Green Amber Red Pipeline

Total Recurring 
CRES Identified 

2015-16 
including 
pipeline

Total   
Unidentified/(S

urplus) CRES 
2015-16

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

C Gov 100 100 20 0 25 0 45 55 2 1 3 0.6
CEO 131 131 70 0 26 0 96 35 2 0 2 0.0
Core Clinical Services 8,968 1,039 10,007 3,058 1,435 2,398 565 7,456 2,551 111 17 128 34.6
Facilities 4,332 1,019 5,351 1,319 962 843 74 3,198 2,153 26 6 32 18.0
Finance 814 118 932 610 34 142 0 786 146 9 0 9 2.0
HR&D 622 208 830 214 0 255 0 469 361 12 0 12 5.0
IM&T 967 350 1,317 225 730 6 35 996 321 7 1 8 2.0
Medicine 5,309 (40) 5,269 118 1,700 1,909 1,200 4,927 342 11 1 12 11.0
MSK 3,874 (131) 3,743 630 157 4,063 50 4,900 (1,157) 25 2 27 1.4
Neuro 3,161 2 3,163 386 551 722 486 2,145 1,018 17 6 23 1.5
Renal 2,072 2,072 889 513 100 241 1,743 329 15 2 17 4.2
Operations 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 100 1 0 1 0.0
Other 1,700 1,700 0 529 600 900 2,029 (329) 2 3 5 0.0
R&I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0
Surgery 3,596 (451) 3,145 2,372 155 1,158 60 3,745 (600) 42 3 45 4.0
W&CH 5,495 1,367 6,862 1,403 1 1,612 1,293 4,309 2,553 20 16 36 30.5
Total 41,242 3,481 44,723 11,314 6,767 13,859 4,904 36,844 7,878 302 58 360 115

WTE 
calculate

d

No. of 
schemes 

(incl 
pipeline)

No. of 
pipeline 
schemes

No. of 
schemes, 
Green, 

Amber & 
Red



15/16 CRES – by pay/non-pay/productivity 
NBT CRES (Recurring) PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2015-16
As at 15th May 2015

Directorate

2015-16 
Recurring 

Targets

(Surplus) / 
Shortfall 
Brought 
Forward  

14/15

Total 
Target       

2015/16 Pay Non-Pay Productivity

Total 
Recurring 

CRES 
Identified 
2015-16 
including 
pipeline

Total   
Unidentified

/(Surplus) 
CRES 2015-

16

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
C Gov 100 100 20 0 25 45 55 2 1 3 0.6
CEO 131 131 26 70 0 96 35 2 0 2 0.0
Core Clinical Services 8,968 1,039 10,007 1,768 3,222 2,466 7,456 2,551 111 17 128 34.6
Facilities 4,332 1,019 5,351 934 1,940 324 3,198 2,153 26 6 32 18.0
Finance 814 118 932 92 110 584 786 146 9 0 9 2.0
HR&D 622 208 830 275 54 140 469 361 12 0 12 5.0
IM&T 967 350 1,317 225 391 380 996 321 7 1 8 2.0
Medicine 5,309 -40 5,269 1,295 523 3,109 4,927 342 11 1 12 11.0
MSK 3,874 -131 3,743 75 3,691 1,134 4,900 (1,157) 25 2 27 1.4
Neuro 3,161 2 3,163 205 973 967 2,145 1,018 17 6 23 1.5
Renal 2,072 2,072 866 439 438 1,743 329 15 2 17 4.2
Operations 100 100 0 0 0 0 100 1 0 1 0.0
Other 1,700 1,700 400 1,629 0 2,029 (329) 2 3 5 0.0
R&I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0
Surgery 3,596 -451 3,145 168 1,228 2,349 3,745 (600) 42 3 45 4.0
W&CH 5,495 1,367 6,862 1,653 545 2,111 4,309 2,553 20 16 36 30.5
Total 41,242 3,481 44,723 8,002 14,815 14,027 36,844 7,878 302 58 360 115

No. of 
schemes, 
Green, 

Amber & 
Red

No. of 
pipeline 
schemes

No. of 
schemes 

(incl 
pipeline)

WTE 
calculated



15/16 In-Year CRES – by scheme RAG status 
The In-

Year 
Savings 
Target is 
£29.4m 

NBT CRES (In-Year) PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2015-16
As at 15th May 2015

Directorate Green Amber Red Pipeline

Total In-Year 
CRES Identified 

2015-16 
including 
pipeline

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

C Gov 20 0 25 0 45 2 1 3
CEO 70 0 26 0 96 2 0 2
Core Clinical Services 3,018 1,143 1,617 432 6,210 111 17 128
Facilities 1,319 956 493 37 2,805 26 6 32
Finance 610 34 110 0 754 9 0 9
HR&D 214 0 229 0 443 12 0 12
IM&T 225 730 6 35 996 7 1 8
Medicine 193 1,700 700 0 2,593 11 1 12
MSK 622 118 1,491 525 2,756 25 2 27
Neuro 693 551 479 461 2,184 17 6 23
Renal 875 513 50 191 1,629 15 2 17
Operations 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Other 0 529 600 800 1,929 2 3 5
R&I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Surgery 2,225 100 224 125 2,674 42 3 45
W&CH 1,490 1 1,328 717 3,536 20 16 36
Total 11,573 6,373 7,379 3,323 28,648 302 58 360

No. of 
schemes 

(incl 
pipeline)

No. of 
pipeline 
schemes

No. of 
schemes, 
Green, 

Amber & 
Red



Sustainability workstream status 

Workstream Exec Lead
Management 

Lead 15/16 Target
In-Year 
Value Recurrent Value

Shortfall 
(Recurring) WTE PI
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Commercial Opportunities Catherine Phillips David Shannon 3,830           3,080      3,013              817                0.4              Y Y Y Y Y
Length of Stay and Flow Kate Hannam Rosanna James 3,450           819         3,228              222                11.0            Y N June Board Y Y
Operational Efficiency Kate Hannam GMs 12,342         6,433      7,667              4,675             85.4            

Optimising Income and Tariff Kate Hannam GMs 2,100           6,341      6,071              3,971-             -              Y Y Y High Level Y
Outpatient Efficiency Chris Burton Claire Weatherall 1,660           700         762                 898                -              Y Y Y Y Y
Supply Chain Management Catherine Phillips Richard Ward 4,200           4,984      5,835              1,635-             -              Y Y Y Y Y
Theatre Efficiency Sasha Karakusevic

Sharon Nicholson/ 
Carolyn Roper 6,000           2,330      5,807              193                -              Y Y Y Y Y

Use of Technology Chris Burton Ward Priestman 200               62           67                   133                Y Y Y Y Y
Workforce Harry Hayer Robert Baker 3,200           1,942      2,042              1,158             -              Y Y Y Y Y
Facilities portfolio Simon Wood Katie Bowden 4,260           1,959      2,352              1,908             18.0            Y Y Y Y Y
Service Line Management Sasha Karakusevic GMs -                -          -                  -                 -              Y Y Y High Level Y

Total 41,242         28,648   36,844           4,397             115             

2015-16 Workstream Savings Tracking Report

N/A



5 Year Financial Plans 

 Key Risks to delivery of 5 year plan and status 
 Patient Flow restricting LOS improvement and theatre activity 

 RED – Patient Flow PID being developed 
 Successful implementation of Commissioner QIPP and BCF plans 

 AMBER - Agreement of South Glous / North Somerset in principle – Bristol / NHS England lack detail 
 Continued use of marginal rates for specialised activity  

 GREEN – Underachievement in 14/15 activity benefiting position 
 Recruitment and retention of staff reducing agency expenditure 

 RED – workforce plans being developed 
 Successful implementation of new technology solutions 

 AMBER – Digital Solutions monitoring workstream  
 Impact of any further unfunded cost pressures e.g. 7 day working and winter resilience funding  

 AMBER – To be reviewed with directorate forecast and activity plans  
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 Year Savings Plans  
Work streams 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total 

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Recurrent  Savings Plan Target 31.50 41.37 34.27 24.80 19.00 150.95

2014/15 Plans 28.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.80
2014/15 Pipeline 2.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.15
Supply Chain Management 0.55 4.20 4.00 3.50 3.00 15.25
Workforce 3.20 1.00 0.50 0.00 4.70
Outpatient Efficiency 1.66 1.00 1.00 1.00 4.66
Length of Stay and Flow 3.45 2.00 1.00 1.00 7.45
Theatre Productivity 6.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 16.00
Facilties Portfolio 4.26 2.75 0.00 0.00 7.01
Commercial Opportunities 3.83 2.30 1.15 0.50 7.78
Optimising Specialist income and Tariff Opportunities 2.10 2.25 1.00 1.00 6.35
Use of Technology 0.20 1.75 3.65 0.00 5.60
Operational Efficiency 12.25 8.15 5.00 4.50 29.90
Service Line Management and Speciality improvement programmes 0.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 15.00

Total Savings Plan 31.50 41.15 34.20 24.80 19.00 150.65

 Year 1 delivered in year - £3.4 million recurrent under-delivered 
 Year 2 – current recurrent gap of £7.9 million 
 Year 3 - £3.2 million of new schemes identified 
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Recommendation:  

 
This paper provides the Board with a briefing regarding Nursing and Midwifery Revalidation and our plans to ensure readiness for 
revalidation from April 2016 
 

 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
To provide the Trust Board with an update on the Nursing and 
Midwifery Council’s (NMC) revalidation process and note the 
actions underway to ensure NBT’s readiness for revalidation.   

2. Background 

2.1. One of the improvements post Francis has been to deliver 
Revalidation for Nursing and Midwifery.  The first step 
towards revalidation was the publication of the new 
Nursing and Midwifery Code of Conduct; the new code 
sets the context for contemporary professional practice 
and provides very clear expectations for professional 
practice. Revalidation using the new code is the process 
by which Registered Nurses and Midwives will 
demonstrate to the NMC that they continue to be fit to 
practise.  

2.2.  Revalidation aims to protect the public, increase public 
confidence in nurses and midwives and help those on the 
NMC register to meet the standards required of them. 

2.3. Revalidation will take place every 3 years and will replace 
the current post registration education and practice 
standards (PREP). The aim is to improve upon the 
current system by setting new requirements for registered 
nurses. Under revalidation Registered Nurses and 
Midwives will have to declare they have:  

• Met the requirements for practice hours ( practised for 
at least 450 hours during the previous 3 years )  

•  Met the requirements for continuing professional 
development (undertaken at least 40 hours) of 
continuing professional development relevant to their 
scope of practice as a nurse, with a minimum of 20 
hours being participatory learning.   

• Reflected on their practice based on the requirements 
of the NMC code1 (2015), using feedback from 
service users, patients, relatives, colleagues and 
others.  

• Provide a health and character declaration and 
declared any conviction for a criminal offence or the 
issuing of a formal caution.  

•  Professional indemnity arrangement – confirmed the 
registered nurse/midwife has or will have been 
practicing, with appropriate cover under the indemnity 
arrangement.  

•  Received confirmation for a third party ( called a ‘ 
confirmer’) that their declaration is reliable in 
accordance with the NMC Code (2015) 

3. Main Report Content 
3.1 Responsibility 
Nurses and midwives are responsible and will be held 
accountable for their own revalidation process. Every 3 years 
at the point of renewal of registration, nurses will need to 
demonstrate the requirements of revalidation and their fitness 
for practice in order to remain on the NMC register.  

From April 2016, all nurses who are due to re- register at that 
point will start using revalidation. This means that by April 
2019 everyone on the NMC register will have undergone 
revalidation.  

 
 

1 NMC Code of Professional Practice (2015) 
http://www.nmc.org.uk/standards/code/read-the-code-online/ 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

3.2 Provisional Guidance  
The NMC have produced provisional guidance which is being 
tested in a number of organisations and locations where 
registered nurses work.  

The pilot sites are expected to report in the summer 2015 with 
final guidance expected to be issued by the NMC in the 
autumn of 2015.  

3.3 National and Regional Approach  
Each region within the United Kingdom has established a 
Nursing and Midwifery Revalidation and Implementation 
Programme Board. Each region e.g. NHS England (South) 
has established a Regional Revalidation Implementation 
Group.  

There is monthly communication sent out from the Regional 
Office regarding national and regional progress.  

 The NMC have commissioned KPMG to ascertain the ‘state 
of readiness’ of organisations and this is currently with Monitor 
and the TDA with regards to plans for organisations to be 
undertaking this assessment of organisational readiness. 

3.4 Trust Approach 
Initial presentation and communication to Senior Nurses 
across the Trust took place throughout May 2015 including 
Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professional Meeting, 
Matrons forum and Directorate Sisters meetings. 

There is a plan to ensure that revalidation is realigned to the 
current appraisal process. 

There will be a Trust wide Nursing and Midwifery revalidation 
implementation group established in June 2015 to include; 
Senior Nursing / Midwifery / HR and Education Leads, the role 

of this group will be to lead and implement a project plan to 
include:  

• Scoping of numbers and dates of revalidation for all 
nurses and midwives across the Trust.(There are 
currently 2207 Registered Nurses and 255 Registered 
Midwives in post with 396 Registered Nurses and 34 
Registered Midwives employed on the Bank in May 
2015)  

• Identification of all areas where Nurses are working 
across the Trust (including in general managerial roles 
and non-clinical posts) to ensure that the mechanisms 
are in place to support revalidation in all areas. 

• Development and oversight of the delivery and 
implementation of nursing and midwifery revalidation, 
ensuring that staff engagement and education systems 
are in place. Each member will be expected to lead on 
awareness communication within their Directorate. 

• Identify and mitigate any risks identified and escalated 
if required. 

• Produce a nursing and midwifery revalidation policy. 

• Ensuring that a clear process is in place for bank 
nurses have access to revalidation support and that it 
is monitored.  

• Learn from the National pilot sites and implement any 
learning obtained by Heads of Nursing attending 
National Revalidation workshop in June.  

4. Summary 

4.1.  This has provided an overview of the proposals for 
Nursing and Midwifery revalidation and explained where 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

the Trust currently is with revalidation and the plans in 
place to begin implementation going forward. 

4.2.  The Trust group will meet in June with monthly meetings 
thereafter.  

4.3. The Trust received information from the Trust 
Development Authority on the 22nd May requesting 
completion of the ‘State of Readiness’ for the Trust to be 
completed and returned by the 5th June 2015.  

4.4. There will be approximately 3000 Registrants requiring 
revalidation over the 3 year period from April 2016.  

4.5. The next 3 months of work will focus on the generation of 
the project plan in line with the outcomes of the self-
assessment of the ‘state of readiness’ for the Trust. 

5. Recommendations 

5.1. The Trust Board is recommended to receive this update 
report regarding Nursing and Midwifery revalidation and 
to note the actions required and underway to prepare for 
the organisational readiness for revalidation.  

5.2.   A further update to the Trust Board will be provided in 
September 2015 once the full organisational state of 
readiness self-assessment is complete. 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
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Recommendation:  

The Board is asked to note the progress made on developing the strategy 

 
 



 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
This paper provides an update to the Board on the development of the Trust Strategy.   

 

2. Background 

Following the April meeting the following activities have taken place: 

• Discussions have taken place with each directorate to identify key themes and align strategic and business plans. 

• Senior Leaders Events have taken place.  The theme was ‘Making this year count’.  The agenda covered a review of 
the last year; a focus on patient flow, outpatient and theatre pathways and; an update on the Trust strategy. 

Feedback on the event was positive.  Responding to feedback, TMT have agreed to review the communication and 
engagement plan to improve the flow of information and ownership across the organisation. 

• A decision has been taken on the future approach to CCHP. 

• A Board Seminar has taken place to discuss key actions required to implement the strategy.  A verbal update will be 
provided to the Board. 

• The Trust continues to work with system partners to define cross organisational priorities. 

• NHS England has launched the Vanguard programme for Acute Trusts.   
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Capital Planning Report 
12 May 2015 

 

PFI Phase 1 Critical Issues - outstanding
Issue Next 

Action
Critical Action Required R.A.G 

Status

Theatre Flooring Staining NBT
Cleaning product trial has been 
successful. NBT reviewing Carillion 
proposed cost arrangement

Amber

Paired theatre impact on 
shared prep THC

Energy impact details received from THC 
and BMS modifcations to be undertaken 
by CSL 

Amber

Main Entrance Revolving 
Doors 

CCL
Voice command change implemented. 
Signage reviewed and installed. Will no 
longer be reported

Green

Drainage CCL
Programme under way and working well 
although with a few access difficulties Amber

Helpdesk and Service 
Failure Points (SFP's) CSL

Helpdesk transfer proposed for 1 June 
2015, subject to success criteria being 
achieved

Amber

Red
Amber
Green 

PFI Phase 2 Progress On 
track

Handover of Works Areas: Four remaining areas to be handed 
over. One is available now and discussions continue with 
Independent Tester. One relies on NBT diverting a cable. The 
other 2 require demolition of Limewalk Building and NBT 
Vacating Sherston and Brecon Buildings. Carillion have notified 
a 10 week delay to completion of Phase 2. This is claimed to be 
due to late handover of Works Areas by NBT but the programme 
impact and mitigations have not yet been substantiated

R

Removal of Asbestos: Carillion have also advised of 
considerably more unidentified asbestos than was expected 
which will have further cost and programme impacts estimated 
to be a total of 7 months on the Brunel building extension.

R

Demolition: Demolition of old hospital and excavation for Brunel 
extension is complete. Removal of foundations and ducts on 
remainder of site continues

A

Construction Progress: Foundations for Brunel excavation are 
complete and erection of the building frame is well under way A

Variations: several small VEs are being processed. VEs are 
also being prepared for Unidentified asbestos and for the delay 
to Limewalk handover. VE also being developed for the 
construction of  2 car parks at Kendon and Sherston to facilitate 
the closure of the staff Park & Ride services in October

G

Review of Design: A review of the Phase 2 design was 
undertaken jointly with THC, Carillion and their designers BDP. 
This has been informed by the lessons learnt from Phase 1. 
Amended proposals from designers have been discussed and 
cost impact will be formulated during May

G

PFI Phase 2 Key Issues

Carillion notified delay to Phase 2:

Carillion have advised completion of Brunel extension now 
delayed until April 2016

Extension of the lease of Quadrant for SSD is the subject of 
continuing discussions with the Landlord. 

Response to the Variation Enquiry with prices and programme 
from Carillion to build 2 car parks to minimise programme 
impact overall has been received and clarifications being 
sought. Carillion proposed handover of parts of the site would 
enable the Trust to open 2 staff car parks on site to enable 
closure of the Park & Ride services by the end October 2015 

 l dThe overall assessment & impact of Carillion delays will be 
completed when the full extent of unidentified asbestos is 
confirmed & plans for NBT demolition of Limewalk finalised.

Delay to Pathology Phase 2 
The extent of the Pathology phase 2 delay is still not certain 
but an estimated date for completion of the phase 2 building is 
July 2015, with Moves in September. Decommissioning and 
demolition of Limewalk by the Trust to follow before handover 
to Carillion.

Delay to clearing Sherston
Recent difficulties in relocating the paediatric service have 
resulted in a replanning exercise linked with the pain clinic and 
occupational health. Clearance by 3rd week June 2015 is the 
target with decommissioning planned to start end June

Jigsaw Programme Progress On 
Track

Pathology 1:  Reception and Newborn Screening area on 1st floor completed. 
Curtain walling enabling works for telelift under way and completion now due 
13 July 2015. Additional PM resource agreed.

A

Pathology 2: Further slippage with significant delay on CAT3 suite. Practical 
Completion target date (exc CAT3) is 10 July, with moves in September. 
Levels B&0 handovers due 10 April not ready. Still major risks in assumptions 
in programme. Biggest risk around delivery of CAT 3 suite which is on hold 
due to non compliance and overall quality of main building. Frequent high level 
meetings with Vinci

R

Corporate Offices: 
         Various small departments moved into Pines & Steps early May

CHB - HR moved from Frenchay 11 April
Brain Centre Elgar House : Fully open G
Estates Maintenance relocation: 

Offices Moves from Maples into Somerset House delayed until end May

Workshops: Completion due May and moves end May
Elgar Wards: 

Final phase of works could be delivered July 2015 when beds released 
from winter pressures

Sherston Decant
Final decision made on future location of services:
Paeds will move to Monks Park House 22 May followed by Occ Health 
from Frenchay on 29 May
Outpatients - Pain move to Gloucester House (AWP), delayed until w/c 
15 June due to extent of works in Gloucester House R

G

A

G

A

Frenchay Progress On 
Track

Decommissioning: Briggs & Forrester have vacated the site. 
Drainage works now due for completion during June 2015.  

A

Asbestos surveys: These are completed G
Disposal of Main Site: OBC approved at March Trust Board and 
TDA comments being addressed

G

FBC for disposal being developed for TDA approval in 
September

G

Frenchay Park House disposal: FBC approved at April Trust 
Board. Exchange of contracts expected June G

Top PFI Failure Categories April 2015
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Recommendation:  

Following the Audit Committee meeting on the 1st June, the Board are asked to approve the accounts and representation  letter. 

 
Executive Summary:  
The accounts and the audit work were discussed in detail at the Audit Committee on the 1st June. 
 
The key issues are that there are no changes to the Trusts performance against its financial targets from the draft accounts and the External 
Auditors – Grant Thornton – intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion. 
 
The Audit Committee recommended that the Board approve the accounts for 2014/15. 
 
Once the Board has approved the accounts the auditors will sign their audit opinion and the accounts will be submitted to the DH before the 
deadline of midday on Friday 5th June 



 
  



Trust name North Bristol NHS Trust
This year 2014-15
Last year 2013-14
This year ended 31 March 2015
Last year ended 31 March 2014
This year commencing: 1 April 2014
Last year commencing: 1 April 2013

 Accounts 2014-15



North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of comprehensive income for year ended
31 March 2015

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
Note £000s £000s £000s £000s

Gross employee benefits 9.1 (346,110) (346,613) (346,110) (346,613)
Other operating costs 7 (201,280) (350,776) (202,934) (351,897)
Revenue from patient care activities 4 457,645 459,322 457,645 459,322
Other operating revenue 5 95,266 82,054 96,581 83,252
Operating surplus/(deficit) 5,521 (156,013) 5,182 (155,936)

Investment revenue 11 76 103 403 416
Other gains and (losses) 12 0 0 516 (217)
Finance costs 13 (32,893) (2,091) (32,893) (2,091)
Deficit for the financial year (27,296) (158,001) (26,792) (157,828)
Public dividend capital dividends payable (81) (1,386) (81) (1,386)
Retained deficit for the year (27,377) (159,387) (26,873) (159,214)

Other comprehensive income 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Impairments and reversals taken to the revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 24,492 8,876 24,492 8,876
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles 0 0 0 0
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0
Other gain /(loss) 0 0 0 0
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0
Reclassification adjustments
   On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the year* (2,885) (150,511) (2,381) (150,338)

Financial performance for the year
Retained deficit for the year (27,377) (159,387)
IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments) (9,382) 143,343
Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments) 17,286 20,050
Adjustments in respect of donated assets (267) 1,599
Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit) (19,740) 5,605

The Trust's retained deficit is adjusted for the following:

Trust Group

(a) Impairments to non-current assets are not considered part of the Trust's financial performance for the year.

(b) The incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to the accounting for PFI assets.  The revenue cost of bringing PFI assets onto 
the Statement of Financial Position needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury for measuring departmental expenditure.  Therefore any 
cost which does not have a cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is reported as a technical adjustment. Any such net cost is not 
considered part of the Trust's overall financial performance. This is represented by the IFRIC 12 adjustment above.

(c) When donated assets are received, income will be recognised equivalent to their value in the Trust's entity accounts. The value of the asset will then be 
depreciated over its useful economic life by means of a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (SoCI). Over the life of the asset, the net effect on 
the Trust's SOCI will be nil, but in any particular year there may be a financial impact. This impact on the SoCI is not considered part of the Trust's 
performance for the year.
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of financial position as at
31 March 2015

31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Note £000s £000s £000s £000s
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 14 508,331 480,399 508,331 480,399
Intangible assets 15 433 833 433 833
Other investments - charitable 17 10,245 9,673
Total non-current assets 508,764 481,232 519,009 490,905
Current assets:
Inventories 20 7,919 6,273 7,919 6,273
Trade and other receivables 21.1 41,055 35,270 41,067 35,544
Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,041 43,958 2,122 44,766
Sub-total current assets 50,015 85,501 51,108 86,583
Non-current assets held for sale 23 31,705 0 31,705 0
Total current assets 81,720 85,501 82,813 86,583
Total assets 590,484 566,733 601,822 577,488

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 (78,820) (73,003) (78,991) (73,095)
Other liabilities 25 (77) (77) (77) (77)
Provisions 28 (5,459) (5,607) (5,459) (5,607)
Borrowings 26 (10,486) (6,970) (10,486) (6,970)
DH revenue support loan 26 (900) (900) (900) (900)
DH capital loan 26 (520) (520) (520) (520)
Total current liabilities (96,262) (87,077) (96,433) (87,169)
Net current assets/(liabilities) (14,542) (1,576) (13,620) (586)
Total assets less current liablilities 494,222 479,656 505,389 490,319

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 (3,701) (4,055) (3,701) (4,055)
Other liabilities 25 (2,281) (2,358) (2,281) (2,358)
Provisions 28 (1,412) (1,683) (1,412) (1,683)
Borrowings 26 (416,082) (424,004) (416,082) (424,004)
DH revenue support loan 26 (9,890) (10,790) (9,890) (10,790)
DH capital loan 26 (9,620) (10,140) (9,620) (10,140)
Total non-current liabilities (442,986) (453,030) (442,986) (453,030)
Total assets employed: 51,236 26,626 62,403 37,289

Financed by:
 
Public Dividend Capital 241,305 213,810 241,305 213,810
Retained earnings (269,562) (242,871) (269,562) (242,871)
Revaluation reserve 79,493 55,687 79,493 55,687
Charitable Funds reserve 11,167 10,663
Total taxpayers' equity: 51,236 26,626 62,403 37,289

     
The notes on pages 5 to 35 form part of this account.

The financial statements on pages 1 to 35 were approved by the Board on 4 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive: Date:

Trust Group
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of changes in taxpayers' equity
For the year ending 31 March 2015

Public 
Dividend 

Capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 26,626
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (27,377) (27,377)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 
equipment 24,492 24,492
Transfers between reserves 0 686 (686) 0
Reclassification adjustments
New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 35,995 35,995
New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year (8,500) (8,500)
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 27,495 (26,691) 23,806 24,610
Balance at 31 March 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 51,236

Balance at 1 April 2013 211,744 (133,742) 83,975 161,977
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 
March 2014
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (159,387) (159,387)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 0 8,876 8,876
Transfers between reserves 37,389 (37,389) 0
Transfers under modified absorption accounting 13,094 0 13,094
Reclassification adjustments
New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 2,044 2,044
New PDC received/(repaid) - PCTs and SHAs legacy 
items paid for by DH 22 22
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 2,066 (108,904) (28,513) (135,351)
Transfers between reserves in respect of modified 
absorption accounting 

0 (225) 225 0

Balance at 31 March 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 26,626

Public 
Dividend 

Capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Charitable 
funds 

reserve

Total 
reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 10,663 37,289
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (27,377) 592 (26,785)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 
equipment 24,492 0 24,492
Fund balances transferred to other NHS charities (88) (88)
Transfers between reserves 686 (686) 0 0
Reclassification adjustments 0 0
New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 35,995 0 35,995
New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year (8,500) 0 (8,500)
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 27,495 (26,691) 23,806 504 25,114
Balance at 31 March 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 11,167 62,403

Balance at 1 April 2013 211,744 (133,742) 83,975 10,490 172,467
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 
March 2014
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (159,387) 173 (159,214)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 0 8,876 0 8,876
Transfers between reserves 37,389 (37,389) 0 0
Transfers under modified absorption accounting 13,094 0 0 13,094
Reclassification adjustments 0
New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 2,044 0 2,044
New PDC received/(repaid) - PCTs and SHAs legacy 
items paid for by DH

22 0 22

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 2,066 (108,904) (28,513) 173 (135,178)
Transfers between reserves in respect of modified 
absorption accounting

(225) 225 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 10,663 37,289

Trust

Group
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
Note £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) 5,521 (156,013) 5,244 (156,013)
Depreciation and amortisation 17,341 21,076 17,341 21,076
Impairments and reversals 7,486 163,393 7,486 163,393
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 (178) 0 (178)
Interest paid (29,851) (1,069) (29,851) (1,069)
Dividend paid (303) (793) (303) (793)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,646) 1,875 (1,646) 1,875
Increase in trade and other receivables (5,628) (13,231) (5,628) (13,231)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (3,407) 15,906 (3,407) 15,906
(Increase)/decrease in other current liabilities (77) 0 (77) 0
Provisions utilised (2,116) (1,554) (2,116) (1,554)
Increase in movement in non cash provisions 1,570 3,767 1,570 3,767
NHS Charitable Funds - net adjustments for working capital movements, non-cash 
transactions and non-operating cash flows 277 (125)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (11,110) 33,179 (11,110) 33,054

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 76 103 76 103
Payments for property, plant and equipment (53,552) (29,440) (53,552) (29,440)
Payments for intangible assets 0 (181) 0 (181)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 0 450 0 450
NHS Charitable Funds - net cash flows relating to investing activities 273 355
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (53,476) (29,068) (53,203) (28,713)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) before financing (64,586) 4,111 (64,313) 4,341

Cash flows from financing activities
Gross temporary and permanent PDC received 35,995 2,093 35,995 2,093
Gross temporary and permanent PDC repaid (8,500) (27) (8,500) (27)
Loans repaid to DH - capital investment loans repayment of principal (520) (520) (520) (520)
Loans repaid to DH - working capital loans/revenue support loans (900) (900) (900) (900)
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on-SoFP PFI (4,406) 0 (4,406) 0
Net cash inflow from financing activities 21,669 646 21,669 646

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (42,917) 4,757 (42,644) 4,987

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdraft) at beginning of the period 43,958 39,201 44,766 39,779
Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdraft) at year end 22 1,041 43,958 2,122 44,766

GroupTrust
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the 
accounting requirements of the Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed 
with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the DH Group Manual for Accounts 2014-15 issued by the Department of Health.  The accounting 
policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they 
are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the 
Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting 
policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the 
trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by 
the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered 
material in relation to the accounts.  

1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities.

IAS 1 requires the Trust to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, its ability to continue as a 
going concern. In the context of non-trading entities in the public sector the anticipated continuation of the 
provision of a service in the future is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The financial 
statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are plans for, or no realistic 
alternative other than, the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity 
within the public sector.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. For further details please see note 36.1.

1.2 Charitable Funds
Under the provisions of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements , those Charitable Funds that fall 
under common control with NHS bodies are consolidated within the entity's financial statements. The 
Trust has consolidated certain funds of the North Bristol NHS Charitable Funds into these financial 
statements, as these funds are under the control of North Bristol NHS Trust.  This is because the Trustee 
of the charity is the North Bristol NHS Trust, whose Board members represent the Trustee and because 
the Trust benefits from the activities of these funds.  One of the funds of the charity has been excluded 
from the consolidation as the fund does not benefit the Trust.

1.3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In the application of the Trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from those 
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.3.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management 
has made in the process of applying the NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

An assessment of the Trust's Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme has been made and it has been 
determined that the PFI scheme in respect of the main hospital building should be accounted for as an on 
Statement of Financial Position asset under IFRIC 12. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.  For further details of the judgements 
applied please see note 36.1.

1.3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Modern equivalent asset valuation of property - as detailed in note 1.6 items of property are periodically 
revalued to ensure that their book values are not materially different from their fair values. During the year the 
District Valuation Service provided the Trust with a valuation of its land and building assets and an assessment 
of their remaining useful economic lives.  Specialised assets are valued on a depreciated replacement cost 
basis using hypothetical modern equivalent assets.  Future revaluations may result in further material changes 
to the carrying values of non-current assets. 

PFI  - as noted above, the Trust's PFI scheme has been accounted for as an on Statement of Financial Position 
asset under IFRIC 12, which entails the recognition of a corresponding liability.  The Trust pays a unitary 
charge to the operator of the PFI scheme each year as described in notes 1.12 and 30.  The split of the unitary 
payment into the amounts to be recognised as service charges, payments of principal and interest and 
payments for component replacements are estimated through the use of standard models and information from 
the operator. 

1.4 Revenue  

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.  This includes income from Education and Training.  
The main source of revenue for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services.  Revenue relating to 
patient care spells that are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the 
basis of length of stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay.

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is 
deferred.

The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of 
treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an 
insurer.  The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and 
Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is 
measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for 
unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

Legacy income is accounted for once the receipt of the legacy becomes reasonably certain and it can be 
quantified. This will be once confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate that 
payment of the legacy will be made or property transferred and once any conditions attached to the legacy 
have been fulfilled.

1.5 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is 
received from employees. The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is 
recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the 
following period.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The scheme is an 
unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under 
the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that 
would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the 
scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the 
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. 
The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Trust commits itself to 
the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

1.6 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. 
They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the Trust;
● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

- Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, 
where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to
have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
- Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their 
individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, 
the components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring 
or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially 
different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined 
as follows:
● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use
● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern 
equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an 
alternative site can be valued.  

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any 
impairment loss.  Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses 
immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation 
commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at current cost as estimated by use of an indexation factor. This factor has 
been derived from the Government's regularly published GDP deflator figures. This information can be 
expected to be available for the foreseable future and so the Trust will continue with the current basis of 
valuation.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment 
for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the 
extent of the decrease previously charged there.  A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of 
economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the 
extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses 
that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses 
recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable 
cost is capitalised.  Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the 
expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to 
operating expenses.

1.8 Intangible assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately 
from the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the 
Trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to the 
operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, 
plant and equipment.  Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for example application 
software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as 
an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and 
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential
● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and 
sell or use it
● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure 
incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-generated intangible 
asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, 
where no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for 
relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.  Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to 
reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological advances.  

1.9 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and 
equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a 
manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated 
useful life of an asset is the period over which the  Trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service 
potential from the asset. This is specific to the  Trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset 
itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes 
recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives 

At each reporting period end, the Trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or 
intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its 
amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised 
as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for 
the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic 
benefit should be taken to expenditure.  Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount 
that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of the impairment 
loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the 
revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed 
Expenditure (AME).  This is necessary to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.  DEL limits are set in 
the Spending Review and Departments may not exceed the limits that they have been set.
AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget. 
Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above 
forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean departments do 
not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial year, any expected increases in 
AME require Treasury approval.

1.10 Donated assets

Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to Income. 
They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on 
revaluations, impairments and sales are as described above for purchased assets.  Deferred income is 
recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.11 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when the 
sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and management is 
committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from 
the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the 
carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  On disposal, the balance for 
the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held 
for sale.  Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-
recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.12 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. The Trust is not a party to any 
finance leases.

The Trust as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease 
incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually 
assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases. 

The NHS trust as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.13 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes where the
government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the 
end of the arrangement as service concession arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of 
IFRIC 12. The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of property, plant and equipment together 
with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation 
techniques where necessary:
a)      Payment for the fair value of services received;
b)      Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and

c)       Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within 
‘operating expenses’.

PFI asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are 
measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. The PFI asset has been valued 
net of VAT to reflect the VAT recovery status of the scheme.   Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair 
value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the Trust’s approach for each relevant class of asset in 
accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the 
same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in 
accordance with IAS 17. 

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease 
liability for the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the 
annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance 
lease. In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead 
treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in 
respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are 
capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they 
are provided by the operator and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each 
year of the contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle 
component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is 
recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the 
difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the 
amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance 
is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the shorter of the remaining 
contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the Trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and 
equipment in the Trust’s Statement of Financial Position.

Other assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator
On initial recognition of the asset, the difference between the fair value of the asset and the initial liability is 
recognised as deferred income, representing the future service potential to be received by the Trust through 
the asset being made available to third party users.

The balance is subsequently released to operating income over the life of the concession on a straight-line 
basis.

1.14 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula.  
This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.  

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not 
more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of 
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in 
value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.16 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.  The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of -1.5% for 
cashflows occuring between 0 and 5 years, -1.05% for cash flows occuring in more than 5 years but less 
than 10 years and 2.2% for cash flows occuring in more than 10 years in real terms (1.3% for employee early
departure obligations).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 
a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the 
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by 
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.  The measurement of a 
restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those 
amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of 
the entity.

1.17 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual 
contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged 
to expenditure.  Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal 
liability remains with the Trust.  The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on 
behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 28. 

1.18 Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.  Both 
are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority 
and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising.  The annual membership contributions, 
and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when 
they become due.

1.19 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a 
payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
NHS trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.20 Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the 
case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered.  Financial assets are 
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and 
loss; held to maturity investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.  The 
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of 
initial recognition. The Trust holds only the following two types of financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Equity investments are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the surplus 
or deficit for the year.  The net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned on the financial asset. Fair value 
is determined by reference to the market price for each equity instrument.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not 
quoted in an active market.  After initial recognition, they are measured at cost less any impairment.  

1.21 Financial liabilities  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Trust becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or 
services have been received.  Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, 
that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost.  Otherwise, financial liabilities are 
initially recognised at fair value.

1.22 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and 
input tax on purchases is not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure 
category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where output tax is charged or input 
VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.23 Foreign currencies
The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling.  Transactions denominated in a 
foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.  At 
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
spot exchange rate on 31 March.  Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in 
the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.24 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the 
accounts since the trust has no beneficial interest in them.  Details of third party assets are given in Note 37 
to the accounts.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.25 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public Dividend Capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the Trust.  At any time the Secretary of State can 
issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust.  PDC is recorded at the value received.  
As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity financial 
instrument.

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as 
public dividend capital dividend.  The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 
3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities (except for donated assets and cash 
balances with the Government Banking Service).  The average carrying amount of assets is calculated as a 
simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.

1.26 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds 
for the health service or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They 
are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments.  They are 
divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals 
basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the Trust not been 
bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.27 Subsidiaries

Material entities over which the Trust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are 
consolidated. The NHS trust has control when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its 
power over another entity. The income and expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and 
cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial statement lines.  
Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not 
aligned with the Trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is not co-terminus.

Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair 
value less costs to sell’.

From 31 March 2014, the Trust has consolidated the results of North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds 
over which it considers it has the power to exercise control in accordance with IFRS10 requirements.

1.28 Research and development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except 
insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably 
be regarded as assured.  Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is 
amortised through the SOCI on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It 
should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as 
depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

1.29 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The Treasury FReM does not require the following standards and interpretations to be applied in 2014-15.  
The application of the standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2014-15, 
were they applied in that year:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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2. Operating segments

2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

Income 2,158 2,083
Expenditure 1,654 1,910
Net assets 11,167 10,663

3.    Income generation activities

2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

Income 3,225 4,669
Full cost 2,291 4,160
Surplus 934 509

The income is generated from the provision of fertility services under the trading name 'Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine'
The financial objective of the service is to generate surpluses to support NHS activity,

4.   Revenue from patient care activities
2014-15 2013-14

£000s £000s

NHS England 144,146 150,052 
Clinical Commissioning Groups 287,874 298,936 
Department of Health 0 0 
NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co) 0 0 
Additional income for delivery of healthcare services 14,000 
Non-NHS: 
      Local authorities 1,463 1,465 
      Private patients 4,427 4,485 
      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 505 291 
      Injury costs recovery 2,600 1,946 
      Other 2,630 2,147 
Total revenue from patient care activities 457,645 459,322 

5.  Other operating revenue
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 10,150 7,549 10,150 7,549
Education, training and research 31,257 30,423 31,257 30,423
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure -non- NHS 183 119 0 0
Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions - Charity 950 178 950 0
Non-patient care services to other bodies 8,909 7,733 8,909 7,733
Income generation 3,074 4,714 3,074 4,714
Charitable income 0 0 1,498 1,495
Other revenue 40,743 31,338 40,743 31,338
Total other operating revenue 95,266 82,054 96,581 83,252

Total operating revenue 552,911 541,376 554,226 542,574

Other revenue includes £17.5m (2013/14: £17.0m) received to offset the costs of transition to the new PFI hospital.  There are no 
other material amounts within this balance.

Trust & Group

Trust Group

The Trust is managed by the Board of Directors, which is made up of executive and non-executive Directors. The non-executive Directors bring 
expertise to the Trust and provide advice and challenge to the executive directors.  The executive Directors have responsibility for the day to 
day running of the Trust.  The Board is therefore considered to be the chief operating decision maker of the Trust.

The Board receives regular reports of the financial performance and financial position of the Trust. These include a Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and a Statement of Financial Position, which are provided on a ‘whole Trust’ basis.  It is therefore considered that the 
Trust has just one reportable segment, a healthcare segment. There are no other segments that constitute 10% or more of the Trust's 
operations. The Trust receives income from a number of healthcare commissioners, which are under the common control of the Department of 
Health. The bodies involved and the respective income levels are disclosed in note 4 to these accounts and the Trust's total income from patien
care and other operating activities is disclosed in notes 4 and 5.

The Group also includes a subsidiary charity which undertakes a number of charitable activities which are healthcare related. The results an
net assets of the Trust are separately reported throughout these accounts.  For the Charity the transactions and balances included in the 
Group's results and Statement of Financial Position are summarised as follows:

The Trust undertakes income generation activities with the aim of achieving profit, which is used in patient care.  The following provides details 
of income generation activity whose full cost exceeded £1m or was otherwise material. This disclosure is required for the Trust only.
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6. Overseas visitors disclosure
2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Income recognised during 2014-15 (invoiced amounts and accruals) 505 291
Cash payments received in-year (re receivables at 31 March 2014) 37 31
Cash payments received in-year (re invoices issued 2014-15) 233 90
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re invoices issued 
2014-15) 235 0
Amounts written off in-year (irrespective of year of recognition) 0 165

7.  Operating expenses
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Services from other NHS trusts 995 1,370 995 1,370
Services from CCGs/NHS England 0 0 0 0
Services from other NHS bodies 128 1,358 128 1,358
Services from NHS foundation trusts 6,767 6,484 6,767 6,484
Total services from NHS bodies 7,890 9,212 7,890 9,212
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 9,765 7,435 9,765 7,435
Trust Chair and non-executive directors 59 58 59 58
Supplies and services - clinical 92,886 90,816 92,886 90,816
Supplies and services - general 9,057 7,663 9,057 7,663
Consultancy services 1,089 1,332 1,089 1,332
Establishment 6,054 5,332 6,054 5,332
Transport 1,075 1,123 1,075 1,123
Service charges - on-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements 2,107 0 2,107 0
Total charges - off-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements 149 0 149 0
Business rates paid to local authorities 4,311 1,903 4,311 1,903
Premises 24,990 23,381 24,990 23,381
Hospitality 5 6 5 6
Insurance 823 607 823 607
Legal fees 53 257 53 257
Impairments and reversals of receivables 1,479 (753) 1,479 (753)
Inventories write down 0 34 0 34
Depreciation 16,941 20,700 16,941 20,700
Amortisation 400 376 400 376
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 7,486 163,393 7,486 163,393
Audit fees 114 136 118 140
Clinical negligence 8,135 8,389 8,135 8,389
Research and development (excluding staff costs) 2,488 2,100 2,488 2,100
Education and training 2,597 2,455 2,597 2,455
Change in discount rate 97 (9) 97 (9)
Charitable expenditure 0 0 1,650 1,117
Other 1,230 4,830 1,230 4,830
Total operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 201,280 350,776 202,934 351,897

Employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding Board members 344,863 345,270 344,863 345,270
Board members 1,247 1,343 1,247 1,343
Total employee benefits 346,110 346,613 346,110 346,613

Total operating expenses 547,390 697,389 549,044 698,510

Trust & Group

Trust Group
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8 Operating leases

The Trust has leased various items of equipment throughout the year to support the provision of healthcare.

8.1 Trust & Group as lessee 2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 1,508 1,026
Total 1,508 1,026
Payable:
No later than one year 1,315 50
Between one and five years 1,564 2,091
After five years 0 0
Total 2,879 2,141

8.2 Trust & Group as lessor

9 Employee benefits and staff numbers

9.1 Employee benefits
All Group employees are employed by the Trust. Staff time spent on charitable activities is recharged to the Charity.

Total
Permanently 

employed Other
£000s £000s £000s

Employee benefits - gross expenditure
Salaries and wages 295,815 256,621 39,194 
Social security costs 19,459 19,459 0 
Employer contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 31,284 31,284 0 
Termination benefits 483 483 0 
Total employee benefits 347,041 307,847 39,194 

Employee costs capitalised 931 435 496 
Gross employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 346,110 307,412 38,698 

Employee benefits - gross expenditure 2013-14 Total
Permanently 

employed Other
£000s £000s £000s

Salaries and wages 295,070 262,560 32,510 
Social security costs 19,009 19,009 0 
Employer contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 32,076 32,076 0 
Other pension costs 7 7 0 
Termination benefits 1,235 1,235 0 
Total employee benefits 347,397 314,887 32,510 

Employee costs capitalised 784 292 492 
Gross employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 346,613 314,595 32,018 

Trust & Group
2014-15

The Trust acts as a lessor to the University of Bristol, which occupies accommodation within the Trust's Learning and Research 
Building.  The University made a financial contribution to the development of the building in the financial year 2009-10. This 
contribution is recorded as deferred income and is released to income over the life of the lease agreement which is 41 years 
beginning in the final quarter of 2009-10.  The income recognised in 2014-15 is £110,000 (2013-14 £104,000).
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9.2 Staff numbers

2013-14

Total
Permanently 

employed Other Total
Number Number Number Number

Average staff numbers
Medical and dental 853 836 17 836 
Administration and estates 1,620 1,487 133 1,722 
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 1,630 1,159 471 1,644 
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 2,520 2,263 257 2,613 
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 1,373 1,350 23 1,455 
Total 7,996 7,095 901 8,270 

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 22 11 11 10 

9.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2014-15 2013-14
Number Number

Total days lost 74,040 66,992
Total staff years 7,316 7,420
Average working days lost 10.12 9.03

2014-15 2013-14
Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 12 17 

£000s £000s
Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 859 1,144 

9.4 Exit packages agreed in 2014-15

2014-15 2013-14

Exit package cost band (including any special payment element)

Number of 
compulsory 
redundancie

s

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages by 

cost band

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number 
of exit 

packages by 
cost band

Number Number Number Number Number Number
Less than £10,000 2 0 2 2 4 6
£10,000-£25,000 2 0 2 1 6 7
£25,001-£50,000 2 0 2 1 11 12
£50,001-£100,000 5 0 5 6 1 7
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 1 0 1
Total number of exit packages by type (total cost 11 0 11 11 22 33
Total resource cost (£s) 483,268 0 483,268 637,457 597,402 1,234,859

9.5 Exit packages - other departures analysis

Agreements

Total value 
of 

agreements Agreements
Total value of 

agreements
Number £000s Number £000s

0 0 22 597
Total 0 0 22 597

Trust & Group
2014-15

Trust & Group

Trust & Group

The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year.  Note: the expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full i
a previous period. As single exit packages can be made up of several components each of which will be counted separately in this note, the total number above will not necessarily 
match the total numbers in Note 9.4 which will be the number of individuals.

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Scheme.  Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the year of departure

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year.  Note: The expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in 
a previous period.

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs

2014-15 2013-14
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9.6 Pension costs 

The Trust's subsidiary charity has no employees and hence incurs no pension costs. Amounts relating to pension costs are 
recharged to the charity to reflect the time spent by Trust staff on the affairs of the charity.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  Details of the benefits payable under 
these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  The scheme is an unfunded, 
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary 
of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their 
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution 
scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for 
the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would 
be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations 
shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises 
an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the 
current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of 
the scheme liability as at 31 March 2015, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2014, updated to 31 March 2015 with summary 
global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant 
FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual 
NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS 
Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into 
account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 
2012.

The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, 
and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed 
appropriate

c) Scheme provisions 
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is 
not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits 
can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the 
last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of 
membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon 
total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, 
up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on 
changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.  From 2011-12 the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) has been used and replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI). 

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of 
fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in 
service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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10 Better Payment Practice Code

10.1 Measure of compliance 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14
Number £000s Number £000s

Non-NHS payables
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 102,902 259,030 105,054 171,420
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 88,973 222,224 96,660 146,884
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 86.46% 85.79% 92.01% 85.69%

NHS payables
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 2,253 43,031 2,894 28,351
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 1,218 33,615 1,927 22,168
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 54.06% 78.12% 66.59% 78.19%

10.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

There were no amounts paid to suppliers under this Act (2014: nil).

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, 
whichever is later.

The Trust is subject to the requirements of the Better Payment Practice Code.  As such the details below apply to the Trust's accounts only.
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14.1 Property, plant and equipment

2014-15

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2014 57,298 359,457 1,919 23,517 96,104 2,746 48,666 9,513 599,220
Additions of assets under construction 41,052 41,052
Additions purchased 0 0 0 11,137 0 4,615 2,035 17,787
Additions - purchases from cash donations 0 0 0 950 0 0 0 0 950
Reclassifications 6,432 13,458 0 (29,709) 9,819 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications  as held for sale and reversals (30,997) 0 (925) 0 0 0 0 0 (31,922)
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (34,307) (1,471) (9,724) (2,317) (47,819)
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 9,647 13,266 989 0 1,316 29 0 150 25,397
Adjustment to eliminate depreciation on revaluation 0 (12,897) (108) 0 0 0 0 0 (13,005)
At 31 March 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 35,810 84,069 1,304 43,557 9,381 591,660

Depreciation
At 1 April 2014 0 0 0 2,432 70,210 2,460 37,894 5,825 118,821
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 (34,307) (1,471) (9,724) (2,317) (47,819)
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 809 21 0 75 905
Impairments 0 15,250 0 0 1,946 0 0 109 17,305
Reversal of impairments 0 (9,819) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9,819)
Charged during the year 0 7,466 108 5,429 98 3,233 607 16,941
Adjustment to eliminate depreciation on revaluation 0 (12,897) (108) 0 0 0 0 0 (13,005)
At 31 March 2015 0 0 0 2,432 44,087 1,108 31,403 4,299 83,329
Net book value at 31 March 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 33,378 39,982 196 12,154 5,082 508,331

Asset financing:
Owned - purchased 42,380 75,989 1,851 33,378 28,680 196 12,144 5,077 199,695
Owned - donated 0 3,990 24 0 2,286 0 10 5 6,315
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 293,305 0 0 9,016 0 0 0 302,321
Total at 31 March 2015 42,380 373,284 1,875 33,378 39,982 196 12,154 5,082 508,331

Revaluation reserve balance for property, plant & equipment

Land Buildings Dwellings Assets under 
construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1 April 2014 38,192 15,998 1,357 0 140 0 0 0 55,687
Movements 9,647 13,266 989 0 507 8 0 75 24,492
At 31 March 2015 47,839 29,264 2,346 0 647 8 0 75 80,179

Additions to assets under construction in 2014-15
£000's

Buildings excl dwellings 41,052
Balance as at 31 March 2015 41,052

Trust & Group
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14.2 Property, plant and equipment prior-year

2013-14

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construction & 

payments on 
account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2013 68,218 191,236 3,977 8,191 87,750 2,612 42,878 6,538 411,400
Transfers under modified absorption accounting - PCTs 
& SHAs 1,950 9,778 0 0 1,323 0 70 111 13,232
Additions of assets under construction 17,423 17,423
Additions purchased 0 3,929 0 4,899 74 4,060 2,709 15,671
Additions - urchases from cash donations & government 
grants 0 16 0 0 114 0 14 5 149
Additions leased 0 422,927 0 0 0 0 0 422,927
Reclassifications 0 453 0 (2,097) 0 0 1,644 0 0
Disposals other than for sale (150) (300) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (450)
Revaluation 320 8,072 0 0 2,018 60 0 150 10,620
Adjustment to eliminate depreciation on revaluation (13,040) (276,654) (2,058) 0 0 0 0 0 (291,752)
At 31 March 2014 57,298 359,457 1,919 23,517 96,104 2,746 48,666 9,513 599,220

Depreciation
At 1 April 2013 13,040 101,948 1,897 2,418 63,345 2,312 34,312 5,464 224,736
Revaluation 0 0 0 1,559 55 0 130 1,744
Impairments/negative indexation charged to operating 
expenses 0 162,064 0 14 558 0 757 0 163,393
Charged during the year 0 12,642 161 4,748 93 2,825 231 20,700
Adjustment to eliminate depreciation on revaluation (13,040) (276,654) (2,058) (291,752)
At 31 March 2014 0 0 0 2,432 70,210 2,460 37,894 5,825 118,821
Net book value at 31 March 2014 57,298 359,457 1,919 21,085 25,894 286 10,772 3,688 480,399

Asset financing:
Owned - purchased 57,298 70,487 1,894 21,085 22,846 286 10,750 3,682 188,328
Owned - donated 0 3,187 25 0 3,048 0 22 6 6,288
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 285,783 0 0 0 0 0 0 285,783
Total at 31 March 2014 57,298 359,457 1,919 21,085 25,894 286 10,772 3,688 480,399

Trust & Group
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14.3  Property, plant and equipment

Remaining economic lives of non-current assets Max life
Years

Buildings excl dwellings 84
Dwellings 29
Plant & machinery 15
Transport equipment 7
Information technology 10
Furniture & fittings 10

15.1 Intangible non-current assets

2014-15
Computer 

licenses
Total 

£000's £000's
At 1 April 2014 4,391 4,391
Additions purchased 0 0
At 31 March 2015 4,391 4,391

Amortisation
At 1 April 2014 3,558 3,558
Charged during the year 400 400
At 31 March 2015 3,958 3,958
Net book value at 31 March 2015 433 433

Asset financing: net book value at 31 March 2015 comprises:
Purchased 412 412
Donated 21 21
Total at 31 March 2015 433 433

15.2 Intangible non-current assets prior year

2013-14
Computer 

licenses
Total 

£000s £000s
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2013 4,182 4,182
Additions - purchased 181 181
Additions - donated 28 28
At 31 March 2014 4,391 4,391

Amortisation
At 1 April 2013 3,182 3,182
Charged during the year 376 376
At 31 March 2014 3,558 3,558

Net book value at 31 March 2014 833 833

Net book value at 31 March 2014 comprises:
Purchased 803 803
Donated 33 33
Total at 31 March 2014 836 836

The Trust's donated assets were donated by the North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds and also by charities external to the 
Trust, including £950,000 from Macmillan in 2014/15..

2013-14
Trust & Group

2014-15
Trust & Group

The district valuer, who is a member of the RICS and is independent of the Trust, undertook a full valuation of the Trust's land 
and buildings as at 31 March 2015. The valuations were carried out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation 
Manual in so far as these terms are consistent with the agreed requirements of the Department of Health and Treasury.  The 
valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Trust's accounting policy (see note 1) and on a consistent basis with 
valuations in previous periods.

The valuation has contributed to an impairment charge in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of £7,486,000  There have 
also been upwards valuations to land, buildings and dwellings of £23,902,000 as a result of the District Valuer's valuation.

As recorded in note 8.2 the Trust acts as lessor in an arrangement with the University of Bristol by which the latter occupies 
space within the Trust's Learning and Research Building. Due to the nature of the arrangement it is not possible to split the 
value of the building between Trust and University elements.
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16  Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2014-15

Total

Property 
plant and 

equipment
£000s £000s

Impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Other 7,486 7,486
Changes in market price 0 0
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 7,486 7,486

Total impairments of property, plant and equipment charged to SoCI 7,486 7,486

17 Other investments - charitable
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000s £000s
At fair value 
Balance at 1 April 9,673 9,932 
Acquisitions at cost 1,744 1,679 
Disposals at carrying value (1,709) (1,793)
Net gain on revaluation 537 (145)

Balance at 31 March 10,245 9,673 

All fixed asset investments are held by the charitable subsidiary. The Trust has no fixed asset investments.

18  Commitments
18.1 Capital commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s

Property, plant and equipment 15,647 19,539
Total 15,647 19,539

18.2 Other financial commitments 

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s

Not later than one year 2,933 2,850
Later than one year and not later than five year 11,200 5,056
Later than five years 0 0
Total 14,133 7,906

19 Intra-government and other balances

This disclosure is required for the Trust only.

Current 
receivables

Current 
payables

Non-
current 

payables
£000s £000s £000s

Balances with other central government bodies 1,375 129 0
Balances with NHS bodies inside the Departmental Group 18,332 11,939 19,510
Balances with bodies external to government 20,275 77,684 422,064
At 31 March 2015 39,982 89,752 441,574
Prior period:
Balances with other central government bodies 19,617 4,971 0
Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 23 0 0
Balances with NHS trusts & foundation trusts 3,744 1,948 0
Balances with bodies external to government 11,886 66,084 4,055
At 31 March 2014 35,270 73,003 4,055

Trust & Group

The Trust has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other service concession 
arrangements), for a managed pathology service. The payments to which the Trust is committed are as follows:

Group

Trust & Group

Trust & Group
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20 Inventories
Drugs Consumables Energy Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 1,814 4,186 273 6,273
Additions 38,557 18,850 0 57,407
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (38,285) (17,406) (70) (55,761)
Balance at 31 March 2015 2,086 5,630 203 7,919

21.1  Trade and other receivables
31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS receivables - revenue 18,332 23,384 18,332 23,384
Non-NHS receivables - revenue 13,861 4,984 13,873 5,258
Non-NHS receivables - capital 217 60 217 60
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 1,829 2,285 1,829 2,285
PDC dividend prepaid to DH 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (3,622) (2,143) (3,622) (2,143)
VAT 1,459 806 1,459 806
Other receivables 8,979 5,894 8,979 5,894
Total 41,055 35,270 41,067 35,544

Included in NHS receivables are prepaid pension contributions: 0

21.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

By up to three months 3,449 5,666
By three to six months 957 6,600
By more than six months 2,085 1,713
Total 6,491 13,979

21.3  Provision for impairment of receivables
2014-15 2013-14

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 (2,143) (3,062)
Amount written off during the year 0 166
(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired (1,479) 753
Balance at 31 March 2015 (3,622) (2,143)

22 Cash and cash equivalents
31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Opening balance 43,958 39,201 44,766 39,779
Net change in year (42,917) 4,757 (42,644) 4,987
Closing balance 1,041 43,958 2,122 44,766

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service 1,015 43,933 1,015 43,933
Commercial banks 0 0 1,081 808
Cash in hand 26 25 26 25
Cash and cash equivalents as in statements of financial 
position and cash flows 1,041 43,958 2,122 44,766

Patients' money held by the Trust not included above 16 16 16 16

Trust Group

Trust & Group

The receivables impaired are due from companies, insurance groups  and individuals. As a result of the contacts that the Trust debt collection 
team have had with certain debtors or their representatives some debts have been impaired as it was felt that the amounts would not be 
received in full.  Debt collection continues in all cases.

The great majority of trade is with NHS commissioners.  As they are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit 
scoring of them is considered necessary.  Other non-impaired debtors are mostly receivable from other Government-funded public sector 
bodies (such as Welsh NHS bodies, universities and local authorities).  As such there are few concerns with regards to their creditworthiness.

Trust Group

Trust & Group

Trust & Group
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23  Non-current assets held for sale
Land Buildings, 

excl. 
dwellings

Total

£000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0 0
Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 30,997 925 31,922
Less assets sold in the year (217) 0 (217)

Balance at 31 March 2015 30,780 925 31,705

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2015 0 0 0

Balance at 1 April 2013 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2014 0 0 0

Assets held for sale consists of two unrelated sites, the redundant  Frenchay Hospital site and the Buckingham Gardens properties.

24 Trade and other payables

31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS payables - revenue 10,438 6,919 0 0
Non-NHS payables - revenue 11,837 17,388 0 1,899
Non-NHS payables - capital 13,405 7,615 372 383
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 42,410 34,164 3,329 1,773
Social security costs 59 3,159
PDC dividend payable to DH 81 0
Tax 70 3,452
Payments received on account 0 0 0 0
Other 520 306 0 0
Total 78,820 73,003 3,701 4,055

Total payables (current and non-current) 82,521 77,058

There are no amounts included above to buy out the liability for early retirements over 5 years.

31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS payables - revenue 10,438 6,919 0 0
Non-NHS payables - revenue 12,008 17,480 0 1,899
Non-NHS payables - capital 13,405 7,615 372 383
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 42,410 34,164 3,329 1,773
Social security costs 59 3,159
PDC dividend payable to DH 81 0
Tax 70 3,452
Payments received on account 0 0 0 0
Other 520 306 0 0
Total 78,991 73,095 3,701 4,055

Total payables (current and non-current) 82,692 77,150

Current Non-current

Current Non-current

Trust & Group

The Frenchay Hospital site is expected to be sold within the next 6 months, with negotiations at an advanced stage. 
The site is no longer required for the provision of medical care following the Trust's move to the state of the art Brunel hospital at the Southmead 
Campus. The site was transferred to non-current assets held for resale at its latest valuation from the District Valuer.

The Buckingham Gardens properties consists of 3 lots, one of which was sold prior to the 31 March 2015, and the remaining two were sold in April 2015. 
The property was transferred to non current assets at its latest value.

Trust

Group
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25 Other liabilities

31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s

PFI deferred credit 77 77 2,281 2,358
Total 77 77 2,281 2,358

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 2,358 2,435

26 Borrowings

31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Loans from Department of Health 1,420 1,420 19,510 20,930
PFI liabilities:
     Main liability 10,486 6,970 416,082 424,004
Total 11,906 8,390 435,592 444,934

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 447,498 453,324

Borrowings / loans - repayment of principal falling due in:
31 March 2015

DH Other Total
£000s £000s £000s

0-1 Years 1,420 10,486 11,906
1 - 2 Years 1,420 9,592 11,012
2 - 5 Years 4,260 26,660 30,920
Over 5 Years 13,830 379,830 393,660
TOTAL 20,930 426,568 447,498

27  Deferred revenue

31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance at 1 April 2014 9,144 5,011 1,773 1,905
Deferred revenue addition 0 5,079 1,540 0
Transfer of deferred revenue (5,363) (946) 2,061 (132)
Current deferred income at 31 March 2015 3,781 9,144 5,374 1,773

Total deferred income (current and non-current) 9,155 10,917

Trust & Group

Current Non-current

Current Non-current

Trust & Group

Current Non-current
Trust & Group

The Trust is in receipt of two DH loans as follows:
- £52m which was drawn down on 22 March 2007. The loan is unsecured and is repayable in instalments over 20 years. A fixed rate of 
interest of 5.05% applies to this loan.
- £13m which was drawn down in two tranches on 15 September 2009 and 15 December 2009. The loan is unsecured and is repayable in 
instalments over 25 years. A fixed rate of interest of 4.02% applies to this loan.
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28   Provisions

Total
Early 

departure 
costs

Legal claims Restructuring Other

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2014 7,290 1,661 217 2,119 3,293
Arising during the year 1,570 0 0 0 1,570
Utilised during the year (610) (127) 0 (483) 0
Transfer to accruals (1,506) 0 0 (1,506) 0
Unwinding of discount 30 30 0 0 0
Change in discount rate 97 97 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2015 6,871 1,661 217 130 4,863

Expected timing of cash flows:
No later than one year 5,459 249 217 130 4,863
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,412 1,412 0 0 0
Later than five years 0 0 0 0 0

Amount included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of clinical negligence liabilities:
£000's

As at 31 March 2015 99,929
As at 31 March 2014 85,428

29 Contingencies
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000s £000s
Contingent liabilities
Other (84) (71)
Net value of contingent liabilities (84) (71)

Trust & Group

Trust & Group

The legal claims provision relates to insurance excesses on public liability claims against the Trust. The provision is based on standard excess costs per 
claim, unless the NHS Litigation Authoirity has advised the Trust that the excess will be lower.
The early departure costs provision is for the remaining estimated enhanced pension costs due in relation to staff taking early retirements before 6 March 
1995. Actuarial calculations of future pension costs have been provided by the NHS Pensions Agency. Since 1995 all such costs are charged to operating 
expenses in full in the year they arise.

The restructuring provision relates to potential redundancy costs arising from departmental restructurings.  The outcome of the restructuring process is the 
subject of ongoing consultation, the conclusion of which will determine the final cost. The current provision is the Trust's best estimate of this cost at 31 March 
2015.
Other provisions relate to disputes with various contractors, the outcome of which is uncertain.
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Trust & Group

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts.
2014-15 2013-14

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI £000s £000s

Total charge to operating expenses in year - off SoFP PFI 149 752
Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 2,107 0
Total 2,256 752

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI
No later than one year 6,138 6,938
Later than one year, no later than five years 25,402 25,360
Later than five years 232,473 243,382
Total 264,013 275,680

The prior year figures have been amended to ensure comparability with the current year figures in the maturity analysis above.

The estimated annual payments in future years are not expected to be materially different from those which the
Trust is committed to make during the next year.  

Estimated capital value of project - off SOFP PFI 2,800 4,500

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

No later than one year 37,194 32,084
Later than one year, no later than five years 136,059 139,988
Later than five years 753,119 786,724
Subtotal 926,372 958,796
Less: Interest Element (499,804) (527,822)
Total 426,568 430,974

Present value imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts 2014-15 2013-14
analysed by when PFI payments are due £000s £000s
No later than one year 10,486 6,970
Later than one year, no later than five years 36,252 38,056
Later than five years 379,830 385,948
Total 426,568 430,974

Number of on SOFP PFI contracts
Total number of on SOFP PFI contracts 1
Number of on SOFP PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 1

Present value imputed "finance lease" obligations for off SOFP PFI contracts 2014-15 2013-14
analysed by when PFI payments are due £000s £000s
No later than one year 149 291
Later than one year, no later than five years 596 550
Later than five years 633 722
Total 1,378 1,563

Number of off SOFP PFI Contracts
Total number of off SOFP PFI contracts 1
Number of off SOFP PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 0

30  PFI - additional information
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PFI schemes deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position

Brunel Hospital  and Beaufort Multi-Storey Car Park

Burden Institute (Burden)

PFI schemes deemed to be off Statement of Financial Position

Burden Institute (Burden)/Brain Rehabilitation Unit (BIRU)

31  Impact of IFRS treatment - current year
The information below is required by the Department of Heath for budget reconciliation purposes. It relates to the Trust only.

2014-15 2013-14
Revenue costs of IFRS: arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g. PFI / LIFT) £000s £000s
Depreciation charges 4,241 78
Interest expense 31,860 1,026
Impairment charge - AME (9,800) 143,343
Impairment charge - DEL 0 0
Other expenditure 2,107 0
Revenue receivable from subleasing 0 0
Impact on PDC dividend payable 0 (2,631)
Total IFRS expenditure (IFRIC12) 28,408 141,816
Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of any sublease revenue) (37,790) 0
Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) (9,382) 141,816

Capital consequences of IFRS : PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure 2014-15 0 422,927
UK GAAP capital expenditure 2014-15 (Reversionary Interest) 6,434 0

The estimated capital value of the scheme is £2,000,000 and a further £800,000 was incurred for enabling works to BIRU. Crestacare constructed a 
25 bed brain injury rehabilitation unit and a separate private nursing home (collectively known as BIRU), as well as constructing accommodation for 
neuro psychiatry services and the Burden Neurological Institute (collectively known as Burden). The Burden operating agreement is with Crestacare 
Properties Ltd and is a 22 year contract ending in July 2022. The BIRU agreement is principally with Crestacare (GB) Ltd (which is a subsidiary of 
Crestacare plc) and this agreement is to end in June 2024. In the case of Burden the head lease is for a period of 90 years, BIRU is for 99 years. The
Trust's annual commitment to BIRU is currently £149,509.

A contract for the development of the new hospital was signed by the Trust and its PFI partner, The Hospital Company (Southmead) Limited on 25
February 2010.  The purpose of the scheme was to deliver a modern, state of the art hospital facility on the Southmead site, which the Trust moved 
into on 26 March 2014 and which has been fully operational since May 2014. 

Under IFRIC 12, the PFI scheme is deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position, meaning that the hospital is treated as an asset of the Trust, 
being acquired under a finance lease. In addition to the above the PFI partner constructed a multi-storey car park as part of the PFI contract which 
was completed and has been operating since January 2011.  This is accounted for in the same way as the hospital.

A final phase of the project with a capital value of £6,567,000 is due to complete on 28 September 2015.  This will be reflected in the accounts when 
the assets constructed in this phase are ready for use by the Trust.

The total construction cost recognised in the accounts to date in relation to these two assets is £431,250,000.

An annual unitary payment is payable to our PFI partner. This payment is subject to RPI based indexation in common with most other PFI schemes. 
Under the contract, the PFI partner provides a facilities management service along with associated services including pest control and grounds and 
utilities management.  The contractual service charge for 2014/15 was  £6,648,000.  As well as being subject to movements in RPI, this element can 
change as a result of service or performance variations. During the course of 2014/15 the Trust has utilised the contractual mechanisms relating to 
performace to secure reductions in the payments made to the contractor.

Although the financing arrangements of Burden remain off Statement of Financial Position (see below), the building is treated as a non-current asset 
in the Statement of Financial Position as the Trust is expected to purchase the building at the end of the operating contract (currently July 2022). The 
Trust does not currently make any payment for the building as the charges are paid by commissioners within the NHS, and the building was 
constructed at the expense of Crestacare.  For this reason there are no items of expense included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
the non-current asset is treated as a donated asset.
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32 Financial Instruments

32.1 Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

32.2 Financial assets
At ‘fair value 

through profit 
and loss’

Loans and 
receivables

Total

£000s £000s £000s

Receivables - NHS 0 18,332 18,332
Receivables - non-NHS 0 19,436 19,436
Cash at bank and in hand 0 1,041 1,041
Total at 31 March 2015 0 38,809 38,809

Receivables - NHS 0 23,384 23,384
Receivables - non-NHS 0 10,009 10,009
Cash at bank and in hand 0 43,958 43,958
Total at 31 March 2014 0 77,351 77,351

At ‘fair value 
through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 
receivables

Total

£000s £000s £000s

Receivables - NHS 0 18,332 18,332
Receivables - non-NHS 0 19,448 19,448
Cash at bank and in hand 0 2,122 2,122
Other financial assets 10,245 10,245
Total at 31 March 2015 10,245 39,902 50,147

Receivables - NHS 0 23,384 23,384
Receivables - non-NHS 0 10,283 10,283
Cash at bank and in hand 0 43,958 43,958
Other financial assets 9,673 9,673
Total at 31 March 2014 9,673 77,625 87,298

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a 
body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the Trust has with commissioners and the way those 
commissioners are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Also financial instruments play a much more 
limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply.  The Trust has 
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to
change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Trust's standing 
financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors.  Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal auditors.

The Trust and Group are principally domestic organisations with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. 
They have no overseas operations.  Therefore there is low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability.  The borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated 
assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.  The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate 
fluctuations.

Because the majority of the Trust's and Group's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, there is low exposure to credit risk.  The 
maximum exposures as at 31 March 2015 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

The Charity invests funds for growth and income using appointed investment managers.  A Charitable Funds Committee regularly reviews the performance 
of the investments.

The Charity invests funds to maximise investment income, partly in the form of interest and so bears some risk. From a Group perspective this risk is 
insignificant.

The Trust's and Group's operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care commissioners which are financed from resources voted annually by 
Parliament .  The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit.  The Trust and Group are not, therefore, 
exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Trust

Group
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32.3  Financial liabilities
Other Total 
£000s £000s

NHS payables 10,438 10,438
Non-NHS payables 58,497 58,497
Other borrowings 20,930 20,930
PFI & finance lease obligations 426,568 426,568
Total at 31 March 2015 516,433 516,433

NHS payables 6,919 6,919
Non-NHS payables 55,565 55,565
Other borrowings 22,350 22,350
PFI & finance lease obligations 430,974 430,974

Total at 31 March 2014 515,808 515,808

Other Total 
£000s £000s

NHS payables 10,438 10,438
Non-NHS payables 58,668 58,668
Other borrowings 20,930 20,930
PFI & finance lease obligations 426,568 426,568
Total at 31 March 2015 516,604 516,604

NHS payables 6,919 6,919
Non-NHS payables 55,657 55,657

Other borrowings 22,350 22,350

PFI & finance lease obligations 430,974 430,974

Total at 31 March 2014 515,900 515,900

33  Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting period which would affect the figures in these accouns nor which require disclosure.

Trust

Group
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34  Related party transactions

North Bristol NHS Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.

Net income/ 
(expenditure)

Amounts 
owed to 

related party

Amounts due 
from related 

party
£000 £000 £000

CCG cluster 258,169 2,967 8,025
NHS England 163,531 1,350 2,096
English NHS Trusts (1,108) 211 1,280
NHS Litigation Authority (8,135) Nil Nil

35 Losses and special payments

Total value Total number
of cases of cases

£s
Losses 523 2
Special payments 6,333 28
Total losses and special payments 6,856 30

Total value Total number
of cases of cases

£s
Losses 166,361 1
Special payments 9,156 43
Total losses and special payments 175,517 44

The total number of losses cases in 2013-14 and their total value was as follows:

The total number of losses cases in 2014-15 and their total value was as follows:

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year North Bristol NHS Trust has had a significant number of material
transactions with the other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:

In addition, the Trust has had a number of transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies. 
Most of these transactions have been with H M Revenue and Customs, and the NHS Pensions Agency.

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, certain of the trustees for which are also 
members of the Trust Board. 

The Chairman Peter Rillett is a Trustee of St Monica's, with whom the Trust spent £393k during 2014/15.  Non Executive Director Liz
Redfern is a director of Liz Redfern Partnership and an associate of Foresight Partnership. Non Executive Director Andy Willis is an 
Associate of the Kings Fund and the Hay Group.
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36.   Financial performance targets
Financial performance targets apply to the Trust only and so are not consolidated.   The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Turnover 370,223 381,729 420,918 439,624 473,815 492,883 519,430 529,896 541,376 552,911
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,480 85 4,008 3,036 (31,879) 1,393 (72,571) (17,851) (159,387) (27,377)
Adjustment for:

Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:
Adjustments for impairments 6,182 38,056 6,525 79,545 22,864 163,393 7,486
Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated assets 1,494 1,451 1,599 (267)
Consolidated budgetary guidance - adjustment for dual accounting under IFRIC12* 0 (30) 534 538 0 418

Break-even in-year position 1,480 85 4,008 9,218 6,177 7,888 9,002 7,002 5,605 (19,740)
Break-even cumulative position (44,884) (44,799) (40,791) (31,573) (25,396) (17,508) (8,506) (1,504) 4,101 (15,639)

*

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
% % % % % % % % % %

Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover 0.40 0.02 0.95 2.10 1.30 1.60 1.73 1.32 1.04 -3.57%
Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover -12.12 -11.74 -9.69 -7.18 -5.36 -3.55 -1.64 -0.28 0.76 -2.83%

IAS 1 requires the Trust to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, its ability to continue as a going concern. In the context of non-trading entities in the public sector the anticipated continuation of the provision of a
service in the future is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are plans for, or no realistic alternative other than, the dissolution of the 
Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity within the public sector.  These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

The Trust’s financial forecasts for 2015-16 and 2016-17 show deficits (as measured for break-even duty purposes) in each financial year of £26m and £13m respectively.  These deficits are after assuming delivery of savings in
2015-16 and 2016-17 of £41.2m and £34.3m respectively.  The forecast deficits, combined with the Trust’s capital expenditure plans (forecasting £30.5m capital spend in 2015/16 and £16.9m in 2016/17) and debt repayments 
mean that the Trust has a cash shortfall in April 2015 for which financing through the NHS Trust Development Authority has been received.  Cash support of £15m was received in April 2015 and a further £2.3m in May.  The 
Trust receives cash support through the new Interim Revolving Working Capital Facility (IRWCF)  available to Trusts.  An application for support in the form of Public Dividend Capital will be made through the Independent 
Trust Financing Facility (ITFF) and the Trust is in discussion with the TDA on the timing of this application.  It is anticipated that any outstanding borrowings using the IRWCF will be repaid on receipt of PDC.

The Trust has secured assurance from the NHS Trust Development Authority that it will make sufficient cash financing available over the next 12 month period to enable the Trust to meet its liabilities as they fall due.   
 
For 2015/16, a large proportion of the required savings have been identified and there are plans in place aimed at meeting the full targeted level of savings.  The Trust has developed and approved a recovery plan aimed at 
delivering a recurring breakeven position by the end of 2017/18.     

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, the Trust's financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring 
Departmental expenditure.  Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for 
overall budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance.  Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the donated asset and government 
grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.
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36.1  Breakeven performance
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36.2  Capital cost absorption rate

36.3  External financing
The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

External financing limit (EFL) 65,079 (3,987)
Cash flow financing 64,586 (4,111)
Unwinding of discount adjustment 40
External financing requirement 64,586 (4,071)
Underspend against EFL 493 84

36.4  Capital resource limit
The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

Gross capital expenditure 59,789 456,378
Less: book value of assets disposed of (217) (450)
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets (950) (178)
Charge against the capital resource limit 58,622 455,750
Capital resource limit 61,045 455,985
Underspend against the capital resource limit 2,423 235

31 March 
2015

31 March 
2014

£000s £000s
16 16

The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average relevant 
net assets and therefore the actual capital cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.
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37  Third party assets
The Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the Trust on behalf of patients or other parties.  This has 
been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

Third party assets held by the Trust
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Our Ref:   CP/CA Finance Directorate 
 Christopher Hancock Building 
 Southmead Hospital  
4th June 2015 Westbury-on-Trym 
 Bristol    BS10 5NB 
 
 Tel: (0117) 414 3818 
Grant Thornton UK LLP Fax: (0117) 323 6117 
Hartwell House E.mail: Catherine.phillips@nbt.nhs.uk 
55-61 Victoria Street Website: http://www.northbristol.nhs.uk 
Bristol 
BS1 6FT 

 
Dear Sirs 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust 
Group financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the group financial 
statements of North Bristol NHS Trust and its subsidiary undertaking, North Bristol NHS Trust 
Charitable Funds for the year ended 31 March 2015 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as 
to whether the group and parent Trust financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the accounting policies 
directed by the Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as relevant to the National 
Health Service in England. 
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Group financial statements 
i As Trust Board members we have fulfilled our responsibilities under the National Health 

Services Act 2006 for the preparation of group and parent Trust financial statements in 
accordance with the Manual for Accounts and International Financial Reporting Standards 
which give a true and fair view in accordance therewith. 

ii We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the group and 
parent Trust and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

iii The Trust has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a 
material effect on the group and parent Trust financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of the Care Quality 
Commission or other regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the group 
and parent Trust financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 

v Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

vi We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the group and 
parent Trust financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual for Accounts, and adequately disclosed in 
the financial statements.  There are no other material judgements that need to be 
disclosed. 

vii Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 
a there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 
b  none of the assets of the group or parent Trust has been assigned, pledged or 
mortgaged 
c there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 
 

viii Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Manual for Accounts. 

ix All events subsequent to the date of the group financial statements and for which 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual for Accounts requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

x We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 
changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report.  

xi In calculating the amount of income to be recognized in the financial statements from other 
NHS organisations we have applied judgement, where appropriate, to reflect the 
appropriate amount of income expected to be received by the group and parent Trust in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and the Manual for 
Accounts. 

xii Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
Manual for Accounts. 

xiii We acknowledge our responsibility to participate in the Department of Health's agreement 
of balances exercise and have followed the requisite guidance and directions to do so.  We 
are satisfied that the balances calculated for the Trust ensure the group and parent Trust 
financial statements and consolidation schedules are free from material misstatement, 
including the impact of any disagreements. 

xiv We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification 
of assets and liabilities reflected in the group and parent Trust financial statements. 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 

xv  The financial statements include an accrual for the full amount of the commercial 
settlement negotiated with The Hospital Company.   

Information Provided 

xvi We have provided you with: 
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation 

of the group and parent Trust financial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your 
audit; and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the group and parent Trust from whom you 
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
xvii We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xviii All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
group and parent Trust financial statements. 

xix We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the group and 
parent Trust financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

xx We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the group 
and parent Trust involving: 

a. management; 
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the group financial 

statements. 
 

xxi We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the group and parent Trust financial statements communicated by employees, 
former employees, regulators or others. 

xxii We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 
group and parent Trust financial statements. 

xxiii We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 
should be considered when preparing the group and parent Trust financial statements. 

xxiv We have disclosed to you the identity of all of the group’s and the parent Trust's related 
parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Annual Report 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 

xxv The disclosures within the Annual Report fairly reflect our understanding of the group's and 
the parent Trust’s financial and operating performance over the period covered by the 
group financial statements.  

Annual Governance Statement 

xxvi We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Trust’s risk 
assurance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks that are 
not disclosed within the AGS.   

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Trust’s Board at its meeting on 
4 June 2015. 

Yours faithfully 
 

 

 
 
Name:     Catherine Phillips 
Position:  Director of Finance 
 
Date:  4th June 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
Name:  Ken Guy 
 
Position:  Chair of the Audit Committee 
 
Date:  4th June 2015 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board 
 

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
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Recommendation:  

The Trust Board is asked to comment on and approve the draft Annual Report for 2014/15. 

 
Executive Summary:  
 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
1.1. The draft Annual Report for 2014/15 is attached in a 

narrative form for discussion and approval by the 
Board. 

2. Background 

2.1. From February to April relevant staff were asked to 
provide information on events throughout the 
2014/15 year and challenges and opportunities for 
next year. 

2.2. These submissions have been collated and edited to 
produce the attached draft. 

2.3. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Annual 
Report and the only additions were to include the 
Trust’s Annual Budget in the narrative and some 
comments regarding the transfer of vascular 
services. 

3. Annual Report 
3.1. Annual Report contents are subject to guidance from 

the Department of Health (DH) issued as part of the 
NHS Manual for Accounts. 

3.2. The content has been reviewed by the Auditors and 
additions made to ensure that all requirements have 
been covered in the Strategic and Finance sections.  

3.3. This version is the narrative that will be published in 
a ‘glossy’ form for general publication ready for the 
Annual Public Meeting in September. The final form 
will, therefore, look very different in colour and with a 
large number of relevant photographs although the 

narrative content will be that which is approved in the 
Board meeting. 

4. Summary 
4.1. The Annual Report has been drafted for comments 

and approval. 
 
5. Recommendations 

5.1. The Board is asked to comment on the draft annual 
Report for 2014/15 and recommend its approval. 

 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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TRUST PROFILE  
 
North Bristol NHS Trust (NBT) is a centre of excellence for health care in the South West 
region in a number of fields as well as one of the largest hospital trusts in the UK with an 
annual turnover of around £550million.  
 
In May 2014 the vast majority of the Trust’s inpatient services were centralised at 
Southmead Hospital Bristol when the brand new Brunel building opened its doors. Services 
from Frenchay Hospital were moved across during the month.  
 
Last year we treated over 51,000 inpatients, including day patients, as well as caring for 
over 85,000 people in our Emergency Departments.  More than 6,000 babies were born at 
Southmead, Cossham, at home or elsewhere in the community and we carried out 
approximately 295,000 outpatient appointments. We conducted 7.9 million pathology tests 
and treated 860 major trauma cases. During the year we carried out 430,000 imaging 
exams.  
 
Numbers of beds have fluctuated but we have had around 1,000 over the year and have 
provided inpatient care from Frenchay (until May 2014) and Southmead Hospitals as well as 
in Thornbury and the Riverside Unit, based near Blackberry Hill Hospital. We also provide a 
wide range of outpatient, therapy, midwifery and diagnostic services from Cossham Hospital 
in Kingswood. 
 
The Trust provides a range of acute and community services. These have included: 
 

• General medical and surgical care as well as maternity and specialist paediatric 
services for a local population of nearly a million people in the Bristol, South 
Gloucestershire and North Somerset area 

 
• Regional and specialist care for people living in the greater Bristol area as well as 

Somerset, Gloucestershire, Wiltshire and further afield for services such as 
neurosciences, orthopaedics, pathology, plastic surgery, renal and transplant 
services, urology and neonatal intensive care and being the major trauma centre for 
the Severn region 

 
• Our Children’s Community Health Partnership (CCHP) provides all community child 

health and child and adolescent mental health services for Bristol and South 
Gloucestershire. 

 
At any one time we have employed around 9,500 staff. 
 
The Trust has a single equality scheme, available on our website, covering all protected 
characteristics. We have a major incident plan which has been ‘desktop’ tested in exercises 
and is fully compliant with requirements and guidance. 
 
How to contact us: 
 
Southmead Hospital 
Westbury-on-Trym 
Bristol 
BS10 5NB 
Telephone: 0117 950 5050 



 
Cossham Hospital 
Lodge Road 
Kingswood 
BS15 1LF 
Telephone: 0117 340 8400 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION BY CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

No hospital has ever been through as much change as we have over the last year. In May 
2014 the doors to the Brunel building at Southmead finally opened, on time and on budget, 
after years of planning and construction. Over a two week period, 540 patients were safely 
and successfully transferred into the new facilities from existing wards and departments at 
Southmead and Frenchay.  

Our staff have settled into their new surroundings, and are delivering high quality, safe care. 
There were problems in the first months following the move into the Brunel, most notably in 
theatres, but staff have pulled together to turn things around. This was always going to be a 
challenging time but we are very grateful and proud of the way our staff worked to adapt to 
the changes. 

We understand that in some cases the patient experience has not been what we would 
strive for during this time, but we would like to assure our patients that we are working hard 
to improve things and the evidence suggests we are succeeding. 

The Brunel building offers state-of-the-art facilities that have been designed to meet the 
needs of 21st century healthcare and we are now seizing the benefits the building offers. 
Around three-quarters of beds are in single rooms with their own bathroom. This has led to 
a massive reduction in hospital acquired infections and has almost eliminated the need to 
close wards due to outbreaks of norovirus.  The environment is designed to be healing, with 
access to light and plenty of views onto gardens.  One of the biggest benefits that we hear 
about is that patients sleep well in the single rooms, aiding their recovery.   

Work continues on the second phase of the hospital development which includes a new 
patient and visitor car park – located right next to the main entrance, more staff parking and 
landscaped gardens. This will be complete in spring 2016. 

A challenging winter  

Like many other NHS trusts, we had a difficult winter. The particular pressure for us has 
been around emergency medical care for frail and elderly patients, where we have 
experienced an eight per cent increase over the last 12 months. These pressures have at 
times resulted in overcrowding the Emergency Department.   



Care Quality Commission report  

In February, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) published its report into our services and 
rated the Trust overall as “requires improvement”.  Every single service was rated as being 
“good” in the context of caring and staff were described as being “committed and 
passionate”. 

The CQC were concerned about the impact overcrowding was having in the Emergency 
Department (ED) and as a result rated this particular service as “inadequate” but 
acknowledged that improving discharge processes for patients was something that required 
close working with other partners. Internal improvements include the recruitment of 
additional consultants and nurses, better triage of patients upon arrival, improved privacy 
and dignity within the corridor area and ensuring that observation from the reception area is 
more welcoming and effective. More widely we are working closely with partners across the 
local health and social care system to ensure a safe and well managed discharge once 
patients are well enough to leave the hospital 

We are particularly pleased that the CQC described our maternity service in Cossham 
Hospital and our community services for children and young people as “outstanding”. 

Among the changes being made to address matters raised is the more rapid assessment of 
patients when they arrive in ED, the opening of a new GP Assessment Area and the 
introduction of four additional cubicles for initial assessment to reduce pressure. We are 
confident that, with our action plans already progressing and having now settled in to our 
new hospital, we can expect to see further benefits that will enable us to provide quality 
care that achieves the best possible outcomes for all our patients.  

While the Trust aspires to being significantly better than average its current CQC Trust 
rating is average for the NHS as a whole.  

Passionate about safety  

This Trust has always been at the forefront of patient safety initiatives and during this year 
we became one of the first 12 NHS organisations in England to sign up to a three-year 
Government-led campaign that aims to make the NHS the safest healthcare system in the 
world. Sign up to Safety requires NHS organisations to listen to patients, carers and staff, 
learn from what they say when things go wrong and take action to improve patients’ safety. 

One of the first steps is the development of a plan that describes what we will do to reduce 
harm and save lives by working to reduce the potential causes of harm – a preventative 
approach.  

Plans are built around five core pledges: putting safety first, continually learning, being 
honest and transparent, taking a leading role in collaborative learning and supporting people 
to understand why things have gone wrong and how to put them right. North Bristol NHS 
Trust’s action plan builds on existing practices and new measures. 

 



Our volunteers  

No annual report would be complete without a thank you to our fantastic army of volunteers 
and supporters. These include our amazing Move Makers, initially taken on to help people 
during the first few weeks after the new hospital opened but who proved so successful, we 
decided to keep them on permanently. The hundreds of people who give up their time are 
an inspiration and we are extremely thankful for their support and hard work. 

Peter Rilett, Chairman 
Andrea Young, Chief Executive  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
2. REVIEW OF THE YEAR  

April 2014 

Renal access nurse Wilfredo Manuel is honoured at the British Journal of Nursing 2014 
awards. He is named IV (intravenous) Therapy Nurse of the Year at the awards ceremony in 
London. Wilfredo, who has worked for the Trust for 11 years, was involved in bringing a 
nurse-led line insertion and management service to Southmead’s renal unit. 
 
Ahead of the move into the new Brunel building, staff are given the chance to acquaint 
themselves with their new ward areas. Special sessions are organised to give clinical staff 
training in how to use equipment in the wards before patients start to move in. In addition 
more than 200 local people take up the opportunity to visit the new facilities as part of 
public tours. 
 
Patients (past and present), their families and staff gather at the Barbara Russell Children’s 
Unit at Frenchay Hospital for a special farewell party before the service is transferred to the 
Bristol Children’s Hospital in May. The specialist unit for neurosciences, plastics and burns 
and trauma opened in 2000 and has treated around 30,000 children from across the South 
West and beyond.  
 
May 2014  
 
Staff and patients begin to move into the new Brunel building. In total more than 540 
patients move into their new single rooms and four-bed bays from the old buildings at 
Frenchay and Southmead, including a number of critically ill patients from intensive care 
units at both sites. Our staff are supported by colleagues from the ambulance service and 
the military. 
 
With the first patients moved into the new Brunel building, an army of volunteers starts 
welcoming people through the doors. Taking inspiration from the Games Makers of the 
London 2012 Olympics, the Move makers are a team who have been recruited to meet and 
greet patients and visitors coming into the new hospital and to guide them through the 
building. 



 
The Accident and Emergency Department successfully moves overnight on May 19 from 
Frenchay and is immediately operational at Southmead from 2am. The 
Brunel building is fully open on May 28 and the local media broadcast live from the atrium to 
mark the occasion. 
 
June 2014  

The first patients are seen in the new Bristol Breast Care Centre at Southmead. Staff from 
the centre move into their new Beaufort House home. Work on the refurbishment of the 
historic building nears completion ready to bring all breast care services for the Bristol area 
together under one roof. The Bristol Breast Care Centre has been designed to make it a 
sensitive and comfortable environment for patients. The centre fully opened in September. 
 
The Trust is one of the first 12 NHS organisations in England to sign up to an ambitious 
three-year Government-led campaign with the aim of making the NHS the safest healthcare 
system in the world. Sign up to Safety, which launches this month, requires NHS 
organisations to: Listen to patients, carers and staff, learn from what they say when things 
go wrong and take action to improve patients’ safety. 
 
July 2014  
 
To mark National Transplant Week, the atrium of the Brunel building provides the backdrop 
for a performance from Bristol theatre group Misfits. The group, made up of people with 
learning difficulties, is invited to the new hospital to highlight the work that goes on in NBT 
to support people with learning difficulties to undergo kidney transplants. The renal 
transplant team is leading the way in delivering a patient pathway tailored to people with 
learning difficulties and complex needs who might not otherwise be able to undergo the life-
changing procedure. 
 
Pupils from Horfield CEVC Primary School visit the Brunel building to see their art work on 
the walls. The group of Year 5 pupils worked with artist Rachel Davis on the project about 
the geography of the local area before drawing pictures inspired by their routes to the 
school. Their drawings of road signs, trees, houses, a post box and a cat were then 
transferred on to the final work using enamel on copper. Their finished artwork now hangs 
in the public atrium on the ground floor where it is on public display. 
 
August 2014  

The last episode of One Born Every Minute is broadcast on Channel 4. The 20 part series 
proved exceptionally popular and the Trust’s social media channels lit up each week with 
positive comments about our staff. 
 
The popular Move Makers volunteers are asked to stay on indefinitely after proving such a 
success. The friendly volunteers were initially recruited for a month to help patients and 
visitors find their way around during the move into the new hospital. The team, who are 
identified by their brightly-coloured T-shirts, greet patients and visitors as they come into 
the new hospital, help them check-in for their appointments, answer queries, direct people 
around the building and arrange wheelchairs for people with mobility issues. 
 
 



September 2014 

Bristol’s first Macmillan Wellbeing Centre opens at Beaufort House, Southmead. The centre, 
which provides advice and support to people with cancer, their friends and relatives, is a 
partnership between Macmillan Cancer Support and North Bristol NHS Trust. It is a resource 
for people living with and beyond a cancer diagnosis, helping them access financial support, 
information about their condition and treatment along with details of support groups. It also 
offers complementary therapies, sessions with dieticians and a walking group. 
 
The wards and corridors of Southmead Hospital are filled with the sound of music with 
Welsh harpist and soprano singer Joy Cornock coming to perform for patients. The visit is 
part of the Trust’s Fresh Arts music programme, which has seen a variety of musicians and 
performers coming into the hospital to play for patients. Patient Daisy Thomas from Staple 
Hill is serenaded with a Welsh folk song and a hymn when Joy comes to play for her. She 
even gets to try playing the harp herself! 
 
October 2014  

North Bristol NHS Trust becomes the first NHS organisation to be honoured with the Work 
Experience Quality Standard. The Chief Executive of charity Fair Train – which is behind the 
National Work Experience Quality Standard – Beth Gardner, visits Southmead to present the 
award to Chief Executive Andrea Young. The Work Experience Quality Standard is a national 
accreditation designed to recognise organisations with exemplary work experience provision; 
and also as a framework for development to help organisations plan, run and evaluate 
effective work experience programmes. 
 
A ceremony to mark the official opening of Cossham Birth Centre takes place this month. 
The local area’s first midwife-led birth centre at the Kingswood hospital opened its doors in 
January 2013. Professor Lesley Page from the Royal College of Midwives unveils a plaque to 
commemorate the occasion. 
 
A new specialist arterial centre, providing state of the art planned and emergency inpatient 
care, opens at Southmead. The centre will specialise in the management of vascular 
diseases and disorders of the arteries, veins and lymphatic system. Patients with vascular 
disorders will be cared for by dedicated specialist vascular teams at the centre with a 
consultant-led vascular service providing 24/7 vascular surgery. 
 
Southmead Hospital benefits from a £250,000 donation towards its helipad. The donation 
comes from the County Air Ambulance Trust, which has made donations totalling £832,500 
towards significant air ambulance and helipad installation projects in Bristol. The installation 
will significantly speed up transfer times for critically ill and injured patients being air lifted 
to hospital for emergency care. 
 
November 2014 

The Bristol Urological Institute (BUI) is awarded £1.2 million to lead a major three year 
national multi-centre trial to evaluate the use of laser technology for benign prostate 
surgery. This funding is allowing us to trial a new type of laser called Thulium, which cuts 
and vaporises the prostate and has shown promising results. This is an easier technique for 
surgeons to do than previous lasers and there is some evidence to indicate that patients 
may benefit from reduced blood loss and a faster return home after their operation. 
 



The Trust is awarded the Skills for Health Quality Mark for the standard of its education and 
training. NBT is one of just 16 organisations across the UK to receive the endorsement for 
delivering high quality training and the first hospital trust in the South West to achieve the 
standard. The National Skills Academy Skills for Health Quality Mark provides a framework 
that defines and endorses superior learning and training standards that health care 
employers need in order to cultivate a world-class workforce. 
 
Patients and staff celebrate the 20th anniversary of the Lung Exercise and Education 
Programme (LEEP). Over the years more than 2,000 patients with chronic respiratory 
disease have benefitted from taking part in the programme, which was launched at 
Frenchay Hospital in 1994 and moved across to Southmead in May this year. LEEP helps 
patients improve their quality of life and self-management of their condition. 
 

December 2014 

£50,000 of charity donations is shared by wards and departments at Southmead Hospital 
and across NHS community teams as part of the Trust’s annual Christmas Cracker 
campaign. Southmead Hospital Charity distributes the money raised to 18 teams and 
departments who have put forward bids to buy specialist equipment for their services. The 
funds have been collected from donations made by the patients and their families, local 
groups and companies throughout the year, including a generous £10,000 donation from 
the Southmead Hospital League of Friends. 
 
An Emergency Department nurse at Southmead Hospital Bristol receives an award for her 
work on domestic abuse. Anna Bell, a sister in the department, set up the domestic violence 
service in the A&E – then at Frenchay Hospital – two years ago. Staff have been trained in 
the questions to ask patients who they think might be at risk of domestic abuse. There are 
also now two full-time Independent Domestic Violence Advisors working in the department. 
 
January 2015  

A Multiple Sclerosis (MS) physiotherapy programme based at the Bristol County Ground 
could be rolled out across Europe after achieving ground-breaking results. The fitness 
sessions at the BS7 Gym have helped people with the condition regain balance and 
movement skills and provided them with a forum to share their experiences. The findings 
from the BrAMS (Bristol and Avon Multiple Sclerosis) scheme gained recognition when 
presented at an MS conference in Norway and to the UK’s National Chartered Society of 
Physiotherapists and has now received interest from Italy, Spain and Germany. 
 
The Trust appoints three new non-executive directors to its Board - Andrew Willis, Liz 
Redfern CBE and Professor Nishan Canagarajah. All three bring a wealth of experience from 
the NHS, academia and the business sector.  
 
February 2015 

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) published its report into services at North Bristol NHS 
Trust and rated us as “requires improvement” overall. Every single service was rated as 
being “good” in the context of caring and Trust staff were described by the CQC as being 
“committed and passionate”. The CQC did criticise overcrowding in the Emergency 
Department (ED) and as a result rated this service as “inadequate” but acknowledged that 
improving discharge processes for patients is not something the Trust can fix on its own. 



This will need the Trust to continue to work with local commissioners and local authorities to 
resolve. 
 

March 2015 

A colourful and imaginative mural created by children from St Stephen’s Junior School in 
Kingswood is unveiled at Cossham Hospital. Working with artists, nine children from the 
school (which is located close by the hospital) visited Cossham in the autumn to find out 
more about the rich history of the hospital building and its founder, local MP and benefactor, 
Handel Cossham. Their findings were incorporated into the mural.  
 
Southmead Hospital’s staff restaurant, The Vu, was one of the winners announced at the 
South West Fairtrade Business Awards.  The Trust was presented with a silver award in 
recognition of its commitment to buy fairly traded products and also for the good work of 
the catering team in terms of raising awareness amongst staff about the products on sale 
which include bananas, tea, coffee, fruit juice and chocolate. 
 
Dementia patients benefit from colourful comforters after staff, patients and volunteers got 
knitting with gusto. A pile of “Twiddlemuffs” is given to the Dementia Team to provide 
comfort and activity to patients. The knitted muffs feature buttons, different textures, 
accessories and even small toys to provide stimulation for restless hands. Holding the 
“Twiddlemuffs” and playing with the different elements attached to them can be relaxing 
and reassuring for people with dementia. 
 
Community children’s health teams in South Gloucestershire are awarded Young People 
Friendly status. The staff involved were invited to a celebratory afternoon tea hosted by 
North Bristol NHS Trust’s Community Children’s Health Partnership (CCHP) with Barnardo’s 
to acknowledge their efforts. They were also presented with a certificate featuring art work 
produced by young people in Bristol and South Gloucestershire. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. LISTENING TO AND WORKING WITH OUR PATIENTS  

Friends and Family Test 

During the last year we have continued to gain feedback from our patients through the 
Friends and Family Test. Inpatient, emergency department and maternity services have 
been involved and we recently became an early adopter rolling the test out to outpatients. 

Previously we used a score called the Net Promoter Score but since October our scores have 
been expressed as the percentage of patients who would recommend our services to their 
family and friends if they needed the service and those who would not. 
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Theme reports from the comments made in the survey are collated on a quarterly basis and 
examined for areas that have improved and those that we can continue to improve. During 
the last quarter of the year the key themes have been: 

Positive comments Negative comments 

• Staff 
• General quality of care 
• Food / catering 
• Facilities 
• Cleanliness 

• Food / Catering 
• Waiting / Delays 
• Provision of Television 
• Facilities 
• Staffing levels 
 

Interestingly many of the aspects reported on positively also appear in the negative 
comments.  During 2015/16 we will be exploring these aspects more fully to understand and 
improve wherever possible.  Televisions have been provided to ward quiet rooms for use by 
patients and a plan has been made for the provision of a patient entertainment system at 
every bed in the future. 

During 2015/16 we will be increasing the range of methods by which patients, carers and 
relatives can feedback to us.  This approach will mean that staff can view the results almost 
instantly which will help them to act on the feedback very quickly. Expanding the methods 
will allow us to survey patients at various points through their time with us and also to focus 
on specific topics.  

Inpatient Areas 

  

 

 

 

 

 

During the year wards 
achieved more than 90 
percent of patients 
recommending their services. 

We have worked towards increasing the number of responses to our survey because we 
know this improves the information about what we do well and what we can improve. 
During March we trialled the use of electronic devices in some of our wards with positive 
increases in the number of surveys completed. 
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Emergency Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The emergency department has found the survey process more challenging than other 
areas. We have been working with the staff in the department to rebuild their response rate 
and recently introduced a video kiosk to record patient feedback on leaving the department.   
Our emergency department, like many others in the country, has been very busy, yet they 
have still managed to achieve high percentages of patients who would recommend their 
service. 

Outpatient services 

From April 1 2015 all outpatient services across the country will be starting to survey their 
patients. At North Bristol NHS Trust we started surveying out patients during 2014 as an 
early adopter of the system. We have recently started a text survey for outpatients based on 
the system used to remind patients about their appointments. 

Maternity Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Maternity services have performed well over the year with over 90 percent of their patients 
who would recommend the service. Whilst this graph is based on the total number of 
surveys the data is collected at four points through the antenatal, perinatal and postnatal 
episodes. 

National Surveys 

Inpatient Survey 

850 people who were inpatients at Southmead during June 2014 were included in the 
national survey. They were sent a survey by an external organisation that manages this on 
our behalf according to the requirements set out nationally. The results were due at the 
time of writing this report and will be acted upon when received. 

Emergency Department 

During 2014 a national survey was carried out of patients who had used an NHS accident 
and emergency department during January, February or March 2014. 279 patients (34 
percent) who had used the department at North Bristol during that time responded.  The 
survey is made up of eight sections and each question scored out of ten. Our Emergency 
Department scored 8.3 in terms of the overall experience.  

Cancer Services 

NBT takes part in the annual National Cancer Patient Experience Survey. Our results for 
2014 showed significant improvement over those for 2013, with the Trust being in the top 
ten of the most improving trusts. This reflects the emerging impact of NBT’s strategies to 
improve the care for patients diagnosed and treated for cancer, as well as those living with 
and beyond cancer. The Trust showed improved performance over 2013 on 47 of the 62 
scored questions in 2014.  

Support for Carers in the hospital 

The Carers Support Scheme continues to be promoted and developed. The scheme involves 
the early identification of carers through an initial documented conversation. Carers also 
access discounted car parking, extended visiting times in all patient areas and can now 
access the staff canteen.  

Carers can also access a Hospital Carers Liaison Worker from the Carers Support Centre. 
The Liaison Worker can provide carers with information and sign posting, liaise with hospital 
staff and support them around the discharge process. The Carers Liaison Service has 
received and supported 274 referrals over the past year with the aid of the Trust, who 
provided office space and IT access within the Sanctuary offices.  

Awareness of carers’ rights and identification of carers in the Trust 

The work of the Carer Liaison Worker has extended across the Trust, with referrals being 
made either directly from the carer or from the ward nursing staff, administration or allied 
health professional staff. Stronger links have been developed with MacMillan Wellbeing 



Centre, the Alzheimer’s Society and the NBT Dementia Team. The Carers liaison Worker 
regularly attends the memory café at Gate 28. 

The Trust’s website has been updated to include a section for carers. Carer awareness 
displays take place six times a year within the public space in the hospital. The Carers 
Liaison Worker meets with new hospital social workers to inform them about the service and 
the referral pathway. Carer awareness training is provided to staff via mandatory training 
and inductions for new staff. A new version of the Trust’s admission paperwork is being 
developed to ensure carers are identified at the earliest opportunity. 

Representation of carers at a strategic level 

The Trusts Carers charter, a joint charter with the University Hospitals Bristol NHS 
Foundation Trust is being updated to reflect the latest legislation (Care Act 2014). 

The Hospital Carer Liaison manager is engaged in setting up a Joint carers reference group 
representing carers from both NBT and UH Bristol. The North Bristol Trust Patient 
Experience group meets quarterly, with a membership of users of the Trust’s services, 
patients and carers as well as various hospital departments. In addition to this strong links 
have been developed with the new Head of Patient Experience.  

Carers’ feedback and activity is regularly provided through quarterly reporting, whilst issues 
from carers are also fed in to the CCG End of life steering group. 

Chaplaincy and Bereavement Services 

The chaplaincy provides religious, spiritual and pastoral care to patients, visitors and staff of 
all faiths or no faith.  

Chaplaincy remains a valued part of patient care within Southmead Hospital. Working 
alongside colleagues, chaplains help support those at some of the most distressing and 
challenging times of their lives. For those whose faith is important we also provide religious 
support. 

The hospital has its own team of chaplains and volunteer pastoral visitors. The chaplains are 
from various Christian denominations. The wider team of volunteers also includes Buddhist, 
Hindu and Muslim representatives. All members of the chaplaincy are happy to work with 
those of different traditions and faiths. 

The chaplains regularly visit the wards and are always happy to see patients or visitors, to 
offer a 'listening ear'. They are also available to pray with a patient or offer the appropriate 
religious support in an emergency.  

The Patient Affairs (Bereavement Services) team provides Southmead Hospital with the 
expertise to manage the legal and practical requirements following a death in hospital. 
Working closely with doctors, the wards and the mortuary, they manage the release of the 
deceased from the hospital to the appropriate people. 

 



Improving patient experience  

2014/15 was a year of significant changes for patients culminating in the move of services 
to the Brunel Building. This brought about many benefits for patients but also a number of 
challenges. In addition during the year a new role, Head of Patient Experience, was created 
to bring an enhanced strategic and practical focus to improvement work. 

The Trust continues to engage with patients, carers and the public through a number of 
groups and forums through the Patient Experience Group and the Patient Partnership Panel. 
These provide a valuable contribution to making improvements in patient experience. 

The Patient Experience Group 

The Patient Experience Group is chaired by the Director of Nursing & Quality and its 
membership includes patient and carer representation, the Carers Support Centre, 
HealthWatch, the Trust’s Patient Experience Leads, the Patient and Community Engagement 
Manager and the Head of Patient Experience. It meets bi-monthly to receive and discuss the 
results of the Friends and Family Test and other national patient surveys in addition to ideas 
and proposals from the Trust. This year the group had the opportunity to discuss the Care 
Quality Commission’s inspection report in addition to contributing to thinking about the 
Trust’s Strategic vision for the future. It was instrumental in identifying the Quality Account 
priorities for this year. 

Following a week when HealthWatch set up a stall in the Brunel atrium the organisation 
presented its findings from talking to visitors. Key themes included: 

• Parking, distance from Beaufort car park to Brunel for patients with mobility issues, 
lack of knowledge about shuttle bus 

• Administration of letters and booking of appointments malfunctioning in terms of 
incorrect dates 

• Patient entertainment  
• Isolation of older people in single rooms and confusion on way finding in Brunel.  

The organisation also presented a report on discharge processes and key feedback included; 
the lack of voluntary and community sector support post discharge, the discharge process 
taking too long and greater need to have a follow up check-up following discharge. Both 
reports helped us target improvements. 

In order to achieve better feedback from patient and carers we have piloted various 
methods in the Trust including electronic tablets, video kiosk and text messaging. 

Work of the Trust’s Patient Panel  

The long standing Patient Panel has continued to meet during the year. The panel’s 
membership is a majority of lay members who give freely of their time to help the Trust. 
Staff from the Clinical Governance Directorate attend the panel on a regular basis. Members 
contribute by participating in quality, care and environmental audits, proof reading patient 
information leaflets and sitting on various committees. 



Involvement of Members 

Over the last year we have worked hard to develop and engage our member base. As of 
April 2015 we have just under 16,000 public members representing the four constituencies 
of Bristol, South Gloucestershire, North Somerset and the rest of England and Wales. 

Our members have participated in various surveys and focus groups, including giving us 
their views of the art work around the hospital and their opinions of the hospital for our 
quality account. They have received regular updates on the areas that interest them and 
have been invited to various events and forums. 

To find out more about Foundation Trust membership or to sign up as a member, visit 
www.nbt.nhs.uk/ft or drop us a line at membership@nbt.nhs.uk.  

Complaints activity over the last year  

The views of our patients, relatives and carers are very important to us and feedback from 
complaints has been effective in influencing change and improving practice in all clinical 
areas. The total number of formal complaints received during 2014/15 was 1,010 – an 
increase of 253 from last year. Key messages from the past 12 months are:  

• Formal complaint numbers have risen, reflecting the challenges faced following the 
moved to the new Brunel building and the closure of Frenchay. It is therefore not 
clear if the underlying trend goes against the nationally reported overall increase in 
numbers 

• As a consequence of the increase in complaints, concerns and enquires the large 
central clinical directorates and the facilities related directorates struggled to return 
cases within the negotiated timescales 

• Patients and visitors’ ability to communicate directly with the area of the Trust they 
wish to contact is still below levels we would expect and numbers of reported issues 
have continued to cause concerns 

• The pressures on the complaints process over the last 12 months have caused a re-
evaluation of the processes. To address the overdue cases, the reasons for the 
backlogs and also to ensure improvements are made during 2015/16 a programme 
of support and training for the central and directorate complaint teams has been 
introduced.  
 

Communication issues continue to be a factor in many complaints. The increase continues to 
be tackled by the Trust’s iCARE initiative, which is designed to make staff consider their 
approach and communication from the patients’ perspective. This delivered a reduction in 
the trend over the final quarter of the year.  

Informal complaints (concerns) received in 2014/15 increased by 12.8%. This reflects the 
increase in lower level complaints such as infrastructure and parking issues, most of which 
directly resulted from the impact of the construction works on the Southmead site and plan 
to deliver the permanent patient parking facilities in phase 2 of the development due for 
completion in spring 2016. 

 

 

http://www.nbt.nhs.uk/ft
mailto:membership@nbt.nhs.uk


Returns 

If a complaint or concern is not satisfactorily answered, the complainant is always invited to 
contact the Advice and Complaints Team to ensure their further concerns can be fully 
addressed. These “returned” issues are logged and the reasons recorded.  

Overall returns decreased by 3.7% 103 (107) but those concerns that were due to 
unaddressed or unresolved issues, and therefore could be considered as avoidable, 
increased by one to 22 cases or 21.3% of all returns. 

Learning lessons  

The Trust embraces the ethos of learning from all complaints and concerns where possible 
and this forms part of what we do. During the year some significant lessons have been 
learned and examples of changes made to procedures and practices are given below: 

• New food stocks have been provided in the medi-rooms for post-op patients 
• New comfort rounds have been introduced for the medi-rooms to assist waiting 

patients, the temperature will also be more closely monitored (the nursing staff will 
engage with elderly patients and offer them blankets as required) 

• Discharge letters are now faxed to GPs who do not have electronic links to avoid 
discharge delays 

• Communications between pharmacy and wards have been made to improve the 
turnaround for ‘tablets to take away’ and so improve patients’ discharge experience 

• A new discharge lounge is being created for the Imaging Department, following 
patient feedback about the current waiting area 

• Waiting list co-ordinators will consider the patients age when devising the booking 
order of consultants lists. 

 

Second Stage Reviews 

Local Resolution Meetings (LRMs) are non-confrontational and are aimed at allowing the 
complainant and the Trust to explore issues in a more dynamic way than can be achieved 
via correspondence. Complainants are welcome to attend with a friend or family for support 
and the Trust will ensure that senior staff are present to allow their concerns to be 
addressed and any agreed actions/outcomes are taken forward. A digital recording of the 
meeting is provided as confirmation of the discussions and the agreed actions. During the 
year LRMs were arranged and held for 75 cases, an increase of ten on 2013/14. 

Ombudsman Referrals 

If after attempts at local resolution the complainant remains dissatisfied, they may ask the 
Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman to consider their case. During 2014/15, the Trust 
is aware of 20 complainants who contacted the Ombudsman where they subsequently 
decided to review the actions of the Trust and call for the complaints file. Of these cases, 12 
have been closed by the Ombudsman and eight remain open. One complaint was wholly 
upheld, four were found to be partly justified and seven dismissed. The Trust was asked to 
extend apologies for all the justified/partially justified cases and asked to pay compensation 
in two cases and for one case outstanding from 2013/14. 



Principles for Remedy 

The Trust has accepted the Principles for Remedy set out by the Parliamentary and Health 
Service Ombudsman and plans are in place to ensure that the Trust complies with them by 
the end of 2015/16. In particular, an action plan is being implemented to reduce all overdue 
complaint responses by the end of July 2015 and processes are being redesigned to ensure 
greater control by directorate rather than the Advice and Complaints team and mutual 
agreement with complainants on timescales.  

Compliments 

Over the year, the Advice and Complaints Team recorded 4,396 compliments - some 
examples are listed below: 

 “I had an Angioplasty procedure at the hospital on 12th November 2014, which proved a 
long and complicated case. The perseverance of the surgeon and his team was first class, 
and the professionalism and attention of the nurses before and after was exceptional.” 

 “I would just like to say a big thank you to all the staff from Gate 20 at the Brunel building 
for their care, kindness and support, during and after my husband’s surgery yesterday. We 
have nothing but praise for the whole team…under the circumstances we are really grateful 
for everything they did for us.” 

“I had to visit A&E this morning at 7.30am. I was treated with care, kindness, compassion 
and professionalism. At each stage each member of staff treated me as a human rather that 
a statistic and listened to me taking on-board any qualms I has no matter how trivial. I was 
reassured and comforted by being given information that was relevant.” 

 “Both my husband and I have spent time in Frenchay and then in Southmead Hospital and 
the meals were excellent. We were given a menu each day with a great selection of food.” 

“We waited about three hours in A&E which is fine…attended by a young doctor on duty, did 
a brilliant job of stitching eye lid. Good doctor with brilliant people skills...just wanted to say 
thank you.” 

“I realise the stress you and your staff have undergone at this time as a result of moving 
from Frenchay. It is very much to your credit that the work of your hospital and its 
treatment and care, have maintained and excellent standard.”  

 “I was not expecting such a slick experience…how wrong I was. I went to the new 
Southmead hospital on level 2 Gate 18…The whole event was handled and everyone in the 
department could not have been more professional…Thank you all for helping me get back 
my life.” 

 

 

 



4. HOW WE’RE PERFORMING  
 
Priorities for Improvement  
 
Every year the Trust manages a wide range of quality improvement targets and measures, 
set by the Board, Commissioners, NHS England and the Department of Health – as well as 
those that are as a result of requirements of specialist national reviews and 
recommendations from national NHS related organisations such as NICE, Royal Colleges, 
Care Quality Commission and others. 
 
These are included as part of our overall quality strategy under the headings of patient 
safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. The connection between good 
performance and high quality care, and the range of issues that remain priorities include 
falls, pressure ulcers, nutrition, medicines safety, infection prevention and control. In 
addition to all the other quality and safety targets, each year trusts are asked to choose up 
to five priorities for improvement which are chosen in consultation with patients, public and 
staff. 
 
Involving the public in identifying these priorities 
 
We asked our clinical teams to make suggestions for priorities to improve patient care. This 
list was then discussed with Patient Panel and Patient Experience Group members. 
 
These topics were then compiled into a survey for patient and public consultation which was 
distributed to Foundation Trust members who wish to take part in surveys. Presentations 
including the shortlist were made to Local Authority Health Scrutiny Committees. 
 
As a result, over 180 patients and members of the public completed the survey. The results 
were analysed and ranked according to importance as rated by patients and carers. These 
were discussed by the Trust’s Quality Committee to agree the final priorities prior to final 
approval by the Trust Board. 
 
Our Priorities for Improvement for 2014/15 
  
1. Improve theatre safety – ensuring that surgical teams work safely and ensure high 

quality care through effective communication and rigorous procedures before, during 
and after each operation performed 

2. Improve discharge information to GPs – providing timely and accurate information 
when patients leave hospital to ensure that their GP is fully aware of their clinical 
condition and can continue safe and effective care 

3. Improve management of sepsis – developing a deeper understanding of the main 
causes of sepsis in patients, where this most frequently occurs and delivering effective 
treatment in a timely way 

4. Improve cancer patient experience – supporting patients diagnosed with cancer in a 
timely and effective way to provide the best treatment with care, dignity and in 
supportive partnership with national charities and peers. 

 
How did we get on with these priorities? 
 
Improve Theatre Safety  
 



The first job of all health care professionals is to keep patients safe. NBT is committed to 
providing services of exemplary quality and safety, giving the patient the best possible 
experience and outcome. It is known that the way teams work together contributes 
significantly to protecting patients from harm. It is the responsibility of everyone involved in 
the perioperative care of the patient to: 
 

• Work and communicate as part of a team 
• Have the courage to protect patients and colleagues by speaking out if they have 

any concerns regarding patient safety 
• Receive challenge from a colleague in a positive and professional manner, giving the 

concerns others may have due consideration. 
 
The five ‘steps to safer surgery,’ which incorporates the World Health Organisation (WHO) 
Checklist must be used in all patients undergoing invasive procedures in NBT and are listed 
as: 

 
• STEP 1: Team brief 
• STEP 2: Sign in 
• STEP 3: Time out  
• STEP 4: Sign out  
• STEP 5: Team de-brief  

 
NBT currently monitors compliance against every patient with a 2014/15 performance of 
87.4 percent for Safer Surgery Compliance and 95.2 percent WHO Compliance against a 
target of 100 percent. The chart below illustrates the strong improvements made in the five 
steps to safer surgery during the year and the more gradual improvements made in WHO 
compliance. 
 

  
 
The Head of Nursing for Core Clinical Services, supported by the Theatre Matron, are 
examining the key factors influencing the remaining areas of non-compliance with the WHO 
checklist to ensure continued improvement in 2015/16. 
 

WHO & 5 Steps to Safer Surgery – Compliance Rates 2014/15 

 

5 Steps to Safer Surgery 

WHO Checklist compliance 



Improve discharge information to GPs  
 
The Trust achieved just over 78 percent of discharge summaries sent within 24 hours in 
April 2014 but performance then dipped to just over 74 percent at the time of the hospital 
move in May 2014. Since then performance has improved aided by, for example, a new 
discharge summary launched for Medical Day care, which is shorter and much easier to use. 
Similarly, a tailored discharge summary is being worked on for hip fractures that will be 
easier and quicker to complete. 

 

 
 
In 2015/16 this will continue as a Quality Account priority and is also a local CQUIN 
(commissioning contract) incentive which focusses on timeliness of discharge summaries 
and the development of these as summary care plans to be given to the patient for the 
following specialties: 
 

• Respiratory 
• Diabetes 
• Cardiology 
• Renal   

 
Improve management of sepsis 
 

In 2014/15 a committee to advance the management of sepsis was set up and met monthly 
to discuss strategies to gather data on sepsis incidence and the management of patients 
with sepsis within the Trust. 
 
Initially there was very little information collected on the numbers of patients with severe 
sepsis, where they were located and managed within the Trust, or on compliance with 
consensus guidelines for the management of sepsis (“Sepsis 6”). 
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Information gathering has shown that most patients with severe sepsis are initially cared for 
in the Emergency Department (ED) or the Acute Admissions Unit (AAU). Systems have been 
put in place to enable these patients to be tracked and their outcomes measured. Original 
research conducted in the Trust has shown that Early Warning Scores (EWS) are predictive 
of outcomes in blood stream infection – a form of severe sepsis – and sequential audits 
carried out in AAU over the winter of 2014/15 have provided baseline data on sepsis 
management in terms of the six interventions required within an hour of the diagnosis of 
severe sepsis.  
 
Improvements in the proportion of patients receiving oxygen (3-fold increase); lactate 
measurement (3/4- fold increase); blood cultures (2-fold increase); antibiotics (3/4-fold 
increase) have been observed. Many staff groups have targeted education on sepsis with 
simulation training in the ward areas being delivered to the multidisciplinary team. The 
acute oncology team has delivered teaching on Neutropenic Sepsis and introduced a 
screening tool to the admission team which has increased the proportion of patients with 
neutropenia being treated with antibiotics within an hour of presentation. 
 
In the next year, this work needs to be built on in terms of increasing staff awareness of 
sepsis, education of its management and audit of performance. 
 
Improve cancer patient experience  
 
NBT has continued to lead nationally on cancer survivorship during 2014/2015 by building 
expertise and capacity in implementing alternative approaches to cancer aftercare. We are 
in the process of bringing about a service redesign in the approach to care and support for 
people affected by cancer. This involves implementing an integrated model of survivorship 
into the care pathway for everyone diagnosed and treated for cancer, with a greater focus 
on recovery, health and wellbeing after treatment. Evaluations of our programmes indicate 
high levels of patient satisfaction and improved patient experience and outcomes. 

A key mile stone in our strategy was the opening of the NGS Macmillan Wellbeing Centre. 
The centre is staffed by a centre manager, cancer support workers and volunteers and is a 
hub for the provision of advice, support and information to anyone living with or after a 
cancer diagnosis, or anyone concerned about cancer.  Equipped with meeting rooms for 
education, one-to one support, complementary therapies, nutritional and exercise sessions, 
as well as financial and back-to-work advice, the centre is providing provide cancer-related 
information in a variety of media and formats to a steadily increasing number of patents, 
relatives and staff from both hospital and community settings.  

Our Priorities for Improvement for 2015/16 
 
We will continue to improve the quality of care for patients as set out in our contract, 
including prevention of deterioration, continuing to reduce pressure ulcers, reduce falls, 
infection prevention and control and improving nutrition and the management of sepsis. In 
addition through our consultation we have agreed with patients and staff to address the 
following priorities: 
 
1. Improving care for patients with dementia 
2. Improve our patient’s overall experience in hospital  
3. Improving the recognition, diagnosis and treatment of Acute Kidney Injury (AKI)  



4. Improving the quality and timeliness of information provided to GP’s when patients go 
home to ensure there is safe handover to primary care. 

 
How we will measure progress with these priorities 
 
Improvement measures will be set for each priority and the data will be collected and 
analysed to track progress. This will be monitored closely by the Trust’s Quality Committee 
chaired by the Medical Director. Its membership includes the Director of Nursing and 
Director of Operations as well as Clinical Directors, chairs of quality and safety committees 
and other key staff involved in monitoring or progressing quality and safety priorities. 
 
Reporting on a wide range of quality measures is made to the Board every month as part of 
an Integrated Board Report and includes measurements of progress against set 
improvement trajectories. This report is included in the public session of the Trust Board and 
is published on the Trust’s external website as part of the papers. In addition the 
information is reported via the Quality Sub Group to local clinical commissioning groups and 
NHS England. 
 
Assurances on Quality from the Trust Board 
 
Review of Services 
 
The Trust reviews data and information related to the quality of its services through regular 
reports to the Trust Board and the Trust’s governance committees. Each clinical service 
undergoes monthly Executive review in which performance against standards of quality and 
safety are reviewed. These reviews discuss with clinical teams and managers any areas of 
concern and continuous quality improvement. The Trust has therefore reviewed 100 percent 
of the data available to them on the quality of care in all its NHS services. 
 
Examples of data and information reviewed have been: 
 

• Mortality on which the Trust has a good record 
• Patient Reported Outcome Measures – a national survey of all patients having hip or 

knee replacements, varicose vein surgery or groin hernia surgery 
• Readmission to hospital 
• Venous Thromboembolism – numbers of patients risk assessed on admission 
• Reducing harm from infection – there were no cases of MRSA in 2014/15 and a 

considerable reduction in C Diff cases 
• Patient safety incidents – the Trust reports a higher than average number of 

incidents but mainly in the low to moderate degree of harm 
• National survey on Emergency Departments – carried out prior to the opening of 

Brunel but the Trust improved in many areas and deteriorated in only one. 
 
Improving quality and safety of patient care  
 
iCARE  
 
The iCARE programme was launched in September 2014 in order to build upon our 
strengths in caring for patients and supporting colleagues, by recognising and spreading 
best practice. 
 
iCARE stands for: 



 
I take responsibility for 
Communication that’s effective 
Attitude that’s positive 
Respect for patients, carers and colleagues 
Environment that’s conducive to care. 
 
Approximately 4,500 staff have attended an iCARE session including all new staff at 
induction and bespoke sessions for staff working in various environments, including 
receptionists in the Emergency Department, the Sterile Services Department, Facilities, the 
IT Service Desk and Switchboard, Volunteer Services and the Acute Assessment Unit. It has 
enabled people who work directly with patients to reflect on how they work together to 
provide an environment conducive to care and helped staff who work in support areas to 
see how their work enables others to provide high quality care.  
 
Each month the iCARE Moments award has been an opportunity to highlight a moment 
when an individual or team did something that made a big difference to patients. 
 
Preventing deterioration  
 
Patients who are deteriorating often show signs and symptoms indicating their worsening 
state. Early Warning Scores (EWS) calculates a score based on the patient’s key 
measurements and provides an indicator of how sick a patient is, thus enabling the 
recognition and escalation of care of patients whose condition is worsening. 
 
All inpatients within the Trust have their physiological observations (respiratory rate, levels 
of oxygen, pulse, blood pressure, level of consciousness and temperature) measured and 
recorded according to our Observations Policy.  
 
This early recognition and management of patient observations may prevent avoidable 
patient admissions to the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) and help prevent avoidable cardiac 
arrests and the need for Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR). 
 
There is evidence to show that patients will often present with signs of deterioration prior to 
suffering a cardiac arrest. Using cardiac arrest rates we can demonstrate that by using the 
Early Warning System our staff have the tools to help recognise these signs and in doing so 
potentially prevent the arrest. 
 
Safeguarding vulnerable people 
 
The Trust has a Safeguarding Committee, chaired by the Director of Nursing that oversees 
reporting structures and monitors the safeguarding agenda in all of the Trust’s services. As 
an organisation we are committed to making safeguarding a high priority for all members of 
the Trust. Safeguarding standards are reported annually to the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups and performance activities are reported quarterly to the Commissioners and the 
Local Safeguarding Children Boards. 
 
The Safeguarding Committee has responsibility for setting and monitoring the delivery of the 
Trust’s strategic priorities for safeguarding and providing assurance to the Board. The 
Committee is supported by two operational groups who carry out the work in relation to 
safeguarding: 
 



• Children (child protection) 
• Vulnerable adults - including people with dementia, adults with learning disabilities 

and mental health. 
 
Safeguarding Children 
 
The definition of a child is anyone under the age of 18, but young people aged 16-18 years 
are usually treated in adult services. All clinical staff undertake Level 2 safeguarding children 
training and all staff Level 1. 
 
The CQC inspection in November 2014 found that robust safeguarding procedures were in 
place with clear lines of reporting. Also that staff were aware of these procedures and their 
own responsibilities to safeguard children and young people.  

Safeguarding training compliance is monitored through the Safeguarding Children 
Operational Group; the figures are reported quarterly to Bristol and South Gloucestershire 
Safeguarding Children Boards. Significant changes to the training requirement have been 
made as a result of the revised Intercollegiate Document (2014). The named nurses have 
worked with the training department to develop an electronic knowledge based assessment 
to be completed three months post Level 1 and Level 2 training to provide some quality 
assurance on whether learning outcomes are being achieved. 

Lessons learnt from all serious case reviews and serious incidents are included in current 
training packages. Formal child protection supervision is provided for all staff with a child 
protection caseload. In addition reflective practice and peer review relating to safeguarding 
children is increasing throughout clinical directorates.  
 
The Trust provides care to children and young people, via the Community Child Health 
Partnership (CCHP) for Bristol and South Gloucestershire. These services include community 
paediatrics, health visiting, school health nursing, allied health professionals and Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health. Within CCHP we provide 24 hour Consultant Community 
Paediatric cover for child protection cases including sexual abuse. The CQC rated this service 
as outstanding and CCHP was described as having a child and young person centred culture 
with children and young people being full partners in their care. 
 
Children are also seen in a range of other settings throughout NBT such as minor injuries 
and outpatient clinics but the Trust’s inpatient paediatric services transferred to University 
Hospitals Bristol in May 2014.  
 
Our Maternity services provide care for mothers and babies, with some mothers under the 
age of 18 themselves. Maternity services have developed a safeguarding team, consisting of 
three full time staff, with further development planned of perinatal health and bereavement 
support. Babies requiring specialist care are treated in Neonatal Intensive Care Unit. There is 
a 24 hour on call service provided by the Designated Supervisor of Midwifery to ensure there 
is safeguarding support for clinical staff at all times. 
 
Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 
 
The safeguarding of vulnerable adults remains a high priority for the Trust. This area of 
practice requires collaborative working with other health providers, health and social care 
commissioners and the local authority and the police. 
 



Over the last year the Trust has seen an increase from 100 to 214 in the number of 
referrals. The Trust has received three notifications of Serious Case Reviews but these have 
not reported to date. The Trust has also been involved in three Domestic Homicide Reviews 
and is delivering on the resulting action plans. 
 
The Trust has maintained its focus on Safeguarding Adults, Mental Capacity Act (including 
Deprivation of Liberty) Training which now includes PREVENT awareness, Domestic Abuse 
and Violence and Female Genital Mutilation, as well as Human Trafficking awareness. 
 
Safety and Quality Improvement work streams 
 
NBT is one of the 12 Pathfinder NHS organisations to the national Sign Up to Safety 
campaign. We are seeking to utilise the depth and breadth of our existing quality 
improvement and safety experience through the former Safer Patients Initiative and the 
South West Quality and Safety Programme to make a significant change to our approach to 
harm reduction.  
 
The Sign Up to Safety campaign provides an opportunity to introduce a single systems wide 
approach to reducing harm. After extensive discussion the Trust identified 4 key areas for 
targeted improvement work, which are:  
 
1. In-Patient Falls  
2. Pressure Ulcers  
3. Sepsis  
4. Acute Kidney Injury  
 
The approach also takes account of the significant and historic changes following the 
combination of acute services on to a single site and into a brand new hospital building.  
 
Learning achieved through discussions with our frontline teams, patient representatives and 
the quality improvement and safety experts within the organisation has been applied to 
create the Safety Improvement Plan and develop the Quality and Safety Improvement 
Faculty which was initiated at a workshop at the end of January 2015. 
 
General Wards Work Stream – Falls 
 

Serious falls can result in fractures, increased length of stay in hospital and, in severe cases, 
result in the death of a patient, so preventing and reducing the incidence of falls – especially 
serious falls – is an important priority. Not all falls are preventable but many can be avoided 
with good risk assessment, preventative interventions and the right training and support of 
staff. 

What we did last year: 
 

• Launch a new falls prevention bundle 
• New falls risk tool 
• Falls risk alert sticker 
• New intentional rounding tool 
• Enhanced observation 
• A new falls prevention care plan. 

 



The falls rate has increased by 9.6 percent despite these interventions being implemented. 
Other hospitals in the country which have moved to buildings with high numbers of single 
rooms have also experienced increases in their falls rates (of up to 50 percent in some 
cases). 
 
The majority of the increased serious injury falls occurred soon after the MOVE to the new 
hospital. The number of serious falls, however, has now been decreasing for the last five 
months. 
 
Ongoing work 2015/2016 

• Using technology. We are testing the use of bed and chair sensor alarms in the 
single rooms with the aim of reducing falls in patients who may not remember to call 
for assistance when they want to mobilise 

• Falls prevention training to all medical, nursing, pharmacy and therapy staff. Falls is 
one of the themes of our Sign Up to Safety Programme and training forms a 
substantial part of these plans 

• Moving and handling equipment to be purchased for all wards to encourage safe 
transfer of patients with poor mobility on and off the toilet 

• A campaign to ensure all inpatients wear safe footwear 
• Developing an Enhanced Care Nursing Team for patients with confusion who are at 

risk of falls, to provide increased observations 
• Working with the Dementia Team to ensure all wards have activities for patients with 

cognitive problems and a safe environment. 
 

Audit and Data Quality 
 
Participation in clinical audits 
 
NBT participated in all 32 of the 43 (74 percent) national clinical audits that covered services 
we provide and all four of the National Confidential Enquiries It also participated in 12 other 
national clinical audits and seven national registries that are not included in the Department 
of Health (DoH) list of audits for inclusion in the Quality Account. 
 
The Clinical Audit Committee reviewed reports of 27 national clinical audits between April 
2014 and March 2015 and NBT will take actions on them all to improve the quality of health 
care provided. 
 
Local Clinical Audit Reports  
 
Each local clinical audit is reviewed in accordance with the Clinical Audit Policy which states 
that every clinical audit project must produce a report in the Trust standardised format with 
an accompanying action plan. These are reviewed by senior members of the Quality 
Improvement and Clinical Audit Department before the clinical audit project is formally 
marked as completed. 114 Local Clinical Audit Reports were reviewed in this way during 
2014/15. 

Trust Data Quality 
 
Hospital episode statistics  
 
The Trust submits a wealth of information and monitoring data centrally to our 
commissioners and the Department of Health. The accuracy of this data is of vital 



importance to the Trust and the NHS to ensure high quality clinical care and accurate 
financial reimbursement. 
 
Our robust data quality reporting, controls and feedback mechanisms are routinely audited 
and help us monitor and maintain high quality data. 
 
Clinical coding accuracy 
 
Accurate Clinical Coding is an essential element of the Trust’s ability to understand its clinical 
activity, in terms of audit and mortality statistics and to ensure accurate reimbursement for 
care provided. 
 
The department’s clinical coding auditor has continued to run an extensive inpatient activity 
audit programme in 2014/15. The audits continue to reflect accurate coding and good 
practice in comparison to our peers. 
 
What other organisations say about the Trust 
 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

By law all trusts must be registered with the CQC for each of the regulated activities they 
provide at every one of their locations. 

The Trust has not taken part in any special reviews or investigations by the CQC but under 
its routine inspection programme we were visited in November 2014, just a few months 
after the move into the new hospital. The CQC had never before inspected a hospital so 
soon after such a big move but paid credit to the Trust for its smooth nature. Despite some 
well documented problems, which are being dealt with, patients are now reaping some 
important benefits from the new hospital such as very low infection rates and improved 
dignity and privacy.  
 
Within the final report, every single service was rated as being “good” in the context of 
caring and Trust staff were described by the CQC as being “committed and passionate.” 
Some areas were rated as providing outstanding services but overall the Trust received a 
‘requires improvement’ rating. Copies of the full reports for the Trust and each individual 
location inspected by the CQC are available publicly on its website: www.cqc.org.uk 

The CQC did raise concerns about overcrowding in the Emergency Department (ED) and 
issued a warning notice on December 16 2014 and rated this service as “inadequate” within 
the full inspection report received in February 2015. In addition nine compliance actions 
were made. 

Overcrowding in the Emergency Department is one of the symptoms of pressure across the 
health and social care system. The Trust frequently has large numbers of patients who are 
fit to be discharged from hospital but who can’t go home because their community care 
support isn’t ready. This in turn makes it challenging to free up beds and move patients 
from ED into the main hospital. The CQC has acknowledged that improving discharge 
processes for patients is not something the Trust can fix on its own and we are continuing 
to work with local commissioners and local authorities to resolve these challenges.  

 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/


Actions taken and future plans 

As required by the CQC’s inspection process, a detailed action plan was submitted in March 
2015 with many actions already delivered. Pending its review of these actions and a further 
spot check within the Emergency Department, the warning notice remains in place as at 31 
March 2015. 

We are working closely with partners across the local health and social care system to 
ensure a safe and well managed discharge once patients are well enough to leave the 
hospital. Delivery of all actions will be closely monitored by the Trust Board and also by the 
CQC and our commissioners to ensure that they are properly implemented and sustained. 

National peer review of Severn Major Trauma Network 
 
Our major trauma service was subjected to a national peer review in March 2015. The 
chairman of the panel summarised the findings by commending the improvement in trauma 
mortality outcomes against a background of huge infrastructure change. 
 
The network is currently sixth out of the 23 networks for mortality and NBT is ranked first 
for mortality out of the 23 major trauma centres. The network was also commended for 
leadership, the presence of 24-hour consultant team leaders, damage control surgery 
training and the development and delivery of high quality patient pathways in rib fracture 
fixation and spinal cord injury.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. REDEVELOPMENT OF OUR FACILITIES  

The big move  

2014/15 was a year of unprecedented change for North Bristol NHS Trust’s staff and 
patients.  

After many years of planning and construction the new Brunel building was officially handed 
over to the Trust by developers Carillion on March 26. 

Over the next two months a massive operation was undertaken which saw the Trust equip 
the building and thousands of staff take part in training and familiarisation tours before staff 
and patients began to move in during an unforgettable two weeks in May. 

The Brunel building saw services from Southmead and Frenchay centralised on one site for 
the first time.  

Specialist children’s services and remembering Frenchay  

Frenchay always had a strong history of children’s neurosciences and burns. One of the first 
big milestones was the move of these services and associated staff to the Bristol Children’s 



Hospital which would see, for the first time, all local hospital services (including accident and 
emergency) for children under one roof.  

On April 28 a special party was held at the Barbara Russell Children’s Ward ahead of its big 
move on May 7.  

Staff and patients (past and present) attended including 17-year-old Kray Mundy who was a 
patient at the unit in 2008 for several months after he suffered a serious stroke. His mum, 
Soniya said: “It’s a wonderful place and is like a second home to us. It is home, my bubble. 
The staff here are so wonderful.” 

Dr Amber Young, Lead for Specialist Paediatrics, said: “This is the end of a very long 
journey. I will miss the Barbara Russell Unit hugely but I am extremely excited about 
moving such a high quality specialist service to a nationally-renowned children’s hospital.” 

On May 8 hundreds of staff from Frenchay – many of whom worked at the hospital for their 
entire careers – gathered at the Redwood Restaurant for a celebration event which included 
the burial of a time capsule in the grounds by children from the local primary school which 
will be unearthed in 50 years.  

Patients move into the Brunel  

The first patients started moving into the Brunel during the week commencing May 12. 

The first patients were moved from C ward, the acute respiratory unit. They were wheeled 
through a tented walkway erected by a team from Royal Marines Reserve Bristol and into 
the new building by porters. 

Nurses from the Trust’s Learning & Research Centre were back in scrubs to help with the 
transfer of patients, with support from administrators from the department. They were 
joined by volunteer retired nurses who used to work for the trust and were involved in 
escorting patients into the new building. 

The team were involved in a combination of taking patients from the ward, helping with final 
checks and then taking them over to the Brunel and settling them in to their new rooms.  

Among the first patients to move across to the Brunel building was Sally Limb. Once she had 
settled into her new room in the Brunel Sally said she was impressed with the facilities. 

She said: “I love the private toilet and shower and I love that I can hang things up in a 
wardrobe. It is so airy and light and the air coming in, which is particularly good when you 
have respiratory problems. I think we are all excited to be here.” 

Once the first patients were settled in, our fantastic team of Move Makers started work. 
These are volunteers who are based near the main entrance who can help people get 
checked in for their appointments and guide people to where they need to be. Originally 
meant to be in place for a few weeks, the Move Makers have been so successful, they are 
now based here on a permanent basis. 

 



A&E moves and services transfer from Frenchay  

Perhaps one of the most anticipated elements of the move was the transfer of the Accident 
and Emergency (A&E) department from Frenchay to Southmead. This took place at exactly 
2am on Monday, May 19 when the Frenchay department closed its doors and the 
Southmead unit opened to patients. Before the department closed a poignant blessing was 
held by one of the hospital chaplains and staff released balloons into the night sky. 

Juliette Hughes, Matron, said: “We are really pleased with how the night has gone. We have 
been planning for this move for a long time and everything went as it should have.” 

The new department is much bigger with larger cubicles and better access to scanning and 
X-ray facilities, including a CT scanner actually located in the unit which is used for trauma 
and stoke patients. There is also a helipad right outside.  

Once A&E moved, staff and patients from the other wards and departments at Frenchay 
began the journey across the city. This started with the transfer of the intensive care unit 
when 19 patients were transported by the RAF’s large ambulance vehicle, which is known as 
a ‘jumbulance’.  

The Brunel: a bright future  

By May 28 all services, teams and departments were in place. In total 540 patients were 
successfully and safely moved into the building over the course of the two week period.  

And in October we became the specialist major arterial centre for patients in Bristol, Bath & 
North East Somerset, South Gloucestershire and some parts of Wiltshire and Somerset. 

The transfer of vascular surgery means that Southmead Hospital is now delivering 24/7 
multidisciplinary specialist vascular care inside the Brunel for both elective and emergency 
patients. This has led to a reduction in the time it takes for urgent cases to access theatre 
and patients spending less time in hospital after they have undergone their procedure. 

Despite some well documented issues and problems which have been dealt with, the Brunel 
building really is revolutionising how we care for patients who are now reaping many 
important benefits such as very low infection rates and improved dignity and privacy. 

Southmead Hospital redevelopment phase two 

The final phase of the Southmead site redevelopment is now underway. The former hospital 
buildings were demolished during the winter/spring of 2014/15.   

When Phase Two is complete one of the biggest improvements will be around on-site 
parking for patients, visitors and staff – bringing the total number of spaces up to 2,700 by 
spring 2016. 

A brand new multi-storey car park specifically for patients and visitors will be created right 
next door to the main entrance, enabling people to directly access the Brunel building under 
cover. 



Also included in the basement of the new multi-storey will be an on-site sterile services 
department. As an interim measure, the Trust has been renting a facility in nearby 
Almondsbury until this is ready.  

Frenchay site  

After the majority of services and departments moved from Frenchay to Southmead in May 
2014, work began on decommissioning the buildings in preparation for demolition. This has 
now been completed and demolition is scheduled to start from late summer/autumn 2015.  

The Trust Board has signed off decisions surrounding the future of the site. Having had an 
encouraging response from the market and started discussions with a preferred bidder, we 
are hoping to complete the sale of the site by the end of 2015. 

At this time we are progressing due diligence on the bid and an indicative programme of 
work is being drawn up. 

The site has planning permission for housing, a primary school and a health and social care 
centre (plans for which are being progressed by South Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group). A portion of land will be transferred to Winterbourne Parish Council 
for use as a town and village green. 

The bidder we are working with is solely focused on the housing aspect. 

In spring 2015, the last administrative staff left Frenchay Park House (formerly Trust 
Headquarters) and this has been sold to a local family.  

Payroll and Employment Services moved into the refurbished Burden Centre – now called 
Frenchay Beckspool Building. Two of the three remaining onsite clinical services – Headway 
and the Head Injury Therapy Unit, moved into the ground floor.  

The Brain Injury Rehabilitation Unit (BIRU) – operated by the Huntercombe Group – remains 
in its accommodation on site.  

Learning & Research extension  

The extension to the Learning & Research building was completed and handed over to the 
Trust in the summer of 2014. This development has been taken forward in partnership with 
the University of Bristol and the building provides accommodation for university laboratory-
based research teams.  

In addition, more learning and development facilities are now provided from the building – 
including an additional clinical skills laboratory and an expansion of the library. The building 
also provides accommodation for the Regional Quality Control Laboratory.  

In early 2015, the ground floor of the extension was equipped and now houses Trust 
Headquarters.  

 

 



Bristol Breast Care Centre and Macmillan Wellbeing Centre  

The new Bristol Breast Care Centre which provides screening, diagnosis and after-care 
support for cancer patients opened in summer 2014 at the Beaufort House building at 
Southmead. 
 
Alongside the Bristol Breast Care Centre is a new Macmillan Wellbeing Centre which provides 
emotional, practical and financial support for people affected by any type of cancer, their 
families, friends and carers. This opened in autumn 2014. 
 
The new Bristol Breast Care Centre provides all breast services for Bristol including 
screening, diagnoses and follow-up appointments. Key features of the Breast Care Centre 
include: 
 

• Modern, bright and comfortable environment making the most of natural light views 
of the outside 

• Dedicated exits through courtyards for patients following consultations to enable 
greater privacy 

• The centre is divided into separate areas allowing direct access to the two main 
clinical areas without patients having to pass through one area to reach another 

• Both screening and symptomatic areas have their own dedicated waiting and 
reception areas. 

 
Bristol Centre for Enablement  

The Disablement Services Centre, Wheelchair and Special Seating and Bristol 
Communication Aids Service moved to the new Bristol Centre for Enablement at specially 
adapted premises at Cribbs Causeway in spring 2014. The centre includes Prosthetics, 
orthotics services and environmental controls. 

Severn Pathology – Phase Two 

Work continues on phase two of the Severn Pathology building. The additional space is due 
for completion in autumn 2015. It will provide an extra 5,000 extra square metres of space 
with two linking bridges connecting to the existing pathology sciences building which opened 
in 2009.  

The new extension will house cellular pathology, neuropathology, genetics and microbiology 
services and Public Health England’s pathology services.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6. SUSTAINABILITY  
 
Over the past year the sustainability team has been adapting to life within the new Brunel 
building. We have embarked on an ambitious plan to introduce the environmental 
management system ISO14001 to the Facilities directorate.  We have established a Trust-
wide Sustainable Development Momentum Group to drive forward progress with our 
sustainability plans and we have been shortlisted and have won a number of significant 
awards for our work.   
 
In addition to ISO14001 which will be used to monitor environmental progress within 
Facilities, the Trust uses two key methods to assess and manage performance on 
sustainable development: 

• Good Corporate Citizen (GCC) – an assessment model used to help set and measure 
progress against sustainable development criteria 
 

• Sustainable Development Management Plan (SDMP) – a board-approved plan 
incorporating the GCC criteria together with other areas where the Trust can improve 
its sustainability. 

Whilst six monthly assessments against the Good Corporate Citizen criteria have been made, 
the Sustainable Development Management Plan has not been updated in recent years. This 
is now in progress and the Plan will incorporate the additional objectives and targets that 
will be set as part of the introduction of ISO14001. 
 
PROGRESS DURING 2014/15 
 
Good Corporate Citizen 

The Good Corporate Citizen assessment model was developed for Trusts to benchmark 
progress on sustainable development, not just by measuring fuel bills or waste but by 
evaluating sustainability across the board in financial, social and environmental terms.  It 
allows Trusts to measure how well their activities support sustainability both inside the 
organisation and outside in the community.  Assessment against the model was introduced 
as an obligation for all Trusts by the NHS Carbon Reduction Strategy.   

The assessment tool comprises eight sections: 

• Travel 
• Procurement 
• Facilities Management 
• Workforce 
• Community Engagement 
• Buildings 
• Adaptation (to climate change) 
• Models of Care 

Under each section there are six questions and for each question, three categories of 
performance: getting started, getting there and excellent. The more questions the Trust can 
answer yes to, the more points are accumulated. The graph below demonstrates the 
percentage of points the Trust has scored on the questions under that section. Every section 
and the majority of questions within the section include reference to reducing carbon 
emissions. By now the Trust should be achieving a score of 50% in each area and by 2020 a 



score of 75% in each area.  The assessment for 2014 highlights that the Trust has to make 
progress in a number of areas - our next assessment is due in June 2015. 
 

 
 
 
Sustainable Development Management Plan 
 
In line with the requirements of the NHS Carbon Reduction Strategy 2009, the Trust created 
a Sustainable Development Management Plan (SDMP) which was approved in March 2010.  
The Plan has been refined over time and is now in its third revision. It reflects the criteria 
within the Good Corporate Citizen model and suggested actions from the Carbon Reduction 
strategy together with internal Trust targets. We are in the process of developing an 
improved system for ensuring that responsibility for the actions in the Plan are assigned, 
monitored and reported back centrally.  
 
Carbon 
 
The Trust has not been monitoring its overall carbon footprint due to a lack of data for key 
areas such as procurement. In line with our policy commitments, however, we will establish 
systems to monitor and reduce our carbon emissions during this financial year. 
 
Waste 
 
In line with our Environmental Policy the Trust is committed to monitoring and reducing the 
environmental impact of the waste we produce.   
 
We produce a significant quantity of waste and the treatment and disposal of waste 
produced by the Trust has a negative impact on the environment, with a large proportion of 
waste being treated (incinerated/autoclaved) or sent to landfill.  
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Waste minimisation, re-use and recycling all have environmental benefits by reducing the 
consumption of raw materials, saving energy and limiting both landfill and incineration.   
 
Once our infectious waste has been treated (autoclaved), it is shredded and sent by our 
contractor for use as a feedstock for cement kilns. Our domestic waste stream (everything 
that doesn’t go into a recycling bin) is taken to a mechanical biological treatment plant in 
Avonmouth where recyclables are extracted, the organic fraction removed for onwards 
processing and the remainder is burnt to derive energy.  
 
The Trust regularly reviews the waste streams being produced and how these can be better 
managed. The items collected for recycling/recovery/reuse include paper, cans/tins/foil, 
batteries, waste furniture and many more. Food waste passes through three waste digesters 
containing enzymes which break it down into grey water which leaves site via the sewer 
system. This avoids greenhouse gases which would otherwise be generated from 
transporting it off-site for composting or treating it at sewage treatment plants. 
 
We have introduced the tiger bag stream for non-infectious patient waste from certain areas 
such as maternity, Saplings nursery and Trust toilets and currently divert 15% down this 
route.  We will be rolling this out into suitable areas during 2015 and are hoping to achieve 
closer to 30% segregation. This waste goes to deep landfill rather than autoclaving.   
 
We will be trialling a reusable sharps bin system in 2015. This will reduce sharps injuries, 
cost and the environmental impacts of burning vast quantities of plastic sharps bins. We will 
also be investigating the benefits of an inhaler recycling scheme (rather than incineration) 
and the use of devices which reduce the volume of liquid clinical waste. 
 
At the time of producing this report we had not received annual data from all of our waste 
contractors. Graphs following on from last year’s report can be found below, however, an 
updated version once all data has been received will be made available on the Trust’s 
Sustainable Development internet pages. The waste streams which are missing or for which 
we have incomplete data are: scrap metal, waste catering oil, waste electrical equipment, 
ink/toner cartridges, plaster waste, linen, chemicals and batteries. 
 
 

 
The graphs this year show an increase in some waste disposal routes. This is due to the 
move into the new Brunel building where a large number of clear-outs have occurred, even 
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post-move. This is expected to settle over the next year. The missing data is expected to 
boost our recycling figures so that they are closer to the tonnages seen in 2013/14. 
 
The work the Trust did with clearance specialist Benji and Co. on the waste generated 
through vacating buildings at Frenchay and Southmead before the move into the new 
hospital building has resulted in us being shortlisted for the Healthcare Recycler of the Year 
category of the National Recycling Awards. 
 
Energy  
 
In line with our Environmental Policy, the Trust is committed to monitoring and reducing our 
environmental impact of our energy use.   

This year has seen significant changes to the whole of the NBT Estate culminating in the 
transition of services into the new Brunel Building at Southmead. 

This has resulted in the reduction of energy consumption on other areas of the existing 
estate, in particular the Frenchay site, where the majority of services over the year were 
transferred away.  Overall energy consumption across the total estate has increased slightly 
over the previous year, with a subsequent rise in CO2e emissions (scopes 1,2) over the 
2013/14 period. The reported CO2e emission figures are for electricity, gas, biomass and oil 
consumed. 

 
 

Overall consumption has slightly increased over the year (electricity, gas and oil) by two 
percent. Although there has been a noticeable increase in electrical consumption across the 
estate there has also been a noticeable reduction in gas consumption leading to the overall 
net increase of 2 percent. The closure of Frenchay has resulted in offsite properties taking 
on some of the specialist services that are currently not provided at the Southmead site until 
Phase II of the Southmead Redevelopment Scheme.    

With the opening of the Brunel Building, we are working closely with The Hospital Company, 
Southmead, in identifying opportunities to assist in reducing the overall energy consumption 
of the Trust. An Energy Policy and Strategy will be developed to assist in the overall 
management of energy across the Trust. 

The Brunel Building has a dedicated Building Management System (BMS) which enables us 
to control heating, lighting and operational consumption of the building. We will interrogate 
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available energy data to compare specific areas of the building and its energy usage, and 
see how policy, monitoring and measurement effects consumption. Similarly, the Trust will 
also look to utilise the existing BMS system monitoring the additional Trust buildings to 
identify areas for potential energy saving. 

100% of half hourly electricity provided by our supplier is renewable and comes from a 
mixture of wind and solar power.  Likewise, an additional 20% of our energy supply to the 
Brunel Building is renewable and is supplied by our biomass boiler. 
 
We have also installed a new 84kWh solar photovoltaic system on the roof of the Learning 
and Research Building to contribute towards our renewable energy generation. 
 
We are currently reviewing the internal and external lighting provision across our sites to 
save energy by switching to lower energy LEDs where possible. We are also improving roof 
insulation in various buildings across the Southmead site to further improve energy 
efficiency. 

Water  

The Trust is committed to monitoring and reducing the environmental impact of the amount 
of water we consume. 

We consume a significant volume of water from sinks, showers, toilets, hydro-pools,  
autoclaving, cleaning and for irrigation to maintain our green spaces.  We monitor our water 
consumption closely through our online metering systems. Working closely with Bristol 
Water, we review our consumption levels regularly and if we notice any increase in water 
consumption or water pressure, we will work to identify any potential leaks or issues and 
resolve them as a priority. The new Brunel Building includes water efficient appliances, a 
grey water recycling system and a green roof which reduces surface water runoff. 

 

There has been a significant reduction in water consumed across the Trust in the previous 
year. We are able to attribute significant areas of this reduction to the decommissioning of 
Frenchay Hospital, hand in hand with the opening of the Brunel Building. Through the 
removal of old water systems/pipework at both Frenchay and Southmead, we have been 
able to identify and therefore eliminate historic and often undetected areas of the sites that 
had leaking water systems.   
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Travel  

We have adopted a new Travel Plan (2013 to 2018) to increase the use of alternative travel 
options here at the Trust. 
  
The aims and objectives of our new Travel Plan are: 

• To reduce the number of single occupancy vehicle journeys made to the hospital by 
private car 

• To improve travel choices and make them safe and accessible to all 
• To encourage healthy, environmentally sustainable travel choices. 

A number of measures have already been taken to change how people travel to Trust sites, 
with particular emphasis on reducing single occupancy vehicle travel and increasing the 
number of cyclists, walkers and public transport users. 
 
Our Car Parking Policy has been instrumental in encouraging changes in the way that staff 
travel to work. The Policy included a new staff parking permit scheme, enforcement and 
terms and conditions of parking with the aim of controlling parking and regulating the 
number of staff bringing a car to site. With the Board in full support of the permit scheme, 
the Trust is able to determine the eligibility of applicants by establishing a set of criteria 
based on distance from site and certain work needs based issues.  
 
In conjunction with the new Car Parking Policy, the Trust has been promoting alternative 
travel options to support staff choosing to travel to work by more sustainable modes of 
transport.  
 
The Trust actively promotes cycling to members of staff as a sustainable travel option.   
 
Our latest staff travel survey undertaken in autumn 2014 found that 20% of staff are now 
cycling to work, an increase of five percent since 2012. It is hoped the continued planned 
expansion of cycling facilities and secure cycle storage will further increase numbers of 
cyclists.   
 
The Trust is working with local authorities and bus companies to improve and increase the 
bus network that services our sites including discounted bus tickets for staff. This is critical 
to helping staff with their journeys to work, but will also enable visitors and patients to have 
a viable option other than bringing their car to site.  
 
For the public the Trust has an internet site that gives travel information on how to get to 
our sites by various means. There are hyperlinks to useful external sites such as Traveline, 
Transport Direct, First buses, Wessex Connect and various others.   
 
Information leaflets that include site maps are also sent out with appointments that give a 
variety of information.  
 
The Trust promotes car sharing through the Liftshare scheme which members of staff can 
join free of charge and through regular Car Share Café’s. Our link with Liftshare provides a 
search engine for staff looking to car-share with other commuters going the same way.   
 
Another facility provided is in the form of Co-Wheels and City Car Club cars. This popular 
resource is available to all who need to use a vehicle as part of their work but who either do 



not have a car or do not want to drive to work in order to have a vehicle to use for work 
purposes.  
 
The Trust is also supporting the Bristol electric vehicle network through the provision of a 
rapid electric vehicle charging point on site at Southmead Hospital. Two further electric 
points will be available to staff and visitors on completion of Phase 2 works.  
 
In order to promote the sustainable travel options available, a dedicated Travel Team exists 
to further encourage staff and visitors to adopt sustainable methods of travel. The team 
provide information for staff and the public on a wide variety of forms of transport. 
 
Travel West hold regular travel roadshows raising awareness of the alternative options 
available for staff. In addition, the Travel Team always attend the fortnightly Corporate 
Induction meetings for new members of staff and can provide personal travel plans on 
request.  
 
In an effort to reduce travelling altogether the Trust encourages and has seen good take-up 
of the use of teleconferencing and videoconferencing facilities provided at the Frenchay and 
Southmead sites.   

  
Food 
 
In line with our Environmental Policy commitment to reduce the environmental impact of the 
food we serve to patients and staff, the Trust has committed to source local, organic, 
seasonal and Fairly Traded food wherever we can.  
 
Each day around 2,500 patient meals are prepared fresh on-site by our chefs and much of 
the food comes from the local area – reducing the Trust’s carbon footprint and supporting 
local businesses. 
 
We proudly continue to hold the Soil Association Food for Life Catering Mark Silver Award for 
patient meals and plans are underway to identify the necessary steps to apply for the Gold 
Award and achieve the Soil Association accreditation in our staff restaurant.  
 
To achieve the Gold Award, we need to increase our percentage spend on organic (15%), 
free range, Fairtrade and locally produced ingredients. 
 
In February 2015, we won the Silver Fairtrade Business Award for our work promoting 
Fairtrade products in our staff restaurant at Southmead. Awards were presented to 
organisations in the South West who have demonstrated commitment to promoting 
Fairtrade products and raising awareness amongst staff on the social, ethical and 
environmental reasons behind Fairtrade. 
 
Further recognition of the good work we have done to reduce the environmental impact of 
the food we provide was receiving the NHS Sustainability Award for Food in April 2015.  
 
Engaging the local community on sustainability  
 
The Trust is committed to engage staff, patients, visitors, stakeholders, partners, contractors 
and the wider local community on sustainability and the links to health and wellbeing, we 



held our first Sustainability Fair in the new Brunel Building to mark the annual NHS 
Sustainability Day on 26 March 2015.  
 
There are numerous public health co-benefits from climate change adaptation and 
mitigation measures, making health and wellbeing crucial to the delivery of sustainable 
development within North Bristol NHS Trust. The mutual benefits realised from a healthy 
workforce combined with our objectives to reduce our impact on the local environment will 
combine to deliver a sustainable healthcare system.  
 

Climate change adaptation and mitigation 
 
The Trust’s Environmental Policy commits us to adopt climate change adaptation and 
mitigation measures to deliver a resilient healthcare service for the future. 
 
As a Trust, we must first reduce our carbon footprint to mitigate the effects of climate 
change. By adopting sustainable models of care and shifting the emphasis of patient care 
closer to home to improve the patient experience, we will reduce the need to travel and the 
emission of greenhouse gases in the first instance.  
 
We will be preparing for and adapting to climate change by planning for the vulnerabilities 
of our healthcare service, our staff and our patients to climate impact risks. We are working 
with Emergency Planning to ensure business continuity, severe weather and resilience 
planning to review how our health care service will become resilient to localised climate 
change impacts such as extreme weather events, and potential shortages of fuel, water and 
food.  
 
Future plans 
 
The Environmental Management System (EMS) will continue to drive forward continuous 
environmental improvement across the Trust in line with our Environmental Policy 
commitments outlined above.  
 
The EMS will achieve this through setting objectives and targets in line with our Policy 
commitments, identifying and managing our significant environmental aspects and impacts, 
setting action plans and undertaking internal audits which will be externally verified to the 
ISO14001 certification mark. From 2016, we will report our sustainability and environmental 
data against our policy objectives and targets.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. MAKING NBT A GREAT PLACE TO WORK  
 
The Trust’s approach to workforce planning has focused on integrating business planning 
process with the resources required to deliver our quality, safety, performance and financial 
objectives ensuring the right people have the right skills and are in the right place to deliver 
our activity plan for 2015/16.  



Workforce planning has been focused on reviewing and refining the staffing requirements 
which can be flexed to the needs of the Trust following the move to the new Brunel 
building. These requirements have been characterised either by new roles, different 
numbers of staff or different ways of working.  

 
Planning has been led by clinicians and service managers in each area to ensure that 
quality, safety, performance and affordability requirements are met. The extent of the 
changes and consequent movement of staff has been unprecedented and resulted in very 
close working between clinical and corporate teams.  

 
In addition there have also been a number of services transferring in and out of the Trust. 
This has included community specialist children’s services at Church House and specialist 
paediatrics services transferring to UH Bristol with Breast Care Services including all planned 
surgery, associated outpatient appointments and breast screening services transferring to 
the Trust last year.  

Urology Services also moved to NBT which includes complex surgery and simple day case 
operations with outpatient appointments offered at Southmead, Cossham and Thornbury 
Hospitals, Portishead, Bristol Royal Infirmary, South Bristol Community Hospital, and 
Clevedon Hospital. 

The development of these service changes were led from the start by our senior doctors and 
nurses and involved patients, carers and the wider public in their design 

The People and Organisation Health directorate continued to work closely with clinical 
directorates and finance to ensure the workforce and finance planning process achieved an 
affordable and operationally sustainable workforce plan for 2015/16. The focus will then 
move to achieving the efficiencies made possible by the Brunel building and working on a 
single site. 
 
The last year saw the wider implementation of electronic rostering across a number of areas 
including portering, catering, domestics and theatre nursing. The Trust now has over 4,000 
staff on e-rostering, 3,000 of which are paid electronically. The Trust is aiming to have all 
4,000 staff paid electronically by summer 2015. The process of electronic payroll replaces 
the reliance on paper generated processing and thereby reducing pay errors and the overall 
cost of administration. The next phase of e-rostering will be to ensure it is embedded as 
part of the Trust’s workforce management strategy. 
 
The Trust has also implemented SafeCare, a software system that enables us to understand 
the nursing staffing levels required on each inpatient ward in the context of patient 
need. This then means that evidence-based staffing decisions can be made on each shift 
and can easily conduct reviews of funded establishments leading to assurance of safe 
staffing levels in which the Trust Board is keenly wanting to be made aware of on a routine 
basis. In achieving this we are complying with expectations set out by the National Quality 
Board. 
 
Recruiting a flexible workforce   
 
Over the past year the Human Resources recruitment team have processed an 
unprecedented volume of applicants - 28,000 job applications with over 2,000 new medical 
and non-medical staff appointed. The team is now deploying robust recruitment approaches 



to address recruitment shortfalls. This has included the recruitment of a cohort of Spanish 
nurses which have been welcomed to the Trust.   
 
The recruitment team has reviewed all of its internal processes and increased its capacity to 
recruit higher volumes of new starters in a shorter time period during the coming year in 
response to the needs of the organisation. 
 
Following full evaluation the Trust has agreed the full rollout of Value Based Recruitment for 
all vacancies which is scheduled to start in June 2015. The evaluation has demonstrated that 
Value Based Recruitment manages new starter’s expectations of roles and as a result has 
reduced staff turnover by around 19%.  The rollout will initially include all non-medical 
posts, however, this will be extended to include consultants, junior doctors and senior 
recruitment over the coming year.  The work the Trust has done around Value Based 
Recruitment has achieved national profile and the team have been asked to talk about its 
work at a number of national events. 
 
NBT eXtra, the Trusts temporary staffing service has continued to deliver a high quality 
service to the Trust managing an unprecedented demand for temporary staff. In the past 
year the service has taken on the management of all the temporary staffing needs of the 
Facilities Management Directorate providing over 370,000 hours of ancillary staff. 
 
Listening to and engaging our staff 
 
The Trust received the results of the 2014 national annual staff survey in early 2015.  
Disappointingly, the response rate was significantly lower than in previous years, 25 percent.  
There was a change to the methodology last year, with most staff receiving the survey 
electronically as opposed to hard copy.  The response rate may also have been affected by 
the implementation in 2014 of the Staff Friends and Family Test. 
 
Our top ranking scores were: 
 

• The percentage of staff receiving job relevant training, learning or development in the 
last 12 months 

• The percentage of staff able to contribute towards improvements at work 
• Our bottom ranking scores were: 
• The percentage of staff agreeing that the feedback from patients/service users is 

used to make informed decisions in their directorate/department 
• The percentage of staff reporting errors, near misses or incidents witnessed in the 

last month 
• The percentage of staff suffering work related stress in the last 12 months. 

 
In addition, the Trust implemented the Staff Friends and Family Test in accordance with the 
national guidance. Staff were asked two questions and the results are provided below.  All 
staff were surveyed in all quarters. There was no survey in Quarter 3 as the questions were 
covered in the National Staff Attitude Survey. 
 

• How likely are you to recommend North Bristol NHS Trust to friends and 
family if they needed care or treatment? (the results of which are shown 
below)  

 
 
 



 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 4 
Response rate 8% 23% 19% 
Likely/Extremely likely 61% 60% 66% 
Neither likely nor 
unlikely 

19% 22% 19% 

Unlikely/Extremely 
unlikely 

19% 16% 14% 

Don’t know 1% 1% 1% 
 

• How likely are you to recommend North Bristol NHS Trust to friends and 
family as a place to work? (the results of which are shown below)  
 
 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 4 
Response rate 8% 22% 19% 
Likely/Extremely likely 38% 39% 46% 
Neither likely nor 
unlikely 

19% 22% 22% 

Unlikely/Extremely 
unlikely 

41% 35% 31% 

Don’t know 1% 1% 1% 
 
In addition, staff were able to provide reasons for their responses.  The main themes 
emerging were: 
 

• Access to work - parking and travel 
• Staff engagement - morale, communication, culture 
• Leadership and management 
• Staffing levels 
• Working environment 
• Career progression and job security 

 
Over the last year, a key focus has been on improving staff experience making the Trust a 
great place to work 
 
Staff wellbeing 
 
The Trust recognises the importance of staff engagement and wellbeing as a key enabler in 
helping create a positive organisational climate which ensures NBT achieves its overall 
business strategy.   
 
Quarterly staff surveys encourage staff to respond to the questions: ‘Would you recommend 
NBT as a place to be treated?’ and ‘Would you recommend NBT as a place to work?’  
 
Detailed analysis of survey feedback over 2014 has provided an understanding of the main 
themes arising from staff comments, which has formed the basis for the ‘2014 Staff 
Experience Report’ detailing staff feedback and enabling a ‘You said; we did & are doing’ 
approach. 
 
The Staff Wellbeing Strategy, designed during 2014, has a proactive and preventative focus, 
recognising that it is too late to wait until staff go out sick before action is taken. It supports 
staff to take responsibility for their own health as well as promoting health and wellbeing 



and providing prevention, intervention and rehabilitation services through five strategic 
objectives which cover: 
 
• An enhanced experience of working at the Trust to improve staff health and wellbeing 
• Stronger individual ownership of personal health and wellbeing 
• More effective staff contribution to workplace improvement 
• Fit-for-purpose health and wellbeing services for staff at the Trust 
• Reduction in sickness absence levels. 
 
The strategy set out a five year vision to deliver a working environment that will enable staff 
to be Happy, Healthy and Here. The annual strategic goals have been organised into three 
areas of ownership, Trust, Managerial and Individual, to reflect the understanding that staff 
wellbeing is everyone’s responsibility.   
 
The actions undertaken to improve staff experience, engagement and wellbeing over the 
last year included: 
 

• The introduction of a wellbeing session at Corporate Induction  
• The creation of a wellbeing champions network which so far includes 300 members 
• A quarterly staff experience newsletter promoting ‘Zest4Life’ the Trust’s staff 

wellbeing website which includes a directory of wellbeing services and support 
covering free monthly money advice sessions, breathing space meditation classes, 
clubs and fitness sessions such as the Trust’s football team, walk to run club, onsite 
adult ballet and zumba classes 

• Collaboration and promotion of community links and health support, including the 
Happiness Project 

• staff wellbeing events, including stress awareness and back care week 
• Tailor made free wellbeing workshops, at manager’s request, supporting both mental 

and physical wellbeing 
• a huddles pilot, leading the way in staff wellbeing and communication on the wards 
• launch of ‘MyTrustBenefits’ discount brochure and website, offering a wide range of 

national discounts along with discounts to over 100 local business. 
 
Rewarding our staff 
 
As part of improving staff experience, particular focus was given to the development and 
communication of the staff reward package, based on survey evidence that awareness of 
the reward package was low amongst staff.  
 
Activities included: 
 

• Creating a central web page with links to all elements of the reward package 
• In October 2014 we launched total reward statements for all staff to access their 

personal benefits statements online 
• We negotiated 100+ discounts with local businesses to be included in a new staff 

discount brochure. This was launched in November 2014 
• We created a sustainable website for cashback and discounts on purchases that 

creates revenue from brand commission to spend on staff benefit development, by 
partnering with MyTrustBenefits 

• Reward briefings for staff working in community locations 
• Development of a five year pay and reward strategy.  

 



Developing our staff 
 
In March 2014 the Learning and Development team were awarded the Skills for Health 
Quality Mark in recognition of their excellent delivery of teaching and learning.  
The Quality Mark endorses the quality of the delivery of training and learning and its 
suitability for the health sector. 
 
The assessors said of the Trust’s training team that they “deliver teaching and learning to a 
very high standard and are passionate about what they do and all team members strive to 
ensure that the learner experience is of high quality, fit for purpose and enjoyable.”  
Further, they identified that in NBT we really support our home grown staff.  
 
We are actively promoting the quality of education, as the reason for working in NBT. We 
are targeting all potential sources of future employees from school, college, job centre, 
marketing via NHS jobs, out turn from university and wider marketing, with specific targeted 
work for young people to meet future workforce needs, and also encourage diversity of 
opportunities for our wider and potential workforce for the future. We are committed to 
developing our staff and providing learning opportunities to support development at all 
levels. The national Learning and Development Agreement, with Health Education England, 
sets out how we work in partnership with our universities and colleges in the support of our 
undergraduate and post-graduate students - our future workforce. 
 
We have valuable local schools partnerships which continue to grow with our work 
experience programme, offering over 100 students a year work experience, taster sessions 
and support at schools and colleges and careers events which offer insights into a range of 
career options. This is ably supported by our ambassadors, people of all walks of life in the 
NHS who are keen to support and inspire our future workforce. 
 
We are keen to grow our own talented workforce, working with the support of national and 
local programmes, utilising apprenticeships, widening participation strategies, and attraction 
programmes such as work experience. 

In October 2014, we were awarded the Fair Train Quality Standard for the quality of our 
work experience in NBT. We are the first NHS organisation to be recognised in this way. 

We have run pre nursing courses, which has given ten health care assistants the opportunity 
to have support in applying for university. 

Our successful partnership with Job Centre Plus goes from strength to strength with results 
in supporting people into work.  
 
We continue to feature in nominations and places at awards and celebrations both for the 
education we provide and for our individual learners, at local and regional levels. 
 
Building on our successful apprenticeship programmes is important to us, with delivery 
through the NBT centre for Health, Business Administration, and Functional Skills (literacy 
and numeracy), and through our South West Apprenticeship Training Provider Partnership, 
we continue to lead the way in delivering traineeships, not just in the NHS, but across all 
sectors. 
 
We have supported access to nurse training for our experienced assistant practitioners and 
health care assistants who want to progress onto registered nurse, recognising their 
contribution and potential as staff nurses in the future. We are welcoming our newly 



qualified staff nurses by making the recruitment more straightforward and actively 
encouraging them to come and work for NBT while considering their future careers and 
once employed by NBT, making sure they have support to make the transition from student 
to staff nurse. 

We are supporting nurses to return to their profession and regain registration through our 
Return to Practice programme which has yielded 12 registered nurses which are encouraged 
to remain in employment in NBT.  

During 2014, we have further developed our education partnerships, with our local 
universities and further education colleges to ensure that we have access to a range of 
accredited training for our multidisciplinary workforce. Our key programmes include 
leadership development with the NHS Leadership Academy UWE Business School and Exeter 
Consulting, in the delivery for the second year of our successful regional leadership for 
Improving Frontline Talent, (on behalf of the South West region), our professional 
development modules with UWE and University of Bristol in delivering master degree level 
modules, our supervisory sister programme accredited by UWE, and our valued Further 
Education Colleges, Weston College, South Gloucestershire and Stroud College (SGS), North 
Somerset Enterprise and Technology College, and City of Bristol College, for example. 
 
The Post-Graduate Medical Education Quality Improvement (QI) programme continues to 
grow and now incorporates senior medical trainees. Following a successful bid to the 
Regional Innovation Fund we have trained a further 15 mentors and will be running another 
mentor day in June.   
 
We have recently appointed a Simulation Education Fellow (HESW funded) for an initial one 
year contract that will be responsible for developing a programme of simulation and human 
factors based training to multi-disciplinary teams in the ward/department environment. This 
post will support the Trust’s Sign Up to Safety initiative by targeting areas of known risk and 
specific incidents identified through RCAs. 
 
In addition to this, patient safety and quality remains a core element of all training and now 
includes human factors and we plan to introduce this in all our programmes ranging from 
corporate and clinical induction through to bespoke directorate sessions whilst aligning this 
to the work being undertaken on the novice to expert pathways and the role of the 
advanced practitioner.  
 
During 2014 we continued to see a drop in the numbers of patients who have had a cardiac 
arrest and remain well below the national average (NCAA 2014). We also provided 
resuscitation training to 4,156 staff as part of their mandatory training programme, which is 
an increase on the previous year.  
 
Following another excellent outcome of the NHS Library Quality Assurance Framework Peer 
Review for library service provision, we continue to deliver core knowledge management 
and library resource services for NBT and other NHS and public health organisations.   
 
We have a vibrant multidisciplinary and multi-professional environment and we strive to 
ensure that all staff have access to our facilities and have the appropriate support to help 
them with their induction or their further studies, as well as direct support for clinical teams. 
 
 
 
 



Ensuring equality and diversity for all staff 
 
In driving our commitment to enable the Trust to be a high performing, healthy organisation 
considerable focus and energy has been given to promoting an equal and diverse workforce, 
tackling discrimination when and wherever it occurs. The Trust is recognised for its positive 
reputation for equality work and often provides advice and guidance to other NHS bodies, 
public and private sector organisations. 
 
In particular, over the last year we have:  
 

• Black and Minority Ethnic Staff career development work included matching NBT 
board members and senior managers as mentors, offering recruitment training and 
the opportunity to assess applicants for HCA posts through Valued Based recruitment 
sessions. A BME member of staff now chairs this group 

• Disabled Staff Development group has identified areas that NBT need to look at and 
members have been invited to be assessors at the Valued Based recruitment 
sessions. A Disabled member of staff now chairs this group 

• Improved the quantity and quality of staff receiving equality and diversity training. 
3125  staff (an increase of 44% from 2013) received this training through Corporate 
Induction, completing the Trust’s e-learning training or participating in specific 
equality and diversity training courses 

• The Two Ticks Disability symbol was reviewed by Job Centreplus and awarded for a 
further year  

• Promoted and held equality events throughout the year to raise awareness and 
promote understanding of race, disability (including mental health), sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity. Chinese New Year and World Mental Health Day were 
also marked 

• Equality newsletter produced and widely distributed 
• Provided support for staff though the harassment and bullying advice live. 

 
Health and Safety 
 
A number of health and safety procedures and issues have been reviewed and implemented 
during the year and these include: 

• The appointment of responsible and deputy responsible persons under the Control of 
Asbestos Regulations, particularly important during a period of large scale 
demolitions 

• Systems to control contractors’ safety procedures with 90% of contractors trained in 
hospital environment risks 

• Transfer from the Health and Safety Department to a Trust Technical Compliance 
Lead of assurance on the PFI contractor’s control of its risks 

• Ratification of more than a dozen health and safety policies 
 
In addition the management processes for Health and Safety in the Trust were audited by 
the British Safety Council and the Department was pleased to receive the highest standard 
of five stars. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Our policies 
 
We continue to work in partnership with staff to develop and update new key policies, which 
clearly set out management and staff responsibilities. Some of the policies and practices 
updated and introduced over the last year include: 
 

• Terms and Conditions Handbook 
• Rostering Policy 
• Professional Registration Policy 
• Recruitment and Selection Policy 
• Uniform and Dress Code Policy 
• Equality and Diversity Policy 
• Harassment and Bullying Policy 
• Disciplinary Policy 
• No Smoking Policy 
• Study Leave Policy 
• Appraisal Policy 

 
In addition, training was provided to support organisational change and a new skills 
programme introduced to help managers manage sickness absence. 
 
Medical revalidation 
 
In the last year the Trust has increased engagement with medical appraisal and at year end 
92% of medical appraisals took place on time with the remaining 8% having three months 
within which to complete and still maintain compliance with the NHS England requirement 
for appraisal compliance.   
 
The Trust has further supported appraisers through appraiser professional development 
events with two full day workshops taking place and a further two planned in 2015. The 
events were well received with some very positive feedback from attendees. The Trust has 
developed its process of quality assurance of appraisal and will be implementing processes 
designed this year in 2015 that will further support appraisers in their role but also ensure 
appraisees receive a high quality appraisal.   
 
In working closely with clinical governance Human Resource’s reporting on supporting 
information for appraisal for medical staff has improved with the revalidation team providing 
four supporting information reports (clinical audit, complaints, incidents and fitness to 
practice concerns) for every doctor. The team has been preparing throughout the year to 
achieve Independent Verification of its processes for medical revalidation from NHS England 
and the assessment day will take place in summer 2015. Independent Verification will be 
required every five years and this is NBTs first time since revalidation was enacted in 
December 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8. WORLD LEADING RESEARCH  
 
The Trust has a significant and growing research portfolio with more than 280 researchers 
delivering around 450 research studies in the past year, including 48 commercial trials.  
Established research strengths in musculoskeletal, infection and immunology, 
neurosciences, diabetes, respiratory medicine and urology continue to be supported 
alongside emerging strengths in anaesthetics, obstetrics and gynaecology and stroke 
research.  
 
We continue to deliver our three existing highly prestigious National Institute for Health 
Research (NIHR) programme grants, each worth £2 million alongside ten other NIHR 
research grants worth an additional £8.5million. 
 
In 2014 we were awarded five new NIHR grants, four of these from the NIHR Research for 
Patient Benefit funding stream in the areas of musculoskeletal disease, respiratory disease 
and microbiology. The fifth is from the highly prestigious NIHR Programme Grants for 
Applied Research funding stream which aims to investigate better post-operative 
prevention and management for chronic pain after total knee replacement, worth £1.9m. 
 
In addition to NIHR funding, NBT has secured €3.9m funding as part of an EU consortium 
bid focused on Combatting Bacterial Resistance in Europe. 
 
Our research aims and priorities over the next five years continue to be: 
 
1: Be world-leading - actively participate in Bristol Health Partners, in which world-class 
clinical services, research and innovation and teaching are strategically and operationally 
integrated across the city 
 
2: Deliver high quality research of direct patient benefit - support our staff to deliver high 
quality translational and applied health services research of direct patient benefit 
 
3: Embed a research culture in clinical service delivery - develop a culture across NBT in 
which research and innovation are embedded in and aligned with routine clinical services, 
leading to significant health gains and efficiency improvements in health services delivery 
 
4: Increase research income - increase the income from research and innovation and use 
that income in support of our strategic aims. 
 
Collaborating across the city 
 
Since 2012 a formal collaboration, Bristol Health Partners, exists between the city’s three 
NHS trusts (Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust, North Bristol NHS 
Trust and University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust), the three local clinical 
commissioning groups (Bristol, South Gloucestershire and North Somerset CCGs) the two 
universities (University of Bristol and the University of the West of England) and Bristol City 
Council.  
 
Bristol Health Partners aims to improve the health of those who live in and around Bristol 
and to improve the delivery of the services on which they rely, and to act as a mechanism 
for change in the local health and care community and city region. Its shared vision is for 
those who live in and around Bristol to enjoy the highest possible quality of life and 
experience of care, helping Bristol and its health and care system to be known for: 



• Equality of access, experience and outcome 
• Excellence in research 
• Promotion of innovation 
• Connectedness and collaboration 

 
NBT is leading the integration work in the areas of musculoskeletal disease, Parkinson’s and 
movement disorders, chronic kidney disease and dementia.  

 
In addition, NBT is also an integral member of the West of England Academic Health Science 
Network (WEAHSN), whose core work streams are: 

 
• Improving patient safety – building on the successful South West programme 
• Quality improvement – supporting the spread of good practice to realise service 

improvements 
• Enterprise and Translation- supporting adoption of new technologies and solutions to 

benefit patients 
• Connecting patient data across the system for increased patient benefit  
 
The WEAHSN was accredited in 2013 for five years. 
 
NBT is a partner in the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) Collaboration for 
Leadership in Applied Health Research and Care (CLAHRC) West working to conduct 
applied health research and implement research evidence, to improve health and health 
care across the West of England. NBT is leading 2 projects into chronic renal disease and 
equity of care. 
 
NBT are leading the way for joint working across the West of England region with key 
partnership NHS Trusts and the Clinical Research Network: West of England (CRN WofE). 
An exciting collaboration around a clinical trial in maternity services has set best practise 
examples for large scale trial delivery across the region. 
 
Building a strong research infrastructure 
 
The Clinical Research Centre (CRC) at Southmead Hospital has been open for just under a 
year now and is a key part of clinical research delivery at NBT. The first patient 
appointment took place in May 2014 and since then around 2,000 patients have been 
seen. The CRC brings together researchers from all disciplines from across the Trust 
enabling them to work together more closely to share best practice and encourage 
collaboration. The centre ensures our patients are given the best possible experience of 
taking part in a research study whilst being given additional advice and support relevant to 
the study and their diagnosis. 
 
The second phase of the Learning & Research building is finished and now houses clinical 
sciences researchers from the University of Bristol in addition to NBT researchers.  
 
The dedicated neuroscience clinical research facility at Southmead is due to open mid-2015 
and is the final part of the restructuring work to bring together research across NBT in to 
one hub.  
 
The NBT Science Quarter will be officially launched in spring 2015 to celebrate this new 
hub for health research. This is providing an excellent opportunity to advance clinical 



research supporting NBT’s aim of enhancing our reputation as one of the UK’s leading NHS 
organisations in research and innovation.  
 
NBT has worked hard to sustain and grow a strong research infrastructure of professionals 
including over 100 research nurses, midwives and allied health professionals, to work on 
developing new and delivering existing research studies. Through the efforts of this 
research workforce nearly 3,000 patients have been able to participate in nationally 
recognised clinical research studies at NBT during 2014, along with many more involved in 
more local research. 
 
Innovation  
 
Over the last 12 months we have been supporting teams in their transition to the new 
hospital and evaluating our current position as an innovator and stakeholder in the local 
health community.    
 
We’ve put considerable effort into strengthening our external innovation network, whilst 
simultaneously evaluating our own efforts internally and developing new models of 
sustainable working. We are far better placed this year to capitalise upon the intellectual 
property assets of the organisation to deliver outstanding care and value to the health 
economy. 
 
Our aims around innovation are as follows:  

 
• Actively participate in local and regional health networks (like Bristol Health 

Partners and the West of England Academic Health Science Network) to leverage 
improvements in care pathways, diagnostics and in which world-class clinical 
services, research, innovation, education, training and informatics are strategically 
and operationally integrated. 

 
• Continue to embed an innovation culture across the organisation by working with 

individuals and teams to understand the benefits of innovation and transformation, 
and to develop their ideas. 

 
• Strengthen the innovation delivery platform with clear processes, resources and 

rewards working across the organisation to connect innovators to funding and 
support networks 

 
• Deliver high impact innovations in our specialist services to optimise the output of 

our resources and enhance our reputation as a leader in patient centred care and 
health care innovations and transformational leadership.  Our specialist services 
are: neurosciences, orthopaedics, children’s burns, plastic surgery, renal & 
transplant, trauma, HIV and CCHP (Community Children’s Health Partnership) 

 
• Deliver the high impact innovations defined in innovation health and wealth that 

are relevant to NBT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9. CHARITABLE ACTIVITY  

The past 12 months have been incredibly exciting for the Trust’s charity. After consulting 
with staff, our Foundation Trust public members and other stakeholders, the charity took on 
a brand new identity as Southmead Hospital Charity. This is to reflect the transfer of 
services from Frenchay and that the majority of services are all on one site. 

Our two main campaigns to complete the Bristol Breast Care centre and establish the new 
Neuroscience Clinical Research Centre have been successfully done and our community 
fundraising has gone from strength to strength. 

The main aim for the team over the next six months is to put Southmead Hospital Charity 
firmly on the map – working hard with local business, community associations, schools and 
amenity groups to establish the charity as a hub of social support in the wider Bristol 
community. 

Community Support  

The support given by our patient and family groups has once again been tremendous. The 
campaign to continue research into brain cancer gained international support via one 
family’s social media campaign raising more than £80,000. 

Our partnership with Bristol Rotary and the Prostate Cancer Care campaign continued with 
the ninth annual Run for the Future event. 

The charity also received great support from the Move Makers, volunteers and staff to help 
develop its next community wide fundraising campaign “Do Something Super for 
Southmead” – which aims to engage the community with the many ‘heroes’ in our hospitals 
saving and transforming lives on a daily basis. 

Fresh Arts 

The charity supported a range of projects under the Fresh Arts programme. These events 
use visual and performing arts to support patients and staff across a wide range of 
conditions; the therapeutic  and social benefits for patients undertaking activities such as 
painting, dancing, singing and knitting are now well documented and wider support from the 
charity has enabled this programme to develop more widely across the Trust. 

Major Trauma 

Southmead Hospital Charity received its largest ever grant in 2014/15 from the County Air 
Ambulance Trust – Help Appeal. We were awarded a grant of £225,000 to support the build 
of the new helipad at the Southmead Hospital site. As the major trauma centre for the 
South West region developing the helipad to ensure we are able to accommodate the full 
range of air ambulances, means we can support the largest number of trauma patients. 

The grant will also be able to support the building of a covered walkway to make it easier to 
treat patients in adverse weather conditions. 

 



Bristol Breast Care centre 

The new Breast Care Centre became fully operational in summer 2014. The fundraising 
appeal to support the centre continued until the end of the financial year. Including existing 
charitable funds and the hard work undertaken by BUST the appeal raised over £500,000 for 
the new one-stop service for the entire South West region. 

Fundraising to support the extension of training rooms and research will continue to be part 
of the charity’s fundraising portfolio. 

Neuroscience Clinical Research Centre 

To be locally known as the BRAIN Centre, the new neuroscience clinical research centre will 
be open to patients in May 2015. It will be the only facility undertaking research for and 
treating Alzheimer’s, Parkinson’s, dementia and multiple sclerosis. Over £1 million was raised 
through fundraising and voluntary donations. We are looking forward to working with BRACE 
as a new charity partner within the centre. 

Thank you also to… 

We receive support and donations from thousands of people, companies and community 
associations – unfortunately we have insufficient space to thank everyone individually but 
we would like to give a special mention to: SITEC, The Clarkes foundation, Louis and Anna 
Brooks and Shaun McCarthy. 



    
    
Inpatient Activity  ElectIP NonElectIP DayCase 
2015/15 12644 60481 40413 

    
2013/14 14530 58895 41669 

    
    

    
Outpatient Activity  New FollowUp Total 
    
2014/15 145435 266082 411517 

    
2013/14 190217 283190 473407 

    
    

A&E activity 14/15    
    

A&E New Follow Up Total 
Southmead 75364 379 75753 
Frenchay 9554 56 9611 

 84918 435 85364 
    

13/14 101886 1316 103219 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11. Finance 
 

Financial statements 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the NHS Trusts Manual for 
Accounts issued by the Department of Health. The Manual contains accounting policies 
which comply with International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are 
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury. 

Group financial statements 

The Trust is required to prepare consolidated accounts, incorporating the results of the 
Trust’s linked charity, the North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds.  The requirement to 
consolidate arises as a result of the Trust’s ability to control the Charity as defined in IAS 27 
Consolidated and separate financial statements.  Consequently the accounts present 
financial information for the Trust as a stand-alone entity, and where required ‘the Group’ 
which includes financial information for the Charity. 

It is important to emphasise that the consolidation of the Charity has no impact on the results 
of the Trust as a stand-alone entity.  These results and the measurement of the Trust’s 
performance against its breakeven duty, external financing limit (EFL) and capital resource 
limit (CRL) are presented separately in the consolidated accounts and it is the Trust’s results 
as an entity that are used in measuring its performance in year.   

Full accounts are available on request from: Director of Finance, North Bristol NHS Trust, 
Christopher Hancock Building, Southmead Hospital, Westbury-on-Trym, Bristol, BS10 5NB. 

Financial review 

Funding 

The Trust’s main source of finance is from contracts with other public sector bodies, in 
particular NHS commissioning bodies.  In addition, the Trust also receives funding in the 
form of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and credit arrangements including loans.  The most 
significant credit arrangement is currently the liability in respect of the new Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) hospital.  The Trust also received net additional funding through PDC from the 
Department of Health (DH) of £27.5m during the year in support of capital schemes.  
Temporary cash support of £8.5m was received and repaid in the year in order to alleviate 
its short term cash flow pressures. Details of credit arrangements are disclosed in note 26 to 
the accounts. 

Financial duties and financial performance 

The Trust has three key financial duties: 

• To break-even on income and expenditure taking one year with another 
• Not to overspend its capital resource limit (a limit on capital expenditure set to an 

agreed plan with the Department of Health) 
• To achieve its external financing limit (a cash limit set by the Department of Health) 



The table below sets out the Trust’s performance against these targets in 2014/15 and in the 
previous four years of the Trust.   

 

The break-even performance excludes impairments, accounting for donated assets and the 
effect of accounting for PFI. The following table reconciles the retained deficit in the 
accounts to the deficit recorded for break-even purposes reported above, and this shows 
that the Trust achieved the target agreed with the Trust Development Authority (TDA) of 
(£19.7m). 

 

Notes: 

1. Impairments and reversals arose following a revaluation of the Trust’s land and buildings by the district 
valuer (see below); 

2. IFRIC 12 relates to accounting for the PFI; 
3. The adjustment in respect of donated assets removes the net impact of depreciation on assets 

previously donated to the Trust and income from donations received in the year. 
Notwithstanding the achievement of the financial targets agreed with the TDA, the Trust’s 
financial position remained challenging during the year.  In order to achieve the target 
agreed of £19.7m the Trust delivered the planned £26.9m efficiency savings.  The Trust also 
needed temporary cash support of £8.5m during the year to help with short term cash flow 
issues which   was repaid in March 2015.   

Capital expenditure for the year was £59.8m and £27.5m PDC was received as part of 
agreed support to the capital programme.  Major areas of capital expenditure in the year 
included £14m on the new Pathology building, £8.7m on medical equipment and £9.2m on 
IT investment.   

 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
£m £m £m £m £m

Break-even in year 
position

7.9 9.0 7.0 5.6 (19.7)

Break-even cumulative 
position

(17.5) (8.5) (1.5) 4.1 (15.6)

External financing limit Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved

Capital resource limit Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved

Trust results £m
Retained deficit for the year (27.4)

Add back:
Impairments 17.3
IFRIC 12 0.4

Less:
Reversal of impairments (9.8)
Donated assets (0.3)

Surplus recorded for break-even (19.7)



Forward look to 2015/16 

The Trust’s financial forecast for 2015/16 shows a deficit (as measured for break-even duty 
purposes) of £26.0m, with a further deficit of £13m forecast for 2016/17.  These deficits are 
after assuming delivery of savings in 2015/16 of £41.2m and a further £34.3m in 2016/17. 

For 2015/16, the majority of the assumed savings have been identified and plans are in 
place to meet the full targeted level of savings.  

The forecast deficits, combined with the Trust’s capital expenditure plans and debt 
repayments mean that the Trust had a cash shortfall from April 2015 for which financing from 
the TDA has been received. The Trust has secured assurances from the TDA that it will 
make sufficient cash financing available over the next 12 months to enable the Trust to meet 
its liabilities as they fall due. 

The Trust has developed and approved a recovery plan aimed at delivering a recurring 
breakeven position by the end of 2017/18.  The Trust Board considers that whilst this 
represents a significant challenge, it is reasonable to expect that the Trust has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
 
Summary financial statements 

Reproduced below is an extract from the financial statements, of the Trust as an individual 
entity from the full annual accounts. The Trust’s external auditors issued an unqualified audit 
report on the full Annual Report and Financial Statements on 4 June 2015. 

Full copies of the Annual Report and Financial Statements can be obtained from The 
Director of Finance North Bristol NHS Trust, Southmead Hospital, Bristol, BS10 5NB. 

 



         

 

 

 

 

Statement of comprehensive income for year ended
31 March 2015

2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

Gross employee benefits (346,110) (346,613)
Other operating costs (201,280) (350,776)
Revenue from patient care activities 457,645 459,322
Other operating revenue 95,266 82,054
Operating surplus/(deficit) 5,521 (156,013)

Investment revenue 76 103
Finance costs (32,893) (2,091)
Deficit for the financial year (27,296) (158,001)
Public dividend capital dividends payable (81) (1,386)
Retained deficit for the year (27,377) (159,387)

Other comprehensive income

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & 
equipment 24,492 8,876

Total comprehensive income for the year (2,885) (150,511)

Financial performance for the year
Retained deficit for the year (27,377) (159,387)

IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments) (9,382) 143,343
Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments) 17,286 20,050
Adjustments in respect of donated assets (267) 1,599
Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit) (19,740) 5,605

Trust



 

Statement of financial position as at
31 March 2015

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000s £000s

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 508,331 480,399
Intangible assets 433 833
Total non-current assets 508,764 481,232
Current assets:
Inventories 7,919 6,273
Trade and other receivables 41,055 35,270
Cash and cash equivalents 1,041 43,958
Sub-total current assets 50,015 85,501
Non-current assets held for sale 31,705 0
Total current assets 81,720 85,501
Total assets 590,484 566,733

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (78,820) (73,003)
Other liabilities (77) (77)
Provisions (5,459) (5,607)
Borrowings (10,486) (6,970)
DH revenue support loan (900) (900)
DH capital loan (520) (520)
Total current liabilities (96,262) (87,077)
Net current assets/(liabilities) (14,542) (1,576)
Total assets less current liablilities 494,222 479,656

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables (3,701) (4,055)
Other liabilities (2,281) (2,358)
Provisions (1,412) (1,683)
Borrowings (416,082) (424,004)
DH revenue support loan (9,890) (10,790)
DH capital loan (9,620) (10,140)
Total non-current liabilities (442,986) (453,030)
Total assets employed: 51,236 26,626

Financed by:
 
Public Dividend Capital 241,305 213,810
Retained earnings (269,562) (242,871)
Revaluation reserve 79,493 55,687
Total taxpayers' equity: 51,236 26,626

      

Trust



 

  

Statement of changes in taxpayers' equity
For the year ending 31 March 2015

Public 
Dividend 

Capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 213,810 (242,871) 55,687 26,626
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (27,377) (27,377)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 
equipment

24,492 24,492

Transfers between reserves 0 686 (686) 0
Reclassification adjustments
New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 35,995 35,995
New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year (8,500) (8,500)
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 27,495 (26,691) 23,806 24,610
Balance at 31 March 2015 241,305 (269,562) 79,493 51,236

Trust



 

 
 

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014-15 2013-14
£000s £000s

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) 5,521 (156,013)
Depreciation and amortisation 17,341 21,076
Impairments and reversals 7,486 163,393
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 (178)
Interest paid (29,851) (1,069)
Dividend paid (303) (793)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,646) 1,875
Increase in trade and other receivables (5,628) (13,231)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (3,407) 15,906
(Increase)/decrease in other current liabilities (77) 0
Provisions utilised (2,116) (1,554)
Increase in movement in non cash provisions 1,570 3,767
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (11,110) 33,179

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 76 103
Payments for property, plant and equipment (53,552) (29,440)
Payments for intangible assets 0 (181)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 0 450
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (53,476) (29,068)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) before financing (64,586) 4,111

Cash flows from financing activities
Gross temporary and permanent PDC received 35,995 2,093
Gross temporary and permanent PDC repaid (8,500) (27)
Loans repaid to DH - capital investment loans repayment of principal (520) (520)
Loans repaid to DH - working capital loans/revenue support loans (900) (900)
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on-SoFP PFI (4,406) 0
Capital grants and other capital receipts (excluding donated / 
government granted cash receipts) 0 0
Net cash inflow from financing activities 21,669 646

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (42,917) 4,757

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdraft) at beginning of 
the period 43,958 39,201
Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdraft) at year end 1,041 43,958

Trust



Finance - Directors’ Report 
 

Directors 

Non-Executives Executives 

Mr Peter Rilett, Chairman Ms Andrea Young, Chief Executive 
Prof Nishan Canagarajah Dr Chris Burton, Medical Director 
Mr Ken Guy Ms Kate Hannam, Director of Operations 
Mr Mark Lawton Ms Sue Jones, Director of Nursing 
Mr Robert Mould Ms Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance 
Ms Liz Redfern  
Mr Andrew Willis  
*The register of interests of these members can be found at: 
www.nbt.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/Trust%20Board%20Papers%20March%202015.p
df 

 

Public Sector Payment Policy – Better Payments Practice Code 

In accordance with the Better Payments Practice Code and government accounting rules, 
the Trust’s payment policy is to pay creditors within 30 days of the receipt of the goods or a 
valid invoice (whichever is the later) unless other terms have been agreed. 

The Trust paid 86% of non-NHS invoices within 30 days compared with 92% in the previous 
year. Further details of compliance with the Code are contained in note 10 to the Annual 
Accounts.  The Trust has not signed up to the Prompt Payment Code. 

External auditors’ remuneration 

The Trust’s auditors are Grant Thornton.  During the financial year they were paid £108,000 
for statutory audit services to the Group (£104,000 for the Trust).  A further £10,000 of non-
audit work has been undertaken in 2014/15 in relation to the Trust’s quality accounts. 

Cost allocation and charges for information 

The Trust complies with HM Treasury’s guidance on setting charges for information where 
appropriate. 

Personal Data 

There have been no incidents regarding data loss or confidentiality breaches in 2014/15. 

Fraud 

The Trust has a Counter Fraud policy approved by the Audit Committee in 2013 that sets out 
the arrangements for deterring, preventing, detecting and investigating instances of fraud, 
corruption or bribery against the Trust or the wider NHS. In implementing this policy the 
Trust has contracted with Audit South West to provide counter fraud services. 



 

Emergency Preparedness 

The Trust has in place plans that are fully compliant with the requirements of the NHS 
Commissioning Board Emergency Preparedness Framework 2013. 

 

Off Payroll Arrangements 

As part of the ‘Review of Tax Arrangements of Public Sector Appointees’ the Trust is 
required to disclose the number of non-payroll arrangements which existed at 31 March 
2015 and what action has been taken in regard to their tax status since that date. 

At 31 March 2015 the Trust had 9 such arrangements which required disclosure. Of these 5 
have ended since that date, and 4 have continued without any changes to their contractual 
clauses. None of the arrangements have been re-negotiated to include contractual clauses 
allowing the Trust to seek assurance from the individuals concerned as to payment of their 
tax obligations. 
 

Existing off-payroll arrangements as of 31 March 2015, for more than £220 per day and that last longer than 
6 months 

 Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2015 9 

Of which the number that have existed for:  

Less than one year at the time of reporting 1 

Between one and two years at the time of reporting 5 

Between two and three years at the time of reporting 0 

Between three and four years at the time of reporting 1 

Four or more years at the time of reporting 2 

 

New off-payroll arrangements between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015, for more than £220 per day and 
that last longer than 6 months 

 Number 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months duration, between 1 April 2014 and  31 
March 2015 
 

5 

Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses giving North Bristol NHS Trust the right to 
request assurance in relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations 
 

0 

Number for whom assurance has been requested 0 

Of which  

Assurance has been received 0 

Assurance has not been received 0 



Engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received 0 

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior officers with significant financial 
responsibility, during the year 
 

0 

Number of individuals that have been deemed “board members and/or senior officers with significant 
financial responsibility during the financial year.  This figure includes both off-payroll and on-payroll 
engagements.  (See note below). 
 

18 

 

The Trust has identified the need for changes to procedures for off-payroll engagements.  This is 
currently being reviewed, with actions logged as required to be led by the Associate Director Human 
Resources and Development and progress to be monitored by the Audit Committee. 

Note: 

The number of individuals that have been deemed “board members and/or senior officers with 
significant responsibility during the financial year, both on and off payroll, has been calculated as per 
the members listed on the Remuneration Report.   

Sickness Absence Data and Pension Liabilities 

Sickness absence data and pension liabilities are detailed within the accounts under Note 9.  The 
policy note for pensions is presented under note 9.6 detailing how pension liabilities are treated in 
the accounts and how to obtain the NHS Pensions accounts.  Further policies notes are included 
under note 1.4 within the accounts relating to pensions and early retirements. Within the 
Remuneration Report salary and pension entitlements of senior managers has been provided. 

Directors Statement 

The Directors state that at the date that this report is signed: 

• So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Trusts’ 
auditors is unaware;  and 

• The officers have taken all the steps that they should have taken as directors in order to 
make him/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Trusts’ 
auditors is aware of that information; 

• “Relevant audit information” means information needed by the Trusts’ auditor in connection 
with preparing his report;  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Financial information for inclusion in the 
Remuneration Report 
Salary and Pensions entitlements of senior managers 2014/15 
 
Remuneration of senior managers (audited) 
 

 

The cost for the Director of Nursing in 2013/14 includes recharges from Yeovil NHS 
Foundation Trust totalling £94,231.  These are for the provision of her services for the first 9 
months of the year when she was employed at that trust. 

The Medical Director was seconded to Dorset CCG from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2015 for 
2.5 days per month.  His full salary in 2014/15 falls within the band £150-155k (2013/14 
£150-155k). 

Name and Title
Salary Expense 

payments 
(taxable)

All pension 
related 
benefits

Total Salary Expense 
payments 
(taxable)

All pension 
related 
benefits

Total

(bands of 
£5000)

(to the 
nearest 
£100)

(Bands of 
£2500)

(bands of 
£5000)

(to the 
nearest 
£100)

(Bands of 
£2500)

Non-Executive Directors £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £00 £000 £000

Peter Rilett - Chairman 20-25 - - 20-25 20-25 - - 20-25
Nick Patel - Non Executive Director Left 31/12/14 0-5 - - 0-5 5-10 - - 5-10
Avril Waterman-Pearson - Non Executive Director Left 
31/12/14

0-5 - - 0-5 5-10 - - 5-10

Elizabeth Redfern - Non Executive Director  Started 
01/12/14

0-5 - - 0-5 - - - -

Ken Guy - Non Executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 5-10 - - 5-10
Robert Mould - Non Executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 5-10 - - 5-10
Mark Lawton - Non Executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 5-10 - - 5-10
Sue Sundstrom  Non-Executive Director  Started 
25/11/13, Left 31/03/2014

- - - - 0-5 - - 0-5

Nishan Canagarajah - Non Executive Director Started 
12/02/15

0-5 - - 0-5 - - - -

Andrew Willis - Non Executive Director  Started 
01/12/14

0-5 - - 0-5 - - - -

Executive Directors

Andrea Young - Chief Executive  Start 02/09/13. 185-190 - 15-17.5 205-210 110-115 - 10-12.5 120-125
Sue Jones - Director of Nursing 110-115 - 22.5-25 135-140 125-130 - 42.5-45 165-170
Chris Burton - Medical Director  (See Note). 130-135 - 15-17.5 145-150 130-135 - 40-42.5 170-175
Catherine Phillips - Director of Finance  Started 
03/06/13

140-145 - 12.5-15 150-155 115-120 - 102.5-105 215-220

Kate Hannam - Director of Operations  Started 
15/12/14

35-40 - 10-12.5 45-50 - - - -

Marie-Noelle Orzel - Chief Executive - - - - 70-75 - 7.5-10 80-85
Bill Boa - Interim Director of Finance  Start 07/01/13.  
Left  02/06/13.

- - - - 65-70 - - 65-70

Jeremy Tozer - Interim Director of Operations  Start 
19/09/14.  Left 28/12/14.

115-120 - - 115-120 - - - -

Corporate Directors

Harry Hayer - Director of HR 120-125 2 5-7.5 125-130 120-125 - 20-22.5 140-145
Simon Wood - Director of Facilities 110-115 1 125-127.5 235-240 95-100 - 15-17.5 110-115
Sasha Karakusevic - Chief Operating Officer until the 
15/12/14.  New Title Director of Strategy and 
Transformation from 16/12/14.

125-130 - - 125-130 125-130 - 130-132.5 255-260

Michael Coupe - Director of Strategy and Planning 5-10 - - 5-10 105-110 - 130-132.5 235-240

2013-14

(Bands of 
£5000)

(Bands of 
£5000)

2014-15



No directors are paid any bonuses, benefits in kind or other remuneration. 

 

Pay Multiples 

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid Director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce.  
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-
kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and 
the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.  
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in the organisation in the financial year 
2014-15 was £185-£190k (2013-14: £190-£195k). This was 6.5 times (2013-14 6.6 times) 
the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £29,156 (2013-14 £29,003).  
In 2014-15, 4 employees (2013-14 3 employees) received remuneration in excess of the 
highest-paid director. Remuneration ranged from £14,294 to £212,545 (2013-14: £14,153 to 
£234,723).  
 

Pension entitlements of senior managers (audited) 

 

Past and present employees of the Trust are covered by the NHS Pension Scheme, details 
of this scheme are provided at note 9 within the full accounts.  
The tables of salary and pension entitlements of senior managers, including supporting 
notes, and the narrative notes relating to pay multiples have been audited. 
As non-executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no 
entries in respect of pensions for non-executive members. 
 
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
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(bands of 
£2500)
£000

(bands of 
£2500)
£000

(bands of 
£5000)
£000

(bands of 
£5000)
£000 £000 £000 £000

To nearest 
£100

Executive Directors

Andrea Young - Chief Executive 0-2.5 5-7.5 55-60 170-175 1,225 1,122 72 N/A
Sue Jones - Director of Nursing 0-2.5 5-7.5 45-50 140-145 883 806 56 N/A
Chris Burton - Medical Director 0-2.5 2.5-5 45-50 145-150 924 846 55 N/A
Catherine Phillips - Director of Finance 0-2.5 2.5-5 40-45 125-130 664 606 41 N/A
Kate Hannam - Director of Operations 0-2.5 0-2.5 25-30 80-85 400 343 14

Corporate Directors

Harry Hayer - Director of HR 0-2.5 0-2.5 10-15 30-35 184 161 19 N/A
Simon Wood - Director of Facilities 5-7.5 17.5-20 45-50 140-145 970 802 146 N/A
Sasha  Karakusevic - Chief Operating Officer 0-2.5 0-2.5 40-45 120-125 725 681 26 N/A

Name and title



valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable 
from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to 
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details 
include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the 
individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional 
pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of 
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines 
and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. 

Real Increase CETV 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses 
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



2014/15 Annual Accounts of North Bristol NHS Trust 
 

Statement of the Chief Executive’s 
responsibilities as the Accountable Officer of 
the Trust 
 

The Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority has designated that the Chief 
Executive should be the Accountable Officer to the trust.  The relevant responsibilities of 
Accountable Officers are set out in the Accountable Officers Memorandum issued by the 
Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority. These include ensuring that:  

• there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and 
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance;  
• value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;  
• the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended 
by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;  
• effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and  
• annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State 
with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the 
end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and 
cash flows for the year 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set 
out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer. 
 

 

Chief Executive ………………………………..…………………….. Date………………………… 
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in 
respect of the accounts 
 

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts 
for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of the Treasury, directs that 
these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the income 
and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.  In preparing 
those accounts, directors are required to: 

• apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State 
with the approval of the Treasury; 
• make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts. 
 
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to 
ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned 
direction of the Secretary of State.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities. 
 
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the 
above requirements in preparing the accounts. 
 
By order of the Board 

Chief Executive ………………………………..…………………….. Date………………………… 

 

Finance Director …………………………………………………….. Date……………………….. 
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Year ended 31 March 2015 

Summarisation Schedules (TRUs) for North 
Bristol NHS Trust  
 

Summarisation schedules numbered TRU01 to TRU98H plus Freetext are attached. 

 

Director of Finance Certificate 

I certify that the attach summarisation schedules have been compiled from and are in 
accordance with the financial records maintained by the trust with the accounting standards 
and policies for the NHS approved by the Secretary of State. 

 

Finance Director …………………………………………………….. Date……………………….. 

 

 

Chief Executive Certificate 

I acknowledge the attached summarisation schedules, which have been prepared and 
certified by the Director of Finance, as the summarisation schedules which the trust is 
required to submit to the Secretary of State.  

 

Chief Executive ………………………………..…………………….. Date………………………… 

  



12. Annual Governance Statement 
Annual Governance Statement 2014/15 
 
Please note that red text denotes where information is waiting to be confirmed. 

 
1. Introduction 
 
The NHS Trust Development Authority Chief Executive, in his capacity as an Accounting 
Officer for NHS Trusts in the Department of Health, requires the Accountable Officer (AO) for 
the North Bristol NHS Trust to give him assurance about the stewardship of his organisation. 
 
For the North Bristol NHS Trust the Accountable Officer is Ms Andrea Young, Chief 
Executive. 
 
 
2. Scope of Responsibility 
 
The Board of Directors is accountable for internal control and as Chief Executive and 
Accountable Officer of the Trust my responsibilities are set out in the Accountable Officers’ 
Memorandum issued by the Department of Health. These include ensuring that; 
 

• There are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and 
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance. 

• Value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust. 
• The expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes intended 

by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them. 
• Effective and sound financial management systems are in place. 
• Annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of 

State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, 
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. 

 
In addition I have responsibility for; 
 

• Maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the 
Trust’s policies, aims and objectives. 

• Ensuring the services provided by the Trust are of exemplary quality and safety, 
giving patients the best possible experience. 

 
The Trust meets regularly with the Trust Development Authority (TDA) and commissioners 
(NHS England, South Gloucestershire, Bristol and North Somerset Clinical Commissioning 
Groups) to review quality, financial and operational performance. The trust has also 
contributed to overview and scrutiny processes in South Gloucestershire, Bristol and North 
Somerset, in particular for transfers relating to Cellular Pathology, Urology, Breast Care and 
Vascular Services and the disposal of the former Frenchay Hospital site.  
 
 
3. Governance Framework of the Organisation  
 
Corporate Governance 
 



The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. As a large and complex organisation a supporting infrastructure is required 
to fulfil these responsibilities effectively. Authority is delegated by the Board to various board 
committees and the role and terms of reference of these were reviewed in 2014/15 with the 
aim of clarifying how all aspects of the Trust’s business were delivered. The revised 
approach separated the Trust’s delivery and assurance functions and ensured the entirety of 
the Trust’s business was transacted in a clear and open structure. The rationale for the 
change was the mitigation of a number of risks including a lack of comprehensive oversight 
of the organisation by the Trust Management Team (TMT) now charged as the leadership 
group for all aspects of delivery. Other areas of risk it addressed were:-   
 

• The Accountable Officer being exposed to a risk that the key risks and control 
systems within the Trust are not being managed effectively; 

• A lack of awareness of some quality and other issues by the TMT; 
• A lack of clarity on how information flows from Ward to Board and vice versa across 

the whole spectrum of information 
• Insufficient focus on business planning 
 

The Board approved terms of reference for each of the committees in the revised structure. 
A review of the Trust’s Standing Orders also took place which incorporated most of the 
current arrangements but needed minor amendments to take account of the Board’s final 
changes to its committee structure. These changes were approved by the Board in April 
2015. The Committee structure of the Trust is shown below: 

 
The key committees in terms of supporting the system of internal control are; 
 

Committee Functions 
Trust Board 
 

The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of internal 
control. It primarily discharges this responsibility through the receipt and review of; 
• Quarterly reports on the Assurance Framework to ensure key risks are identified 

and controls or assurance gaps are being addressed with more detailed reporting 
to each meeting of the Quality and Risk Management Committee  

• An Integrated Performance Report providing internal assurances at monthly 
intervals on quality, finance, activity and workforce measures and other quarterly 
and six monthly measures on quality and safety and commissioning and clinical 
governance. 

• External assurance sources, including the External Auditors review of the Trust’s 
Quality Account and financial year end accounts and VFM opinion and reports 
from the Care Quality Commission and other external regulators as appropriate 
according to their risk impact and actions required. 

 
Audit  
Committee 
 

• The Audit Committee provides independent and objective scrutiny of Trust 
activities through its membership, which consists of three Non-Executive directors.  
Executive Directors, senior managers, Internal and External auditors attend and 
provide input. 

• It is responsible for ensuring there are arrangements for the establishment and 
maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, risk management 

Trust Board 

Audit Committee Charitable Funds 
Committee 

Remuneration & 
Nominations 
Committee 

Trust 
Management 

Committee 

TMT sub-structure 

Finance & 
Performance 
Committee 

Quality and Risk 
Management 

Committee 



Committee Functions 
and internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s activities (both clinical 
and non-clinical). 

• This supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives and ensures 
compliance with regulatory, legal and code of conduct requirements.  

• In carrying out this work the Committee primarily utilises the work of Internal Audit, 
External Audit and other assurance functions, as well as seeking reports and 
assurances from directors and managers as appropriate. 
 

Quality and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 
(Q&RMC) 

• The Quality and Risk Management Committee (Q&RMC) is the assurance 
committee responsible for overseeing the management of Risk, Governance and 
Assurance for the Trust on quality issues and the development of the Trust’s Risk 
and Assurance Register prior to Board approval.  

• It comprises two non-executives (one of them as chair) and five of the executives 
and is responsible for ensuring that effective quality governance, risk management 
and regulatory compliance systems are in place and that effective actions are 
taken to identify and address deficiencies should they arise.  

• This also includes overseeing the system of control around directorates’ clinical 
and non-clinical risk registers including escalation to the Trust risk register as 
informed by the Risk and Compliance Committee.  

• Furthermore, it is responsible for identifying all the cross cutting themes arising 
from executive and non-executive walk arounds (the latter having been instigated 
in year).  

• Other sources of assurance are reports and presentations from specialist staff as 
requested by the Committee in ‘deep dives’, approval of policies and procedures, 
performance of systems against key performance indicators, progress against 
action plans to address identified gaps and internal or external audit reports. 

 
Finance & 
Performance 
Committee 
(F&PC) 
 

• The Finance and Performance Committee (F&PC) is the assurance committee 
responsible for overseeing the management of the Trust’s finance and 
performance in the context of the Trust’s strategy. 

• It comprises the chairman of the Trust, two non-executives and three of the 
executives and is responsible for ensuring the Trust’s mechanisms for monitoring 
its finance and performance are robust and integrated. 

• Responsibilities include the review of the long term financial plan to seek 
assurance that the annual budgets are aligned with it and that it informs the 
annual business planning cycle 

• It also considers the risks to achieving forecast positions, maintains an overview of 
the activity and workforce models and that the measures within the Integrated 
Performance Report meet the requirements of external stakeholders 
 

Trust 
Management 
Committee 
(TMT) 

• All delivery groups report through the TMT to the Trust Board. It focusses on: 
 

Business Planning; 
Performance Management; 
Recovery & CRES Delivery, 
(finance); 
Capital; 

Quality; 
Health & Safety; 
IM&T; 
Programme Management; 
Workforce; 

• It comprises all the executive directors and all the clinical directors of the Trust 
 

 
A Programme Management Office (PMO) was established early in 2013 to ensure there was 
appropriate overview and scrutiny of clinical and corporate key deliverables and oversight of 
projects relating to the hospital move. In 2014, a Move & Transformation Board was established 
to provide a simple overview of all related projects, a single critical path, a single Go/No Go list, 
overseen by a single Senior Responsible Officer (SRO). This responded in full to Office of 
Government Commerce recommendations. The Move Board was disbanded in 2014 following the 
successful transition of services into the Brunel Building but the PMO has maintained overview of 
reports from workstreams aiming to achieve the transformation of services that will provide the 
means for financial recovery and sustainability over the next three years. The PMO now reports 
through the Finance and Performance Committee and oversees the production of the Trust 
Board’s integrated performance report. 
 
 
 
 



Committee Member Attendance Records 
 

Member Trust Board Audit Committee Quality & Risk 
Management 

Finance & 
Performance 
Committee 
 

 2013/4 2014/5 2013/4 2014/5 2013/4 2014/5 2013/4 2014/5 
B Boa (interim 

Dir. of Fin. – left 
Jun. 2013) 

3/3 - 2/2 - 1/1 - 1/1 - 

C Burton 11/13 11/11 - - 6/6 6/6 - - 
N Canagarajah 

(NED joined Feb. 
2015) 

- 1/2 - - - - - - 

M Coupe (Dir. of 
Strategy – left 

Jan. 2014) 
8/10 - - - 3/4 - - - 

K Guy 13/13 10/11 4/4 5/5 1 - - 5 
K Hannam (Dir. of 

Ops. – joined 
Dec. 2014) 

- 3/3 - - - - - 3/3 

H Hayer 12/13 10/11 - - 3/4 2/3 - - 
S Hughes 2/2 - - - - - - - 
S Jones 11/13 10/11 - - 5/6 6/6 - - 

S Karakusevic 9/13 10/11 - - 5/6 5/6 6/8 3/5 
M Lawton 11/13 8/11 3/4 4/5 - - 8/8 10/10 
R Mould 11/13 11/11 - - 6/6 6/6 - - 

M-N Orzel 5/5 - 1 - 3/3 - 0/2 - 
N Patel (NED – 
left Dec. 2014) 13/13 8/8 4/4 4/4 - - - - 

C Phillips 9/10 10/11 2/2 5/5 1/3 - 7/7 9/10 
E Redfern (NED – 
joined Jan. 2015) - 2/3 - - - 1/2 - - 

P Rilett 12/13 11/11 - - - 1 7/8 8/10 
S Sundstrom 4/4 - - - - 1/1 - - 

J Tozer (interim 
Dir. of Ops – left 

Dec. 2014) 
- 3/3 - - - 1/1 - 3/3 

A Waterman-
Pearson (NED – 
left Dec. 2014) 

11/13 7/8 - - - 2/2 - - 

A Willis (NED – 
joined Jan. 2015) - 3/3 - - - - - 3/3 

S Wood 11/13 10/11 - - 5/6 3/5 - 1 
A Young 7/7 9/11 - - 3/3 - 6/6 10/10 

 
 
 
Board and Principal Committee Reports 
 
The Audit Committee and Quality and Risk Management Committee are the key independent risk 
management and assurance committees underpinning the Trust Board’s overall responsibility for 
internal control in 2014/15. The Finance and Performance Committee deals with risks within its 
own remit. The Board and committees have received reports on: 



 
 

Committee Reporting Area 
Board • Integrated Performance Report (IPR) 

• Committee and Service Annual Reports and meeting reports 
• Southmead Redevelopment  
• Frenchay Disposal Strategy 
• Revised Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions 
• Research and Innovation strategies 
• Quality Account 
• Accountability Framework and TDA statements (within IPR) 
• Trust Objectives 
• Annual Governance Statement 
• Medical Revalidation and Appraisal annual report 
• Year-end Financial Accounts 
• Corporate governance arrangements 
• Specific service reports 
• Patient Administration System procurement 
• Budget 
• Safeguarding serious case reviews 
• Inpatient survey results 
• Financial Sustainability updates 
• Business plan 
• Staff Friends and Family Test results 
• Safe staffing 
• Whistleblowing Incident 
• Capital programme 
• Long Term Financial Model 
• Project updates 
• Contract approvals 
• PFI variations 
• CQC Reports and action plans 
• Business cases 
• Clinical Excellence Awards 
• Board Risk and Assurance Register 
• Staff Attitude Survey results 
• Strategy and Vision development 
 

Audit Committee (Independent 
assurance) 
 

• Clinical audit assurance 
• Safeguarding Policy and Governance 
• Financial resilience review 
• the counter fraud work plan 
• Standing orders/Standing financial instructions/Detailed scheme of 

delegation 
• the strategic and operational internal audit plans 
• the 2013/14 Financial Accounts 
• Trust Annual Report 
• Annual Governance Statement 
• Gifts and hospitality register  
• reference cost assurance 
• PBR data assurance framework 
• Procurement strategy and business plan 
• Audit fee letter 2014/15 
• Patient Administration System governance 
• Clinical audit annual report 
• Internal audit and counter fraud annual reports 
• Charitable funds accounts 2013/14 
• Information governance 
• Quality Account audit 2013/14 
• Annual Audit letter 

Finance and Performance 
Committee (F&PC) 

• Integrated performance report 
• RTT recovery plans and progress updates 
• Valuation update 
• Year end outturn 
• Commercial disputes 
• Outline and full business cases 
• Financial sustainability plan updates 
• Intensive Support Team report and action plan 
• Reference costs plan and update 
• Service Line Reporting implementation and update 



Committee Reporting Area 
• Cancer services recovery plan and progress report 
• ED four hour action plan 
• Review of CIP process 
• Spinal services plan 
• Five year capital plan 
• Cellular pathology service transfer 
• Financial sustainability workstream reviews 
• Long term financial model 
• ITFF application 
• Tender approvals 
• Committee governance and cycle of business 
• PFI contract issues 
• Financial review process of building contractors 
• Draft 2015/16 budget and cash flow forecast 
• CCG contract performance report 
• Deep dive process 
• Business case approvals process 
• Bank and agency staffing improvement plans 
• Capacity and demand planning 
• Draft 2015/16 business plan 
• Contract management governance 
• Committee effectiveness 
 

Quality and Risk Management 
Committee (Q&RMC) 
 

• Policy on management of external reviews 
• CQC inspection reports 
• Annual report 
• Terms of reference 
• Patient confidentiality breach response 
• Risk management process assurance 
• Moderation of high score risks 
• Specific service risks and action plans 
• CQC registration changes 
• CQC assurance development plan 
• Inpatient survey results and action plan 
• Sub committee governance arrangements and reports 
• Organ donation committee annual report 
• Leadership walkaround themes 
• Patient Confidentiality – ICO report and action plan 
• Deep dive approach 
• Deep dives of specific services 
• serious incident and complaint themes 
• Quality strategy development and safety improvement plan 
• Work plan 
• various service annual reports 
• Elimination of 52 week waiters plan 
• Cancer experience survey and peer review update 
• Guidance on FFT 
• Clinical audit update 
• Serious complaint investigation, governance implications and action plan 
• Legal claims policy and assurance 
• A&E survey 
• Complaints improvement plan 
• External review update 
• Committee effectiveness 
 

 
 
Board Development 
 
There were five changes to the personnel of the Board in 2014/15. Three non-executives, 
including the University of Bristol representative, came to the end of their terms of office and 
have been replaced by two members with strong experience of the NHS and one of the 
current Pro Vice-Chancellors from the University of Bristol. There were changes to the 
portfolios of the executives to align them better with the Trust objectives. The most significant 
of these was the creation of the role of a Director of Strategy and Transformation. The 
incumbent Chief Operations Officer took on this role and was replaced temporarily by an 



interim post holder and then by a permanent appointment as Director of Operations and a 
voting member of the Board. The NHS Trust Development Authority supported the Board 
with all Board level appointments during the year. Appropriate due diligence was undertaken 
on all appointments including consideration of the Fit and Proper Persons Test requirements 
which came into force during 2014. 

In accordance with the TDA accountability framework the Board submitted a two year 
operational plan in April 2014 and a five year strategic plan in June 2015. Given the focus 
required to move services from two hospitals, Frenchay and Southmead, into one it was 
clear that only a refreshment of the existing Integrated Business Plan and Long Term 
Financial Model could be achieved with the available resource and capacity. Work has been 
ongoing to develop a robust strategic plan with fully reviewed business and financial plans 
throughout the rest of the year. The Board met in specific workshops to discuss strategy 
twice by itself and once with senior managers. Consultation was held with staff and patients 
over the Summer and the Board met with the South Gloucestershire CCG Board to discuss 
the development of their respective strategies. As part of a financial and operational recovery 
plan submission to the TDA the Integrated Business Plan was updated in September. The 
original timetable for publication of the strategic plan was agreed to be delayed until the 
Summer of 2015. A number of other board development sessions were undertaken during 
2014, focusing on areas such as financial recovery, quality governance and board 
governance. 

The Board continued its strengthening of its connection with the quality of patient care with 
direct examples of introduced patient stories at the beginning of each Board meeting in 
public. Since January 2013 the Director of Nursing has, with the agreement of a patient and 
his or her family, read out the experience of being treated and cared for by NBT staff. The 
Board has been exposed, therefore, to both positive and negative experiences felt by 
patients and their families sometimes in their own words, which has helped to maintain a 
focus of Board discussions and deliberations on achieving the best possible outcomes for 
patients. 

The Board has also continued to refine an Integrated Performance Report capturing all the 
key factors of quality, operational, financial, human resource and regulatory issues. This 
gives it an informed view across its whole range of services rather than concentrating on a 
particular issue and allows easier access to themes that may be affecting more than one 
area. 

The Board recognised during the year the need to engage an independent development 
partner to help its progression over the next year. The Trust ran a competitive tendering 
process and appointed Co Company as its Board Development partner for 2015/16. The first 
part of the plan is to run a diagnostic phase to build an understanding of the Trust with a view 
to being presented to the Board early in 2015/16. This will be followed by the development of 
a plan for the remainder of 2015/16 which will be informed by the outcomes from the 
diagnostic. 

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code 

The Trust does not comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. It has, however, 
reported on its Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice 
available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code considered to be 
relevant to the Trust.  

Statutory Functions 
 
The Quality and Risk Management Committee (renamed from Governance and Risk in 2013) 
oversees all statutory compliance functions. This is facilitated through its Risk and 
Compliance sub-committee and monitoring of external agency reviews. 
 



4. Risk and Control Framework 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to:  

• Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims 
and objectives   

• Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

 
Risk management is embedded throughout the Trust through a risk management framework 
that is made up of committee structures, risk staff leads familiar with patient safety and risk 
management and risk management tools e.g. the risk register Risk Web system. The Trust’s 
risk strategy and objectives are to ensure a pro-active approach to risk management by 
engaging staff at all levels, in efforts to resolve risk locally wherever possible. Formal 
escalation and moderation systems at a more senior level of management are in place where 
necessary.  All extreme risks, identified at directorate level, are primarily escalated to one of 
three Trust-wide risk committees; Clinical Risk, Health and Safety and Risk and Compliance 
committees and, where required, are escalated to the Quality and Risk Management 
Committee for review. QRMC has oversight of the entire escalation process for all risks 
originally scored as extreme. The Finance and Performance Committee oversee risks to 
performance. Risks regarding the move of services from two hospitals continued to be 
brought together at Trust Board in monthly highlight reports and at the Move and 
Transformation Board until the successful completion in the Summer of 2014. 
 
Leadership given to the risk management process  
 
The overall responsibility for managing risk rests with the Chief Executive and assurance to 
the Board is provided through the Quality and Risk Management (QRMC) and Finance and 
Performance Committees chaired by non-executives. Reports from these Committees, which 
include six of the Executive Directors and four of the Non-Executive Directors of the Trust, 
are made to the Board at its next available meeting. Risk management receives significant 
attention at Board level and this is cascaded throughout the organisation.  
 
The Board maintains oversight of the risk management system and reviews risk reports on a 
quarterly basis. QRMC, in particular, reviews the top scoring risks at each of its meetings and 
the Trust Management Team now monitors the work of its supporting committees on a 
quarterly basis with reports including an assessment of the risks within their remit. 
 
 
5. Risk Assessment 
 
The Board Risk and Assurance Register (BR&AR) defines and assesses the principle 
strategic and operational risks to the Trust’s objectives and sets out the controls and 
assurances in place to mitigate these. The Register was developed in 2012/13 from the 
former board assurance framework and operational and project risks are fed into a software 
system by a network of risk leads in each directorate.  
 
Strategic Risks 
  
The BR&AR provides the mechanism for identifying potential risks against the Trust’s 
strategic priorities. For 2014/15 they were set against the ‘Big 5’ Trust objectives, as 



approved by the Board and identified within the Integrated Business Plan. The Register 
considers the key strategic risks against each of the objectives, and considers the current 
controls and assurances in place to mitigate the risks occurring. Further controls and 
assurances are then identified which are translated into actions. The BR&AR is reviewed by 
the board in an ongoing quarterly cycle with key risk changes highlighted. 

Project and Directorate Risks 
 
Programmes and projects are expected to manage risks within the context of their objectives 
and deliverables. Overall risks to the organisation arising from key programmes and projects 
are considered for inclusion within the Trust’s Risk register, RiskWeb. 

All clinical and corporate directorates have a risk lead responsible for ensuring risks are 
recorded onto the RiskWeb system and the clinical directorates and the majority of corporate 
directorates have a forum where risk is discussed. This is either a specific risk group or it is 
part of another group as a standing agenda item e.g. Clinical Governance or Health and 
Safety Group. At these groups the directorate identifies risks and reviews incidents, taking 
action to minimise risk and learn lessons from incidents. Risk assessments are used at all 
levels of the Trust, from service planning to assessing day-to-day risks. The Risk 
Management Strategy/Policy gives guidance on scoring risks. 
 
Risk assessments can be clinical and non-clinical. Risks that cannot be controlled 
adequately at local level are escalated to directorate level and used to populate their 
directorate risk register. Directorate risk registers are reviewed at Directorate governance 
meetings and are also used to inform/prioritise the budget setting process.  
 
Risk register entries are collected, reviewed and updated electronically. This facilitates risk 
moderation and escalation more efficiently and is driving greater transparency and 
appreciation of risks at all levels of the organisation. This system has matured during 
2014/15. During the year the Q&RMC has reviewed the highest risks and tracked progress 
on them at each meeting and, where necessary, has reviewed with clinical directors and 
general managers the reasons for scoring of specific risks. 
 
Incident reporting   
 
The Trust has a comprehensive single incident reporting system, which is well established in 
the organisation. Reports from incidents are provided to the directorates and specific Trust 
committees as an aid to planning future improvements and thus preventing similar incidents 
from re-occurring. Incidents are reviewed and investigated accordingly and for those that are 
graded serious, a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) is undertaken.  
 
Reports of these RCA’s and action plans are considered at the Clinical Risk and Trust 
Health and Safety Committees. The QRMC receives an incident report and dashboard on a 
quarterly basis. The Trust Board receives a monthly report, in public session to report 
transparently, of new serious incidents and progress of actions of previous serious incidents 
through its Integrated Performance Report. All patient safety incidents are reported 
electronically to the NHS Commissioning Board via the National Reporting & Learning 
Scheme (NRLS). Serious incidents are also reported to the Trust Development Authority and 
Clinical Commissioning Groups. The Local Area Team and the CCGs have agreed on a 
standard understanding of which incidents need reporting at national level. Incidents meeting 
the criteria of the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrence Regulations 
1995 (RIDDOR) are reported to the Incident Contact Centre.  
 
 
 



Organisational Risk Profile 
 
During the 2014/15 financial year the following high strategic risks have been identified for 
Board or Committee review through the Board Risk and Assurance Register and managed 
as outlined below; 
 
 

High Potential Risks (pre-
mitigation actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year 
End? 

The risk that the Trust’s 
performance could degrade, 
and fail to meet its national 
access and outcome 
targets. 

1) Recovery Plan agreed with NTDA for A&E 4 hour 
performance. Weekly Operational Group established, 
chaired by Medical Director with clinical, managerial 
and executive leaders to oversee action delivery. 
Revised improvement trajectory to hit target after new 
hospital has opened.2) System wide patient flow 
review work with partners across Bristol to direct 
Winter pressures monies to priority areas and co-
ordinate transfers of care more efficiently.3) Specific 
operational focus on managing Urology service 
performance which is impacting across a number of 
performance targets. Progress tracked through 
Directorate Executive Review Meetings (ERMs).4) 
Action plan to drive Referral to Treatment (RTT) 
improvements (Urology & Orthopaedics) in place 
covering both operational and IMT factors. NHS 
Intensive Support Team engaged to review systems 
and suggest areas of improvement.5) Addressing long 
waits for Spinal patients - focusing on releasing 
additional internal capacity.6) Links between Patient 
Advisory Group and ERMs standardised. 
Continued failure addressed by 1) Direct operational 
controls for ED flow & Patient Discharge: 2) Continued 
implementation of ED recovery plan, with revised 
trajectory in light of post Move experience.3) Routine 
tracking using 'Leaving Hospital Database' system.4) 
Strengthened focus on effective Board Rounds, 
definition and use of Estimated Discharge Dates 
(EDD).5) Establishment of Operations Centre and 
review of Exec lead responsibilities 6) Performance 
trajectories for all underperforming targets 7) System 
urgent care action plan 8) Spinal >52 week wait action 
plan 9) Revised performance management framework 
in place 10) Weekly PTL meetings established to 
monitor 18 week performance 
 

• Risk mitigation plans in 
place and updated 
throughout year including 
further support from 
outside agencies and 
regular monitoring by 
TDA. Performance 
remained below national 
standards but became 
close to national average 
by year end. 

Inability to accommodate all 
services at Southmead to 
enable timely Phase 2 site 
handover to Carillion. This 
would incur financial 
penalties. 
 

Active planning with services to speed up programme 
across all schemes to free up as much old site as 
feasible. Also working with contractors (e.g. pathology 
and Breast Centre) to look at all facets of programme - 
construction, decommissioning and commissioning of 
new building to reduce time in each phase. 
Work with Carillion to speed up decommissioning and 
thus mitigate the possible cascade risk 
Work with Vinci to address emerging potential delays 
to Pathology Phase 2 
 

• Risk mitigation plans in 
place and handover 
achieved on time to end 
of year 

Efficiency target for the 
Trust is 19%, or £92m, over 
the next three years; non 
delivery would put Trust 
viability at risk. 
 

1) Directorate workforce plans to be further refined to 
detailed level and ensure alignment with staff costing 
outputs reflected in budget. Changes reflected within 
revised submissions to NTDA in line with prescribed 
timescales.2) Finalisation of documented Cost 
Improvement Plans, including Quality Impact 
Assessments  concluded with all directorates, with 
Trust Management Team engagement by end of May 
2014. 
Board to Board with the TDA to test focus on 
understanding of sustainability plans and 
documentation of project plans in place for all 
schemes 
 
 

• Risk mitigation plans in 
place and first year target 
achieved 



High Potential Risks (pre-
mitigation actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year 
End? 

Trust is reducing its 
workforce & intends to 
change to more flexible 
working arrangements. 
There is a risk that the Trust 
will not be able to affordably 
implement these plans 
 

Directorate workforce plans to be refined to detailed 
level and ensure alignment with staff costing outputs 
reflected in budget. Changes reflected within revised 
submissions to NTDA in line with prescribed 
timescales. 
Directorate workforce plans to be further refined and 
aligned with two year business plan submitted to TDA 

• Risk mitigation plans in 
place 

Failure to address the 
difficulties in improving the 
flow of patients through the 
hospital’s services.  
Pressure on beds is not 
helped by inconsistent 
delivery of effective 
discharge process, and 
rising numbers of attendees 
in the Emergency 
Department needing to be 
admitted.  These pressures 
have knock on effects on 
delivery of referral to 
treatment (RTT) targets. 

A recovery plan was agreed with the NTDA early in the 
year for improving ED waiting times with actions as 
noted above. Hospital ‘re-boots’ were planned and 
implemented (a week of intensive challenge of reasons 
for patients occupying beds past their expected 
discharge date). Bed availability and management 
revised.  Referrals to the Trust from GPs being actively 
managed prior to the patient being sent to attend the 
hospital. 
Continued failure addressed by further Trustwide action 
plan with Board level of approval/monitoring and 
policies on Escalation, Full Capacity and Bed and 
Patient Flow. Daily breach review and weekly in depth 
breach review to establish pressures and resolve. . 
BNSSG wide Policy for escalation produced. Root 
Cause Analysis undertaken after each time Black 
escalation declared and wide range of actions 
developed internally, externally and strategically, to 
ensure patients leave hospital when clinically ready to 
do so. 
 

• Risk ongoing and remains 
very closely monitored 
and acted upon 

Scale, pace and complexity 
of change and/or staff 
turnover at the Trust causes 
uncertainty and/or 
excessive work pressure 
with consequent impact on 
staff morale, stress levels 
and performance 
 

1) Workforce & OD Strategy to be developed 2) 
Hotspots within Staff Survey result tackled by 
directorate, area or issue driven through Health & 
Wellbeing Group 3) NBT Values Strategy linked to 
iCARE rollout plan 4) Senior Leaders engagement 
events 5) Recruitment of additional clinical staff to fill 
vacancies in identified 'hotspot' areas 6) Workforce 
dashboard developed and considered at Workforce 
Committee 7) Workforce Committee established 8) Hot 
spot identification and action planning 9) 
Comprehensive workforce plan to TMT and Board in 
April 
 

• Mitigating actions in 
place. 

 
Information Governance 
 

• As Accountable Officer I receive comprehensive and reliable assurance from a range 
of sources including managers, internal audit and periodic external audits that 
information governance risks are being managed effectively.  

• There have been no reported lapse of data security in 2014/15 
• In all other aspects I can confirm that the Trust is compliant with the NHS Information 

Governance Toolkit self-assessment requirements in achieving a satisfactory grade 
with Level 2 achieved against all 45 requirements at 31st March 2015, as validated 
by the Trust’s internal auditors. 
 
 

6. Review of Effectiveness of risk management and internal control 
 
As Accountable Officer, I have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
Firstly, I can confirm that the system of internal control has been in place in North Bristol 
NHS Trust for the full year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of approval of the 
Annual Report and Accounts.  
 
The detail of my review is informed in a number of ways, as follows; 



• Executive directors and managers within the organisation who have responsibility for 
the development and maintenance of the system of internal control provide me with 
assurance. 

• The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion (the ‘HoIAO’) on the overall 
arrangements for gaining assurance through the Board Risk and Assurance Register 
and on the controls reviewed as part of the internal audit plan. The draft HoIAO 
states that “Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound 
system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are generally being applied consistently. However, some weakness in the 
design and/or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of particular 
objectives at risk.” This is a sound assurance opinion, at the same level achieved for 
the past eight years.  

• The BR&AR itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 
manage the risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives have been 
reviewed. 

• The Trust’s Quality Account is subject to review by a formal External Auditor’s 
opinion; the outcome of which is reported to the Audit Committee. The external audit 
is also reported to the Quality Committee. Ongoing assurance on performance and 
data quality against the Trust’s aims for Quality Improvement is obtained through 
their inclusion in the monthly Integrated Performance Report. This information is also 
reviewed at the Trust’s Quality Committee with Clinical Directors and forms part of 
directorate performance reviews with the executive team in the monthly Executive 
Review meetings. 

• Each month the Board reviews the Monitor Provider Licence Compliance Statements 
and Board Compliance Statements that are submitted to the TDA. It has consistently 
agreed positive responses to all statements with the exception of its ability to be 
satisfied that its plans are sufficiently robust enough to ensure ongoing compliance 
with existing targets. The Board has responded negatively to this for eight months 
and awaits evidence that the implementation of its plans are on trajectory. 

 
A range of internal and external assurances are considered, key examples being;  

Type Assurance Source 
External Assurances 
 

• External Audit reports on the Trusts annual financial accounts, which were 
unqualified for 2013/14. 

• SAS 70 report on the operations run by Shared Business Services Ltd  
• SAS 70 report on the Electronic Staff Records system (ESR)  
• Annual patients’ survey and delivery of action plan 
• Annual staff survey improved results and delivery of action plan 
• Care Quality Commission – planned review programme reports received for all in 

and outpatient facilities. A warning notice was placed on the Emergency Department 
but no other enforcement actions requested 

• Peer review visits 
• Local Authorities – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees  
• National Clinical Audit reports  
• Medicines and Healthcare Products Agency 
• Joint Advisory Group  
• Management Systems Organisations accreditation reviews, such as the British 

Standards Institute 
• Intensive Care Support Team reports to Board 
• Patient Stories 

 



Type Assurance Source 
Internal Assurances 
 

• Reports received from internal audit  
• Clinical audit reports 
• Clinical Audit Assurance report to Audit Committee 
• Annual Clinical Audit Report to Audit Committee 
• Achievement of financial targets for 2014/15  
• (Integrated) Performance Management reports to the Trust Board incorporating 

Patient Experience and Friends and Family Patient and staff results 
• Financial Sustainability reports to the Trust Board 
• Programme & Project Management reports to the Trust board (e.g.Move and 

Redevelopment programmes) 
• Annual Quality Account 
• Safer Staffing reports to Trust Board 
• Quality & Risk Management Committee Assurance reports to Board  
• Audit Committee reports to Board 
• Finance and Performance Committee reports to Board 
• Medical Staff appraisal progress reports to Trust Board 
• Annual Equality Report 

  
 
 

7. Significant Issues 
 

Taking the guidance provided on the disclosure of ‘significant issues’ within the ‘2014/15 
annual governance statement guidance’ letter issued by David Flory, TDA Chief Executive 
on 2 February 2015, the Trust has outlined below information where this applies. 
 

Emergency Department Performance 
 
The target of patients waiting no more than four hours in the Emergency Department (ED) 
prior to either admission or discharge has been achieved in only two weeks of the year. In 
order to help test and refine the Trust’s response to this performance challenge the Trust 
has sought external support and to this end has been visited by staff from the Department of 
Health (Emergency Care Intensive Support Team), the Trust Development Authority, NHS 
England and the Clinical Commissioning Groups. 
 
Recovery plans, developed jointly with commissioners and local authorities have been 
implemented and refined during the year. Prior to the move into the Brunel Building a ‘re-
boot’ week was undertaken to identify the reasons for delays in patient care and there was a 
reduction in long stay patients which, unfortunately was sustained for only a month. 
Comparison with local providers shows that there is continued pressure on the local system 
as a whole and poor levels of performance in relation to the national standard. ED 
attendances have continued to increase year on year although not by the same amount as in 
2013/14 but the number of admissions from the ED has increased by 4%. The root cause of 
long waiting times in ED was identified as the lack of flow of patients through the hospital. 
Both before and after the move into the new facilities the availability of beds became the 
main reason for patients waiting in ED for admission. A large factor in this was the lack of 
speed in discharging patients when medically fit, particularly those needing complex social 
support. 
  
Plans to improve patient experience when attending the ED were revised more than once 
during the year and the overall situation in the BNSSG area became the subject of action 
plans for all the organisations involved. These included the Trust setting up an Operational 
Control Centre and the TDA and NHS England reviewing the whole urgent care system 
particularly following NBT’s performance deterioration in May and June 2014. Performance 
remained well below the national target levels during the Summer but whilst it declined  
nationally during the late Autumn and Winter, NBT’s deteriorated no further and over the 
Christmas, New Year and January periods was comparable with other large EDs. A week 



long ‘Onwards Together’ initiative involving all partner organisations during which staff were 
urged and facilitated to implement potential improvement actions in March 2015 achieved 
very good results including one day with 100% of ED attendances being admitted, treated or 
discharged within four hours. Other recent actions include the ‘Discharge to Assess’ and a 
Better Board Round Project. Since the CQC inspection in November (referenced separately) 
all the organisations in the BNSSG area have agreed actions within an Urgent Care 
Recovery Plan with the Trust Development Authority and CQC to improve the ED patient 
experience and the aim is to consistently deliver the national standard from July 2015 
onwards. 
 
Referral to Treatment and Cancer and Diagnostic Waiting Times 
 
Whilst the Trust has in many month’s achieved the RTT waiting time targets overall there 
have been persistent breaches in individual specialties. This has applied at some time to 
Orthopaedics, Neurosurgery, General Surgery, Neurology, Medicine and Pain Management. 
first four have impacted on elective and cancer waiting times. The NHS Intensive Support 
Team were invited in to review systems and made recommendations for improvement. 
Orthopaedics waiting times reflect the issues around spinal surgery where demand is far 
outstripping supply in a specialty where national capacity is not adequate. The year began 
with 50 patients waiting over a year for spinal surgery and an expectation that this would 
increase without action being taken. Following discussion with the CCGs, NHS England and 
the TDA the Board made the decision to close the service to all new referrals after 
September for spinal surgery except for very urgent cases. The overall number of patients 
waiting longer than a year peaked at 245 and the plan is to have no such patients by 
February 2016.  
 
Capacity pressures in Urology have been a significant factor in the breaches of a number of 
cancer targets throughout the year, particularly the 62 day and 31 day secondary surgery 
and treatment from diagnosis targets. Work on shortening the patient pathway and adding 
theatre lists began to improve the positions from September 2014. Following the move into 
Brunel, theatre functionality, theatre kit and missing notes impacted on theatre capacity and 
increased the number of cancelled operations. The first of these factors lasted for some 
months impacting on the Trust’s overall theatre activity which did not recover its pre-move 
levels. Because of an increase in demand for breast care and a much higher number of 
patients exerting their choice of care and appointment times the two week urgent referral 
target has also not been met in the last quarter. 
 
Severe staffing shortages following the move into Brunel led to the extension of waiting 
times for echocardiograms, urodynamics and cystoscopies which have yet to be resolved 
with no other local providers able to provide sufficient capacity to reduce the backlog of 
patients. 
 
Serious Incidents – ‘Never Events’ 
 
The Department of Health lists serious, preventable patient safety incidents that ideally 
should not occur. These are called ‘never events’. If they do occur a report is provided to the 
following Trust Board giving further details of the incident, the actions taken and learning 
applied to try and prevent future recurrence. 
 
Three ‘never events’ were reported in the Trust during 2014/15; two wrong site surgery and 
one removal of wrong skin lesion. Each patient was fully informed, a detailed root cause 
analysis investigation carried out with lessons learned for the specialty and the wider 
directorate. None of these ‘Never Events’ resulted in significant or permanent harm to the 
patient. 



 
Future Financial Risks 
 
The Trust delivered its financial performance for 2014/15 to its planned year end deficit 
(subject to external audit outcome) of £19.6m including the receipt of non-recurrent income 
of £14m from the TDA. The projected financial position for 2015/16 and beyond, however, 
remains a significant issue for the Trust. The Income & Expenditure plan for 2015/16 shows 
a deficit of £26m with a CRES target of £41m. This means the Trust will not achieve its 
statutory duty to breakeven and will require temporary financing to bolster its cash position 
early in 2015/16. Detailed work is underway to bring this back to balance by the end of 
2016/17. 
 
The opening of the Brunel Building, the new hospital at Southmead, was a major opportunity 
to implement transformational changes in both the quality and efficiency of services. Working 
with TDA oversight and in conjunction with local commissioners, the Trust is actively 
reviewing the operating assumptions that drive longer term affordability and planning the 
changes needed to improve the financial position.  
 
To support the delivery of the return to a breakeven position the Trust has developed a five 
year Sustainability Plan. The development of the plan was supported by a Turnaround 
Director who worked with the Trust during 2014 to identify savings schemes which would 
deliver the required productivity and efficiency changes. The Trust’s Programme 
Management Office (PMO) continues to provide project management support for the delivery 
of schemes and reporting of delivery through the Trust Management Team, Finance & 
Performance Committee and the Trust Board. 
 
The Trust Board also recognised that it should consider whether there were any lessons to 
be learnt following the deterioration in the deficit position for 2014/15. The Trust Board 
commissioned an independent governance review from DAC Beachcrofts to consider 
whether the Board was sufficiently sighted on the issues which resulted in the deteriorating 
position. The draft report was received towards the end of 2014/15 and will be considered by 
the Trust Board in April 2015. 
 
Post Move Issues 
 
The transfer of over 500 patients, including 24 critically ill, all the direct care and many other 
staff from two hospitals into one over a two week period was undertaken in May. This was 
one of the NHS’s largest ever exercises and was completed successfully and safely. As with 
any new building and new ways of working there were initial issues which impacted 
significantly on the Trust’s overall capacity in outpatient clinics and theatres. This had an 
inevitable effect on the Trust’s ability to achieve its waiting list and referral to treatment 
targets and on staff confidence in their own ability to provide an efficient service. Combined 
with shortages of skilled theatre staff, theatres were never able to achieve the same level of 
activity as before the Move. The remedies for the building issues and the costs involved in 
the Trust’s inability to fully utilise the facilities for a period were negotiated over a two month 
period with the private finance contractors and a settlement is expected in April. 
 
Care Quality Commission Inspection 
 
As part of the CQC’s planned programme of inspections the Trust was inspected between 5 
and 7 November 2014 with an unannounced second visit on 17 November 2014. The overall 
rating was ‘Requires Improvement’ and it was acknowledged that the inspection had taken 
place during a period of staff embedding into a new environment, and unprecedented 
demand for hospital services. Despite this the CQC rated the services as good overall for 
caring. No significantly new issues were identified through the inspection report and some 



outstandingly good practices were found in some areas. Actions were already in place for 
the majority of the issues identified, however, there was some inconsistency in application of 
the required actions. 
 
The Emergency Department, however, was identified as an area of focus to improve safety 
and responsiveness and the CQC issued a Warning Notice with enforcement actions. It was 
acknowledged that many actions were required of partner organisations to improve the 
situation on a sustainable basis.  
 
Along with its partner organisations an action plan was produced and a number of actions 
have been completed by the end of the financial year with others due to be implemented up 
to the end of 2015. The key issues were to implement full recruitment to the department, 
embed new practices and improve flow from the ED to the rest of the hospital. To ensure 
actions are implemented, a fortnightly operational review group will meet and the Board will 
track the delivery of actions monthly. The Trust Board considered its compliance with the 
regulations at its meeting in March 2015 and confirmed that it considered that the Trust was 
now compliant with the regulations as of 1 April 2015. 
 
Electronic Patient Record Implementation 
 
The Trust agreed the purchase and implementation of a replacement system for Cerner as 
the provider of an electronic patient record. A comprehensive review of the project was 
undertaken in January 2015 and changes to the approach (including a revised project 
initiation document and splitting the programme into three projects) and governance of the 
programme were approved by the Board in February 2015. The go-live date for the physical 
changeover of systems was postponed from July to October 2015. 
 
 
 
Signed …………………………………….. 
 
Andrea Young, Chief Executive 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust 

Date:   ..…………………………………. 

 

 

 
 



 
 

Report to: Trust Board (Acting as corporate Trustee) Agenda item:  18 

Date of Meeting: 4th June 2015 

 
Report Title: Charity Annual Accounts – 2014/15 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

    

Prepared by: Mark Ross, Head of Financial Services 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance 

Appendices (list if applicable): Accounts, Representation Letter. 

 
Recommendation:  

Following the Charitable Funds Committee  meeting on the 2nd June, the Corporate Trustee are asked to approve the accounts and 
representation  letter. 
 
Executive Summary:  
The accounts and the audit work were discussed in detail at the Charitable Funds Committee on the 2nd June. 
 
The fund restructuring undertaken during the year to bring the balance of restricted and unrestricted funds in line with Charity Commission 
guidance, has been fully reflected in the accounts.   
 
The External Auditors – Grant Thornton – intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion. 
 
The Charitable Funds Committee  recommended that the Corporate Trustee approve the accounts for 2014/15. 

 



 

 

   
 

CHARITABLE FUNDS
NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST

Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS  2014/2015



FOREWORD

These accounts have been prepared by the Trustee under section 98(2) of the National 
Health Service Act 1977 (as amended) in the forms which the Secretary of State has, 
with the approval of Treasury, directed.

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

The Trustee has been appointed under s11 of the NHS and Community Care Act 1990.
 

The North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds Held on Trust (the Charity) are registered 
with the Charity Commission and include funds in respect of the North Bristol NHS 
Trust Hospitals. In accordance with guidance from the Department of Health, the 
Charity also administers Funds Held on Trust on behalf of South Gloucestershire CCG.

MAIN PURPOSE OF THE CHARITY

The main purpose of the Charity is to apply income for any charitable purpose relating 
to the National Health Service wholly or mainly for the services provided by the North 
Bristol NHS Trust.

CHARITABLE FUNDS

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST

Foreword



The accounts of the Funds Held on Trust by the North Bristol NHS Trust Trustee

 

 

 

 

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

Charity Registration No. 1055900
NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

Statement of Trustee's responsibilities

The Trustee is responsible for:

- keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the Charity and to enable it to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements in the Charities Act 2011 
and those outlined in the directions issued by the Secretary of  State; 

- establishing and monitoring a system of internal control;  and 

- establishing arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.

The Trustee is required under the Charities Act 2011 and the National Health Service Act 1977 to prepare 
accounts for each financial year.  The Secretary of State, with the approval of the Treasury, directs that these 
accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Charity in accordance with the Charities Act 
2011.  In preparing these accounts, the Trustee is required to:

- apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the 
approval of the Treasury.

- make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent; 

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the accounts. 

The Trustee confirms that it has met the responsibilities set out above and complied with the requirements for 
preparing the accounts on a going concern basis. The financial statements set out on pages 3 to 16 attached 
have been compiled from and are in accordance with the financial records maintained by the Trustee. 

The Trustee provided the financial statements and information to the auditors who have been appointed  under 
section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and who report in accordance with regulations made under section 154 of 
that Act.

By Order of the Trustee

Signed on behalf of the Trustee: 

Andrea Young, Chief Executive                            Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance
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Independent auditor's report to the trustees of  North Bristol 
NHS Trust Charitable Funds.  
We have audited the financial statements of  North Bristol NHS 
Trust Charitable Funds for the year ended 31 March 2014 which 
comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet and 
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 
 
This report is made solely to the charity's trustees, as a body, in 
accordance with Section 154 of the Charities Act 2011. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's 
trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the charity and its trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement 
set out on page 1, the trustees are responsible for the preparation of 
financial statements which give a true and fair view.   
  
We have been appointed as auditor under section 149 of the Charities 
Act 2011 and report in accordance with regulations made under 
section 154 of that Act. Our responsibility is to audit and express an 
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s 
(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
  
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is 
provided on the APB's website at 
www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm. 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
  

• give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as 
at 31 March 2014, and of its incoming resources and 
application of resources, for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Charities Act 2011. 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where 
the Charities Act 2011 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
  

• the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report is 
inconsistent in any material respect with the financial 
statements; or 
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`

2013/14
Note Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Incoming resources
Donations, legacies and similar resources

Donations 346 320 0 666 1,208
Legacies 95 83 0 178 291
Grants receivable:

Other grants receivable 0 0 0 0 0
Total donations and legacies 441 403 0 844 1,499
Operating activities 0

Activities for generating funds 3.2 209 433 0 642 273
Total operating activities 209 433 0 642 273

Investment income 9.3 201 126 0 327 314
Other incoming resources 12 1 0 13 24

Total incoming resources 863 963 0 1,826 2,110

Resources expended
Costs of generating funds 3.2 96 85 0 181 193

Charitable expenditure
Activities in furtherance of charity's objectives 3.1 1,063 522 0 1,585 1,426
Investment management costs  39 25 0 64 56
Governance costs 5 6 3 0 9 14

Total resources expended 1,204 635 0 1,839 1,689

Expenditure for the year before transfers (341) 328 0 (13) 421

Transfers between funds 0 0 0  0 0

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources (341) 328 0 (13) 421

 
Gain/Loss on revaluation of investment assets 317 219 0 536 (145)

Gain/Loss on disposal of investment assets 33 22 0 55 (73)

Fund balance movement to other NHS Charities 0 (88) 0 (88) (25)
 

Net movement in funds 9 481 0 489 178

Fund balances brought forward 206 10,454 31 10,691 10,513
 (as previously stated)

Restructuring adujstment (Note 1.10) 7,299 (7,299) 0 0 0

Restated fund balances brought forward 12 7,409 3,251 31 10,691 10,513
 

Fund balances carried forward 7,417 3,732 31 11,180 10,691

`
The notes on pages 5 to 16 form part of the accounts.

 

Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014/2015

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15
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Restated
Notes Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total at Total at 

Funds Funds Funds 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed assets
Investments 9 7,366 2,875 29 10,270 9,713

Total fixed assets 7,366 2,875 29 10,270 9,713

Current assets
Debtors 10 79 117 0 196 308
Cash at bank and in hand 9.4 777 303 2 1,082 811

Total current assets 856 420 2 1,278 1,119

 
Creditors: amounts falling due 11 (264) (104) 0 (368) (141)
                within one year

Net current assets 592 316 2 910 978

Total assets less current liabilities 7,958 3,191 31 11,180 10,691

Total Net Assets 7,958 3,191 31 11,180 10,691

Funds of the Charity
Capital funds:

Endowment funds 12.1 0 0 31 31 31

Income funds:  
Restricted 12.2 0 3,191 0 3,191 3,251
Unrestricted                          7,958 0 0 7,958 7,409  

Total funds 7,957 3,205 31 11,180 10,691

 
The notes on pages 5 to 16 form part of the accounts.

By Order of the Trustee

Signed on behalf of the Trustee:

                    Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance

 

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

1.1 Accounting convention

1.2 Incoming resources

a) All incoming resources are included in full in the Statement of Financial Activities as soon as the 
following three factors can be met:

 

b)

c)

d) Gifts in kind:
 

i)

ii)
####

iii)
 

 

1.3 Fixed assets

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as modified for the 
revaluation of certain investments, and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting 
standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting and Reporting by Charities" issued 
by the Charity Commission in 2005.

Assets given for distribution by the Charity are included in the Statement of Financial Activities 
only when distributed. 

Assets given for use by the Charity (e.g. property for its own occupation) are included in the 
Statement of Financial Activities as incoming resources when receivable.

i)     entitlement - arises when a particular resource is receivable or the Charity's right becomes legally 
enforceable;

ii)    certainty - when there is reasonable certainty that the incoming resource will be received;

iii)   measurement - when the monetary value of the incoming resources can be measured with 
sufficient reliability.

Gifts made in kind but on trust for conversion into cash and subsequent application by the Charity 
are included in the accounting period in which the gift is sold.

In all cases the amount at which gifts in kind are brought into account is either a reasonable estimate of 
their value to the Charity or the amount actually realised.  

Income received from the investment of endowment funds is treated as unrestricted.

Legacies are accounted for as incoming resources once the receipt of the legacy becomes reasonably 
certain.  

This will be once confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate that payment of 
the legacy will be made or property transferred and once all conditions attached to the legacy have been 
fulfilled.

No fixed assets are held or owned by the Charity other than investments. However contributions are made 
towards the cost of capital assets in North Bristol NHS Trust as detailed in note 3.1

Page 5



1.4 Resources expended 

a)

b)

c)

1.5 Fixed asset investments 
Fixed asset investments are investments listed on the stock exchange included in the balance sheet at
market value.  These investments are managed by Smith & Williamson, see note 1.12 for more
information.

1.6 Cash Flow Statement

As the Charity is classed as a "Small Company" under Financial Reporting Standard 
(FRS) 1 it is not required to include a cash flow statement within its Annual Accounts.

1.7 Structure of funds

 

1.8 Realised and unrealised gains and losses 

1.9 Apportionment

 

1.10 Prior year adjustments

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

Following queries raised by Grant Thornton (our auditors) and the reorganisation of the charitable funds after the 
consolidation of the North Bristol Trust onto the Southmead site an exercise was undertaken during the year to 
reassess the way in which the funds of the charity have been structured.  The Trustees have reviewed 
documentation accompanying certain donations and legacies to reestablish whether it clearly imposes a legal 
restriction on the use of the donations and legacies.  As a consequence of this review there has been a transfer 
of £7,306,000 from restricted funds into unrestricted (but designated) funds as at 31st March 2015.  This has 
been treated as a prior period adjustment and the comparitive funds balances have been restated.

The Charity's accounts are prepared in accordance with the accruals concept.  All expenditure is recognised 
once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party.

The costs of generating funds are the costs associated with generating income for the Charity.  These will 
include the costs associated with appeals, printing, publicity and investment management together with 
appropriate salary costs.

Activities in the furtherance of the Charity's objectives are accounted for on an accruals basis where the 
conditions for their payment have been met or where a third party has a reasonable expectation that they 
will receive the grant. This includes grants made to NHS bodies.  

Governance costs of the Charity include costs incurred by the finance department of North Bristol NHS 
Trust.  These are accounted for on an accruals basis and comprise all costs of the Charity and its 
compliance with regulation and good practice. These costs include costs related to statutory audit together 
with other direct Trustee costs.  This cost is recharged by North Bristol NHS Trust.

Where there is a legal restriction on the purposes to which a fund may be put, the fund is classified in the 
accounts as a restricted fund.  Funds where the capital is held to generate income for charitable purposes and 
cannot itself be spent are accounted for as endowment funds.  Other funds are classified as unrestricted funds.  
Funds which are not legally restricted but which the Trustee's representatives have chosen to earmark for set 
purposes are classified as designated funds. The major funds held within these categories are disclosed in 
notes  12.1, 12.2, 12.3 and 12.4.  During the year there has been a restructuring of the Charity's funds.  See 
note 1.10.

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise.  Realised gains and losses 
on investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening market value (or date of 
purchase if later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between market value at the 
year end and opening market value (or purchase price if acquired during the year).

Dividend, interest and governance costs are apportioned annually to the funds listed in 12.1 to 12.4 according to 
the average of monthly fund balances. Realised and unrealised gains and losses held on reserve are 
apportioned to the funds using the same method and in accordance with the reserves policy. Central support 
costs have been allocated to funds on the basis of the average fund balances during the year as it is the 
Trustee's view that this is  equitable and in line with their intention to encourage the effective use of funds. 
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1.11 Pooling scheme

An official pooling scheme is operated for investments relating to the following funds:

North Bristol NHS Trust (Expendable Funds) Common Investment Fund
North Bristol NHS Trust (Capital) Common Investment Fund

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

Charity Registration No. 1055900
NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
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1.12 Investment policy

 

 

 

 
 

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

In order to maximise income potential, the Charity invests monies to generate interest and when appropriate, 
dividends. To ensure that there are monies available to meet different demands on expenditure, the balances are held 
as short term, and long term investments. The Charity engages  Smith & Williamson Investment Management as its 
investments manager. The Charity also retains the services of an independent investment advisor who advises the 
Charitable Funds Committee on investment strategy.

Funds are invested by Smith & Williamson acting as Investment Manager for the Charitable Funds.  They are 
instructed to maintain a balanced portfolio of holdings with no holding in tobacco related investments being held as 
part of the portfolio.  Smith & Williamson charge investment fees quarterly to the Charity.

Short term balances

Monies are held in current accounts with The Royal Bank of Scotland and Citibank, until such time as they are needed 
to meet expenditure requirements. As the balances are dependent on the income received on a day to day basis, they 
fluctuate in accordance with the income received. In addition to this cash is held with Smith and Willimson to enable 
them to purchase and sell investments in line with the investment policy. 

Long term balances

Under the Trustee Investment Act 1961 and the Trustee Act 2000, the Charity as a corporate body, is empowered to 
invest in certain categories of investments. The Charity makes investments in accordance with this Act. At 31st March 
2015 the long term balances amounted to £10,270,000

Unrestricted funds

This policy refers to unrestricted funds which are defined by the Charity Commission as, “income which becomes 
available to the Charity and is to be expended at the Trustee’s discretion in furtherance of any of the Charity’s objects 
(sometimes referred to as ‘general purpose income’); but which is not yet spent, committed or designated”.

During the financial year an exercise was undertaken to review the funds held by the Charity.  See note 1.10 for 
further details.
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1.13 Reserves Policy

1.14 Going Concern Policy

 

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

These accounts have been prepared on the basis that the charity is a going concern.  At this time the trustees have 
no doubts that the charity holds sufficient funds to meet all it obligations for the forseeable future.

The Charity receives income in the form of donations and bequests/legacies. This income is banked as and when 
it is received. By its very nature, it is difficult to predict in advance the amount of income that the Charity is likely to 
receive, and therefore it is essential that the Charity maintains sums of money on reserve, to meet its requirements 
and to act as a buffer against stock market fluctuations.

It is the policy of the Trustee to retain on reserve a minimum of 20% of the value of the Charity's investment 
portfolio in the form of unrealised and realised gains. 

As at 31st March 2015 the amount held on reserve amounted to £2,911,232.61. This now represents 28% of the 
value of the Charity's investment portfolio.  In view of the continued uncertainty regarding the economic outlook the 
Trustees have decided not to distribute to individual funds any of the excess reserve currently held over and above 
the minimum 20% holding. 
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2 Material Incoming Resources
Total incoming resources from a single donor over £50,000 in any one of the last two financial years

2013/14
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000 £000

Novartis 152 0 152 137
BUST 0 120 120 0
Grant towards Helipad 115 0 115 0
Merck 110 0 110 0
Estate of P Pinnegar 81 0 81 0
Estate of Earnest Cole dec'd 46 0 46 200
Biogen 0 0 0 150
John James Foundation Bristol 0 0 0 100
Genzyme Therapeutics 0 0 0 100
Garfield Weston Foundation 0 0 0 100
Estate of Margaret Patricia Ballard 0 0 0 97
Dans Funds for Burns 0 0 0 51
Total material incoming resources 504 120 624 935

3 Details of resources expended

3.1 Activities in furtherance of charity's objectives:

2013/14
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000 £000

Patients welfare and amenities 273 201 474 342
Staff welfare and amenities 367 100 467 343
Research 332 222 554 429
Contribution to capital assets 65 0 65 178
Miscellaneous 26 0 26 134

1,064 523 1,586 1,426

During the year services with funds to the value of £73,321 transferred to University Hospital Bristol and £14,396 to Sirona.
The funds transferred to University Hospital Bristol were transferred to Above and Beyond Reg Charity Number 229945. 

3.2 Cost of generating funds  
2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 2013/14

Total costs Total funds Total costs Total funds 
 raised raised

£000 £000 £000 £000
Fund raising costs including salaries 181 642 193 273

181 642 193 273

The major benefactors of funds raised include: 
£285,700 for Elgar House
£121,000 for Breast Care Centre
£115,000 for Hellipad

This cost has been shown separately at the bottom of the Statement of Financial Activities.

2014/15

2014/15

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15
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4 Support costs

2013/14
Salaries Computer Other Investment Total Total

services management  
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Patients welfare and amenities 21 0 0 2 16 39 27
Staff welfare and amenities 25 0 0 3 19 47 24
Research 30 1 1 3 22 57 29
Contribution to capital assets 4 0 0 0 3 7 12
Fund raising expenses 1 0 0 0 1 2 13
Miscellaneous 4 0 0 1 3 8 11

85 1 1 9 64 160 116

5 Governance costs
2013/14

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000 £000

External Audit fee 3 1 4 4
Other Advisors 5 3 8 9
Indemnity Insurance 1 0 1 1

9 4 13 14

6 Analysis of staff costs

2013/14
 Financial   

 Management Fundraising Total Total
 £000 £000 £000 £000
Salaries and wages 61 82 143 150
Social security costs 4 6 10 11
Other pension costs 6 11 17 20

71 99 170 181
Average number of employees in the year 4 4 8 11
Whole time equivalent employee numbers 2.44 3.60 6.04 3.50
  

Staff costs attributable to the Charity are done so on a recharged basis from North Bristol NHS Trust. For administrative ease all 
staff whose costs are so attributed are employed directly by North Bristol NHS Trust and recharged to the Charity according
to the time spent on Charitable Fund matters.

No staff whose costs are attributable to the Charity earned in excess of £60,000 directly as a result of duties
undertaken for the Charity.  

2014/15

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

2014/15

Bank 
charges

2014/15
This is a further analysis of the costs shown in note 3.1
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7 Changes in resources available for Charity use

2013/14
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Net movement in funds available 9 481 0 490 # 178
for future activities

9 481 0 490 178

8 Fixed assets

No fixed assets are held or owned by the Charity other than investments.

9 Analysis of fixed asset investments
 
9.1 Fixed asset investments:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Opening market value 1st April 9,713 10,011
Less: disposals at carrying value (1,723) (1,832)
Add: acquisitions at cost 1,744 1,678
Net gain on revaluation 536 (144)
Closing market value 31st March 10,270 9,713

Closing historic cost 31st March 9,171 9,002

9.2 Market value at 31 March  
31 March 2014

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Investments listed on stock exchange 7,366 2,875 29 10,270 9,713
7,366 2,875 29 10,270 9,713

The Charity's investments are all held primarily to provide an investment return for the Charity. The Charity holds no 
programme related investments.

9.3 Analysis of gross income from investments
2013/14

Held
in UK Total Total
£000 £000 £000

Dividends from Investments listed on stock exchange 325 325 312
Interest from cash held 2 2 2

327 327 314

9.4 Analysis of cash

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Cash in bank 1,062 766
Cash invested with Smith & Williamson 20 45

1,082 811

31 March 2015

2014/15

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

Charity Registration No. 1055900

2014/15
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10 Analysis of debtors

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Investment Fund Managers 83 67
Other debtors 113 241

Total debtors falling due within one year 196 308

11 Analysis of creditors

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

 Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts due to North Bristol NHS Trust 179 35
Investment Fund Managers 14 10
Other creditors 162 96

Total creditors falling due within one year 355 141

12 Analysis of funds

12.1 Endowment funds  

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Capital in perpetuity 31 31

31 31
 

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

In accordance with guidance from the Department of Health, the Trust holds and administers designated 
funds on behalf of South Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group, see page 14 for details.
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12.2 Primary Funds

Balance Internal External Incoming Resources Gains and Balance
 1 April 2014 Transfers Transfers resources expended losses 31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

North Bristol NHS Trust 206 -53 0 110 (47) 17 233
General Fund
North Bristol NHS Trust 6,948 -34 (63) 1,285 (1,134) 361 7,363
Hospitals Funds

Cancer Fund 635 0 0 108 (46) 50 747
 

North Bristol NHS Trust 442 0 (10) 81 (40) 13 486
  Community Fund  

 
North Bristol NHS Trust 2,388 85 0 243 (574) 147 2,289
  Research & Development 
  Fund   

 10,619 (2) (73) 1,827 (1,841) 588 11,118

12.3 Other designated funds  

Balance Internal External Incoming Resources Gains and Balance
 1 April 2014 Transfers Transfers resources expended losses 31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Held on behalf of South 41 2 (14) 0 (1) 3 31
Gloucestershire Clinical
Commissioning Group

41 2 (14) 0 (1) 3 31
 

Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
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Details of unrestricted funds

12.4

North Bristol NHS Trust For any charitable purpose or purposes relating to the services provided by the National Health 
General Fund Service wholly or mainly for the service provided by North Bristol NHS Trust.

12.5 Details of restricted funds

North Bristol NHS Trust For the relief of sickness of patients who are being treated at the North Bristol NHS Trust Hospitals, 
Hospitals Fund including Cossham, Frenchay and Southmead and for the relief of sickness by promoting the efficient

 
Cancer Fund For any charitable purpose or purposes, principally (but not exclusively) at or in connection with

Frenchay Hospital, which will further the following aims:

a.   The investigation of the causes of sickness and disability and the prevention, treatment, cure
      and defeat of cancer in all its forms.
b.   The advancement of scientific and medical education and research in topics related to cancer.
c.   The furtherance of any other charitable purposes or the relief of persons suffering from cancer.

North Bristol NHS Trust For the relief of sickness of patients in the community who have been  treated by the National Health
Community Fund Service and for the relief of sickness of such patients by promoting the efficient performance 

of their duties by the staff of North Bristol NHS Trust.  
In accordance with guidance from the Department of Health this Fund includes £56,000 administered
on behalf of South Gloucestershire Primary Care Trust.

North Bristol NHS Trust For any charitable purpose or purposes, principally (but not exclusively) in connection with North
Research and Development Bristol NHS Trust, which will further the following a 
Fund

a.   The investigation of the causes of sickness and disability and the prevention, treatment, cure
      and defeat of sickness and disability in all its forms.
b.   The advancement of scientific and medical education and research in topics related to sickness
       and disability (provided the useful results of such research will be published). 
c.   The furtherance of any other charitable purposes or the relief of persons suffering from sickness 
       and disability.

 

 

 

performance of their duties by the staff at the Hospitals.

Name of fund

Description of the nature and purpose of each fund

Description of the nature and purpose of each fund

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

Name of fund
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13 Trustee indemnity insurance

2014/15 2013/14
£000 £000

Cost of directors' and officers' liability insurance 1 1

Total 1 1

14 Contingencies

A number of contingent assets relating to legacies have not been included within the 2014-15 Annual Accounts.
Whilst conditions attaching to the legacies have been met a value cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability to permit their inclusion.

Estimated values for the legacies include:
£000

M McLeod 50

50

There are number of incomplete legacies are currently ongoing but it is not possible at this time to reliably 
estimate their value to the Charity.

15 Post balance sheet events

There are no post balance sheet events relating to the financial year ended 31st March 2015.

16 Trustee's and connected person's transactions

16.1 Trustee's representatives expenses reimbursed

 No representative of the Trustee received reimbursements in respect of expenses f  

Trustee's representatives' remuneration

No representative of the Trustee received any remuneration paid or payable from the Charity.
 

16.2 Trustee transactions with representatives of the Trustee or connected persons

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15

The Charity has made revenue and capital payments to North Bristol NHS Trust during the 
year where the representatives of the Trustee are also members of the Trust Board. During 
the the year members of the Trust Board have received no remuneration and there has 
been no transactions between them individually and the Charity.
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16.3 Related party transactions  

During 14/15 there were no related party transactions with the Directors of the Trust Board of North Bristol NHS Trust

The Charity has made revenue and capital payments to North Bristol NHS Trust where the representatives, as listed below, 
 of the Trustee are also members of the Trust.

Funds owed to North Bristol Trust at the year end are disclosed in note 11.

All board members serving at the beginning of 2014/15 served during the 2013/14 financial year.

During 2014/2015 the Directors of the Trust Board of North Bristol NHS Trust were:

Chairman Peter Rilett 

Non-Executive Directors Nick Patel (Charitable Funds Chair to December 2015, director to December 2015)
Ken Guy  (Charitable Funds Chair from January 2015)
Avril Waterman-Pearson (to December 2015)
Robert Mould 
Mark Lawton
Sue Sundstrom  (to December 2015)
Liz Redfern (from December 2015)
Andrew Willis (from December 2015)
Nishan Canagarajah (from December 2015)

Executive Directors

Chief Executive Andrea Young

Medical Director Chris Burton

Director of Finance and Information Catherine Phillips  
 

Director of Nursing Sue Jones

NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST CHARITABLE FUNDS
Charity Registration No. 1055900

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2014/15
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Our Ref:   CP/CA Finance Directorate 
 Christopher Hancock Building 
 Southmead Hospital  
4th June 2015 Westbury-on-Trym 
 Bristol    BS10 5NB 
 
 Tel: (0117) 414 3818 
Grant Thornton UK LLP Fax: (0117) 323 6117 
Hartwell House E.mail: Catherine.phillips@nbt.nhs.uk 
55-61 Victoria Street Website: http://www.northbristol.nhs.uk 
Bristol 
BS1 6FT 

4 June 2015 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds 
Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2015 
 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 
North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds for the year ended 31 March 2015 for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance with  Section 154 of the Charities Act 2011. 
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Financial Statements 
 
i We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement 
letter dated 30 April 2015, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
Charities Act 2011, and the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities (revised 2005) ('SORP'), issued by the Charity Commission for England and Wales 
and any subsequent amendments or variations to this statement., in particular the financial 
statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith. 
 
ii We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control 
to prevent and detect error and fraud. 
 
iii Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
 
iv Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Statement of Recommended Practice 
'Accounting and Reporting by Charities (revised 2005) ('SORP'), issued by the Charity 
Commission for England and Wales and any subsequent amendments or variations to this 
statement. 
Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



 
v All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Statement of 
Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities (revised 2005) ('SORP'), issued 
by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and any subsequent amendments or 
variations to this statement require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 
vi The  financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
vii We can confirm that: 
 
a. all income has been recorded;  
b. the restricted funds have been properly applied; 
c. constructive obligations for grants have been recognised; and  
d. the trustees consider there to be appropriate controls in place to ensure overseas 
payments are applied for charitable purposes. 
 
 
Information Provided 
 
viii We have provided you with: 
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and 
c. unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determine it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 
 
ix We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
x All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 
 
xi We have disclosed to you our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
involving: 
a. management; 
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
xii We have disclosed to you our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators or others. 
 
xiii We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 
financial statements. 
 
xiv We have disclosed to you the identity of the charity's related parties and all the related 
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 
xv We confirm that we have reviewed all correspondence with regulators, which has also 
been made available to you, including, in England and Wales, the serious incident report 
Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
 



guidelines issued by the Charity Commission (updated in 2010).  We also confirm that no 
serious incident reports have been submitted to the Charity Commission, nor any events 
considered for submission, during the year or in the period to the signing of the balance sheet. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Trustees 
 
 
 
Signed…………………………… 
Position: Catherine Phillips, Director of Finance 
 
Date:  
 
 
 
Signed…………………………… 
Position:  Ken Guy, Chair of Charitable Funds Committee 
 
Date:   

Peter Rilett  Andrea Young 
Chairman Chief Executive 
 A University of Bristol Teaching Trust 
 A University of the West of England Teaching Trust 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 

1. Purpose 
1.1. To present an update from the Committee following 

its meeting held on 18 May 2015. 

2. Background 

2.1. As a formal Committee of the Trust Board, the 
Committee is required to report after each meeting to 
highlight the key discussions, risks identified, 
decision taken and future business. The following 
report provides this update to the Trust Board. 

3. Business Undertaken 
3.1. The Committee considered the following: 

3.1.1. Future deep dive schedule which will focus 
on a key issue for assurance, and a flexible 
timeslot to allow for comprehensive and 
thorough consideration of an emerging or 
high risk issue. The next deep dive will be 
into the systems and processes which 
support workforce planning. 

3.1.2. Assurance about how the Trust undertakes 
due diligence on independent sector 
providers, particularly from a quality 
perspective. The Committee heard that the 
process for undertaking this due diligence 
process was new and emerging. The 
Committee requested an update at its next 
meeting on the outcomes of the due 
diligence process and any risks which may 
emerge. 

3.1.3. The developing Emergency Department 
(ED) quality performance dashboard 
including the process for developing this. 
Ben Jordan, ED Consultant, attended the 
meeting to outline the work and timescales 
for developing the dashboard. The 
Committee requested that this was done at 
pace and that if additional support was 
required this was highlighted to the Director 
of Nursing and Medical Director. 

3.1.4. An update on the completion of actions 
following the Chief Inspector of Hospitals 
inspection. The Committee noted that 32 
(17%) actions were potentially delayed or 
there was insufficient evidence to confirm 
their progress. The Committee asked for 
further detail on the overdue actions and 
encouragement to complete. 

3.1.5. The Committee considered a verbal update 
following an independent assurance review 
by PwC on compliance with the CQC 
regulations in the ED. This review was 
undertaken shortly before the CQC 
undertook their unannounced re-inspection 
of the ED. A more detailed report was 
expected to be provided by PwC which 
would be used to inform further 
improvement actions. 

3.1.6. The draft CQC Intelligent Monitoring Report 
was considered and noted. This showed an 
increase in the Trust’s risk score which 
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predominantly related to the outputs of the 
inpatient survey. See more detail in para 
3.1.10. 

3.1.7. The draft Quality Strategy was presented 
and the Committee inputted into its 
development. A further iteration of the 
strategy would be brought back to the next 
meeting. 

3.1.8. A draft quality performance report was 
presented and its content, as well as the 
format of how data was presented, was 
considered. The quality report would be 
finalised for the next meeting. 

3.1.9. The process for quality impact assessing 
savings schemes was considered and an 
overview of which schemes had been 
considered at an Executive level and which 
had been reviewed at the sub panel. These 
were 18 and 118 respectively. Of the 18 
reviewed at the Executive panel, 13 had 
been approved and 2 had been rejected for 
further review. In order to ensure that the 
sub-panel was applying the criteria 
effectively, it was agreed that the Executive 
panel and sub-panel would meet jointly to 
review the next set of savings plans and 
jointly agree the outcome. 

3.1.10. The results from the national inpatient 
survey were presented. Given the results 
had only just been released, work was 

ongoing to define the action plan associated 
with improvement. It was also noted that the 
survey was undertaken in June 2014, which 
coincided with the move into the Brunel 
building. It was agreed to investigate the 
possibility of running a revised survey to 
identify if there had been any significant 
changes in the feedback from inpatients 
since the time of the original survey. 

3.1.11. The Trust’s response to the Kate Lampard 
lesson learnt report was considered and 
approved. The responses to the 
recommendations had been devised by 
allocated managers in the Trust and 
approved by the appropriate Executive 
Director. The key issue was to ensure that 
all volunteers had up to date safeguarding 
training. 

4. Key Risks Identified and Impact 
4.1. The Committee considered the following key risks: 

4.1.1. Reputational impact from the national 
inpatient survey. Mitigations were 
considered in relation to undertaking a more 
up to date survey to reassess the potential 
impact and then align this with existing 
improvement plans. 

4.1.2. Potential quality issues with transferring 
patients to providers who had not been 
subject to a due diligence review and whose 
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outcomes may not meet the expectations of 
the Trust. 

4.1.3. Access to timely and robust quality data 
about the functioning of the ED. A 
dashboard was underdevelopment and 
extra support to complete this would be 
sought. 

5. Key Decisions 
5.1. The Committee approved the response to the Kate 

Lampard Lessons Learnt Report which was 
subsequently submitted to the NHS Trust 
Development Authority by the deadline of 31 May 
2015. 

6. Exceptions and Challenges 
6.1. There were no exceptions or challenges identified. 

7. Governance and Other Business 
7.1. There is no other business to report. 

8. Future Business 
8.1. The Committee will be considering the following 

issues in the next 3-6 months: 
8.1.1. In-depth quality performance review utilising 

the new quality report 
8.1.2. Review of the next version of the quality 

strategy 
8.1.3. Outcome of the due diligence review of 

independent sector providers 
8.1.4. Key corporate risk review and moderation 

8.1.5. Deep dive review into workforce planning 
from a quality perspective. 

9. Recommendations 
9.1. The Committee is asked to consider the activities of 

the Committee and note the assurance provided. 
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1. Purpose 
1.1. This report outlines the business discussed at the 

Finance & Performance Committee meeting held 
on 22 May 2015. 

2. Background 

2.1. The Finance and Performance Committee meets 
monthly and was established to provide assurance to 
the Trust Board that there are robust and integrated 
systems in place overseeing the Trust’s finance and 
performance in line with the organisation’s 
objectives. 

3. Finance and Sustainability 
3.1. The committee considered the following reports: 

3.1.1. Month 1 Finance report 
3.1.2. Financial sustainability plan delivery  
3.1.3. QIPP Plans and Contract Penalties 
3.1.4. Capital Management Review 

3.2. The detail of the month 1 financial position was 
discussed with a particular focus on the income 
and expenditure positions, savings delivery and 
the risks to the position going forward. 

3.3. The delivery of the in-year savings plans and the 
progress on completing the quality impact 
assessments for all of the schemes was 
discussed. It was agreed that a more detailed 
review of future year’s plans would be brought to 
the committee once the 2015-16 year CIOP 

schemes had been identified. The intention is that 
the committee will provide oversight of in year 
delivery as well as adopting a strategic role in 
ensuring long term delivery of efficiency and 
productivity programmes. 

3.4. It was noted that £7.189m had still to be identified 
for efficiency schemes in 2015-16. Three 
directorates (Core Clinical Services, Facilities and 
Women’s and Children’s) had the largest 
unidentified savings schemes of £2.5m, £1.9m and 
£2.3m respectively. It was agreed that if these 
positions had not materially improved by the next 
meeting the directorate management team(s) 
would be invited to explain their position to the 
meeting of the Committee in June 2015. 

3.5. In relation to the delivery of Core Clinical Service’s 
savings, the Committee discussed the impact on 
RTT delivery. It was agreed that as theatre 
productivity was critical to operational performance 
improvement and income generation, then Sasha 
Karakusevic, Director of Strategy and chair of the 
Theatres Board should attend the June 2015 
meeting to describe measures currently in place to 
deliver the theatre productivity assumptions in the 
RTT delivery projections and the confidence he 
has in those assumptions being delivered.  

3.6. Particular concern was noted with respect to 
staffing assumptions required to deliver the 
improvement in theatre productivity in October 
2015. Particular assurance will be sought in this 
respect at the June 2015 meeting. 
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3.7. The current position of commissioners QIPP plans 
was noted in relation to Bristol and South 
Gloucestershire CCGs. The risk related to contract 
penalties was considered and it was noted that 
where there was an agreed performance 
improvement trajectory between the CCG and 
NBT, and this was achieved by NBT, the 
commissioners had contractually agreed not to 
apply the penalties. Where penalties were applied 
when a trajectory was not in place it was expected 
that the commissioners would reinvest the 
penalties in improvement programmes. 

3.8. On the assumption that NBT delivers the agreed 
trajectories then of the £15.086m total forecast 
penalties, which could be applied based on the 
national rules, only £2.345m may be applied and 
would be reinvested in improvement programmes.  

4.  Operational Performance 
4.1. The Committee considered the latest iteration of 

the Performance Assurance Framework (PAF) 
which would provide the committee with a more 
detailed overview of directorate performance and 
allow it to provide a greater level of assurance to 
the Trust Board on the Trust’s operational 
performance. 

4.2. It was noted that the PAF was being considered at 
Directorate Performance Meetings, and Ken Guy, 
Non-Executive Director, had attended the last set 
of meetings. 

4.3. The work to better understand service demand 
and the Trust’s capacity to deliver services was 
described by the Deputy Director of Operations. 
This included detail about the bottom up approach 
to understand the numbers of operations and 
therefore theatre capacity required.  

4.4. It was noted that the assessment had supported 
discussions with independent sector providers who 
the Trust was working with to address the Referral 
to Treatment (RTT) backlog. The assessment 
would also support longer term planning to ensure 
that the Trust had sufficient capacity to deliver the 
RTT standards on a sustainable basis within its 
own capacity. 

4.5. The timeliness of performance reporting, including 
the impact of validation was discussed. The 
committee requested that further work was 
undertaken to accelerate the availability of 
performance information, particularly workforce 
information, which often had a month lag. An 
update will be brought to the next meeting. 

4.6. Further to the request at the meeting of the Trust 
Board in April 2015, the committee considered the 
impact of variations in non-elective activity on the 
delivery of the RTT improvement trajectories.  

4.7. The modelling had demonstrated that if non-
elective activity increased by between 1-3.6% 
above current plan, there would be a need for 
between 7-27 more beds within NBT to maintain 
RTT trajectories. High level plans were being 
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developed to mitigate this risk, including plans to 
deliver further length of stay reductions. Therefore 
the Committee concluded that non-elective 
demand above forecast was a significant risk to 
RTT delivery. 

4.8. The Committee noted that the report from the 
Deputy Director of Operations regarding RTT 
delivery was a good first step in the Committee 
receiving assurance on the delivery of RTT 
trajectories. It was noted that RTT projections by 
speciality would be required by the Committee 
together with variation reporting. It was agreed that 
Andy Willis, Non-Executive Director, would meet 
with the Director of Operations to identify future 
reporting requirements for the Committee as soon 
as possible. 

4.9. The Committee requested the Executive team to 
identify the key performance metrics which the 
Committee, and Board, should focus their attention 
upon, which if delivered, would be likely to provide 
conditions for the delivery of wider organisational 
performance. 

5. Strategy 
5.1. The strategic outline case, attached in Appendix 1, 

for the development of car parks on the Sherston 
and Kendon sites on the Southmead Hospital site 
was considered. The case would support the 
overall plan to increase car parking at Southmead 
Hospital. 

5.2. The Committee approved the strategic outline 
case and requested the Outline Business Case 
and Final Business Case be progressed as quickly 
as possible. The Committee recommends that the 
Trust Board approves the case. 
 
 

6. Governance and Commercial Issues 
6.1. The latest position on the commercial settlement 

with Carillion was discussed. It was noted that 
there were no changes to the agreement 
documented and described to the Trust Board at 
its meeting on the 30 April 2015, however a 
trajectory for improvement against SFP’s had been 
agreed and would now be reported to the Trust 
Board and monitored by the Committee. 

6.2. The final agreement was now ready to sign, 
subject to agreement from the funders. 

6.3. It was agreed that it would be preferable not to 
extend the standstill agreement for a further 
month, and therefore the Trust Board should be 
asked to approve the trajectory in advance of the 
next meeting of the Trust Board.  

6.4. The trajectory was duly sent to all members of the 
Trust Board on Friday 22 May 2015 requesting 
their approval to the trajectory. The Trust Board 
will then be asked to ratify this decision at the 
meeting on 4 June 2015. 
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6.5. Heads of Terms for the sale of the Frenchay 
Hospital site were considered. The document had 
been drafted by the Trust’s legal advisers and 
reviewed by the Trust’s in-house legal team. The 
heads of terms were not legally binding on the 
Trust and were subject to the NHS Trust 
Development Authority agreeing the Full Business 
Case. 

6.6. It was agreed that the heads of terms would be 
circulated to all Board members for approval and 
that the decision taken would be ratified by the 
Trust Board at its meeting on 4 June 2015. 

 
6. Recommendations 

6.1 The Trust Board is asked to: 

• note the report from the meeting held on 22 May 
2015 

• ratify the decision of approve the heads of terms 
for the sale of the Frenchay Hospital site 

• ratify the decision to approve the SFP 
improvement trajectory 
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